
 

AGENDA |REGULAR TOWN 

COUNCIL MEETING 
Tu es d ay ,  J anu ary  26 ,  2021  a t  6 :00  PM  

Counc i l  C ha mb er  at  Ap e x  To wn H a l l ,  73  Hu nte r  S t ree t  

       
 Coun c i l  an d  Admin i s t r a t i on   

       

M a y o r :  J a c q u e s  K .  G i l be r t  |  M a y o r  P r o  T e m :  N i c o l e  L .  D o z i e r  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r s :  B r e t t  D .  G a n t t ;  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i n g sw o r th ;  C h e r y l  F .  S ta l l i n g s ;  T e r r y  M a h a f f e y  

T ow n  M a n a g e r :  D r e w  Hav e n s  |  As s i s ta n t  T o w n  M a n a g e r s :  S h a w n  P u r v i s  a n d  M a r ty  S t o n e  

T ow n  C l e r k :  D o n n a  B .  H o s c h ,  M M C  |  T ow n  At to r n e y :  L a u r i e  L .  H o h e  

 

COM ME N CE ME N T  

Ca l l  to  Or der   |   I nvo c at i o n   |   P l ed ge  o f  Al l e g i anc e  

PR E S E N T AT I O N S  

PR1 Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  w i th  T i m M a lone y ,  Wa ke  Co .  P l ann i ng ,  

Deve l op men t  &  I n spec t i ons  D i rec t o r  an d T i m Gar d i ne r ,  P lan ner  I I I  -  T ran sp or ta t i on  

P res en ta t i on  on  t he  s t a tu s  o f  PL AN Wa k e ,  the  dr af t  c o mprehen s i ve  p l an  fo r  Wa k e  

Coun t y .  

PR2 Ma yor  J ac que s  G i lbe r t  

P re s en ta t i on  o f  P roc l a ma t i on  rec o gn i z i ng Hea l th  an d Hu man i t y  Yo g a tho n  

PR3 Ma yor  J ac que s  G i lbe r t  

P re s en ta t i on  o f  B l ac k  H i s t o r y  M on th  P roc la ma t i on  

CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

A l l  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  i t e m s  a r e  c o n s i d e r e d  r o u t i n e ,  t o  b e  e n a c t e d  b y  o n e  m o t i o n  w i t h  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  

t h e  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a ,  a n d  w i t h o u t  d i s c u s s i o n .  I f  a  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  r e q u e s t s  d i s c u s s i o n  o f  a n  i t e m ,  t h e  

i t e m  m a y  b e  r e m o v e d  f r o m  t h e  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  a n d  c o n s i d e r e d  s e p a r a t e l y .  T h e  M a y o r  w i l l  p r e s e n t  t h e  

C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  t o  b e  s e t  p r i o r  t o  t a k i n g  a c t i o n  o n  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  i t e m s  

CN1 Donn a Ho sc h ,  To wn C le r k  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  th e  Ap ex  Tax  R e por t  d a te d 12/07/2020  

CN2 Ma yor  J ac que s  G i lbe r t  

Mo t i on  to  re ap po i n t  Je f f  U l r i c k ,  B i l l  C ar ra wa y ,  an d Be t sy  S i s l e y  t o  the  T re e  C AP  

Co mmi t tee  

CN3 Al l y so n  C o l t r ane ,  L on g R an ge T r an s i t  P l ann er  I I  

Po s s i b le  mo t i o n  to  a p pro ve ,  a nd  to  au th or i ze  th e  To wn M an a ger  t o  s i gn  an d e xec u te ,  

the  T r i a ng le  T r ans p or t at i o n  De man d M an a ge men t  Ag ree men t  t o  fund a  p or t i o n  o f  

- Page 1 -



the  new Long-R ange T rans i t  P lanner  pos i t i on  and promot i on  o f  the  Go Ape x  R oute  1  

i n  F i sc a l  Year  2021 .   

CN4 Mar ty  S t one ,  P .E .  –  As s i s t an t  To wn M an a ger  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  an d aut hor i ze  the  To wn  Man a ger  to  exec u te  t he  s a me fo r  an  

Enc ro ac h men t  Ag ree men t  be tw een the  To wn an d pr o per ty  o wn er ,  An dr ew J .  

Ja b l ons k i  (G r an tee ) ,  reg ard i n g Wa ke  C oun t y ,  NC P I N#0732 -1 5 -35 57 ,  1032  D i a mon d 

Do ve  L ane ,  rec or de d i n  Book  o f  Ma ps  2018 ,  P a ge 1365 ,  Wa ke  C o unt y  R e g i s te r  o f  

Deed s .  

CN5 Denn i s  B r o wn ,  Sen i o r  Ca p i t a l  P ro j ec t s  M an a ger  

Mo t i on  t o  a ppr o ve  an d au th or i ze  the  To wn Man a ger  t o  exec u te  Con t r ac t  Ame n d men t  

#2  fo r  G MP  2  w i th  C ons t ruc t i on  Man a ger  at  R i s k ,  J  M  Th o mp so n ,  i n  t he  a moun t  o f  

$4 ,537 ,077 .23  fo r  the  new  P le as an t  P ark  P r o j ec t .  Th i s  Guar an tee d Ma x i mu m Pr i c e  2  

(G M P  2 )  i nc lude s  tu r f  an d  fenc i n g p ac ka g es  f o r  t he  soc c er  f i e l ds ,  as  we l l  a s  th e  

under gr ound  dr a i na g es  s y s t e ms  f o r  the  tu r f . .  

CN6 E r i ka  Sac c o ,  I T  D i rec t o r  

Mo t i on  to  ap pro ve  Ca pi t a l  P ro j ec t  Or d i nanc e Ame n d men t  2021 -04  to  a l loc a te  

$210 ,000  fun d i n g fo r  I T  r e l a ted  c on t r ac t s  re la te d to  th e  S en i o r  C ente r  /  C o mmun i ty  

Cen te r  Ex pan s i on .   

CN7 B r i an  Me yer ,  De put y  T own  At t o rne y  a nd  Mi t c h  Mc K i nne y ,  D epu t y  Po l i c e  Ch i e f  

Mo t i on  to  a p pr o ve  a  R eso lu t i o n  a d op t i n g an  I nvo l un tar y  C o mm i t men t  Cus t o dy  an d  

T r an sp or ta t i on  Ag ree men t .  

CN8 Drew H a vens ,  Tow n M ana g er  

Mo t i on  t o  a ppr o ve  va c at i o n  le a ve  p ay ou t  t o  re t i re d P o l i c e  Ch i e f  John  Le t tene y  fo r  

96  hou r s  o f  lea ve  ac c u mu l a te d i n  exc e ss  o f  wh a t  i s  a l l o we d b y  p o l i c y .   

R E G U L AR  M E E T I N G  A G E N D A  

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  w i l l  c a l l  f o r  a d d i t i o n a l  A g e n d a  i t e m s  f r o m  C o u n c i l  o r  S t a f f  a n d  s e t  t h e   

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a  p r i o r  t o  C o u n c i l  a c t i o n s .  

P U B L I C  F O R U M  

P u b l i c  F o r u m  a l l o w s  t h e  p u b l i c  a n  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  a d d r e s s  t h e  T o w n  C o u n c i l .   T h e  s p e a k e r  i s   

r e q u e s t e d  n o t  t o  a d d r e s s  i t e m s  t h a t  a p p e a r  a s  P u b l i c  H e a r i n g s  s c h e d u l e d  o n  t h e  R e g u l a r  A g e n d a .    

T h e  M a y o r  w i l l  r e c o g n i z e  t h o s e  w h o  w o u l d  l i k e  t o  s p e a k  a t  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  t i m e .   L a r g e   

g r o u p s  a r e  a s k e d  t o  s e l e c t  a  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  t o  s p e a k  f o r  t h e  e n t i r e  g r o u p .    

C o m m e n t s  m u s t  b e  l i m i t e d  t o  3  m i n u t e s  t o  a l l o w  o t h e r s  t h e  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  s p e a k .  

P U B L I C  H E AR I N G S  

PH1 Jo an n a He l ms ,  Ec on o mi c  De ve l op me nt  D i rec to r  

Pub l i c  he ar i ng t o  c o ns i de r  an d  rec e i ve  pub l i c  i nput  o n  p ro v i d i ng an  ec on o mi c  

de ve lo p men t  i nc en t i ve  fo r  “ P r o j ec t  De l t a ”  i n  ac c or d anc e w i t h  t he  To wn ’s  p o l i c y  

(D e ve l op men t  I nve s t men t  Gr an t ) .  

- Page 2 -



PH2 Joanna He lms ,  Ec onomi c  Deve lopmen t  D i rec to r  

Pub l i c  he ar i ng  to  c on s i de r  an d  rec e i ve  pub l i c  i nput  on  p ro v i d i ng  f i nanc i a l  a s s i s t anc e  

fo r  S ma l l  Bu s i nes s  S upp or t  i n i t i a t i ve s  du r i ng Wi n te r  2021  an d be yon d  to  o f f se t  

har dsh i p s  c re a te d  b y  the  CO VI D -19  p an de mi c .  

PH3 Di anne  Kh i n ,  D i rec t o r  o f  P l ann i ng  an d Co m mun i t y  De ve l op men t  

Pub l i c  hear i n g an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  to  a do p t  a n  Or d i nanc e on  the  Ques t i on  o f  

An n e xa t i on  –  Ap ex  Town Counc i l ’ s  i n ten t  to  anne x  P eak  C i ty  Par tn e r s ,  L L C (1200  

Ja me s  S t ree t )  p r ope r ty  c o nt a i n i ng  4 .777  ac re s  loc a te d at  1200  J a mes  S t ree t ,  

An n e xa t i on  #699  i n to  the  To wn ’s  c or por a te  l i mi t s .  

PH4 Sar ah  Va n  E ve r y ,  Sen i o r  P l anner  

Pub l i c  Hear i n g an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  R e zon i n g App l i c at i o n  #20C Z11  

R ober t s  R oa d  P ro per t i e s  P UD .   The  ap p l i c an t ,  Ju s t i n  M i c he l a ,  s eeks  to  rez one  

ap pro x i mat e l y  10 .54  ac res  loc a te d at  7517  R ober t s  R o a d ,  2310  Po l l a r d  P l ac e ,  an d  

2000  Cab i n  C o ve  R oa d (P I Ns  073305904 5 ,  0733049734 ,  0733 049444)  f ro m R u ra l  

R es i den t i a l  (R R )  to  P l anne d Un i t  D e ve l op m ent - Co ndi t i ona l  Z on i n g (P U D -C Z ) .    

PH5 Sar ah  Va n  E ve r y ,  Sen i o r  P l anner  

Pub l i c  hear i n g an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  to  a do p t  a n  Or d i nanc e on  the  Ques t i on  o f  

An n e xa t i on  –  Ap e x  T own  Counc i l ’ s  i n t en t  to  a nnex  Yu mee wa r ra  F ar m As se mb l y  

pro per ty  c on t a i n i ng 18 .737  ac re s  l oc a te d  a t  0 ,  0 ,  an d 8633  Hu mi e  O l i ve  R o a d ,  

An n e xa t i on  #702  i n to  the  To wn ’s  c or por a te  l i mi t s .  

PH6 Sar ah  Va n  E ve r y ,  Sen i o r  P l anner  

Pub l i c  Hear i n g an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  R e zon i n g App l i c at i o n  #20 C Z13  

Yu mee war r a  F ar m As s e mbl y  an d Or d i nanc e.   The  a pp l i c an t ,  B i l l  Z ahn ,  Hu mi e  O l i ve  

As s oc i at es ,  seek s  to  r ezone  a ppr ox i ma te l y  18 .737  ac re s  l oc a te d at  0  &  8633  Hu mi e  

O l i ve  R oa d (P I N s  0711805090 ,  0710897 972 ,  0710993712 )  f r o m Wa ke  C oun t y  

R es i den t i a l - 40 W (R -4 0 W)  t o  L o w Den s i t y  R e s i dent i a l - Con di t i o na l  Z on i ng (L D -C Z ) .  

PH7 Lau ren  S tau de n mai e r ,  P l ann er  I  

Pub l i c  Hear i n g an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  R e zon i n g App l i c at i o n  #20C Z15  

S mi th f i e l d  R o a d C o l l i s i on  Cen te r .  The  a pp l i c ant ,  S penc er  B .  Te r r y  I I I ,  P . E ,  C aro l i na  

Lan d De ve lo p men t  G roup ,  I nc . ,  se eks  t o  r ezone  a ppr ox i ma te ly  3 .86  ac re s  f o r  the  

p ro per t i e s  l oc a te d a t  5920  &  0  O l d  S mi th f i e ld  R o ad (p o r t i o n  o f  P I N  0740649391  an d 

por t i on  o f  P I N  0740649679) ,  f r o m R u ra l  R e s i d ent i a l  (R R )  an d H i gh  D ens i t y  S i ng le - F a mi l y  

R es i den t i a l  (H D SF )  t o  L i gh t  I ndus t r i a l -C on di t i ona l  Zo n i ng (L I -CZ ) .  

PH8 Sh anno n  C ox ,  Lon g R an ge P l ann i n g M an a g er  an d S arah  K i r k ,  HR & A Ad v i so r s  

Pub l i c  he ar i ng  a nd  po ss i b le  mo t i o n  re g ard i n g  a do p t i on  o f  the  T ow n o f  A pex  

Af f o rdab l e  Hou s in g  P l an .  

PH9 Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  

Pub l i c  Hear i n g an d  pos s i b l e  mot i o n  reg ard i n g a men d men ts  to  the  Un i f i ed  

Deve l op men t  Or d i na nc e re l a te d t o  th e  de ad l i ne  f o r  the  sub mi t t a l  o f  requ es te d  

quar te r l y  r ec e i p t s  f o r  bus i nes se s  tha t  se r ve  a lc oho l  fo r  on -p re mi s e  c on su mp t i on .  

- Page 3 -



O L D  B U S I N E S S  

U N F I N I S H E D  B U S I N E S S  

N E W B U S I N E S S  

P R E S E N T AT I O N  B Y  T O W N  M AN AG E R  

C L O S E D  S E S S I O N  

W O R K  S E S S I O N  

AD J O U R N M E N T  

- Page 4 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PR E S E N T AT I O N  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  26 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  w i th  T i m M a lone y ,  Wa ke  Co .  

P l ann i n g ,  De ve l op me nt  &  I n spec t i on s  D i rec to r  an d T i m G ard i ne r ,  P l anner  I I I  -  

T r an sp or ta t i on  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

P res en ta t i on  on  the  s t at u s  o f  PL AN Wa ke ,  th e  dr af t  c o mp rehen s i ve  p l an  f o r  Wa ke  Cou n ty .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

No t  Ap p l i c a b le  

I tem De ta i l s  

PL AN Wa ke i s  a  p r oc e s s  th at  i nvo l ves  lo ok i ng  a t  Wa k e  C oun t y ’ s  ma j o r  c ha l le ng es  an d  o p por tun i t i e s  

an d w ork i ng  to ge the r  t o  d e ve l op  a  s t ron g  v i s i on  tha t  re prese nt s  ou r  d i ve r se  va lues .  The  p roc e ss  

w i l l  re su l t  i n  a  ne w c o mprehen s i ve  p l a n  w i th  h i gh - l e ve l  po l i c ie s  t ha t  he lp  gu i de  a c t i ons  an d 

dec i s i on - ma k i ng a d dr es s i n g c r i t i c a l  i s sue s  t ha t  i mpac t  ou r  da i l y  l i ves .  

At t ac h men t s  

  No ne   

 

- Page 5 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PR E S E N T AT I O N  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  26 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Ma yor  J ac que s  G i lbe r t  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Go vern i ng Bo d y  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

P res en ta t i on  o f  P roc l a ma t i on  rec o gn i z i ng Hea l th  an d Hu man i t y  Yo g a tho n  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

Th i s  i s  a n  a nnua l  e ve n t  he l d  b y  H i ndu  S w ay a mse vak  Sa ng h  (H S S ) ,  a  n onpr of i t  c h ar i t a b l e  

o rg an i z at i o n .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Proc la ma t i on  

 

- Page 6 -



 

 

Proclamation 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 
 

 
 
 

from the Office of the Mayor 

2021 Health for Humanity Yogathon 

 

WHEREAS, Yoga is an ancient Hindu practice developed thousands of years ago 

in the Indian subcontinent for maintaining spiritual, mental, and physical 

wellbeing; and 

WHEREAS, Surya Namaskara, or Sun Salutation, is a traditional yogic practice 

combining a sequence of postures with breathing exercises; and 

WHEREAS, Hindu Swayamsevak Sangh, or HSS, is a nonprofit charitable 

organization with over 235 branches in 173 cities and in 32 states including 

9 branches in the state of Massachusetts, through which it conducts a 

Hindu value education program and community service activities such as 

food drives, providing hot meals to shelters, and providing PPE to first 

responders in several cities across MA; and 

WHEREAS, HSS is organizing its annual Health for Humanity Yogathon with the 

goal of having 1000 individual participants cumulatively complete 11,000 

repetitions of Surya Namaskara to promote the spiritual, mental, and 

physical wellbeing of all members of the community; and 

WHEREAS, Yoga enthusiasts, yoga studios, local schools, and other community 

organizations are participating in the HSS Health for Humanity Yogathon; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of the Town of Apex, do hereby 

recognize HSS for organizing its annual Health for Humanity Yogathon to 

promote the spiritual, mental, and physical wellbeing of all members of the 

community.   

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand  

and caused the Seal of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

to be affixed this the 26th day of January 2021. 

  

 

_____________________________________________________ 

                 Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 

- Page 7 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PR E S E N T AT I O N  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  26 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Ma yor  J ac que s  G i lbe r t  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Go vern i ng Bo d y  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

P res en ta t i on  o f  B l ac k  H i s t o r y  M on th  P roc la ma t i on  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

N/ A 

At t ac h men t s  

  Proc la ma t i on  

 

- Page 8 -



 

 

Proclamation 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 
 

 
 
 

from the Office of the Mayor 

BLACK HISTORY MONTH 2021 

 

WHEREAS, Black History Month grew out of the establishment of Negro History 

Week in 1926 by Carter G. Woodson and the Association for the Study of 

African American Life and History; and 

WHEREAS, the Association for the Study of African American Life and History 

has selected “The Black Family: Representation, Identity, and Diversity” as the 

2021 national theme for Black History Month; and 

WHEREAS, Black History Month seeks to emphasize Black history and its cultural 

contributions to American life and is designed to recognize and pay tribute to 

the many contributions of African Americans to the history, society, and 

culture of our community and to the United States; and 

WHEREAS, this type of emphasis can strengthen the insight of all citizens 

regarding the issues of human rights, the great strides that have been made 

in the crusade to eliminate the barriers to equality for minority groups, and 

the continuing struggle against racial discrimination; and 

WHEREAS, Black History Month will be celebrated in the Town of Apex with a 

series of virtual exhibits and virtual special events geared towards the 

enjoyment and education of all citizens; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of the Town of Apex, do hereby 

proclaim the month of February as Black History Month in the Town of Apex 

and encourage all citizens to celebrate our diverse heritage and culture and to 

continue our efforts to create a world that is more just, peaceful, and 

prosperous for all. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand  

and caused the Seal of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

to be affixed this the 26th day of January 2021 

  

 

_____________________________________________________ 

                 Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 

- Page 9 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  26 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Donn a Ho sc h ,  To wn C le r k  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Of f i c e  o f  the  To wn C l e r k  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  th e  Ap ex  Tax  R e por t  d a te d  12/07/2020  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

I n  regu la r  se s s i on  on  J anuar y  4 ,  2021 ,  the  Wake  C oun t y  B oar d o f  Co mmi s s i one r s  ap pro ve d an d 

ac c ep te d the  Ap e x  t ax  re p or t  d a te d Dec e mb er  7 ,  2020 .  

At t ac h men t s  

  Tax  R ep or t  

 

- Page 10 -



- Page 11 -



- Page 12 -



- Page 13 -



- Page 14 -



- Page 15 -



- Page 16 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  2 6 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Ma yor  J ac que s  G i lbe r t  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Go vern i ng Bo d y  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  r ea p po i n t  J e f f  U l r i c k ,  B i l l  C ar r aw ay ,  an d Be ts y  S i s l ey  t o  the  T r ee  C AP  Co m m i t tee  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

These  c u r ren t  me mbe r s  w i s h  to  se r ve  an ot h e r  te r m,  s pan n i ng Ja n uary  1 ,  2021  th rou g h  Dec e mber  

31 ,  2021 :  
 

  Je f f  U l r i c k ,  w ou l d  be  h i s  s i x th  c o nsec u t i ve  t e r m  

  B i l l  C ar r aw a y ,  wou l d  be  h i s  sec o nd  c on sec ut i ve  t e r m  

  Bet s y  S i s le y ,  wou l d  b e  he r  sec on d c o nsec u t i ve  te r m  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  N/ A 

 

- Page 17 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  2 6 ,  2 0 2 1  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Al l y so n  C o l t r ane ,  L on g R an ge T r an s i t  P l ann er  I I  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  to  ap pro ve ,  an d to  au t hor i ze  the  To wn M an a ger  to  s i gn  an d exec u te ,  t he  T r i an g le  

T r an sp or ta t i on  De man d M an a ge men t  Ag ree men t  to  fund  a  p or t i o n  o f  the  n ew L on g -R a nge T ran s i t  

P l anner  p os i t i o n  a nd  pro mo t i on  o f  the  G o Apex  R ou te  1  i n  F i sc a l  Ye ar  2021 .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

The  Tow n o f  Ap e x ’ s  a do p te d bu d ge t  i nc lu d es  fun d i ng f o r  a  L on g- R an ge T r an s i t  P l anner  t o  

o ve r se e  o per at i o n  o f  Go Ap ex  R ou te  1 .  The  P l ann i n g De p ar t men t  ap p l i e d fo r  an d w as  a war de d 

ma tc h i n g fun d i ng  t h r oug h  the  T r an sp or ta t i on  De ma n d M an a ge ment  P r o gra m to  p r o v i d e  fund i n g 

fo r  50% perc en t  o f  th i s  p os i t i on ,  p ro mo t e  G o Ap e x  R ou te  1 ,  a nd  e s t a b l i sh  a  T ran sp or ta t i on  

De man d M an a ge men t  P ro gr a m .  The  T r an sp or t a t i on  D e man d M an a ge men t  P ro gr a m Ag r ee men t  

be twe en To wn o f  Ap e x  an d T r i an g le  J  Coun c i l  o f  Go vern men t s  e s ta b l i shes  t he  te r ms  o f  the  

fund i ng  a gree me nt  a nd re sp on s i b i l i t i e s  o f  eac h  par t y .  Ba se d on  the  f und i n g a gree me nt ,  u p  t o  

$ 2 5 ,0 0 0  o f  TDM pro gr a mmi n g fun ds  w ou l d  be  aw a r de d to  th e  To wn o f  Ap e x  f o r  the  L o ng-R an ge  

T r an s i t  P l ann er  p os i t i o n ,  p r o mo t i on  o f  Go Ap ex  R ou te  1 ,  a nd  TD M Coor d i na t i on  i n  F Y21 .  The  Tow n 

o f  Ap e x  fun d i ng  ma tc h  w ou l d  be  p ro v i de d th r oug h  a  c o mbi n at i o n  o f  l oc a l  fun d s  and  f und s  

aw ar de d th ro ug h  the  Co mmu n i t y  Fund i n g Area P ro gr a m fo r  Wa k e  T ran s i t .   

 

At t ac h men t s  

  At t ac h men t  1  -  T r i an g le  T r ans p or t a t i on  D e man d M an ag e men t  Ap ex  Sub - Co nt r ac t  

  At t ac h men t  2  -  T r an sp or t a t i on  D e man d M an a ge men t  Bu d ge t   

  At t ac h men t  3  -  T r an sp or t a t i on  D e man d M an a ge men t  Nar r a t i ve    

 

- Page 18 -



Page 1 of 18 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made this the day of             , 2020, (hereinafter referred to as AGREEMENT) by 
and between the TRIANGLE J COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS (“TJCOG”) and Town of Apex 
(“Recipient”). 
 
WHEREAS, TJCOG and the Recipient desire to utilize grant funds for the purpose of encouraging 
innovative approaches in the provision of transportation demand management services; and 
 
WHEREAS, TJCOG and the Recipient desire to secure and utilize grant funds for the above referenced 
purposes, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth, TJCOG and the 
Recipient agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. Purpose of Agreement.  
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the undertaking of a transportation demand 
management (TDM) project by the Recipient as described in the project application.  
 
Section 2. Project Implementation.  
The Recipient agrees to carry out the Project as follows: 

a. Scope of Project. The Recipient shall undertake and complete the Project as described in the 
approved Recipient’s Project Budget, incorporated into this Agreement as Attachment A, filed 
with and approved by the TDM Oversight Committee, and in accordance with the Project 
Application for financial assistance and the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Nothing 
shall be construed under the terms of this Agreement by TJCOG or the Recipient that shall 
cause any conflict with Department, State, or Federal statutes, rules, or regulations. 

b. Cost of Project. The total cost of the Project approved by the TDM Oversight Committee is 
$50,001.46 as set forth in the Project Description and Budget, incorporated into this 
Agreement as Attachment A. This includes $50,001.46 for local activities (50% or 
$25,000.73 in grant funding, and 50% or $25,000.73 in local match).  Funds may not be 
transferred among line items unless written authorization is obtained from the TDM 
Oversight Committee. TJCOG will then work with the Recipient to prepare a budget 
amendment.  

c. Period of Performance. This Agreement shall commence upon the date of execution. The 
period of performance for all expenditures shall extend from JULY 1, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 
2021, unless written authorization to the contrary is provided by TJCOG.  If a contract 
extension is requested, TJCOG must obtain written authorization from the Department of 
Transportation and the TDM Oversight Committee. The Recipient shall commence, carry on, 
and complete the approved Project with all practicable dispatch, in a sound, economical, and 
efficient manner. 

d. Recipient’s Capacity. The Recipient agrees to maintain sufficient legal, financial, technical, and 
managerial capability to: (a) Plan, manage, and complete the Project and provide for the use 
of Project property; (b) Carry out the safety and security aspects of the Project; and (c) 
Comply with the terms of this Agreement, the Approved Project Budget, the Project 
schedules, and applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives. 

e. Administrative Requirements. The Recipient agrees to comply with the following Federal and 
State administrative requirements: (1) U.S. DOT regulations, "Uniform Administrative 
Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments," 49 
C.F.R. Part 18 at 
https://one.nhtsa.gov/nhtsa/whatsup/tea21/GrantMan/HTML/03_DOTComRul_49CFR18.

- Page 19 -

https://one.nhtsa.gov/nhtsa/whatsup/tea21/GrantMan/HTML/03_DOTComRul_49CFR18.html


Page 2 of 18 

 

html(2) Title 19A North Carolina Administrative Code (N.C.A.C.) Subchapter 5B at 
http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac.asp.  

f. Application of Federal, State, and Local Laws, Regulations, and Directives. To achieve 
compliance with changing federal requirements, the Recipient makes note that federal, state 
and local requirements may change and the changed requirements will apply to this 
Agreement as required. 

g. Full and Open Competition. In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5325(a), the Recipient agrees to 
conduct all procurement transactions in a manner that provides full and open competition. 

h. Recipient's Responsibility to Extend Federal and State Requirements to Other Entities. 
a. Entities Affected. Only entities that are signatories to this Agreement for the Project 

are parties to this agreement. To achieve compliance with certain Federal and State 
laws, regulations, or directives, however, other Project participants, such as 
subrecipients and third-party contractors, will necessarily be involved. Accordingly, 
the Recipient agrees to take the appropriate measures necessary to ensure that all 
Project participants comply with applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and 
directives affecting their performance 

b. Documents Affected. The applicability provisions of Federal and State laws, 
regulations, and directives determine the extent to which their provisions affect a 
Project participant. Thus, the Recipient agrees to include adequate provisions to 
ensure that each Project participant complies with those Federal and State laws, 
regulations, and directives. In addition, the Recipient also agrees to require its third 
party contractors and subrecipients to include adequate provisions to ensure 
compliance with applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives in each 
lower tier subcontract and sub agreement for the Project.  Additional requirements 
include the following: (a) Third Party Contracts. Because Project activities performed 
by a third party contractor must comply with all applicable Federal and State laws, 
regulations, and directives, the Recipient agrees to include appropriate clauses in 
each third party contract stating the third party contractor's responsibilities under 
Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives, including any provisions directing 
the third party contractor to extend applicable requirements to its subcontractors at 
the lowest tier necessary. When the third party contract requires the third party 
contractor to undertake responsibilities for the Project usually performed by the 
Recipient, the Recipient agrees to include in that third party contract those 
requirements applicable to the Recipient imposed by the Grant Agreement for the 
Project. Additional guidance pertaining to third party contracting is contained in the 
FTA’s “Best Practices Procurement Manual.” (b) Sub agreements. Because Project 
activities performed by a subcontractor/ subrecipient must comply with all 
applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives, the Recipient agrees as 
follows: 

i. Written Sub agreement. The Recipient agrees to enter into a written 
agreement with each subrecipient (sub agreement) stating the terms and 
conditions of assistance by which the Project will be undertaken and 
completed. 

ii. Compliance with Federal Requirements. The Recipient agrees to implement 
the Project in a manner that will not compromise the Recipient’s compliance 
with Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives applicable to the 
Project and the Recipient’s obligations under this Agreement for the Project. 
Therefore, the Recipient agrees to include in each sub agreement appropriate 
clauses directing the subrecipient to comply with those requirements 
applicable to the Recipient imposed by this Agreement for the Project and 

- Page 20 -

https://one.nhtsa.gov/nhtsa/whatsup/tea21/GrantMan/HTML/03_DOTComRul_49CFR18.html
http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac.asp


Page 3 of 18 

 

extend those requirements as necessary to any lower level sub agreement or 
any third party contractor at each tier. 

 
Section 3. Ethics. 

a. Code of Ethics. The Recipient agrees to maintain a written code or standards of conduct that 
shall govern the actions of its officers, employees, board members, or agents engaged in the 
award or administration of third party contracts or sub agreements financed with 
Federal/State assistance. The Recipient agrees that its code or standards of conduct shall 
specify that its officers, employees, board members, or agents may neither solicit nor accept 
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from any present or potential third party 
contractor at any tier or subrecipient at any tier or agent thereof. Such a conflict would arise 
when an employee, officer, board member, or agent, including any member of his or her 
immediate family, partner, or organization that employs, or intends to employ, any of the 
parties listed herein has a financial interest in the firm selected for award. The Recipient may 
set de minimis rules where the financial interest is not substantial, or the gift is an unsolicited 
item of nominal intrinsic value. The Recipient agrees that its code or standards shall also 
prohibit its officers, employees, board members, or agents from using their respective 
positions in a manner that presents a real or apparent personal or organizational conflict of 
interest or personal gain. As permitted by State or local law or regulations, the Recipient 
agrees that its code or standards of conduct shall include penalties, sanctions, or other 
disciplinary actions for violations by its officers, employees, board members, or their agents, 
or its third party contractors or subrecipients or their agents.  (1) Personal Conflicts of 
Interest. The Recipient agrees that its code or standards of conduct shall prohibit the 
Recipient's employees, officers, board members, or agents from participating in the selection, 
award, or administration of any third party contract or sub agreement supported by 
Federal/State assistance if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved. Such a 
conflict would arise when an employee, officer, board member, or agent, including any 
member of his or her immediate family, partner, or organization that employs, or intends to 
employ, any of the parties listed herein has a financial interest in the firm selected for award.  
(2) Organizational Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient agrees that its code or standards of 
conduct shall include procedures for identifying and preventing real and apparent 
organizational conflicts of interest. An organizational conflict of interest exists when the 
nature of the work to be performed under a proposed third party contract or sub agreement 
may, without some restrictions on future activities, result in an unfair competitive advantage 
to the third party contractor or subrecipient or impair its objectivity in performing the 
contract work. 

b. Debarment and Suspension. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of 
each third party contractor, with Executive Orders Nos. 12549 and 12689, "Debarment and 
Suspension," 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, and U.S. DOT regulations, "Governmentwide Debarment 
and Suspension (Non procurement)," 49 C.F.R. Part 29. The Recipient agrees to, and assures 
that its third-party contractors will, review the Excluded Parties Listing System at 
(http://epls.arnet.gov/) before entering into any contracts. 

c. Bonus or Commission. The Recipient affirms that it has not paid, and agrees not to pay, any 
bonus or commission to obtain approval of its application for the Project. 

d. Lobbying Restrictions. The Recipient agrees that: (1) It will comply, and will assure the 
compliance of each third party contractor at any tier and each subrecipient at any tier, with 
U.S. DOT regulations, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," 49 C.F.R. Part 20, modified as 
necessary by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, and (2) To the extent applicable, it will comply with 
Federal/State laws and regulations prohibiting the use of Federal/State assistance for 

- Page 21 -



Page 4 of 18 

 

activities designed to influence Congress or a State legislature with respect to legislation or 
appropriations, except through proper, official channels. 

e. Employee Political Activity. To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply with the 
provisions of the Hatch Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501 through 1508, and 7324 through 7326, and U.S. 
Office of Personnel Management regulations, "Political Activity of State or Local Officers or 
Employees," 5 C.F.R. Part 151. The Hatch Act limits the political activities of State and local 
agencies and their officers and employees, whose principal employment activities are 
financed in whole or part with Federal funds including a Federal grant, cooperative 
agreement, or loan. Nevertheless, in accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5307(k)(2)(B) and 23 U.S.C. 
§ 142(g), the Hatch Act does not apply to a nonsupervisory employee of a public 
transportation system (or of any other agency or entity performing related functions) 
receiving FTA assistance to whom the Hatch Act would not otherwise apply. 

f. False or Fraudulent Statements or Claims. The Recipient acknowledges and agrees that: (1) 
Civil Fraud. The Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 et 
seq., and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its 
activities in connection with the Project. By executing this Agreement for the Project, the 
Recipient certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement it has made, it 
makes, or it may make in connection with the Project. In addition to other penalties that may 
apply, the Recipient also understands that if it makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, 
statement, submission, certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal/State 
Government concerning the Project, the Federal/State Government reserves the right to 
impose on the Recipient the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as 
amended, to the extent the Federal/State Government deems appropriate. (2) Criminal 
Fraud. If the Recipient makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, 
certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal/State Government or includes a 
false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in any agreement with the 
Federal/State Government in connection with a Project authorized under 49 U.S.C. chapter 
53 or any other Federal law, the Federal/State Government reserves the right to impose on 
the Recipient the penalties of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(l), 18 U.S.C. § 1001 or other applicable 
Federal/State law to the extent the Federal/State Government deems appropriate. 

 
Section 4. Project Expenditures. 

a. General. The Department shall reimburse the Recipient for allowable costs for work 
performed under the terms of this Agreement. The Recipient shall expend funds provided in 
this Agreement in accordance with the approved Project Budget, included as Attachment A 
to this Agreement. It is understood and agreed that the work conducted pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be done on an actual cost basis by the Recipient. Expenditures submitted 
for reimbursement shall include all eligible costs incurred within the quarterly 
timeframe in which the project reports expenditures to TJCOG. The amount of 
reimbursement from TJCOG shall not exceed the award funds budgeted in the approved 
Project Budget. The Recipient shall initiate and prosecute to completion all actions necessary 
to enable the Recipient to provide its share of project costs at or prior to the time that such 
funds are needed to meet project costs. Each project line item included in the program budget 
and invoice template will only be reimbursed by grant funds at 50%. The remaining costs per 
line item must be paid by matching funds.  

b. Payment. The Recipient shall submit itemized invoices to TJCOG not less frequently than 
quarterly, reporting on forms furnished by TJCOG for work performed under this Agreement. 
Expenditures submitted for reimbursement shall include all eligible cost incurred and 
be for work performed within the quarter. Failure to request reimbursement for 
expenses incurred within the quarter may result in non-payment. All requests for 

- Page 22 -



Page 5 of 18 

 

reimbursement must be submitted within (30) days following the end of the quarter, 
including the final invoice. Invoices shall be supported by documentation of costs. Failure 
to request reimbursement for eligible projects costs as outlined may result in termination of 
the Project. Invoices shall be approved by the TJCOG Energy & Environment Program 
Manager.  

c. Excluded Costs. The Recipient understands and agrees that ineligible costs will be treated as 
follows: (1) In determining the amount of assistance TJCOG will provide, TJCOG will exclude: 
(a) Any Project cost incurred by the Recipient before the Effective Date of the Grant; (b) Any 
cost that is not included in the latest Approved Project Budget; (c) Any cost for Project 
property or services received in connection with a third party contract or sub agreement with 
a subrecipient that must be approved by the TDM Oversight Committee, or other 
arrangement required to be, but has not been, concurred by the Oversight Committee; (d) 
Any non-project cost consistent with the prohibitions of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(h); (e) Any cost 
ineligible for Department participation as provided by applicable Federal/State laws, 
regulations, or directives; and (f) Expenditures on incentive items are prohibited. (g) 
Items listed in the FY2018 Request for Proposals, including Food (with the exception of 
branded food items used as a promotional item); Unbranded promotional items, including 
event decorations (e.g., balloons); Incentives/prizes (unless prior approval has been 
obtained from the Oversight Committee); Entertainment (e.g., musical bands, DJs); Capital 
expenses (e.g., vehicle or vehicle parts acquisition, bicycles or bicycle racks, bus or vanpool 
passes for regular customers, etc. In special circumstances, bus, or vanpool passes may be 
used for new employees for a limited amount of time); Building costs; Sales tax (except for 
travel expenses); Operating costs, such as vehicle maintenance; Computer hardware and 
software (e.g., laptops);  (2) The Recipient understands and agrees that payment to the 
Recipient for any Project cost does not constitute TJCOG’s final decision about whether that 
cost is allowable and eligible for payment and does not constitute a waiver of any violation 
by the Recipient of the terms of this Agreement. The Recipient acknowledges that TJCOG will 
not make a final determination about the allowability and eligibility of any cost until any audit 
of the Project has been completed. If TJCOG determines that the Recipient is not entitled to 
receive any portion of the State assistance the Recipient has requested or provided, TJCOG 
will notify the Recipient in writing, stating its reasons. The Recipient agrees that Project 
closeout will not alter the Recipient's responsibility to return any funds due TJCOG as a result 
of later refunds, corrections, or other transactions; nor will Project closeout alter TJCOG’s 
right to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later audit or other review. Unless 
prohibited by Federal/State law or regulation, TJCOG may recover any funds made available 
for the Project as necessary to satisfy any outstanding monetary claims that TJCOG may have 
against the Recipient. 

d. State Claims, Excess Payments, Disallowed Costs, including Interest. (1) Recipient's 
Responsibility to Pay. Upon notification to the Recipient that specific amounts are owed to 
TJCOG, whether for excess payments of assistance, disallowed costs, or funds recovered from 
third parties or elsewhere, the Recipient agrees to remit to TJCOG promptly the amounts 
owed, including applicable interest and any penalties and administrative charges. (2) Amount 
of Interest. The Recipient agrees to remit to TJCOG interest owed as determined in 
accordance with N.C.G.S. 147-86.23. 

e. Travel. Reimbursement for travel subsistence expenses (i.e., hotel and food costs) is 
allowable at the Federal rate (found at http://www.gsa.gov/perdiem).  
 

Section 5. Accounting Records. 
a. Documentation of Project Costs. All costs charged to the Project, including any approved 

services performed by the Recipient or others, shall be supported by properly executed 

- Page 23 -

http://www.gsa.gov/perdiem


Page 6 of 18 

 

payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, receipts, or vouchers evidencing in detail the 
nature and propriety of the charges.  

b. Allowable Costs. Expenditures made by the Recipient shall be reimbursed as allowable costs 
to the extent they meet all of the requirements set forth below. They must be: (1) consistent 
with the Project Work Plan, Project Budget, and all other provisions of this Agreement; (2) 
Necessary in order to accomplish the Project; (3) Reasonable in amount for the goods or 
services purchased; (4) Actual net costs to the Recipient, i.e., the price paid minus any 
refunds; (5) Incurred and be for work performed within the period of performance of this 
Agreement; and (6) Satisfactorily documented. 

 
Section 6. Reporting, Record Retention, and Access. 

a. Reports & Invoices. The Recipient shall provide quarterly reports to TJCOG on the progress 
of its TDM activities described in the Work Plan. The Recipient shall collect and submit to 
TJCOG at such time as it may require, such financial statements, data, records, contracts, and 
other documents related to the Project as may be deemed necessary by TJCOG. Such reports 
shall include narrative and financial statements of sufficient substance to be in 
conformance with the reporting requirements of the Triangle TDM Grant Program  

b. Record Retention. The Recipient and its third party contractors shall retain all records 
pertaining to this Project for a period of five (5) years from the date of final payment to the 
Recipient, or until all audit exceptions have been resolved, whichever is longer, in accordance 
with “Records Retention and Disposition Schedule – Public Transportation Systems and 
Authorities, April 1, 2006,” at https://files.nc.gov/dncr-
archives/documents/files/public_transportation_systems_authorities_20060401_1.pdf  

c. Access to Records of Recipient and Subcontractors. The Recipient shall permit and shall 
require its third party contractors to permit TJCOG or its authorized representatives to 
inspect all work, materials, payrolls, and other data and records with regard to the Project, 
and to audit the books, records, and accounts of the Recipient pertaining to the Project. TJCOG 
shall reserve the right to reject any and all materials and workmanship for defects and 
incompatibility with Project Description or excessive cost. The Department shall notify the 
Recipient, in writing, if materials and/or workmanship are found to be unacceptable. The 
Recipient shall have ninety (90) days from notification to correct defects or to provide 
acceptable materials and/or workmanship. Failure by the Recipient to provide acceptable 
materials and/or workmanship, or to correct noted defects, shall constitute a breach of 
contract. 

d. Project Closeout. The Recipient agrees that Project closeout does not alter the reporting and 
record retention requirements of this Section 6 of this Agreement.  

Section 7. Project Completion, Audit, Settlement, and Closeout. 
a. Project Completion. Within thirty (30) calendar days following Project completion, the end of 

the Project’s period of performance, the Recipient agrees to submit a final reimbursement 
request to TJCOG for eligible Project expenses. 

b. Financial Reporting and Audit Requirements. In accordance with OMB Circular A-133 
(http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=a4f865859e78a1e545f1d4c22b49fc86&node=sp2.1.200.e&rgn=div6), 
"Audits of State, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations," current as of April 2, 
2015, and N.C.G.S. 159-34, the Recipient shall have its accounts audited as soon as possible 
after the close of each fiscal year by an independent auditor. TJCOG reserves the right to 
request annual audit reports from the subrecipient. 

c. Audit Costs. Unless prohibited by law, the costs of audits made in accordance with the 
provisions of OMB Circular A-133 are allowable charges to State awards. The charges may be 
considered a direct cost or an allocated indirect cost, as determined in accordance with cost 
principles outlined in OMB Circular A-87 “Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal 

- Page 24 -

https://files.nc.gov/dncr-archives/documents/files/public_transportation_systems_authorities_20060401_1.pdf
https://files.nc.gov/dncr-archives/documents/files/public_transportation_systems_authorities_20060401_1.pdf


Page 7 of 18 

 

Governments.” The cost of any audit not conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 
and N.C.G.S. 159-34 is unallowable and shall not be charged to State grants. 

d. Funds Owed to TJCOG. The Recipient agrees to remit to TJCOG any excess payments made to 
the Recipient, any costs disallowed by TJCOG, and any amounts recovered by the Recipient 
from third parties or from other sources, as well as any penalties and any interest required 
by Subsection 4d of this Agreement. 

e. Project Closeout. Project closeout occurs when TJCOG issues the final project payment or 
acknowledges that the Recipient has remitted the proper refund. The Recipient agrees that 
Project closeout by TJCOG does not invalidate any continuing requirements imposed by this 
Agreement. 
 

Section 8. Civil Rights. The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable civil rights laws and 
implementing regulations including, but not limited to, the following: 

a. Nondiscrimination in Public Transportation Programs. The Recipient agrees to comply, and 
assures the compliance of each third party contractor at any tier and each subrecipient at any 
tier of the Project, with the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5332, which prohibit discrimination on 
the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age, and prohibits discrimination in 
employment or business opportunity. 

b. Nondiscrimination – Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. The Recipient agrees to comply, and 
assures the compliance of each third party contractor at any tier and each subrecipient at any 
tier of the Project, with all provisions prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, 
or national origin of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et 
seq., and with U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of 
the Department of Transportation – Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act," 49 C.F.R. 
Part 21. 

c. Equal Employment Opportunity. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the compliance 
of each third party contractor at any tier of the Project and each subrecipient at any tier of 
the Project, with all equal employment opportunity (EEO) provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5332, with 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and implementing 
Federal regulations and any subsequent amendments thereto. The Recipient agrees that it 
will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, creed, sex, disability, age, or national origin. The Recipient agrees to take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, creed, sex, disability, age, or national origin. 
Such action shall include, but not be limited to, employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

d. Access for Individuals with Disabilities. The Recipient agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 
5301(d), which states the Federal policy that elderly individuals and individuals with 
disabilities have the same right as other individuals to use public transportation services and 
facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and 
facilities to implement transportation accessibility rights for elderly individuals and 
individuals with disabilities. The Recipient also agrees to comply with all applicable 
provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, with 29 U.S.C. § 794, 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability; with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible 
facilities and services be made available to individuals with disabilities; and with the 
Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that 
buildings and public accommodations be accessible to individuals with disabilities. In 
addition, the Recipient agrees to comply with applicable Federal regulations and directives 

- Page 25 -



Page 8 of 18 

 

and any subsequent amendments thereto as follows: (1) U.S. DOT regulations, 
"Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)," 49 C.F.R. Part 37; (2) U.S. 
DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities 
Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 27; (3) Joint U.S. 
Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board (U.S. ATBCB)/U.S. DOT 
regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for 
Transportation Vehicles," 36 C.F.R. Part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. Part 38; (4) U.S. DOJ regulations, 
"Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services," 28 
C.F.R. Part 35; (5) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public 
Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 C.F.R. Part 36; (6) U.S. General Services 
Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations, "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped," 41 
C.F.R. Subpart 101-19; (7) U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to 
Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 
C.F.R. Part 1630; (8) U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, 
"Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the 
Hearing and Speech Disabled," 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F; and (9) U.S. ATBCB regulations, 
“Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards,” 36 C.F.R. Part 1194; (10) 
FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons," 49 C.F.R. Part 609; 
and (11) Federal civil rights and nondiscrimination directives implementing the foregoing 
regulations. 

e. Drug or Alcohol Abuse-Confidentiality and Other Civil Rights Protections. To the extent 
applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply with the confidentiality and other civil rights 
protections of the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended, 21 U.S.C. §§ 
1174 et seq., with the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment 
and Rehabilitation Act of 1970, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4581 et seq., and with the Public 
Health Service Act of 1912, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 290dd-3 and 290ee-3, and any 
subsequent amendments to these acts. 

f. Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency. To the extent applicable, the 
Recipient agrees to comply with the policies of Executive Order No. 13166, "Improving Access 
to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency," 42 U.S.C. § 2000d-1 note, and with 
the provisions of U.S. DOT Notice, “DOT Guidance to Recipients on Special Language Services 
to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Beneficiaries,” 66 Fed. Reg. 6733 et seq., January 22, 2001. 

g. Environmental Justice. The Recipient agrees to comply with the policies of Executive Order 
No. 12898, "Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and 
Low-Income Populations," 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note. 

h. Other Nondiscrimination Laws. The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable provisions 
of other Federal laws, regulations, and directives pertaining to and prohibiting discrimination 
that are applicable. 
 

Section 9. Planning and Private Enterprise. 
a. General. To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to implement the Project in a manner 

consistent with the plans developed in compliance with the Federal planning and private 
enterprise provisions of the following: (1) 49 U.S.C. §§ 5303, 5304, 5306, and 5323(a)(1); (2) 
the joint Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)/FTA document, “Interim Guidance for 
Implementing Key SAFETEA-LU Provisions on Planning, Environment, and Air Quality for 
Joint FHWA/FTA Authorities,” dated September 2, 2005, and subsequent Federal directives 
implementing SAFETEA-LU; (3) joint FHWA/FTA regulations, "Planning Assistance and 
Standards,” 23 C.F.R. Part 450 and 49 C.F.R. Part 613 to the extent that those regulations are 
consistent with the SAFETEA-LU amendments to public transportation planning and private 
enterprise laws, and subsequent amendments to those regulations that may be promulgated; 

- Page 26 -



Page 9 of 18 

 

and () FTA regulations, “Major Capital Investment Projects,” 49 C.F.R. Part 611, to the extent 
that those regulations are consistent with the SAFETEA-LU amendments to the public 
transportation planning and private enterprise laws, and any subsequent amendments to 
those regulations that may be subsequently promulgated. In addition, other regulations and 
restrictions pertaining specifically to Transportation Demand Management activities may 
apply, and TJCOG reserves the right to amend the contract with these regulations as they are 
brought to our attention. 

b. Governmental and Private Nonprofit Providers of Nonemergency Transportation. In addition 
to providing opportunities to participate in planning as described in Subsection 9a of this 
Agreement, to the extent feasible the Recipient agrees to comply with the provisions of 49 
U.S.C. § 5323(k), which afford governmental agencies and nonprofit organizations that 
receive Federal assistance for nonemergency transportation from Federal Government 
sources (other than U.S. DOT) an opportunity to be included in the design, coordination, and 
planning of transportation services. 
 

Section 10. Preference for United States Products and Services.  
To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply with U.S. domestic preference requirements. 
 
Section 11. Procurement.  
To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply with the following third party procurement 
provisions: 

a. Federal and State Standards. The Recipient agrees to comply with the third party 
procurement requirements of 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 and other applicable Federal laws in effect 
now or as subsequently enacted; with U.S. DOT third party procurement regulations of 49 
C.F.R. §§ 18.36 and other applicable Federal regulations pertaining to third party 
procurements and subsequent amendments thereto, to the extent those regulations are 
consistent with SAFETEA-LU provisions; and Article 8 of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina 
General Statutes. The Recipient also agrees to comply with the provisions of FTA Circular 
4220.1E, "Third Party Contracting Requirements," to the extent those provisions are 
consistent with SAFETEA-LU provisions and with any subsequent amendments thereto. 
Although the FTA “Best Practices Procurement Manual” provides additional procurement 
guidance, the Recipient understands that the FTA “Best Practices Procurement Manual” is 
focused on third party procurement processes and may omit certain Federal requirements 
applicable to the third party contract work to be performed. The Recipient shall establish 
written procurement procedures that comply with the required Federal and State standards. 

b. Exclusionary or Discriminatory Specifications. Apart from inconsistent requirements 
imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the Recipient agrees to comply with the 
requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5325(h) by not using any assistance awarded by TJCOG to support 
a procurement using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications. 

c. Geographic Restrictions. The Recipient agrees that it will not use any State or local geographic 
preference. 

d. Department Pre-award Approval. The Recipient agrees to submit procurement documents to 
TJCOG and the TDM Oversight Committee for its review and approval prior to award of a 
contract/subcontract under this Agreement for any of the following: (1) Any “brand name” 
product or sole source purchase equal to or greater than $2,500; (2) Any 
contract/subcontract to other than apparent lowest bidder equal to or greater than $2,500; 
(3) Any procurement equal to or greater than $90,000; (4) Any contract modification that 
would change the scope of a contract or increase the contract amount up to or over the formal 
(sealed) bid threshold of $90,000. 

- Page 27 -



Page 10 of 18 

 

e. Project Approval/Third Party Contract Approval. The Recipient agrees that TJCOG’s award 
assistance for the Project does not, by itself, constitute pre-approval of any noncompetitive 
third party contract associated with the Project. 

f. Preference for Recycled Products. To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply 
with U.S. EPA regulations, “Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines for Products Containing 
Recovered Materials,” 40 C.F.R. Part 247, which implements Section 6002 of the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6962, and with subsequent Federal 
regulations that may be promulgated. Accordingly, the Recipient agrees to provide a 
competitive preference for products and services that conserve natural resources, protect the 
environment, and are energy efficient. 

g. Clean Air and Clean Water. The Recipient agrees to report the use of facilities placed on or 
likely to be placed on the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) "List of Violating 
Facilities," to not use any violating facilities, to report violations to TJCOG and the Regional 
U.S. EPA Office, and to comply with the inspection and other applicable requirements of: (1) 
Section 306 of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7414, and other applicable provisions 
of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 through 7671q; and (2) Section 508 of the 
Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. § 1368, and other applicable requirements of the Clean 
Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 through 1377. 

h. National Intelligent Transportation Systems Architecture and Standards. To the extent 
applicable, the Recipient agrees to conform to the National Intelligent Transportation 
Systems (ITS) Architecture and Standards as required by SAFETEA-LU § 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. § 
512 note, and comply with FTA Notice, "FTA National ITS Architecture Policy on Transit 
Projects" 66 Fed. Reg. 1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and any subsequent further 
implementing directives. 

i. Competitive Proposal/Request for Proposal (RFP). The competitive proposal/ request for 
proposal (RFP) method of procurement is normally conducted with more than one source 
submitting an offer, i.e., proposal. Either a fixed price or cost reimbursement type contract is 
awarded. This method of procurement is generally used when conditions are not appropriate 
for the use of sealed bids. The Recipient acknowledges that certain restrictions apply under 
North Carolina law for use of the RFP method and these restrictions and exceptions are 
discussed below. (1) The Recipient agrees that the RFP Method may not be used in lieu of an 
invitation for bids (IFB) for: (a) Construction/repair work; or (b) Purchase of apparatus, 
supplies, materials or equipment. See Subsection 11j(2), this Agreement, regarding 
information technology goods as services. (2) The Recipient agrees that the RFP method of 
solicitation may be used (in addition to or instead of any other procedure available under 
North Carolina law) for the procurement of information technology goods and services [as 
defined in N.C.G.S. 147-33.81(2)]. This applies to electronic data processing goods and 
services, telecommunications goods and services, security goods and services, 
microprocessors, software, information processing, office systems, any services related to the 
foregoing, and consulting or other services for design or redesign of information technology 
supporting business  processes. The Recipient will comply with the following minimum 
requirements [N.C.G.S. 143-129.8]: (a) Notice of the request for proposals shall be given in 
accordance with N.C.G.S. 143-129(b). (b) Contracts shall be awarded to the person or entity 
that submits the best overall proposal as determined by the awarding authority. Factors to 
be considered in awarding contracts shall be identified in the request for proposals. (c) The 
Recipient may use procurement methods set forth in N.C.G.S. 143-135.9 in developing and 
evaluating requests for proposals. (d) The Recipient may negotiate with any proposer in 
order to obtain a final contract that best meets the needs of the Recipient. (e) Any 
negotiations shall not alter the contract beyond the scope of the original request for proposals 
in a manner that deprives the proposers or potential proposers of a fair opportunity to 

- Page 28 -



Page 11 of 18 

 

compete for the contract; and would have resulted in the award of the contract to a different 
person or entity if the alterations had been included in the request for proposals. (f) Proposals 
submitted shall not be subject to public inspection until a contract is awarded. (3) The 
Recipient agrees that the RFP method, in accordance with FTA Circular 4220.1E, under the 
guidelines of FTA “Best Practices Procurement Manual,” should be used for procurements of 
professional services, such as consultants for planning activities and for transit system 
operations/management. The Recipient acknowledges that certain restrictions apply under 
North Carolina law for use of the RFP method and these restrictions and exceptions are 
discussed in Subsections 11j(1) and 11j(2) of this Agreement. (4) When the RFP method is 
used for procurement of professional services, the Recipient agrees to abide by the following 
minimum requirements: (a) Normally conducted with more than one source submitting an 
offer (proposal); (b) Either fixed price or cost reimbursement type contract will be used; (c) 
Generally used when conditions are not appropriate for use of sealed bids; (d) Requests for 
proposals will be publicized; (e) All evaluation factors will be identified along with their 
relative importance; (f) Proposals will be solicited from an adequate number (3 is 
recommended) of qualified sources; (g) A standard method must be in place for conducting 
technical evaluations of the proposals received and for selecting awardees; (h) Awards will 
be made to the responsible firm whose proposal is most advantageous to the Recipient's 
program with price and other factors considered; and (i) In determining which proposal is 
most advantageous, the Recipient may award to the proposer whose proposal offers the 
greatest business value (best value) to the agency. “Best value” is based on determination of 
which proposal offers the best tradeoff between price and performance, where quality is 
considered an integral performance factor.  

j. Award to Other than the Lowest Bidder. In accordance with State statutes, a third party 
contract may be awarded to other than the lowest bidder, if the award furthers an objective 
(such as improved long-term operating efficiency and lower long-term costs). When specified 
in bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation costs, and life cycle costs will 
be considered in determining which bid is lowest. Prior to the award of any contract equal to 
or greater than $2,500 to other than apparent lowest bidder, the Recipient shall submit its 
recommendation along with basis/reason for selection to the Department for pre-award 
approval. 

k. Award to Responsible Recipients. The Recipient agrees to award third party contracts only 
to responsible contractors who possess potential ability to successfully perform under the 
terms and conditions of the proposed procurement. Consideration will be given to such 
matters as contractor integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance, 
and financial and technical resources. Contracts will not be awarded to parties that are 
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal 
assistance programs or activities in accordance with the Federal debarment and suspension 
rule, 49 C.F.R. 29 (see www.sam.gov and 
https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2006/10/25/06-8657/debarment-and-
suspension-nonprocurement-requirements  for listings). For procurements over $25,000, 
the Recipient shall comply, and assure the compliance of each third party contractor and 
subrecipient at any tier, with the debarment and suspension rule. FTA and the Department 
recommend that grantees use a certification form for projects over $25,000, which are funded 
with Federal and/or State funds. A sample certification form can be obtained from the 
Department.  

l. Procurement Notification Requirements. With respect to any procurement for goods and 
services (including construction services) having an aggregate value of $500,000 or more (in 
Federal funds), the Recipient agrees to: (1) Specify the amount of Federal and State funds that 
will be used to finance the acquisition in any announcement of the contract award for such 

- Page 29 -



Page 12 of 18 

 

goods or services; and (2) Express the said amount as a percentage of the total costs of the 
planned acquisition. 

m. Contract Administration System. The Recipient shall maintain a contract administration 
system that ensures that contractors/subcontractors perform in accordance with the terms, 
conditions, and specifications of their contracts or purchase orders. 

n. Access to Third Party Contract Records. The Recipient agrees, and agrees to require its third 
party contractors and third party subcontractors, at as many tiers of the Project as required, 
to provide to TJCOG access to all third party contract records to the extent required by 49 
U.S.C. § 5325(g), and retain such documents for at least five (5) years after project completion. 
 

Section 12. Leases. 
a. Capital Leases. To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply with FTA regulations, 

"Capital Leases," 49 C.F.R. Part 639, and any revision thereto. 
b. Leases Involving Certificates of Participation. The Recipient agrees to obtain the concurrence 

of the TDM Oversight Committee before entering into any leasing arrangement involving the 
issuance of certificates of participation in connection with the acquisition of any capital asset.  

 
Section 13. Hold Harmless.  
Except as prohibited or otherwise limited by State law, upon request by TJCOG, the Recipient agrees 
to indemnify, save, and hold harmless TJCOG and its officers, agents, and employees acting within the 
scope of their official duties against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any 
willful or intentional violation by the Recipient of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, 
arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data 
furnished under the Project. The Recipient shall not be required to indemnify TJCOG for any such 
liability caused by the wrongful acts of TJCOG employees or agents. 
 
Section 14. Use of Real Property, Equipment, and Supplies.  
The Recipient understands and agrees that the State Government retains a State interest in any real 
property, equipment, and supplies financed with State assistance (Project property) until, and to the 
extent, that the State Government relinquishes its State interest in that Project property. With respect 
to any Project property financed with State assistance under this Agreement, the Recipient agrees to 
comply with the following provisions of this Agreement: 

a. Use of Project Property. The Recipient agrees to use Project property for appropriate Project 
purposes (which may include joint development purposes that generate program income, 
both during and after the award period and used to support public transportation activities) 
for the duration of the useful life of that property, as required by TJCOG. Should the Recipient 
unreasonably delay or fail to use Project property during the useful life of that property, the 
Recipient agrees that it may be required to return the entire amount of the State assistance 
expended on that property. The Recipient further agrees to notify TJCOG immediately when 
any Project property is withdrawn from Project use or when any Project property is used in 
a manner substantially different from the representations the Recipient has made in its 
Application or in the Project Description for this Agreement for the Project. 

b. General. The Recipient agrees to comply with the property management standards of 49 
C.F.R. §§ 18.31 through 18.33, including any amendments thereto, and with other applicable 
Federal and State regulations and directives. Any exception to the requirements of 49 C.F.R. 
§§ 18.31 through 18.33 requires the express approval of TJCOG in writing.  

c. Records. The Recipient agrees to keep satisfactory records pertaining to the use of Project 
property, and submit to TJCOG upon request such information as may be required to assure 
compliance with this Section 14 of this Agreement. 

- Page 30 -



Page 13 of 18 

 

d. Encumbrance of Project Property. The Recipient agrees to maintain satisfactory continuing 
control of Project property as follows: (1) Written Transactions. The Recipient agrees that it 
will not execute any transfer of title, lease, lien, pledge, mortgage, encumbrance, third party 
contract, subagreement, grant anticipation note, alienation, innovative finance arrangement 
(such as a cross border lease, leveraged lease, or otherwise), or any other obligation 
pertaining to Project property, that in any way would affect the continuing State interest in 
that Project property. (2) Oral Transactions. The Recipient agrees that it will not obligate 
itself in any manner to any third party with respect to Project property. (3) Other Actions. 
The Recipient agrees that it will not take any action adversely affecting the State interest in 
or impair the Recipient's continuing control of the use of Project property. 

e. Insurance Proceeds. If the Recipient receives insurance proceeds as a result of damage or 
destruction to the Project property, the Recipient agrees to: (1) Apply those insurance 
proceeds to the cost of replacing the damaged or destroyed Project property taken out of 
service, or (2) Return to TJCOG an amount equal to the remaining interest in the damaged or 
destroyed Project property. 

f. Misused or Damaged Project Property. If any damage to Project property results from abuse 
or misuse occurring with the Recipient's knowledge and consent, the Recipient agrees to 
restore the Project property to its original condition or refund the value of the State interest 
in that property, as TJCOG may require.  

g. Responsibilities after Project Closeout. The Recipient agrees that Project closeout by TJCOG 
will not change the Recipient’s Project property management responsibilities as stated in 
Section 14 of this Agreement, and as may be set forth in subsequent Federal and State laws, 
regulations, and directives.  

 
Section 15. Insurance.  
The Recipient shall be responsible for protecting the State financial interests in all items purchased 
under this Agreement throughout the useful life of the Project property. 
 
Section 16. Employee Protections. 

a. Activities Not Involving Construction. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the 
compliance of each third party contractor, with the employee protection requirements for 
non construction employees of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as 
amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 et seq., in particular the wage and hour requirements of Section 
102 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3702, and with U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions 
Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor 
Standards Provisions Applicable to Non construction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5. 

b. Activities Involving Commerce. The Recipient agrees that the provisions of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201 et seq., apply to employees performing Project work involving 
commerce. 
 

Section 17. Reserved. 
 

Section 18. Energy Conservation.  
To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply with the North Carolina Energy Policy Act of 
1975 (N.C.G.S. 113B) issued in accordance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, as amended, 
42 U.S.C. §§ 6321 et seq. 
 

- Page 31 -



Page 14 of 18 

 

Section 19. Charter Service Operations.  
FTA defines charter service under (49 CFR Part 604.3 (c-h) as Transportation provided by a recipient 
at the request of a third party for the exclusive use of a bus or van for a negotiated price. Charter service 
does not include any form of demand-response transportation. The Recipient acknowledges that 
Federal and State rules and regulations prohibit the provision of charter service using FTA funded 
equipment and facilities if a registered private charter operator expresses interest in providing the 
service. Beginning July 30, 2008, all grantees providing charter service under the exceptions shall 
post the required records on the FTA charter website quarterly using TEAM within 30 days of the 
end of each calendar quarter. NCDOT requires that any sub-recipient wishing to provide charter 
service must comply with the procedures in the Final Rule on Charter Service. NCDOT must be 
notified via email or postal service that a request for charter service exception is being submitted to 
FTA, including all supporting documentation. The Recipient agrees that neither it nor any public 
transportation operator performing work in connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S. C. 
chapter 53 will engage in charter service operations, except as authorized by 49 U.S. C. 53 5323 (d) 
and FTA regulations, “Charter Service, “49 C.F. R. Part 604, and any subsequent Charter Service 
regulations or FTA directives that may be issued, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise 
in writing. Any charter service agreement required by FTA regulations is incorporated by reference 
and made part of this Agreement for the Project. The Recipient understands and agrees that in 
addition to any remedy specified in the charter agreement, if a pattern of violations of that agreement 
is found, the violator will be barred from receiving Federal transit assistance in an amount to be 
determined by FTA or U.S. DOT. 
 
Section 20. School Transportation Operations.  
The Recipient agrees that neither it nor any public transportation operator performing work in 
connection with a Project financed with Federal or State funds will engage in school transportation 
operations for the transportation of students or school personnel exclusively in competition with 
private school transportation operators, except as authorized by 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), as 
applicable, and FTA regulations, "School Bus Operations," 49 C.F.R. Part 605, and any subsequent 
School Transportation Operations regulations or FTA directives that may be issued. Any school 
transportation operations agreement required by FTA regulations is incorporated by reference and 
made part of this Agreement for the Project. The Recipient understands and agrees that if it or an 
operator violates that school transportation operations agreement the violator will be barred from 
receiving Federal or State transit assistance in an amount to be determined by the Department. 
 
Section 21. Metric System.  
As practicable and feasible, the Recipient agrees to accept products and services with dimensions 
expressed in the metric system of measurement. 
 
Section 22. Substance Abuse.  
To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply with the following Federal substance abuse 
regulations: 

a. Drug-Free Workplace. U.S. DOT regulations, “Government wide Requirements for Drug-Free 
Workplace (Financial Assistance), 49 C.F.R. Part 32, that implement the Drug-Free Workplace 
Act of 1988, 41 U.S.C. §§ 701 et seq.  

b. Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use. FTA regulations, “Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and 
Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations,” 49 C.F.R. Part 655, that implement 49 U.S.C. § 
5331.  

 

- Page 32 -



Page 15 of 18 

 

Section 23. Seat Belt Use.  
In accordance with Executive Order No. 13043, “Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States,” April 
16, 1997, 23 U. S. C. § 402 note, the Recipient is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat 
belt use policies and programs for its employees and other personnel that operate company-owned, 
rented, or personally operated vehicles, and to include this provision in any third party contracts, 
third party subcontracts, or subagreements involving the Project. 
 
Section 24. Protection of Sensitive Security Information.  
To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 40119(b) and implementing 
U.S. DOT regulations, “Protection of Sensitive Security Information,” 49 C.F.R. Part 15, and with 49 
U.S.C. § 114(s) and implementing U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Transportation Security 
Administration regulations, “Protection of Sensitive Security Information,” 49 C.F.R. Part 1520. 
 
Section 25. Disputes, Breaches, Defaults, or Other Litigation.  
The Recipient agrees that TJCOG has a vested interest in the settlement of any dispute, breach, 
default, or litigation involving the Project. Accordingly: 

a. Notification to TJCOG. The Recipient agrees to notify TJCOG in writing of any current or 
prospective major dispute, breach, default, or litigation that may affect the State 
Government's interests in the Project or the State Government's administration or 
enforcement of Federal/State laws or regulations. If the Recipient seeks to name the State 
Government as a party to litigation for any reason, in any forum, the Recipient agrees to 
inform TJCOG in writing before doing so. 

b. TJCOG Interest in Recovery. TJCOG retains the right to a proportionate share of proceeds 
derived from any third-party recovery, except that the Recipient may return any liquidated 
damages recovered to its Project Account in lieu of returning the share to TJCOG. 

c. Enforcement. The Recipient agrees to pursue all legal rights provided within any third-party 
contract. 

d. TJCOG Concurrence. TJCOG reserves the right to concur in any compromise or settlement of 
any claim involving the Project and the Recipient. 

e. Alternative Dispute Resolution. TJCOG encourages the Recipient to use alternative dispute 
resolution procedures, as may be appropriate. 
 

Section 26. Amendments/Revisions to the Project.  
The Recipient agrees that a change in Project circumstances causing an inconsistency with the terms 
of this Agreement for the Project will require an amendment or revision to this Agreement for the 
Project signed by the original signatories or their authorized designees or successors. The Recipient 
agrees that a change in the fundamental information submitted in its Application will also require an 
Amendment to its Application or this Agreement for the Project. The Recipient agrees that the 
project will not incur any costs associated with the amendment or revision before receiving 
notification of approval from TJCOG. The Recipient agrees that any requests for amendments 
and or revisions will be submitted in accordance with the policies and procedures established 
by TJCOG. 
 
Section 27. Information Obtained Through Internet Links.  
This Agreement may include electronic links/Web site addresses to Federal/State laws, regulations, 
and directives as well as other information. The Department does not guarantee the accuracy of 
information accessed through such links. Accordingly, the Recipient agrees that information obtained 
through any electronic link within this Agreement does not represent an official version of a 
Federal/State law, regulation, or directive, and might be inaccurate. Thus, information obtained 
through such links is neither incorporated by reference nor made part of this Agreement. The Federal 

- Page 33 -



Page 16 of 18 

 

Register and the Code of Federal Regulations are the official sources for regulatory information 
pertaining to the Federal Government. 
 
Section 28. Severability.  
If any provision of this Agreement for the Project is determined invalid, the remainder of that 
Agreement shall not be affected if that remainder would continue to conform to the requirements of 
applicable Federal/State laws or regulations. 
 
Section 29. Termination of Agreement. 

a. TJCOG. In the event of the Recipient's noncompliance with any of the provisions of this 
Agreement, TJCOG may suspend or terminate the Agreement by giving the Recipient thirty 
(30) days advance notice. Any failure to make reasonable progress on the Project or violation 
of this Agreement for the Project that endangers substantial performance of the Project shall 
provide sufficient grounds for TJCOG to terminate the Agreement for the Project. In general, 
termination of State assistance for the Project will not invalidate obligations properly 
incurred by the Recipient before the termination date to the extent those obligations cannot 
be canceled. If, however, the department determines that the Recipient has willfully misused 
State assistance by failing to make adequate progress, failing to make reasonable and 
appropriate use of Project property, or failing to comply with the terms of this Agreement for 
the Project, TJCOG reserves the right to require the Recipient to refund the entire amount of 
State assistance provided for the Project or any lesser amount as TJCOG may determine. 
Expiration of any Project time period established for the Project does not, by itself, constitute 
an expiration or termination of the Agreement for the Project. The Department, before issuing 
notice of Agreement termination, shall allow the Recipient a reasonable opportunity to 
correct for noncompliance. Upon noncompliance with the nondiscrimination section (Section 
8) of this Agreement or with any of the said rules, regulations or orders, this Agreement may 
be cancelled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Recipient may be declared 
ineligible for contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Orders No. 
11246 and No. 11375, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in the said Executive Order or by rule, regulation or order of the Secretary of Labor, 
or as otherwise provided by law. 

b. The Recipient. The Recipient may terminate its participation in the Project by notifying and 
receiving the concurrence of TJCOG thirty (30) days in advance of the termination. 

 
Section 30. Contract Administrators.  
All notices permitted or required to be given by one Party to the other and all questions about this 
Agreement from one Party to the other shall be addressed and delivered to the other Party’s Contract 
Administrator. The name, postal address, street address, telephone number, fax number, and email 
address of the Parties’ respective initial Contract Administrators are set out below. Either Party may 
change the name, postal address, street address, telephone number, fax number, or email address of 
its Contract Administrator by giving timely written notice to the other Party. 
 
Section 31. Federal Certification Regarding Lobbying.  
The Recipient certifies, by signing this Agreement, its compliance with Subsection 3d of this 
Agreement. 
 
Section 32. Federal Certification Regarding Debarment.  
The Recipient certifies, by signing this Agreement, its compliance with Subsection 3b of this 
Agreement. 
 

- Page 34 -



Page 17 of 18 

 

Section 33. Federal Certification Regarding Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use.  
As required by FTA regulations, “Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit 
Operations,” at 49 CFR part 655, subpart I, the Recipient certifies, by signing this Agreement, that it 
has established and implemented an alcohol misuse and anti-drug program, and has complied with 
or will comply with all applicable requirements of FTA regulations, “Prevention of Alcohol Misuse 
and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations,” 49 CFR part 655, and Section 22 of this Agreement. 

- Page 35 -



Page 18 of 18 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by TJCOG, an agency of the State of North 
Carolina, and the Recipient by and through a duly authorized representative and is effective the date 
and year first above written. 
 

RECIPIENT’S LEGAL NAME:   

RECIPIENT’S FEDERAL TAX ID NUMBER:   

RECIPIENT’S FISCAL YEAR END:  

 

SIGNATURE: 

PRINTED NAME:  

TITLE:  

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

PRINTED NAME:  

TITLE:  

 

Triangle J Council of Governments 

SIGNATURE: 

PRINTED NAME: Lee Worsley 

TITLE: Executive Director 

ATTEST: 

PRINTED NAME: Judy Weller 

TITLE: Finance Director 
 

- Page 36 -



FY21 Transportation Demand Management Program Grant Application
Applicant  

Project Type  Local 
Local G121 Planner - Long Range Transit 1 70,000$                38% 26,600$                

G121 -$                      
Total Salaries & Fringe 36,797.97$                    G121 -$                      
Total Other Direct Cost 13,203.00$                    G121 -$                      
Project Total Cost 50,000.97$                    G121 -$                      
Amount Requested 25,000.48$                    1 38% 26,600$               
Amount of Matching Funds 25,000.48$                    G125 -$                      

G125 -$                      
G125 -$                      
G125 -$                      

0 0% -$                      
G126 -$                      
G126 -$                      
G126 -$                      
G126 -$                      

0 0% -$                      
1 38% 26,600$              

Object 
Code Title Total Cost
G120

G121 Full-time employees 26,600$                    
G122 Overtime
G125 Part-time -$                          
G126 Temporary and part-time -$                          
G127 Longevity -$                          

Total Salaries 26,600$                    
G180

G181 Social security contribution 2,035$                      
G182 Retirement contribution 3,990$                      

Participating Percentage 15%
G183 Hospitalization insurance 2,087$                      

Hospitalization Insurance Cost/Month/FTE 458$                         
G184 Disability insurance -$                          

Disibility Insurance Cost/Month/FTE
G185 Unemployment compensation
G186 Workers compensation 1,071$                      
G189 Other 1,015$                      

 Total Fringe 10,198$                    
TOTAL SALARY & FRINGE 36,798$                  

G190 Professional Services
G199 Other -$                          

G200 Supplies and Materials
G261 Office supplies and materials 2,000$                      
G291 Computer supplies -$                          

G300 Travel and Transportation
G311 Travel -$                          

G311a Conferences/Training/Professional Development
G311b Outreach, meetings, local events, etc.

G312 Travel subsistence -$                          
G312a Conferences/Training/Professional Development
G312b Outreach, meetings, local events, etc.

G314 Vehicle rental -$                          
G314a Conferences/Training/Professional Development
G314b Outreach, meetings, local events, etc.

G320 Communications
G321 Telephone service 
G322 Internet Service Provider Fee
G325 Postage 2,000$                      
G329 Other

G340 Printing and Binding
G341 Printing and reproduction 4,000$                      
G349 Other

G370 Advertising/Promotion
G371 Marketing (paid ads, marketing firm, etc.) 2,628$                      
G372 Promotional Items 2,000$                      
G373 Other

G380 Computer Support Services (contracted)
G381 Computer programming services
G382 Computer support/technical assistance

G390 Other Services
G395 Training - Employee Education Expense 
G399 Other

G480 Indirect Costs
G481 Central services -$                          

Budget direct cost base
Indirect percentage rate

G490 Other Fixed Charges
G491 Dues and Subscriptions 575$                         

TOTAL OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 13,203$                  

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 50,001$             

Program Coordinator Shuchi Gupta at 919-558-2715 or sgupta@tjcog.org Descriptions

Salary-Wage Detail
Town of Apex

Object 
Code Position Title No. Employees

Total Annual 
Salary % on TDM Grant

Budgeted 
Amount

All G121 Staff Positions and Salaries

All G125 Staff Positions and Salaries

All G126 Staff Positions and Salaries
TOTAL STAFF NUMBERS AND SALARIES

Administrative Budget

NCDOT UPTUS Codes

.5 FTE of 4% merit increase and $300 longevity pay
Resources

Energy & Environment Program Coordinator Shuchi Gupta 919-558-2715 or sgupta@tjcog.org

TDM Conference and Membership Policy
10.19% local government retirement and 5% 401k

Health, life, dental, vision

Medicare

ation, interpretation, graphic design services, video produ

Materials for special events, festivals

Four town-wide mailers @ $500 each

Posters, brochures and flyers

  n Cary Magazine, Be Local and paid promotion of social m  
   nvas tote bag, reusable water bottle, hat, USB stick coffee   

ACT annual membership

- Page 37 -

https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/uniform-public-transportation-accounting-system-uptas---revised.pdf
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/uniform-public-transportation-accounting-system-uptas---revised.pdf
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/uniform-public-transportation-accounting-system-uptas---revised.pdf
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/uniform-public-transportation-accounting-system-uptas---revised.pdf
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/uniform-public-transportation-accounting-system-uptas---revised.pdf
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/fy20-tdm-documents/attachment-e.-travel-and-membership-policy.docx
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/fy20-tdm-documents/attachment-e.-travel-and-membership-policy.docx
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/fy20-tdm-documents/attachment-e.-travel-and-membership-policy.docx
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/fy20-tdm-documents/attachment-e.-travel-and-membership-policy.docx
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/fy20-tdm-documents/attachment-e.-travel-and-membership-policy.docx
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/uniform-public-transportation-accounting-system-uptas---revised.pdf
https://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/fy20-tdm-documents/attachment-e.-travel-and-membership-policy.docx


 

1 
 

FY21 PROPOSAL NARRATIVE  
 

Please format your narrative as outlined below. Your application will be considered 
COMPLETE only if information requested is submitted for every item listed below.  

AN OVERVIEW OF YOUR PROGRAM 

1. Background:  Provide a brief description of your organization and its current TDM program.  
 
The Town of Apex, provider of all local government services for the third-largest municipality in Wake 
County, is working to implement the town’s first local bus service, GoApex Route 1 (see Attachment 3). 
The proposed TDM program includes staff time and materials to support an education, awareness, and 
marketing campaign for the new bus service and for the Town of Apex to serve as the TDM coordinator 
for hot spots 58 and14. In the role of TDM coordinator, Apex would: share information about the 
regional TDM program as part of outreach efforts for GoApex, share information about regional TDM 
campaigns including multimodal travel options, serve as the first point of contact for TDM questions, and 
participate in regional and employer outreach meetings. The marketing campaign will be led by the 
Planning Department with support from communications staff in the Administration Department. The 
Town does not currently have a local TDM program. Limited TDM services are currently offered by 
GoTriangle, as the regional provider. This request would help to launch the first TDM activities 
undertaken by the Town, and would spread awareness about TDM services currently offered by 
GoTriangle.  
 

2. People in your organization: 
 

Type  Approx. Total Number 
Staff 19 staff in the Planning Department, 2 

directly assigned to this effort 
2 communications staff in the 
Administration Department 
4 staff in the Economic Development 
Department 

Students (if an educational institution) 0 
Faculty (if an educational institution) 0 

 

3. Staff Members: List all staff members who will work on the project and an estimated percentage of their 
time to be spent on each major task.  

 
The percentages provided below are estimates of staff time to be spent specifically on the marketing 
campaign for GoApex and TDM coordination. 
 
• Jenna Shouse – 50 percent 
• Shannon Cox – 10 percent 
• Stacie Galloway – 2 percent 
• Kerrin Cox – 2 percent 
• Joanna Helms – 1 percent 

 
4. Internal Stakeholders and Partnerships: List all partners IN your organization, which may or may not be 

funded by the grant but support grant activities currently (Add as many rows as you may need). 

- Page 38 -



 

2 
 

 

Stakeholder/Partner State the nature of partnership/support. Funded by this 
grant? 

Jenna Shouse Long Range Planner leading planning for GoApex No 
Shannon Cox Long Range Planning Manager managing GoApex No 

 
5. Existing External Partnerships: List all partners OUTSIDE your organization, which may or may not be 

funded by the grant but support grant activities currently (Add as many rows as you may need).  

Partner Organization  State the nature of partnership/support. Funded by this 
grant? 

Town of Cary Supporting planning efforts for proposed fixed route 
service for GoApex 

No 

Wake County/ GoWake 
Access 

Supporting planning efforts for proposed 
complementary paratransit service for GoApex 

No 

 
6. Potential External Partnerships: List key potential organizations OUTSIDE your organization that you do 

not engage with currently, but future collaboration can support your grant work (Add as many rows as you 
may need).  

Organization How a future partnership will benefit your TDM work? 
Wake County/GoWake 
Access 

The Town of Apex intends to partner with Wake County/GoWake Access 
as the complementary paratransit service provider for GoApex Route 1. 

Town of Cary The Town of Apex intends to partner with the Town of Cary as the fixed 
route service provider for GoApex Route 1. 

GoTriangle The Town of Apex will coordinate with GoTriangle to determine if there is 
educational information about the regional TDM program that should be 
shared with the public during outreach and marketing efforts for GoApex 
Route 1. The Town of Apex will also coordinate with GoTriangle to share 
information about regional bus routes serving the Town of Apex, and 
planned improvements. 

Triangle J Council of 
Governments (TJCOG) 

The Town of Apex will coordinate with TJCOG as the TDM program 
administrator and for regional TDM campaigns. 

 
7. VMT Reduction: Discuss why your organization is the best Service Provider to reduce single-occupant 

vehicle trips in the hotspot of your interest. 
 
The Town of Apex is proposing the first local bus route in Apex – GoApex Route 1. The route will 
directly serve two hot spots identified in the TDM Plan – 14 and 58, as well as the NC 55 corridor, which 
is identified on the TDM Hot Spot map as having the highest trip density in Apex. The proposed TDM 
request is for staff time and materials for a marketing campaign intended to promote, educate, and 
spread awareness about this new service. The GoApex marketing campaign will encourage use of the 
new bus service, thus reducing single-occupancy vehicle trips in Apex. The campaign will also be used 
as an opportunity to increase awareness of regional routes and to share information about regional 
TDM services. 
 
GoTriangle is the designated regional provider for TDM services addressing hot spots 14 and 58. 
GoTriangle has confirmed that TDM services are provided to employers in Apex as requested, and that 
there have been no requests over the past few years. So, essentially, little to no TDM outreach has 
been provided to address these two hot spots in the third-largest municipality in Wake County over the 
past several years. 
 

- Page 39 -



 

3 
 

In addition to being the proposed service provider for the new route, the Town has experience sharing 
information with residents and visitors. The Town has the unique ability to: leverage our existing 
relationships with businesses and organizations, share information via digital and print media already 
used by residents, promote GoApex at festivals and events, and strengthen partnerships with regional 
providers. Finally, as the lead agency for GoApex, the Town is investing substantial resources in the 
new bus service, and is uniquely motivated to ensure success of the new route, and thus the reduction 
of single-occupant vehicle trips.  
 

8. Equity in TDM efforts: Please state if any current efforts are being done by you or your organization to 
integrate equity in TDM outreach. If not, how do you propose to integrate it in your FY21 efforts?   

 
Equity has been an important consideration in every aspect of planning for the first local bus route in 
Apex and will continue to be a focus of TDM outreach.  
 
A transit propensity analysis was conducted as part of the Western Wake Comprehensive Operations 
Analysis – a planning study resulting in the recommended alignment for GoApex Route 1. Differences in 
transit propensity are based on vehicle ownership, race, ethnicity, and annual income. The study found 
high propensity for transit along the NC 55 corridor between US 64 and US 1. A diverse population 
including students, seniors, individuals with low incomes, persons with disabilities, limited English 
proficiency (LEP) populations, and minority populations reside or visit along the route alignment, 
especially in the vicinity of Hughes Street, James Street, Justice Heights, Apex Middle School, 
Cambridge Village, Lakeridge Apartments, Linwood Apartments, Beechridge Apartments, and Rex 
Rehabilitation and Nursing Care Center.  
 
The alignment of GoApex Route 1 was refined through an implementation study, the Transit Circulator 
Study. The study involved outreach along the proposed corridor and at existing bus stops. Outreach 
material was made available in both Spanish and English and Spanish-speaking interpreters were 
available at outreach events in areas with high percentages of LEP populations. As part of this effort, 
the Executive Director of the Western Wake Crisis Ministry expressed that their clients have had trouble 
accessing the facility due to limited transportation services in the area. GoApex Route 1 was refined to 
provide clients with a reliable, all-day transportation option to this facility.  
 
The initial investment in bus stops for GoApex Route 1 will include very limited amenities. Some 
enhanced amenities, such as benches, bike racks, and trash receptacles, are proposed for those stops 
anticipated to have the highest ridership. An analysis was completed to ensure equitable distribution of 
enhanced amenities at bus stops. The distribution is spread across multiple Census Tracts. Most of the 
bus stops with proposed amenities are located in Census Tracts with a minority population of at least 
30%. Proposed bus stop amenities are not disproportionately concentrated in areas with a low 
percentage of minority populations. A map of the GoApex Route 1 Title VI Analysis can be found in 
Attachment 4. 
 
As part of the marketing campaign, the Town will continue to ensure equity is a priority consideration. 
An initial marketing plan was developed as part of the Transit Circulator Study (see Attachment 5). The 
plan specifically identifies methods to reach low-income and LEP populations, including using 
partnerships with service organizations, pop-up events along the transit corridor, and printing materials 
in both English and Spanish.   
 

9. Additional Impacts of TDM Programming:  Discuss why and how your organization is best equipped to 
enhance quality of life and area economic vitality through your TDM program. 

 
The Town of Apex is in the best possible position to enhance quality of life and area economic vitality 
through our TDM Program. The local governments’ role is to serve the public for which we work. In that 
effort, we continuously engage the public to understand the community’s needs and priorities. More 
than any other local or regional agency, we understand the fabric of the community and who will be 
served by the TDM program. Further, the Town has formed a local transit committee including 

- Page 40 -



 

4 
 

representatives of the business community, economic development, health care, parks and recreation, 
and residents to guide transit planning and implementation. This local committee will be engaged in the 
TDM effort to ensure that the program enhances community quality of life and economic development. 
While promotion of GoApex Route 1 will be the special focus of the first year of the TDM program in 
Apex, the Planning Department is responsible for multi-modal transportation planning and will ensure 
maps and information about bicycle and pedestrian travel options are also available as part of outreach. 
 

10. TDM Goals (only for Core Program Applicants): State any TDM goals that your organization may have 
for your Program. If this is not the case for your Program, please cite any organizational or community 
goals that TDM strategies in your proposed workplan could help achieve. (See Core Programs section on 
pg. 2 and 3 of the main RFP document for more detail.) 

 
 
The proposed program would support every goal from Bike Apex: The Comprehensive Bicycle Plan 
(adopted January 2019): 

• Enhance mobility 
• Create a positive economic impact 
• Protect the environment 
• Promote equity 
• Enhance health 
• Increase safety 
• Increase livability 

The proposed program would support the following themes from Advance Apex: The 2045 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan (adopted February 2019): 

• Downtown - …enhance the downtown experience by making it easier to travel to and around 
the Town core 

• Integrated growth – coordinate transportation investments with land use and development 
decisions to support travel by multiple modes 

• Mobility and connectivity – create a balanced transportation system that connects people to 
destinations with a safe, efficient, progressive, and equitable network that accommodates 
drivers, pedestrians, bicyclists, and transit users 

• Quality of life – Encourage healthy and active lifestyles…along with multimodal transportation 
choices for all residents regardless of age or ability 

The proposed program would support the following goals from the Town of Apex Downtown Master Plan 
(adopted December 2019): 

• Manage parking efficiently and effectively 
• Create connections to downtown 

 
11. Challenges: State any organizational challenges (physical location of your office, access to communication 

tools, lack of marketing tools, bureaucracy, organizational silos, outdated technology etc.) that limit the 
progress you can make in your work and how you propose to address/overcome those in FY21.  

 
The main challenge the Town will confront with implementation of the TDM program is that transit is new 
to Apex residents and implementation of transit and serving as the TDM coordinator are new to Apex 
staff. Increasing staff resources is a main purpose of the TDM request. In addition, Apex staff will 
continue to work with our regional partners to ensure that implementation and marketing is effective. 
Regional Wake Transit Plan funding is used to fund a portion of staff time at both the Capital Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization and GoTriangle to provide technical and public engagement support 
to community funding area municipalities. As a community funding area, the Town of Apex will continue 
to leverage these experts as resources to guide our local implementation efforts. In addition, the Town 
of Apex will work closely with TJCOG and GoTriangle to effectively fulfill our new role as TDM 
coordinator.    
 

Returning Applicants Only:  

- Page 41 -



 

5 
 

 
A. Clearly communicate quantitatively your program’s past progress and impacts. Emphasize quantitative 

data, multi-year progress, and percentage increases in participation in services and programs. 
 
Not applicable – new applicant. 
 

B. Describe any new or major changes to top tasks, activities, or deliverables from what was proposed in 
your FY20 proposals. (Applicants do not need to discuss changes to print materials, advertising, events, 
promotional items, etc.)  

 
Not applicable – new applicant. 
 

NEW Applicants Only: Describe any VMT reduction efforts done in past 5 years by your organization that 
correlate with this project.  

 
This is the Town’s first targeted implementation effort to reduce VMT. Related past efforts focused on 
planning and supporting regional transit, including: making information available about regional transit 
routes, supporting outreach efforts as requested by regional providers, integrating transit in the 2018 
updates to both the long range transportation and land use plans, aggressively building bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities and considering connections to transit in setting project priorities, and serving as 
active participants in the Wake Transit Planning Advisory Committee. 

 

WORKPLAN: DETAILED TASKS & ACTIVITIES 

Top Tasks: Provide a detailed description of each task per instructions below. Make sure to reference to the 
Activities as listed in Attachment A that each task will help implement. Please use the same Activity numbering 
as stated in Attachment A.  

 
A. For each applicable task under an Activity, applicants must describe in detail how they will collaborate with 

other Service Providers in neighboring or overlapping hotspots as well as with Regional Programming. 
Local Service Provider applicants for Core Program funding should budget time to participate in and help 
coordinate regional activities such as GoPartner meetings and student commuter challenge.  They also 
must describe how they will participate in regional activities and promote regional services. On its end, the 
Regional Service Provider has the responsibility to assist all Local Service Providers in promoting TDM. 
Please see Attachment L for details regarding Roles and Responsibilities of different stakeholders of the 
Triangle TDM Program. 

 

B. Specify outputs for each task under an Activity and provide an estimate of the quantity of outputs by 
Activity wherever possible. Outputs are events that a Service Provider can influence more directly such as 
number of events coordinated, number of presentations given, GoPartner meetings attended, etc. An 
example of an output could be “We will make a presentation to 16 different employers, at least once 
during the FY21 grant period, about alternative transportation options.”  For services that involve recruiting 
employers or signing up registrants, state how those outcomes (employers recruited, users registered) will 
be tracked and reported.    

 
Response to parts A and B: 
 
The Town of Apex is requesting TDM program funding under the Core Program category as a Local 
Service Provider. This funding will be used for staff time and materials for the marketing, education, and 
outreach campaign for GoApex and for the Town of Apex to serve as the TDM coordinator for hot spots 
58 and 14. Specific tasks and anticipated outputs that will be undertaken as part of this request are 

- Page 42 -

http://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/regional-planning/transdemand/fy17-rfp-loi/attachment-a.-7-year-plan-revised-table-of-activities.pdf
http://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/regional-planning/transdemand/fy17-rfp-loi/attachment-a.-7-year-plan-revised-table-of-activities.pdf
https://www.tjcog.org/sites/default/files/uploads/TDM/attachment_l._roles_and_responsibilities.pdf
http://www.tjcog.org/Data/Sites/1/media/attachment-g.-triangle-tdm-program-roles-and-responsibilities.pdf


 

6 
 

described below, organized according to the TDM Program Activities outline. It is anticipated that the 
new bus service would launch in April 2021. Based on this assumption, material development and 
marketing plan refinement would occur between July 2020 – February 2021 and active outreach for 
GoApex would begin in March 2021 and continue through the end of the fiscal year. The Town’s role as 
TDM coordinator would begin in July 2020. Launching a new transit program requires substantial effort. 
While active marketing would begin in March 2021, the staff position leading the campaign would use 
the time between July 2020 and March 2021 to: create materials; plan details for the campaign including 
specific presentations, partners, and events; begin building momentum for the new service; prepare 
social media campaigns; plan special events; and prepare articles and arrange for publication. In 
addition, the staff position would use the first months to become familiar with the regional TDM program, 
services, partners, and materials and determine how to integrate the TDM coordinator role into the 
overall workload and outreach. This will include revamping the Town’s transit webpage to provide 
information about TDM programs. 
 

• Performance Area 1: Planning 
o 1.1 Expand Funding Opportunities 

 1.1.a. Pursue new funding opportunities. 
• Activity: The Town of Apex will identify and pursue funding 

opportunities to support GoApex and TDM outreach activities. The 
Town is aggressive in pursuing funding to help address goals. The 
Town is currently awaiting a final award decision regarding  

• Output: Additional funding sources to further enhance the Town’s 
outreach and coordination efforts.  

o 1.2 TDM-Supportive Policies 
 1.2.a. Continue to support implementation of local government adopted 

TDM policies… 
• Activity: The Town will ensure that TDM activities are consistent with 

goals identified in adopted plans (see section 10 of application). 
• Output: The Town will connect TDM reporting to identified goals. 

o 1.3 Regional TDM Coordination 
 1.3.b. Serve on technical advisory committees for major transportation 

projects and studies. 
• Activity: The Town will work with GoTriangle and GoCary to market 

route changes and improvements in conjunction with the marketing 
campaign for GoApex. 

• Output: Increased awareness about the new GoCary HSX route and 
improvements to GoTriangle route 305. A minimum of two calls or 
meetings with GoTriangle and GoCary to coordinate outreach. 

• Performance Area 2: Program Administration 
o 2.1 Triangle TDM Program Administration 

 2.1.d. Submit Quarterly Reports to TJCOG with detailed data on the 
metrics relevant to the Activities in Service Provider Work Plans. 

• Activity: The Town will submit Quarterly Reports to TJCOG based on 
the work plan and guidance provided by TJCOG regarding applicable 
metrics. 

• Output: Completed quarterly reports to inform annual reporting and 
performance measurement for the TDM program. 

o 2.2. Triangle TDM Program Monitoring and Evaluation 
 2.2.b. Survey Triangle commuters regularly. 

• Activity: The Town will participate in development of regional surveys 
and will work to distribute surveys to commuters in Apex. 

• Output: Increased participation in regional surveys by commuters in 
Apex and better representation of Apex commuters in survey results. 

 2.2.c. Track program participation 

- Page 43 -



 

7 
 

• Activity: The Town will collect and report metrics as coordinated with 
TJCOG and specified in the work plan. It is anticipated that metrics 
would include measures of the success of outreach, such as number of 
events held, number of people reached at each event, number of 
presentations delivered, number of website hits, number of new 
partners engaged, etc.. 

• Output: Reporting of metrics included in quarterly reports. 
 2.2.e. Track customer satisfaction for TDM-related services and programs 

• Activity: Customer satisfaction surveys for GoApex will be completed 
every two years. If TDM program funding is made available for a 
second year of service, the Town will report survey results to TJCOG. 
This task will not be included in the work plan for the first year. 

• Output: Customer satisfaction survey summary (year two, if awarded, 
only). 

 2.2.f. Evaluate effectiveness of marketing & outreach activities 
• Activity: As appropriate and feasible, the Town will incorporate brief 

satisfaction surveys into marketing activities.  
• Output: Satisfaction survey results and any recommended changes to 

marketing and outreach activities provided in Quarterly Reports. 
o 2.3 Build the Triangle TDM Program 

 2.3.a. Conduct organizational and program review at regular intervals as 
appropriate. 

• Activity: The Town will participate and provide information for the 
efforts of TJCOG and the Oversight Committee to conduct organization 
and program review. 

• Output: Additional information to inform the ongoing improvement and 
effectiveness of the TDM program. 

 2.3.c and d.  Develop processes for training and orienting new service 
providers, and provide assistance, outreach materials, and support to 
new service providers. 

• Activity: As a new service provider, the Town will actively seek out and 
participate in training, orientation, and materials that may be available 
and will provide feedback that may inform training and orientation 
programs and materials. 

• Output: The Town will have the necessary resources to serve as a 
new service provider. 

 2.3.e. Research TDM policies and connect with other successful TDM 
programs to inform possible future enhancements to local and regional 
services, marketing, and outreach in the Triangle. 

• Activity: The Town will participate in learning sessions and will share 
effective material from outreach conducted by the Town. 

• Output: Overall improvement of the TDM program and incorporation of 
lessons learned and best practices identified regionally in the activities 
the Town leads. 

 2.3.g. and 2.3.h. Participate in professional development and continuing 
education opportunities and Seek opportunities to share lessons learned 
with the TDM professional community. 

• Activity: The Town’s TDM coordinator position will participate in 
regional meetings as well as virtual learning opportunities to enhance 
his/her knowledge relevant to TDM and to share any lessons learned 
as a new service provider. 

• Output: Professional education and advancement for the new TDM 
coordinator and additional perspective and information to inform the 
regional TDM community. 

• Performance Area 3: Services and Operations 

- Page 44 -



 

8 
 

o 3.2 Travel/Trip Planning Service 
 3.2.c. Explore public-private shuttles. 

• Activity: As opportunities arise, the Town will coordinate with private 
entities interested in shuttle service to connect people to destinations or 
to local or regional bus routes. The Town has already begun this work 
with the Apex Downtown Business Association and the Apex Transit 
Committee, but additional resources will improve coordination.  

• Output: Possible new private partnerships and new opportunities to 
support multi-modal transportation options. 

o 3.3 GoTriangle.org Website Enhancements 
 3.3.a. Maintain regional website content and functionality on an ongoing 

basis. 
• Activity:  Based on GoTriangle guidance, the Town will provide 

information as needed to inform the GoTriangle website. 
• Output: The GoTriangle website will be a useful and current resource 

for Apex residents interested in the TDM program. 
o 3.4 Vanpool Program 

 3.4.a. Continue support for vanpool group formation. 
• Activity: The Town will share information about the vanpool program 

as part of outreach and TDM coordination. 
• Output: Increased awareness about the vanpool program and possible 

increased participation from Town of Apex residents and workers. 
o 3.5 Emergency Ride Home (ERH) Program Enhancements 

 3.5.b. Support and market ERH services to existing and prospective 
patron companies. 

• Activity: The Town will share information about the ERH program as 
part of outreach and TDM coordination. 

• Output: Increased awareness about the ERH program and possible 
increased use of regional bus services by Town of Apex residents and 
workers. 

• Performance Area 4: Marketing and Branding 
o 4.2 Focused Marketing 

 4.2.a. Develop and implement detailed campaign- and program-specific 
marketing plans. 

• Activity: An initial marketing plan was developed as part of the 
implementation study for GoApex Route 1 (see Attachment 3). As part 
of this task the Town will refine the marketing plan, including specific 
points of contact, events, costs, and a schedule for implementation. 

• Output: Revised Marketing Plan for GoApex, incorporating TDM 
outreach and materials. 

 4.2.d. Develop marketing campaigns that increase public awareness of 
TDM programs, services and their benefits. 

• Activity: The Town will implement the marketing campaign described 
in the Marketing and Branding Plan, to be refined under Activity 4.2.a. 
The marketing campaign will include pop-up events along GoApex 
Route 1, sharing of information at festivals, presentations to local 
partners, and possible production of an educational video. 

• Output: A minimum of: ten pop-up events, presence at two festivals, 
and three presentations to local partners. 

 4.2.g. Develop and disseminate outreach materials in multiple languages. 
• Activity: The Town will develop information about GoApex Route 1 in 

both English and Spanish. Information will be disseminated through 
local digital and print media, utility bill mailers, at apartment complexes 
along the corridor, at pop-up events along the corridor, during festivals 
and events, and through local organizations. 

- Page 45 -



 

9 
 

• Outputs: English and Spanish versions of the following: utility bill 
mailer, bus map brochure, bus map poster, and paratransit service 
brochure. 

o 4.3. Media Relations 
 4.3.b. Seek placements in traditional media for current events and/or 

feature stories. 
• Activity: The Town will seek placement of articles in the Cary 

Magazine, Be Local, as well as the Apex Parks and Recreation 
Program Guide and Senior Program Guide. 

• Outputs: A minimum of two articles in traditional media featuring 
GoApex. 

 4.3.c. Promote TDM through social media. 
• Activity: The Town will seek placement of information about GoApex 

and TDM campaigns in social media. 
• Outputs: At a minimum, two social media pushes for GoApex and two 

social media pushes for TDM campaigns will be made through the 
Town’s Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram accounts. The Town will also 
request the sharing of information through the Parks and Recreation 
social media feed, Apex Seniors email list, Apex Downtown Business 
Association email list and website, and Apex Farmers Market website. 

o 4.5 Information and Outreach Materials on TDM Successes and Benefits 
 4.5.c. Develop and customize outreach materials for government decision 

makers. 
• Activity: Provide informational briefing regarding the status and 

success of the marketing campaign to the Apex Planning Board and 
Apex Town Council. Offer a presentation to the regional Transit 
Planning Advisory Committee to share lessons learned for other 
community funding areas. 

• Output: A minimum of one briefing to the Apex Planning Board and 
one briefing to the Apex Town Council. 

• Performance Area 5: Outreach 
o 5.2 Local Outreach 

 5.2.a. Increase marketing, promotion, and outreach to target areas. 
• Activity: There has been very little TDM outreach in the hot spots in 

Apex over the past several years. All efforts described under 
Performance Area 4 will substantially increase the marketing, 
promotion, and outreach to these target areas. As part of these efforts, 
the Town will coordinate with the regional provider to determine what 
information about the overall TDM Program and regional TDM 
campaigns can be shared to leverage outreach opportunities for 
multiple purposes and an overall benefit to the program.  

• Outputs: Reporting on number of events, publications, posts, people 
reached, website hits and ridership included in quarterly reports.  

o 5.3 Special Events Outreach 
 5.3.a. Provide TDM information for special events. 

• Activity: The Town will provide information about the overall TDM 
program and any current TDM campaigns at festivals and events 
attended as part of the outreach plan. 

• Outputs: Distribution of TDM material and information at a minimum of 
two special events. 

- Page 46 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y ,  26 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Mar ty  S t one ,  P .E .  –  As s i s t an t  To wn M an a ger  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ad mi n i s t r a t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  an d aut hor i ze  the  To wn  Man a ger  to  exec u te  t he  s a me fo r  an  Enc r o ac h men t  

Ag r ee men t  be t ween t he  To wn an d pro per t y  ow ner ,  An d re w J .  Ja b l onsk i  (G ra nt ee ) ,  re g ard i n g 

Wa ke  Cou nt y ,  N C P I N# 0 7 3 2 -1 5 -3 5 5 7 ,  1032  D i a mo nd  Do ve  La ne ,  re c orde d i n  Bo ok  o f  M a ps  2 0 1 8 ,  

Pa g e  1 3 6 5 ,  Wa ke  Cou nt y  R e g i s te r  o f  Dee d s .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

Ap p r o ve  Enc ro ac h me nt  Ag ree men t  be t wee n th e  Town  an d pr ope r ty  o wner  An d re w J .  J ab lon sk i   

(G r an tee )  f o r  the  p ro per ty  de sc r i be d as  a  r e s i den t i a l  l o t  kn own  a s  Wa ke  Coun t y  P I N# 0 7 3 2 -1 5 -

3 5 5 7 ,  Bo ok  o f  M ap s  2 018 ,  P a ge 1 3 6 5 ,  L o t  9 2 ,  1032  D i a mon d D o ve  Lane ,  Ap e x ,  NC  275 0 2 .   

Gra nt ee  w i sh e s  to  i n s t a l l  c e r ta i n  i mpro ve me nt s ,  more  p ar t i c u la r l y  desc r i b ed  a s  a  c onc r e te  

dr i ve w ay  ex pa ns i on  t ha t  w i l l  enc r oac h  22  S . F .  i n to  th e  Pub i c  D r a i na ge Ea se men t .     

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Enc ro ac h men t  Ag ree men t  

  Exh i b i t  A 

 

- Page 47 -



- Page 48 -



- Page 49 -



- Page 50 -



- Page 51 -



- Page 52 -



- Page 53 -



 EXHIBIT A 

- Page 54 -

nmaynard
Text Box
THIS MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENTREGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS

nmaynard
Text Box
PIN: 0732153557



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  26 ,2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Denn i s  B r o wn ,  Sen i o r  Ca p i t a l  P ro j ec t s  M an a ge r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ad mi n i s t r a t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  an d au thor i ze  t he  To wn Ma n a ger  t o  e xec u te  Con t r ac t  Ame n d me nt  #2  f o r  GM P  

2  w i t h  Con s t ruc t i on  M ana g er  at  R i s k ,  J  M T ho mp son ,  i n  the  a mo unt  o f  $4 ,537 ,077 .23  f o r  the  ne w 

P le a san t  P ark  P r o j ec t .  Th i s  Gu ara nt e ed  Max i mu m Pr i c e  2  (G MP  2 )  i nc lu des  tu r f  an d fenc i n g 

pac k a ges  fo r  the  s oc c er  f i e ld s ,  as  we l l  as  t he  und er groun d dr a i na ges  s y s te ms  fo r  the  t u r f . .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

Th i s  C on t rac t  Ame n d men t  i s  n ec es sar y  t o  c ont i nue  th e  work  sc h edu l e  wh i le  the  f i na l  pac k a ges  

o f  w ork  c an  be  c o mpl e te d an d b i d .  

At t ac h men t s  

  Con t r ac t  Ame n d men t  #2  

 

- Page 55 -



- Page 56 -



- Page 57 -



- Page 58 -



- Page 59 -



- Page 60 -



- Page 61 -



- Page 62 -



- Page 63 -



- Page 64 -



- Page 65 -



- Page 66 -



- Page 67 -



- Page 68 -



- Page 69 -



- Page 70 -



- Page 71 -



- Page 72 -



- Page 73 -



- Page 74 -



- Page 75 -



- Page 76 -



- Page 77 -



- Page 78 -



- Page 79 -



- Page 80 -



- Page 81 -



- Page 82 -



- Page 83 -



- Page 84 -



- Page 85 -



- Page 86 -



- Page 87 -



- Page 88 -



- Page 89 -



- Page 90 -



- Page 91 -



- Page 92 -



- Page 93 -



- Page 94 -



- Page 95 -



- Page 96 -



- Page 97 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  29 ,2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  E r i ka  Sac c o ,  I T  D i rec t o r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  I n fo rma t i on  Tec hn o l o g y ,  Ad mi n i s t ra t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pr o ve  C api ta l  P ro j ec t  Or d i na nc e Ame n d men t  2021 -04  to  a l l oc a te  $210 ,0 00  fund i n g 

fo r  I T  re l a te d c on t r ac ts  re l a te d to  the  S en i o r  Cen te r  /  C o mmu n i t y  Ce nt e r  E xp an s i on .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

These  fun ds  w i l l  be  u s ed f o r  s ec on d ary  c on t rac t s  fo r  t he  i n s t a l l a t i on  o f  c ab l i ng ,  w i re le s s  ac c es s  

po i n t s ,  f i b e r ,  s ec u r i ty  c a mera s ,  soun d an d A/ V ,  an d f ac i l i t y  b a d ge ac c es s  sy s te m.   Fu nd i ng  fo r  

th i s  por t i on  o f  the  p ro j ec t  w i l l  c o me  f ro m b ond  pre mi u ms  an d i n t e res t  e arn i ng s  a l re a d y  i n  t he  

Ca p i t a l  P ro j ec t  Fun d .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  Ca pi t a l  P ro j ec t  Or d i nanc e Ame n d men t  202 1 -0 4  

 

- Page 98 -



Section 1. The revenues anticipated for the projects are:

Bond Premium 120,000                    

37,000                       

53,000                       

210,000$                 

Section 2. The expenditures anticipated are:

47820: Senior Center 210,000                    

210,000$                 

Attest:

Jacques K.  Gilbert, Mayor Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk

Town of Apex 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2021-04

67-Recreation Capital Project Fund

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the Capital Project Ordinance
previously entitled "Recreation Capital Project Fund" be amended as follows:

Interest Earnings (Debt Proceeds)

Total Expenditures

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the

Finance Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 26th day of January, 2021.

Interest Earnings 

Total Revenues

- Page 99 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  26 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  B r i an  Me yer ,  De put y  T own  At t o rne y  a nd  Mi t c h  Mc K i nne y ,  D epu t y  Po l i c e  Ch i e f  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Leg a l  an d P o l i c e  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pro ve  a  R eso lu t i o n  ad o pt i n g a n  I nvo lun t ary  C o mmi t men t  Cus t od y  an d T ra nsp or ta t i on  

Ag r ee men t .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

One  o f  the  du t i e s  o f  t he  Ap e x  Po l i c e  Dep ar t men t  i s  to  p r o v i de  t r ans por t a t i on  o f  Ap e x  re s i den t s  

sub j ec t  to  i n vo lun t ary  c o mmi t me nt  p r oc ee di ng s  to  a  f ac i l i t y  wh ere  an  i n i t i a l  c o mmi t men t  

exa mi na t i on  ma y  be  c onduc te d .   Th i s  r e s p ons i b i l i t y  a l so  a pp l i e s  to  i nd i v i dua l s  wh o are  loc a te d 

i n  Ap e x  a t  the  t i me o f  the  i s su anc e o f  t he  Ord er  e ven  i f  the  i n d i v i du a l  i s  no t  a  re s i den t .   H a v i ng 

an  a gree men t  o r  p lan  fo r  th i s  ty pe  o f  c u s t o dy  an d t r an sp or t  ha s  a l wa y s  b een  a t  the  e l ec t i on  o f  

the  loc a l  g o vern men t  an d i t s  po l i c e  de par t men t  bu t  rec en t  le g i s l a t i ve  c h an ge s  n ow  man da te  

th at  suc h  a  p l an  be  a do p te d b y  the  go vern i ng b oar d .   The  a t t ac hed p l an  d oes  no t  c h an ge the  

c u r ren t  p roc e dure  an d i s  d r a f t ed  t o  c o mpl y  w i th  n ew s ta tu t o ry  r equ i re men t s .   The  L oc a l  

Man a ge men t  En t i t y/M ana g ed  C are  Or g an i z at i o n  (Al l i anc e  He a l th c are ) ,  Wa k e  C oun ty ,  an d the  

Wa ke  Cou nt y  She r i f f ’ s  Dep ar t men t  w ere  c o nsu l te d as  p ar t  o f  th e  dr af t i n g  o f  th i s  Ag ree men t ,  as  

requ i red b y  s t a tu t e .  

At t ac h men t s  

  I nvo lun t ar y  C o mmi t ment  Cus t od y  an d T r an sp or t a t i on  Ag ree men t  

  R eso lu t i o n  a d op t i n g I nvo lun t ary  Co m mi t me nt  Cus to d y  an d T r an s por t at i o n  Agr ee men t  

  Al l i anc e  He a l th  Co m mun i t y  Cr i s i s  Se r v i c es  P l an  f o r  Wa ke  Coun t y  ( I n fo r ma t i ona l )  

 

 

- Page 100 -



RESOLUTION NO. 21-0126-24 

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING INVOLUNTARY COMMITMENT CUSTODY AND 

TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO N.C.G.S. 122C-251(g) 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 122C of the North Carolina General Statutes provides guidance and 

requirements regarding the involuntary commitment process and the responsibilities placed on 

local law enforcement agencies; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 122C-251(g) requires the governing body 

of a local government to adopt a written involuntary commitment transportation agreement; and 

 WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council wishes to make clear the policies and procedures of 

the Town and its police department with regard to the transportation of persons subject to the 

involuntary commitment process so as to ensure the safety and dignity of such persons while 

minimizing the physical and emotional stress and impact. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Apex Town Council that: 

The Involuntary Commitment Custody and Transportation Agreement is hereby adopted. 

 

Upon motion duly made by Council Member_______________ , and duly seconded by 

Council Member ____________________, the above Resolution was duly adopted by the Apex 

Town Council at the meeting held on the 26th day of January, 2021, in the Town Hall.  

Upon call for a vote the following Council Members voted in the affirmative: 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

and the following Council Members voted in the negative:  

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

This the 26th day of January 2021. 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

 Jacques K. Gilbert 

       Mayor  

ATTEST:  

 

________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC 

Town Clerk 

- Page 101 -



Page 1 of 8 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 

INVOLUNTARY COMMITMENT (“IVC”) 

CUSTODY AND TRANSPORTION 

AGREEMENT  

 

THIS INVOLUNTARY COMMITMENT (“IVC”) CUSTODY AND 

TRANSPORTION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this the 26th day of 

January, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), by the Town of Apex, a municipal corporation in the State 

of North Carolina (“Town”), which includes its police department, the Apex Police Department 

(“APD”). 

 

RECITALS: 

 

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council desires to make clear the policies of the Town and 

the APD regarding the custody and transportation of involuntarily commitment (“IVC”) 

Respondents and the APD’s role and responsibilities with respect to custody, commitment, 

supervision, and transportation of IVC Respondents in accordance with Chapter 122C, Article 5, 

Parts 6, 7, and 8 of the North Carolina General Statutes;  

 

WHEREAS, specifically, pursuant to and in accordance with N.C.G.S. § 122C-251(g), the 

Town intends and desires that this Agreement shall serve as its “Involuntary Commitment 

Transportation Agreement” or “Transportation Agreement” for the custody and transportation of 

individuals in IVC proceedings under Chapter 122C, Article 5, Parts 6, 7, and 8 of the North 

Carolina General Statutes, applicable to all APD law enforcement officers (“LEOs”); and 

 

WHEREAS, this Agreement shall be utilized to comply with N.C.G.S. § 122C-251(g) and 

assure adequate safety and protections for both the public and Respondents.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Apex Town Council ordains that the following is the Town’s 

plan for the custody and transportation of persons subject to involuntary commitment proceedings. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINED TERMS 

 

1.0 Unless otherwise specified or defined herein, the following terms, wherever used herein, 

shall have the following meanings: 

 

1.1 IVC Order.  A custody order issued by a Magistrate or a Clerk of Court or an  

Involuntary Commitment Custody Order entered by a District Court Judge. 

 

1.2 LEO. Law enforcement officer. 

 

 

 

- Page 102 -



Page 2 of 8 

1.3 Respondent.  The individual who is committed under an IVC Order and subject to 

IVC proceedings pursuant to Chapter 122C, Article 5 of the North Carolina General Statutes, 

including IVC custody and transport.    

 

1.4 Alliance Behavioral Health (“Alliance”).  Alliance is the Local Management 

Entity/Managed Care Organization (“LME/MCO”) for Wake County as defined by N.C.G.S.  § 

122C-3(1), N.C.G.S. § 122C-3(20b), and N.C.G.S. § 122C-3(20c).  Alliance is responsible for 

managing, coordinating, facilitating and monitoring mental health, developmental disability, and 

substance abuse services in Wake County.  Alliance’s contact information is as follows: 

 

Alliance Health 

 5200 W. Paramount Parkway, Suite 200 

Morrisville, NC 27560 

Telephone:  1-919-651-8500 (Offices) 

Telephone:  1-800-510-9132 (Access and Information Center) 

Website:  https://www.alliancehealthplan.org/  

 

1.5 Crisis Service Providers.  The following is a list of current crisis service providers 

in Wake County:  

   

 24-Hour crisis telephone line  

   - Alliance Health Access Call Center  

 Walk-in crisis services:  

   - Monarch Behavioral Health Urgent Care  

   - WakeBrook Crisis and Assessment  

   - Holly Hill Respond  

   - Triangle Springs Hospital  

 Mobile crisis outreach  

   - Therapeutic Alternatives MCM  

   - Enhanced Mobile Crisis/Advanced Para-medicine team  

   - Advanced Para-medicine ED diversion  

 Crisis respite/residential services  

   - Lutheran Family Services child respite  

- Methodist Home for Children and Access Family Services Rapid 

Response Beds  

 Crisis stabilization units/facilities  

   - 23-Hour beds: UNC WakeBrook  

   - Facility Based Crisis UNC WakeBrook  

   - Detox Services: UNC WakeBrook  

 

 1.6 24-Hour Facility. A medical facility where a Respondent is taken if the first 

examination by a commitment examiner or other physician determines that the Respondent is 

mentally ill and requires inpatient commitment.  A physician will conduct the second examination 

of a Respondent at a 24-Hour Facility. 

 

 

- Page 103 -

https://www.alliancehealthplan.org/


Page 3 of 8 

ARTICLE II 

APPLICABILITY 

 

2.0 To the extent required to provide all or parts of the custody and transportation 

required by IVC proceedings, the Town shall follow the procedures in Chapter 122C, Article 5 of 

the North Carolina General Statutes.  Moreover, the custody and transportation of individuals in 

IVC proceedings by APD LEOs shall be in accordance with Chapter 122C, Article 5, Parts 6, 7, 

and 8 of the North Carolina General Statutes and this Agreement. This Agreement does not in any 

way change any statutorily prescribed responsibility for IVC custody and transport.   

2.1 To the extent this Agreement does not address or incorrectly addresses any statutory 

obligation or procedure, or if any inconsistency exists between the Agreement and a corresponding 

statutory provision, the Parties understand that the statute shall control. 

 

ARTICLE III 

DESIGNATED WAKE COUNTY  

COMMITMENT EXAMINER FACILITIES  

 

 3.0 Pursuant to the Alliance Community Crisis Services Plan for Wake County; 

Chapter 122C, Article 5, specifically including but not limited to N.C.G.S. § 122C-3(8a), N.C.G.S. 

§ 122C-252, N.C.G.S. § 122C-261, N.C.G.S. § 122C-262, N.C.G.S. § 122C-263, and N.C.G.S. § 

122C-283; the following non-emergency facilities may provide first examinations and health 

screenings: 

 

 UNC WakeBrook Crisis and Assessment: 107 Sunnybrook Rd., Raleigh, NC 

27610 

 Monarch Behavioral Health Urgent Care: 319 Chapanoke Rd., Suite 120, 

Raleigh, NC 27603 

 Holly Hill Hospital: 3019 Falstaff Rd., Raleigh, NC 27610 

 Triangle Springs Hospital: 10901 World Trade Blvd., Raleigh, NC27617 

 

ARTICLE IV 

TRANSPORTATION OBLIGATIONS FOR APD 

 

4.0 Transportation of a Respondent within the Town of Apex corporate limits, under 

the IVC proceedings of Chapter 122C, Article 5, Parts 6, 7, and 8 of the North Carolina General 

Statutes shall be provided by the APD in accordance with the duties listed below.  However, a 

Respondent being discharged from a facility may use his or her own transportation at his or her 

own expense. 

 

A. Apex Police Duties 

 

(1) IVC Orders: 

 

(a) APD will provide the service of IVC Orders upon any Respondent 

physically located at an address inside the Town of Apex corporate limits, 

regardless of the Respondent’s residential address. 

- Page 104 -



Page 4 of 8 

 

(b) If the Respondent cannot be served at the call for service address inside the 

Apex corporate limits, but the Respondent has a home address inside the 

corporate limits, APD will continue to attempt to serve the Respondent at 

any other address inside the Town corporate limits until the IVC Order 

expires. 

 

(c) If the Respondent cannot be served at the call for service address inside the 

Apex corporate limits, but the Respondent has a home address in Wake 

County but outside of the Town of Apex, APD will endeavor to pass the 

IVC Order to the Wake County Sheriff’s department if the Respondent 

resides in the county limits and outside a municipal jurisdiction, or the 

police department in the municipality in Wake County in which the 

Respondent resides if inside municipal corporate limits. 

 

(d) After serving the initial IVC Order APD will provide the initial transport of 

the Respondent to a Commitment Examiner Facility or 24 Hour Facility as 

required.  APD will primarily transport individuals to UNC WakeBrook but 

may transport to any other qualified facility in Wake County. 

 

(2) Voluntary Respondent: 

 

In the event a respondent has a home address inside the Apex corporate limits 

and voluntarily seeks mental health treatment at a facility outside the Apex 

corporate limits, and is then issued an IVC Order, service of the IVC Order and 

the transport of the Respondent to any other 24 Hour Facility in Wake County 

shall be provided by the Wake County Sheriff’s Office. 

 

(3) Out of County Transport: 

 

APD will have no responsibility to transport a Respondent to any facility 

located outside Wake County.  

 

(4) Subsequent Transport: 

 

Following initial transport by APD, The Wake County Sheriff’s Office, either 

through their personnel or through contract with a private agency, will handle 

all subsequent transports inside Wake County to another facility regardless of 

the facility location within Wake County or the residence of the Respondent. 

 

ARTICLE V 

TRANSPORTATION BETWEEN COUNTIES 

 

5.0 Transportation between counties under the IVC proceedings of Chapter 122C, 

Article 5 of the North Carolina General Statutes for a first examination as described in N.C.G.S.   

- Page 105 -



Page 5 of 8 

§ 122C-263(a) and N.C.G.S. § 122C-283(a) and for admission to a 24-hour facility shall be 

provided by the county where the Respondent is taken into custody.  

 

5.1 Transportation between counties under the IVC proceedings of Chapter 122C, 

Article 5 of the North Carolina General Statutes for Respondents held in 24-hour facilities who 

have requested a change of venue for the district court hearing shall be provided by the county 

where the petition for involuntary commitment was initiated.  

 

5.2 Transportation between counties under the IVC proceedings of Chapter 122C, 

Article 5 of the North Carolina General Statutes for discharge of a Respondent from a 24-hour 

facility shall be provided by the county of residence of the Respondent.  However, a Respondent 

being discharged from a facility may use his own transportation at his own expense.   

 

ARTICLE VI 

TRANSPORTATION PROCEDURES 

 

6.0 LEO Vehicles and Manner of Dress.  Transportation of a Respondent by the APD 

shall be in a Town-owned vehicle.  To the extent feasible, APD LEOs transporting Respondents 

shall dress in plain clothes and shall travel in unmarked vehicles.  

 

6.1 Advising Respondents.  To the extent possible, APD LEOs transporting 

Respondents shall advise Respondents when taking them into custody that they are not under arrest 

and have not committed a crime, but are being taken into custody and transported to receive 

treatment and for the Respondent’s own safety and that of others.  

 

6.2 Driver or Attendant of Same Sex as Respondent.  To the extent feasible, in 

providing transportation of a Respondent, the APD shall provide a driver or attendant who is the 

same sex as the Respondent, unless the LEO allows a family member of the Respondent to 

accompany the Respondent in lieu of an attendant of the same sex as the Respondent.       

 

6.3 Use of Force to Restrain by LEO.  In taking custody and providing transportation 

as required by statute, APD LEOs may use reasonable force to restrain the Respondent if it appears 

necessary to protect the LEO, the Respondent, or others.  Any use of restraints shall be as 

reasonably determined by the LEO to be necessary under the circumstances for the safety of the 

Respondent, the LEO, and other persons.  Every effort to avoid restraint of a child under the age 

of 10 shall be made by the transporting LEO unless the child’s behavior or other circumstances 

dictate that restraint is necessary.  

 

6.4 LEO Response to Facility Inquiries.  The LEO shall respond to all inquiries from 

the facility concerning the Respondent’s behavior and the use of any restraints related to the 

custody and transportation of the Respondent, except in circumstances where providing that 

information is confidential or would otherwise compromise a law enforcement investigation.  

 

ARTICLE VII 

CRIMINAL OR CIVIL LIABILITY 

 

- Page 106 -



Page 6 of 8 

7.0 No APD LEO or other person designated or required to provide custody or transport 

of a Respondent under N.C.G.S. § 122C-251 may be held criminally or civilly liable for assault, 

false imprisonment, or other torts or crimes on account of reasonable measures taken under the 

authority of Chapter 122C, Article 5 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

 

7.1 In accordance with N.C.G.S. § 122C-210.1, no facility, person, or entity, including 

an area facility, a facility licensed under Chapter 122C of the North Carolina General Statutes, an 

acute care hospital, a general hospital, an area authority, a law enforcement officer, an LME, or an 

LME/MCO, or any of their officials, staff, or employees, or any other physician or individual who 

is responsible for the custody, transportation, examination, admission, management, supervision, 

treatment, or release of a Respondent or client and who is not grossly negligent, is civilly or 

criminally liable, personally or otherwise, for that person’s or entity’s actions or omissions arising 

from the responsibilities of Chapter 122C of the North Carolina General Statutes or for the actions 

or omissions of a Respondent or client. This immunity is in addition to any other legal immunity 

from liability to which these persons, entities, facilities, agencies, or individuals may be entitled 

and applies to actions performed in connection with, or arising out of, the custody, transportation, 

examination, commitment, admission, management, supervision, treatment, or release of any 

individual pursuant to or under the authority of Chapter 122C, Article 5 of the North Carolina 

General Statutes or otherwise. 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

OTHER AUTHORIZED TRANSPORT 

 

8.0 It is understood by the APD that pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 122C-251(f), a clerk, a 

magistrate, or a district court judge, where applicable, may authorize the family or immediate 

friends of the Respondent, if they so request, to transport the Respondent in accordance with the 

procedures of Chapter 122C, Article 5 of the North Carolina General Statutes.  This authorization 

shall only be granted in cases where the danger to the public, the family, or friends of the 

Respondent, or the Respondent himself or herself is not substantial. The family or immediate 

friends of the Respondent shall bear the costs of providing this transportation. 

 

ARTICLE IX 

COST AND EXPENSES OF CUSTODY AND TRANSPORTATION 

 

9.0 The cost and expenses of custody and transportation of a Respondent as required 

by the IVC procedures of Chapter 122C, Article 5, to the extent they are not reimbursed by a third-

party insurer, are the responsibility of the county of residence of the Respondent, to the extent they 

are not reimbursed by a third-party insurer. The State (when providing transportation under 

N.C.G.S. § 122C-408(b), a municipality, or a county is entitled to recover the reasonable cost of 

transportation from the county of residence of the Respondent.  The county of residence of the 

Respondent shall reimburse the State, another county, or a municipality the reasonable 

transportation costs incurred as authorized by N.C.G.S. § 122C-251(h).  The county of residence 

of the Respondent is entitled to recover the reasonable cost of transportation it has paid to the State, 

a municipality, or a county. Provided that the county of residence provides the Respondent or other 

individual liable for the Respondent’s support a reasonable notice and opportunity to object to the 

reimbursement, the county of residence of the Respondent may recover that cost from: 

- Page 107 -



Page 7 of 8 

 

A. The Respondent, if the Respondent is not indigent; 

B. Any person or entity that is legally liable for the resident’s support and 

maintenance provided there is sufficient property to pay the cost; 

C. Any person or entity that is contractually responsible for the cost; or 

D. Any person or entity that otherwise is liable under federal, State, or local 

law for the cost.  

 

ARTICLE X 

TRAINING 

 

10.0 APD LEOs may, from time to time, at their convenience, participate in Crisis 

Intervention Training (CIT), or other related training, as offered by Alliance or any other approved 

provider, as set forth in N.C.G.S. § 122C-202.2(a)(3). 

 

ARTICLE XI 

OTHER 

 

11.0 Mutual Assistance.  Nothing herein shall change any APD agreement to provide 

mutual assistance to another agency when necessary and upon request for any matter involving 

crime control and public safety. 

 

11.1 Recitals Incorporated.  The recitals hereto are incorporated herein by reference 

and constitute an integral part hereof. 

 

11.2 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 

same instrument. 

 

11.3 Amendment or Modification.  This Agreement may only be amended, modified, 

or supplemented by an agreement in writing adopted by the Apex Town Council.  If the Town 

modifies this Agreement, the Town will submit the modified agreement to the Wake County 

Magistrate’s Office, the Wake County Clerk of Superior Court’s Office, Alliance, and the 

NCDHHS, Division of Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services 

at least 10 days prior to the effective date of the new Agreement. 

 

11.4 Required Distribution of Agreement.  In accordance with N.C.G.S. § 122C-

251(g)(3), this Agreement shall be submitted to the Wake County Magistrate’s Office, the Wake 

County Clerk of Superior Court’s Office, to Alliance, and to the North Carolina Department of 

Health and Human Services, Division of Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and 

Substance Abuse Services. 

 

11.5 Inclusion of Agreement in Alliance Community Crisis Services Plan.  Pursuant 

to N.C.G.S. § 122C-202.2, the Alliance Community Crisis Services Plan shall incorporate this 

Agreement. 

 

- Page 108 -



Page 8 of 8 

 

 

 

 This Agreement is hereby approved and adopted by the Apex Town Council this the 26th 

day of January, 2021. 

 

 

TOWN OF APEX 

 

 

 

 

By:    

Name: Jacque K. Gilbert 

Title:  Mayor 

 

 

 

The foregoing is agreed to and will be adhered to by myself and my agency for the transports of 

persons subject to the involuntary commitment process. 

 

 

This the _______ day of _____________, 2021. 

 

APEX POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

By:   _______________________________ 

Name:       Tony Godwin 

Title:        Interim Chief of Police 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

- Page 109 -



 

 
 

COMMUNITY CRISIS SERVICES PLAN 
Wake County 

 

  

- Page 110 -



 
 
 

Community Crisis Services Plan Wake County 
Effective date:  October 1, 2019  1 

Contents 
Introduction .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Why a county-specific community crisis services plan? ........................................................................... 2 

Brief summary of Involuntary Commitment (IVC) law revisions .............................................................. 2 

Wake County Community Crisis Services Plan .............................................................................................. 3 

Crisis collaborative & stakeholders who developed the plan ................................................................... 3 

Wake County Crisis Services ..................................................................................................................... 4 

Involuntary Commitment Process ............................................................................................................ 4 

County Transportation Agreement ........................................................................................................... 5 

List of Facilities (first examination + health screening tool) ..................................................................... 5 

Approved and recommended training for IVC responders/transporters ................................................. 6 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 111 -



 
 
 

Community Crisis Services Plan Wake County 
Effective date:  October 1, 2019  2 

Introduction  

Why a county-specific community crisis services plan?  

Session Law 2018-33 (SB630) represents a significant revisions to North Carolina’s Involuntary 

Commitment (IVC) law. The most recent revised bill put into effect the requirement for every 

LME/MCO to develop local area crisis services plans. Alliance Health covers four single counties, 

each with unique strengths, challenges and needs. Each of the four counties in the Alliance 

Health catchment area has its own local area or community crisis services plan.  

Wake has been at the forefront in North Carolina in regards to developing and organizing a 

community crisis system. Wake opened its 24/7/365 Crisis and Assessment center in 1993, 

providing a combination of 24/7 STR, phone and walk-in crisis assessment, involuntary 

commitment evaluations, 23 hour observation, and the centralized "drop-off site" for police CIT 

officers. Wake County expanded crisis services in 2010 with the construction of the WakeBrook 

campus, which included expansion of inpatient psychiatric services, facility-based crisis, and 

non-hospital detoxification as well as relocation of the Wake Crisis and Assessment unit. Wake 

was also one of the first communities to develop a local crisis collaborative, inclusive of 

community stakeholders, looking to improve behavioral health crisis services and reduce the 

unnecessary use of the local emergency departments.  Over the years the landscape of crisis 

services in Wake has evolved and expanded, consisting of an array of services delivered within 

the community. Mobile Crisis Management services are delivered by a team of mental health 

professionals through Therapeutic Alternatives. For individuals experiencing non-emergent 

behavioral health issues, Monarch operates a Behavioral Health Urgent Care that accepts walk-

ins. UNC Healthcare assumed operations of the WakeBrook crisis campus in 2012 and provides 

an array of crisis services on through its Crisis and Assessment Services, 28-bed inpatient 

psychiatric unit, Facility Based Crisis and Detox Services.  

 

Brief summary of Involuntary Commitment (IVC) law revisions 
IVC Laws provide for custody, transportation and evaluations for individuals identified as 

potentially having a mental illness or substance use disorder that may be a danger to 

themselves or others.  

IVC also allows an individual found to be a danger to themselves or others to be remanded into 

the custody of a facility that provides treatment for mental illness or substance use when that 

individual does not voluntarily seek treatment. 

- Page 112 -



 
 
 

Community Crisis Services Plan Wake County 
Effective date:  October 1, 2019  3 

Wake County Community Crisis Services Plan 
According to revised Senate Bill 630, every LME/MCO shall adopt a community crisis services 

plan to facilitate first examinations in conjunction with a health screening at the same location. 

This plan shall be comprised of separate “local area crisis services plans,” for each of the local 

areas or regions within the catchment area (local areas/regions defined by LME/MCOs). 

Alliance Health developed the local area crisis services plan in coordination with the county 

crisis collaborative groups that were already meeting regularly. Each county crisis collaborative 

is comprised of members from various agencies and organizations, including law enforcement 

and other first responders, connected to the crisis services continuum.  

Crisis collaborative & stakeholders who developed the plan 
The Wake County crisis collaborative group meets monthly to discuss strategies to reduce the 

number of mental health and substance use crises, reduce inappropriate utilization of the local 

emergency departments and to provide a space to share data and brainstorm opportunities to 

improve the quantity and quality of crisis services in Wake County. The stakeholder group is 

comprised of members who represent the following: 

- Local Hospitals 

o Duke Raleigh Hospital 

o UNC Rex Hospital 

o WakeMed Health & Hospital  

- Monarch  

- NAMI of Wake County 

- Therapeutic Alternatives 

- UNC WakeBrook Crisis & Assessment, Facility Based Crisis 

- Wake County Emergency Medical Services 

- Wake County Manager’s Office 

- Wake County Magistrate’s Office 

- Local Law Enforcement 

- Alliance Health 

Representatives of the Standard Plans were also invited to provide input and will receive a final 

copy of this plan.  The Wake Chief Magistrate provided the following statement regarding an 

effective communication process within the county. “One system that has been working really well 

when it is a clinician initiated petition is having the Custody Order faxed directly to the facility where the 

respondent is located, which saves law enforcement time and also gets the commitment order over 

faster. “ This practice will be continued. 

- Page 113 -



 
 
 

Community Crisis Services Plan Wake County 
Effective date:  October 1, 2019  4 

 

 

Wake County Crisis Services  
The following serves as a list of the current crisis service providers in Wake County. The 

providers listed deliver specific services related to each category of the crisis continuum.  

 24-Hour crisis telephone line 

o Alliance Health Access Call Center  

 Walk-in crisis services:  

o Monarch Behavioral Health Urgent Care 

o WakeBrook Crisis and Assessment  

o Holly Hill Respond 

o Triangle Springs Hospital 

 Mobile crisis outreach 

o Therapeutic Alternatives MCM  

o Enhanced Mobile Crisis/Advanced Para-medicine team 

o Advanced Para-medicine ED diversion  

 Crisis respite/residential services 

o Lutheran Family Services child respite 

o Methodist Home for Children and Access Family Services Rapid Response Beds  

 Crisis stabilization units/facilities 

o 23-Hour beds: UNC WakeBrook 

o Facility Based Crisis UNC WakeBrook 

o Detox Services: UNC WakeBrook 

 

Involuntary Commitment Process  
 

- Page 114 -



 
 
 

Community Crisis Services Plan Wake County 
Effective date:  October 1, 2019  5 

 

County Transportation Agreement 

The Wake County involuntary commitment transportation agreement adopted pursuant to G.S. 

122C-251(g) which identifies the law enforcement officers, designees under G.S. 122C-251(g), 

or individuals or entities otherwise required to provide custody and transportation of a 

respondent for a first examination in conjunction with a health screening at the same location 

required by G.S. 122C-263(a) and G.S. 122C-283 is incorporated herein by reference to it.  

The Transportation Agreement provided by Wake County is attached. 

List of Facilities (first examination + health screening tool) 
The following are facilities that are not emergency departments that are able to complete the 

first examination and health screening tool: 

Individual shows signs/symptoms (Psychiatric or Substance Use) that indicate potential danger to self or others

NC Involuntary Commitment Process (IVC): Inpatient Treatment^^

Based on Information from Criteria for Involuntary Commitment in NC (Mark Botts, 2009, UNC School of Government); Commitment Issues for Law Enforcement (NCAG, 2014); and SB630 IVC Revisions 

(2018). * Officer must take the individual  into custody within 24 hours or new order needed.**If individual is found in need of Involuntary Outpatient Psychiatric or Substance Use Treatment, the 
provider will be identified and the individual will be released from custody; returned to residence after 1 st Exam. ̂ If determined not to meet IVC criteria, individual is released and proceedings are 
terminated. ); ^^Individual can, at any time, elect to have voluntary treatment. If voluntary, law enforcement will not transport. 

Layperson Petition

Layperson completes 
petition in front of 

magistrate

Clinician Petition

Commitment Examiner completes 
petition& exam form (1st EXAM), 

then faxes to magistrate

Emergency Petition

Commitment Examiner completes exam form & 
emergency certificate (1st exam), submits to 
clerk of court for 24-hr. facility & local officer 

(used when immediate hospitalization is 
required; bypasses magistrate)

Officer 
transports 
individual*

Magistrate 
denies 

petition

Magistrate reviews 
petition

Individual arrives at 24-hour facility 
2nd EXAM** (w/in 24 hours of arrival)

Officer 
transports 
Individual*

District court judge reviews 
emergency certificate 

Magistrate 
issues custody 

order

Magistrate issues 
custody order

1st EXAM by Commitment 
Examiner (ED or Other Site)** 

(within 24 hours of custody order)

Determined 
not to meet 

criteria^

Hearing in front of District Judge 
(within 10 days of custody order)

Judge orders 
release

Judge orders further Inpatient 
Commitment

Judge orders Outpatient 
Commitment**

Judge orders Substance Use 
Commitment

Determined 
not to meet 

criteria^

District 
Judge 
denies 

petition^

- Page 115 -



 
 
 

Community Crisis Services Plan Wake County 
Effective date:  October 1, 2019  6 

 Monarch Behavioral Health Urgent Care: 319 Chapanoke Road, Suite 120, Raleigh, NC 

27603 

 UNC WakeBrook Crisis and Assessment: 107 Sunnybrook Road, Raleigh, NC 27610  

 Holly Hill Hospital: 3019 Falstaff Road, Raleigh, NC 27610 

 Triangle Springs Hospital: 10901 World Trade Boulevard, Raleigh, NC 27617 

 

Approved and recommended training for IVC responders/transporters 
The recommended training for law enforcement first responders responsible for responding to 

and transporting individuals experiencing a mental health crisis is: 

Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) training 

More than a training, CIT is a program that provides the foundation necessary to promote 

community and statewide solutions to assist individuals with a mental illness and/or addictions. 

The CIT model reduces both stigma and the need for further involvement with the criminal 

justice system. CIT provides a forum for effective problem solving regarding the interaction 

between the criminal justice and mental health care system and creates the context for 

sustainable change.  

The recommended training for community and family members responding to individuals 

experiencing mental health crises is: 

Mental Health First Aid 

This training, offered upon request at various community locations, is designed to teach 

individuals how to identify, understand and respond to signs of mental illnesses and substance 

use disorders in their community.  

 

 

 

- Page 116 -

http://www.citinternational.org/Learn-About-CIT


 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  26 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  D rew H a vens ,  Tow n M ana g er  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ad mi n i s t r a t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Mo t i on  t o  ap pr o ve  vac a t i on  le a ve  p ay ou t  t o  r e t i re d P o l i c e  C h i e f  J ohn  Le t t ene y  f o r  96  hou r s  o f  

lea ve  ac c u mu l a te d i n  exc es s  o f  wha t  i s  a l l o we d b y  po l i c y .   

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

Up on  re t i re me nt ,  Ch i e f  Le t ten ey  ha d 336  h o u r s  o f  ac c u mu l a te d  vac a t i on  le a ve  wh i c h  i s  i n  

exc es s  o f  t he  240  a l lo we d to  be  c ar r i ed  f ro m year  t o  ye ar .  Due  t o  C O VI D  an d o the r  f a c to r s  he  

wa s  un a b le  t o  tak e  a c c u mu l a te d le a ve  a n d i t  w as  a gree d th a t  we  wou l d  p a y  ou t  th i s  a dd i t i ona l  

ba lanc e ra th e r  tha n  t rans fe r r i n g  i t  t o  s i c k  t i me  to  u se  t o war d c re d i t ab le  se r v i c e  und er  the  

re t i re me nt  s y s te m.  Be c ause  th e  Pe r s onne l  P o l i c y  do es  no t  e xp l i c i t l y  g r an t  the  To wn Ma na ger  the  

au thor i t y  t o  a p pro ve  th i s ,  we  are  a sk i ng f o r  Counc i l  a ppr o va l  o f  t h i s  exc e pt i o n  to  the  P o l i c y .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

N/ A 

 

- Page 117 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  2 6 ,  202 1  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Jo ann a He l ms ,  Ec on o mi c  De ve l op me nt  D i rec to r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ec on o mi c  D e ve l op me nt  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  hear i n g t o  c o ns i de r  an d rec e i ve  p ub l i c  i nput  on  p r o v i d i ng an  ec ono mi c  de ve lo p men t  

i nc ent i ve  fo r  “ P ro j ec t  De l t a ”  i n  ac c ord an c e w i th  th e  To wn ’s  p o l i c y  (De ve lo p men t  I nve s t men t  

Gra nt ) .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

 
At t ac h men t s  

  Pro j ec t  De sc r i p t i on  a nd P ro p ose d I nc ent i ve  Sc en ar i o  

 

- Page 118 -



PROJECT DELTA 
 

 

Type: Distribution and Office 

Location: Cash Corporate Center, Apex, NC 

Acreage: Approximately 29 acres 

Facility: 300,000 sf (new construction) 

Jobs: 220 

Wages - $52,000/year average  

Investment: $32 million 

 

 

 

Proposed Incentive Scenario: 

 

$32,000,000 

(investment)    =   $320,000   x .38      =     $121,600    *   90%   =   $109,440     *    3        =      $328,320 

  $100 (valuation)                (Apex tax      (annual Apex                    (annual        (years)     (total incentive) 

                                                              rate)         taxes paid)   incentive)   

 

 

 

- Page 119 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  2 6 ,  202 1  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Jo ann a He l ms ,  Ec on o mi c  De ve l op me nt  D i rec to r  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ec on o mi c  D e ve l op me nt  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  he ar i ng  t o  c on s i de r  an d  rec e i ve  pu b l i c  i npu t  on  p r o v i d i n g f i n anc i a l  a s s i s t anc e  fo r  S ma l l  

Bu s i nes s  Su pp or t  i n i t i a t i ve s  du r i ng Wi n t e r  2021  an d be yon d t o  o f f se t  h ar ds h i ps  c r ea te d by  t he  

CO VI D -19  pa nd e mi c .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

Ye s  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

 
At t ac h men t s  

  Pro po s a l  

 

- Page 120 -



Town of Apex  
Small Business Support Proposal (COVID) 

Winter 2021 
 

PURPOSE: To assist small businesses in Apex that continue to be adversely affected by the COVID 
pandemic by creating and implementing initiatives that provide support and promotion.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE: Re-allocation of $500,000 from the Apex Small Business Emergency Loan 
Program. 
 
NOTE: Many of these initiative can start in winter 2021 but can extend indefinitely throughout 
the year. 
 

 

PHYSICAL  

 

Parking-to-Dining Program Phase II 

 Idea: Create outside dining areas by closing off specific parking spaces along one block of Salem 

Street (Saunders to Chatham). 

 Date: March 15, 2021 – until TBD 

 Approvals Needed: removal of parking spaces on Salem Street 

Costs: $12,900 (35 water barriers)   

 

 

PROMOTIONAL/MARKETING 

 

“Winter on Salem” 

 Idea: Create an atmosphere that promotes visitors and shoppers to downtown Apex by closing one 

block of Salem Street (Saunders to Chatham). Merchants would have access to additional outside 

space for merchandise and eating areas and would advertise specials.  A “Snow Zone” could also be 

created. This event could be co-sponsored by the ADBA. 

 Dates: TBD (tentatively Feb. 13, and March 13) from 10:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. 

 Approvals Needed: street closure; APD and PW staff assistance 

 Costs: $4,500 date 1; $2,000 date 2 (street banners; snow zone items, marketing materials; other) 

 

Social Media Ad Campaign 

 Idea: “Shop-Dine-Play this Winter in Apex”. Coordinate with TOA Communications to implement a 

focused campaign that promotes local business support. Also continue to encourage the community to 

support Apex businesses with carryout, curbside pickup, purchasing gift cards and by shopping online. 

 Date: late January through March; a Spring campaign could also be considered 

 Approvals Needed: non- anticipated  

 Costs: TBD (advertising, printing)  

 

Small Business highlight videos  

 Idea: Create brief videos to highlight 6-7 geographic areas in Apex of retail and small businesses to be 

shared on the Town’s YouTube channel and social media. Coordinate with TOA Communications. 

 Date: March – until (on-going media shares) 

 Approvals Needed: non-anticipated 

 Costs: TBD (professional video production by Kino Mountain)  

 

 

 

 - Page 121 -



Count on Me NC  

 Idea: Promote the state’s established program for businesses to become certified as a safe place for 

customers and visitors to patronize through a series of social media posts and webinars on how to 

become certified. 

 Date: March – until (ongoing) 

 Approvals Needed: non-anticipated 

 Costs: TBD (webinar presenter fees)  

                                                            

TRAINING/EDUCATION 

 

Webinars 

 Idea: Host a series of webinars featuring subject matter experts to train and/or educate business 

owners/managers in areas of promotion and marketing, on-line presence, SEO, ecommerce, POS, 

networking, etc. 

 Date: February – until (ongoing) 

 Approvals Needed: non-anticipated 

 Costs: TBD (webinar presenter fees) 

 

White Paper 

 Idea: Create a best practices white paper that outlines tips and tricks for businesses in areas of 

promotion and marketing, on-line presence, SEO, ecommerce, POS, networking, etc. Send the 

document to our small business list, post on our website and on social media. 

 Date: February – ongoing (updated as needed) 

 Approvals Needed: non-anticipated 

 Costs: $500 (printing and postage) 

 

FINANCIAL RESOURCES 

 

Grant and/or Micro-Loan Program 

 Idea: Create a program that awards up to $2,000 per business/applicant that would provide support for 

specific needs (re: COVID) such as:  

o Indoor ventilation improvements 

o Outdoor seating areas 

o Marketing / ecommerce / Website / POS improvements  

 Date: Application period opens Feb. 1 and closes March 31 

 Approvals Needed: allocation of funding 

 Costs: TBD – suggest $250,000 in funding 

 

 

 

********************************************************************************************************** 

 

KNOWN COSTS - $269,900 

ESTIMATED COSTS – $294,900 

 

 

 

Town Council Approval Required 

- Page 122 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for  cons iderat ion by the Apex Town Counci l  

 

 I tem Type:  PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date:  January 26, 2021 

Item Details  

Presenter: Dianne Khin , Di rector  of  P lanning and Communi ty Development  

Department: P lanning and Communi ty Development  

Requested Motion  

Publ ic hear ing and poss ible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Quest ion of  Annexat ion –  Apex 

Town Counci l ’s  intent to annex Peak Ci ty Partners ,  LLC (1200 James Street ) property contain ing 4.777  

acres located at 1200 James Street , Annexation #699 into the Town’s corporate l imi ts .  

Approval  Recommended?  

Yes , by the P lanning and Communi ty Development Depar tment.  

I tem Detai l s  

The Town Clerk cert i f ies to the invest igat ion of  said annexation.  

Attachments  

  Annexation Ordinance  

  Annexation Pet i t ion  

  Legal  Descr ipt ion  

  Prel iminary P lat  

 

- Page 123 -



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
   

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
Municipality No. 333 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-0126-03 
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. #699 

Peak City Partners, LLC (1200 James Street)  
 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
OF THE TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA  

P.O. Box 250, Apex, North Carolina  27502 
 

       WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has been petitioned under G.S.§160A-31, as 
amended, to annex the area described herein; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has by Resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of said petition; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a 
public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at Apex Town Hall at 
6:00 p.m. on January 26, 2021, after due notice by posting to the Town of Apex 
website, http://www.apexnc.org/news/public-notices-legal-ads; and  
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council does hereby find as a fact that said petition 
meets the requirements of G.S.§160A-31, as amended. 
 
 
 
 
 

After recording, please return to: 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Town of Apex 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC  27502 

- Page 124 -



Page 2 
      
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina: 
 
    Section 1.   By virtue of the authority granted by G.S.§160A-31, as amended, the 
territory described in the attached property description and also shown as 
“Annexation Area” on the below identified survey plat is hereby annexed and 
made part of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as of the date of adoption of this 
Ordinance on January 26, 2021.  The survey plat that describes the annexed 
territory is that certain survey plat entitled “Contiguous Annexation Map for The 
Town of Apex, Robinson & Plante, P.C., dated January 15, 2020” and recorded in 
Book of Maps book number  2021  and page number                              , Wake 
County Registry.   

    Section 2.   Upon and after the adoption of this ordinance, the territory described 
herein and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances 
and regulations in force in the Town of Apex, North Carolina, and shall be entitled 
to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town of Apex.  Said territory 
shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S.§160A-58.10, as amended. 
 
    Section 3.   The Clerk of the Town of Apex, North Carolina shall cause to be 
recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County and in the Office 
of the Secretary of State at Raleigh, North Carolina and in the Office of the Wake 
County Board of Elections an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in 
Section 1 hereof, together with a duly certified copy of this Ordinance. 
 
    Adopted this the 26th day of January 2021. 
 
 

________________________________ 
      Jacques K. Gilbert 
      Mayor 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 
 
 

- Page 125 -



 
 
Page 3 
 
 
Legal Description 
 
Beginning at an iron pipe found disturbed on the Eastern Right of Way of Schieffelin 
Road (S.R. 1306) (60’ Public Right of Way), said iron pipe having N.C. Grid 
Coordinates (NAD83/2001) of N=717,752.03, E= 2,047,768.85 as shown on Book of 
Maps 2003, Page 503, Wake County Registry, thence from said beginning point, 
leaving and crossing said Right of Way, South 71°45'42" West 60.02' to a point on 
the Western Right of Way of Schieffelin Road (S.R. 1306) (60’ Public Right of Way), 
thence with said Right of Way North 19°34'32" West 17.56' to a point, thence North 
18°31'03" West 52.61' to a point, thence North 17°32'19" West 51.14' to a point, 
thence North 15°50'28" West 51.25' to a point, thence North 15°04'37" West 50.98' to 
a point, thence North 14°04'25" West 50.90' to a point, thence North 12°51'19" West 
101.26' to a point, thence North 11°28'18" West 12.75' to an existing rebar at the 
Southwestern Right of Way intersection with James Street (60’ Public Right of Way), 
thence continuing along Schieffelin Road (S.R. 1306) Right of Way North 11°45'39" 
West 60.96' to a point at the Northwestern Right of Way intersection with James 
Street (60’ Public Right of Way), thence North continuing along Schieffelin Road 
(S.R. 1306) Right of Way 11°42'39" West 28.32' to a point, thence North 11°16'48" West 
10.29' to a point, thence leaving and crossing said Right of Way North 87°55'26" East 
526.12' to a an existing iron pipe, thence South 44°36'52" East 24.15' to an existing 
iron pipe, thence South 02°01'14" East 331.66' to an existing iron pipe, thence South 
71°45'42" West 394.36’ to the point and place of Beginning containing 4.777 Acres 
more or less. 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 
 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk, Town of Apex, North Carolina, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Annexation Ordinance 
No. 2021-0126-03, adopted at a meeting of the Town Council, on the 26th day of 
January, 2021, the original of which will be on file in the Office of the Town Clerk of 
Apex, North Carolina. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official Seal of 
the Town of Apex, North Carolina, this the 27th day of January 2021. 
 
 
  

_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

                      (SEAL) 
 

- Page 126 -



- Page 127 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
699

bbrock
Text Box

bbrock
Typewritten Text
4.777



- Page 128 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
699

bbrock
Typewritten Text
10/1/2020



- Page 129 -



- Page 130 -



- Page 131 -



- Page 132 -



- Page 133 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  2 6 ,  2 0 2 1  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Sa r ah  Va n  E ve r y ,  Sen i o r  P l anner  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g &  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  He ar i ng  an d po ss i b le  mo t i on  to  a ppr o ve  R ez on i ng Ap p l i c a t i on  #20 CZ11  R o ber t s  R oa d 

P ro per t i e s  P UD .   The  a pp l i c an t ,  Ju s t i n  M i c he la ,  se eks  to  rez one  a p pro x i ma te ly  10 .54  ac r es  loc a te d 

at  7517  R o ber t s  R oa d ,  2310  P o l la r d  P l ac e ,  an d 2000  Ca b i n  Co ve  R o a d (P I Ns  07 33059045 ,  

0 7 3 3 0 4 9 7 3 4 ,  0 7 3 3 0 4 9 4 4 4 )  f ro m R u r a l  R e s i de nt i a l  (R R )  t o  P la nne d  Un i t  De ve lo p men t -C ondi t i on a l  

Zon i n g (P UD -C Z ) .    

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

The  P l ann i n g a nd  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  De p ar t me nt  rec o m m end s  a p pro va l .  

 

The  P l ann i n g B oar d h e ld  a  Pu b l i c  he ar i ng on  J anu ar y  11 ,  2021  a nd vot ed  on  J anu ary  13 ,  2021  t o  

rec o mmen de d  a ppr o va l ,  w i t h  the  c on d i t i o ns  as  o f fe re d by  th e  a pp l i c an t ,  by  a  vo te  o f  8 -0 .  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  S taf f  R e p or t  

  Vi c i n i ty  M a p  

  Ap p l i c at i on  

 

- Page 134 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 1 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

All property owners within three hundred (300) feet of this rezoning have been notified per UDO Sec. 2.2.11 
Public Notification. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
Location:  7517 Roberts Road, 2310 Pollard Place, 2000 Cabin Cove Road 
Applicant/Owner:   Justin Michela/Matthew & Michelle Michela, Justin & Maryann Michela and Matthew 

& Michelle Michela, and Justin & Maryanne Michela  
  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Acreage: 10.54 ± acres 
PINs: 0733059045, 0733049734, 0733049444 
Current Zoning: Rural Residential (RR) 
Proposed Zoning:  Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
2045 Land Use Map:   Medium Density Residential 
Town Limits: ETJ 

 
Adjacent Zoning & Land Uses:  

                     Zoning Land Use 

North:  Town of Cary Residential-40 (R-40) 
Roberts Rd; School, public or private (Green Level 

High School) 

South: Low Density Residential (LD #05RZ22) 
Single-family Residential (The Pines at Wake 

Crossing Subdivision) 

East:  Low Density Residential (LD #05RZ22) 
Single-family Residential (The Pines at Wake 

Crossing Subdivision) 

West: 
Medium Density Residential-Conditional 

Zoning (MD-CZ #13CZ35) 
Single-family Residential (Crestmont Subdivision) 

   
Existing Conditions: 
The subject properties are located south of Roberts Road, between The Pines at Wake Crossing and Crestmont 
subdivisions.  Green Level High School sets on the north side of Roberts Road.  The properties are mostly wooded, 
containing single-family residences and accessory structures.  
 
Neighborhood Meeting: 
The applicant conducted neighborhood meetings on September 28, 2020 and October 13, 2020. The 
neighborhood meeting reports are attached. 
 
WCPSS Coordination: 
A Letter of Impact from Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) was received for this rezoning and is 
included in the staff report packet. WCPSS indicates that elementary, middle, and high schools within the 
current assignment area for this rezoning/development are anticipated to have insufficient capacity for future 
students; transportation to schools outside of the current assignment area should be anticipated. School 
expansion or construction within the next five (5) years is not anticipated to address these concerns. 
Staff contacted WCPSS after the applicant reduced the maximum density for the rezoning and WCPSS stated 
that change does not affect the Letter of Impact as written. 
 

- Page 135 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 2 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

2045 LAND USE MAP: 
The 2045 Land Use Map identifies the property subject to this rezoning as Medium Density Residential. The 
proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) is consistent with that land use 
classification.  
 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 

Limitation of Uses: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below.  The permitted uses 
are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations 
stated below.  For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do 
not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  

 

Permitted Uses and Limitations: 
1. Residential: 

Single family (Minimum Lot Size = 6,000 sf) 
Townhouse (Maximum of 8 lots) 
Accessory apartment 

2. Utilities: 
Utility, Minor 

3. Recreational Uses: 
Park, active 
Park, passive 
Greenway 
Recreational facility, private 

 
Design Controls: 

1. Maximum Density 
Maximum residential density for the project is 3.2units per gross acre.   
Maximum number of lots is 50 (25 single-family lots; 8 townhouse lots). 
  

2. Maximum Height of the Buildings  
Maximum height = 45’ 
Maximum stories = 3 
 

3. Minimum Building Setbacks 
Single-family, detached 
From Buffer or RCA – 10’ 
Front Yard – 10’  
Side Yard – 5’ (no aggregate) 
Rear Yard – 10’  
Driveways from Back of Sidewalk to Garage – 20’ (12’ minimum width) 
 
Townhouse 
From Buffer or RCA – 10’ 
Front Yard – 15’  
Rear Yard – 15’   
Side (end units)  –  5’  

- Page 136 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 3 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

Side (corner) – 10’ 
Driveways from Back of Sidewalk to Garage – 20’ (12’ minimum width) 
Building Side to Side – 10’ 
Building Side to Rear – 30’ 
Building Rear to Rear – 40’ 
 

4. Percentage of Built Upon Area 
The UDO allows for a maximum 70% of built upon area in a PUD project and the Roberts Road 
Properties PUD will not exceed that amount. 
 

5. Perimeter Buffers 
 

Perimeter Buffers: Required Proposed 

Western property boundary 10’ Type B 10’ Type B 

Eastern property boundary 10’ Type B 10’ Type B 

Southern property boundary  10’ Type B 10’ Type B 

Northern property boundary 
30’ Type B (undisturbed) 

50’ Type B (disturbed) 
30’ Type B (undisturbed)* 

50’ Type B (disturbed)* 
*Additional proposed buffer standards detailed in Section 6 Percentage of Resource Conservation Area 

 

6. Percentage of Resource Conservation Area 
The Roberts Road Properties PUD is requesting to reduce the required percentage of Resource 
Conservation Area to 25% of the total acreage (which amounts to 2.64 acres of RCA) based on the 
provisions stated in UDO Sec. 2.3.4.F.1.c RCA.  This 5% reduction from the standard 30% required 
per UDO Sec. 8.1.2 Resource Conservation Area is being requested in exchange for the additional 
zoning conditions listed below.  If Town Council votes to approve the rezoning without the RCA 
reduction, these zoning conditions shall not be included in the approval: 

• In addition to all single-family detached homes being pre-configured with conduit for a solar 
energy system (condition #12 in Section 7), at least 8% of the total number of homes proposed 
in the Master Subdivision Plan shall be built with solar PV systems installed at the time of 
construction.  When measurements of the number of units results in a fractional number 
greater than 0.10, it shall be rounded to the next higher whole number.  All solar installation 
required by this condition shall be completed or under construction prior to 90% of the building 
permits being issued for the development.  The lot(s) on which the home(s) is located shall be 
identified on the Master Subdivision Plat, which may be amended from time to time. 

• This project shall be stage graded per Section 7.2.5.C. 
• All single-family detached homes within this development shall be built with HVAC systems that 

meet or exceed a SEER rating of 18. 
• The 30’ Type B thoroughfare buffer (undisturbed) along Roberts Road shall be increased to a 

40’ Type B thoroughfare buffer (undisturbed).  In the case that this buffer must be disturbed, 
the width of the type B buffer shall increase from 40’ to 60’.  See Section 6.E and Section 10.D 
for reference to the 30’ Type B thoroughfare buffer (undisturbed) that would otherwise be 
proposed if not for the condition to reduce the RCA requirement. 

• Evergreen trees shall be planted as a windbreak on the northern side of buildings, where 
practical. 

• Landscape design shall include pollinator-friendly flora in common areas. 
• Landscape design shall include a minimum of three (3) native hardwood species. 

- Page 137 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 4 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

• A pet waste station shall be installed at the mail kiosk, or at the community center/recreation 
site, to be determined at the time of Master Subdivision Plan. 

 
7. Affordable Housing 

If the Town of Apex has a fund or other mechanism in place to receive donations to construct, 
subsidize, or participate in the development of affordable housing units (the “Fund”), the developer 
will contribute $215 per lot to this Fund prior to Master Subdivision Final Plat approval for each 
phase. In the event the Fund has not been established by the Town of Apex, the money will be 
conveyed to a non-profit organization participating in affordable housing.  The developer will work 
with the Town of Apex to identify a mutually acceptable non-profit organization to receive these 
funds. 
 

8. Builder Condition 
In order to maintain a unique residential development, the project shall consist of lots developed 
with custom homes. 
 

9. Construction Access Condition 
The location of the temporary gravel construction entrance shall be limited to only provide 
construction access from Pollard Place to the east via Gartrell Way. 

 
10. Neighborhood Meeting Condition 

This project shall hold a neighborhood meeting prior to the first Master Subdivision Plan submittal, 
in accordance with UDO Sec. 2.2.7. 
 

Architectural Standards 
Single-Family Detached Residential Standards 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted. 
2. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 2 decorative 

elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements: 
• Windows 
• Bay window 
• Recessed window 
• Decorative window 
• Trim around the windows 
• Wrap around porch or side porch 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative brick/stone 
• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 
• Decorative air vents on gable 
• Decorative gable 
• Decorative cornice 
• Column 
• Portico 
• Balcony 
• Dormer 

3. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a minimum 
of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and accent colors 
complimenting the siding color.  

4. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 
around the windows. 

5. Homeowner Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling units. 
6. Garage doors shall have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on them. 
7. The garage shall not protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade and/or front porch for at 

least 75% of building designs. 

- Page 138 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 5 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

8. Garages on the front façade of a home that faces the street shall not exceed 40% of the total width 
of the house and garage together. 

9. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 
10. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 

porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 
11. All single-family detached homes shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 

 
Townhouse Residential Standards 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted. 
2. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on them.  
3. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 2 

decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements: 
• Windows 
• Bay window 
• Recessed window 
• Decorative window 
• Trim around the windows 
• Wrap around porch or side porch 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative brick/stone 
• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 
• Decorative air vents on gable 
• Decorative gable 
• Decorative cornice 
• Column 
• Portico 
• Balcony 
• Dormer 

4. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a minimum 
of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and accent colors 
complementing the siding color. 

5. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 
around the windows. 

6. Building facades shall have horizontal relief achieved by the use of recesses and projections. 
7. For townhome buildings with three (3) units or more, the roofline cannot be a single mass; it must 

be broken up horizontally and vertically between every unit. 
8. The garage cannot protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade or front porch. 
9. Maximum number of units per townhome building shall be limited to four (4) units. 
10. No townhomes shall be constructed along the western property line. 

 
 
Existing Structure Preservation 
Roberts Road Properties PUD shall include the preservation of the existing estate located at 2000 Cabin Cove 
Road, in order to re-purpose it as a community center/recreation site, which will be owned and maintained by 
the HOA.  The exterior appearance of the structure may remain unchanged during its conversion, but parking, 
as well as ADA accessible paths, shall be provided in accordance with the Town of Apex UDO.  The timing of 
the conversion shall not be tied to any specific number of lots being platted. 
 
Tree Preservation 
Prior to recording the first subdivision plat for the property, the developer will provide a donation of $1,600 
to a local non-profit organization with a mission towards tree preservation and replacement.  In those portions 
of the site where trees are removed for single family or townhome lots, the developer anticipates it can offset 
such removal by preserving 1.6 acres of existing tree canopy in other places on the site, and replacing and 

- Page 139 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 6 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

replanting trees over 0.8 acres of the rest of the property.  As such, this $1,600 donation represents an assigned 
per-tree value in substitute canopy for the remainder of the property. 
 
Stormwater Management 
Roberts Road Properties PUD will meet all applicable requirements and standards as described in section 6.1 
of the Apex UDO.  This project will meet all stormwater reduction requirements including limiting the post-
development stormwater flows to not exceed the pre-development stormwater runoff for the 1-year and 10-
year 24 hour storm events. 
 
Roberts Road Properties PUD will use approved devices to control the stormwater and sediment runoff.  These 
devices may include detention ponds, retention ponds, bioretention areas, or any other approved SCM 
stormwater control.  Stormwater control devices shall be landscaped and constructed to be an amenity to the 
development and shall blend into the surroundings.   
 
APEX TRANSPORTATION PLAN/ACCESS and CIRCULATION: 
As proposed, Roberts Road Properties PUD will include the extension of public streets into the site from Pollard 
Place to the west (coming from the Crestmont subdivision), as well as Pollard Place to the east (coming from 
the Pines at Wake Crossing subdivision).  There will be no direct vehicular access to Roberts Road.  All public 
streets (with the exception of Pollard Place) will have a 5’ sidewalk on both sides of the street.  The Pollard 
Place extension will have an 8’ Side Path on the north side of the road to connect to the existing 8’ Side Path 
on the north side of existing Pollard Place (to the east).  The future amenity center shall provide pedestrian 
connection to the existing pedestrian path on Gartrell Way.  The project shall provide pedestrian access from 
the future subdivision to Roberts Road via the 8’ Side Path along Pollard Place and Gartrell Way, unless a public 
street within the subdivision is constructed within 300-feet of the northwest property corner, in which case a 
direct pedestrian connection shall be made to Roberts Road, consistent with UDO Sec. 7.5.4.C.  The project 
will dedicate additional right-of-way along Roberts Road in the northeast corner to achieve a total of 40’ for ½ 
of the Roberts Road R/W.  A 5’ public sidewalk shall be installed along the frontage of the project along Roberts 
Road prior to the first plat. 
 
Public Facilities:  
As shown on the PUD Utility Plan, the sanitary sewer connection will come by connecting to the existing sewer 
system in Pollard Place to the west, from the Crestmont subdivision.  Water distribution service will be 
provided to this project by the connection to an existing eight inch waterline along Pollard Place to the west 
(coming from the Crestmont subdivision), as well as Pollard Place to the east (coming from the Pines at Wake 
Crossing subdivision). 
 
PARKS, RECREATION, AND CULTURAL RESOURCES ADVISORY COMMISSION: 
The PRCR Advisory Commission reviewed the Roberts Road Properties PUD project on December 9, 2020 and 
the Commission unanimously recommended a fee-in-lieu for recreation land dedication based on the number 
of units and types proposed at the time of Master Subdivision Approval.  The fee rate will be based on the rate 
of the current year when Town Council approves the PUD.   
 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD with conditions as proposed, 
with the exception of the lack of direct pedestrian connection from future subdivision to Roberts Road, which 
is a thoroughfare.   
 

- Page 140 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 7 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

While the Roberts Road Properties PUD is consistent with the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan, the PUD 
as proposed does not provide for direct pedestrian connection from the future subdivision to the 
thoroughfare, Roberts Road, as required in UDO Sec. 7.5.4 C. Sidewalks:  
 
C)  Sidewalks  
 

2)   The subdivider shall construct sidewalks along both sides of all major and minor thoroughfares, all 
collectors, and on one side of all other streets within and bordering the subdivision property boundaries.  
Such sidewalks shall provide direct pedestrian connections to adjacent properties outside the 
subdivision. 

  
     b)    Where street interconnectivity is not provided (such as but not limited to cul-de-sacs) within the 

development plan, pedestrian connections shall be constructed. The pedestrian connection 
requirement does not apply when a connection between two (2) cul-de-sacs would not improve 
connectivity with the subdivision or to surrounding areas as determined by the Planning Director. 
The pedestrian connection shall be constructed according to the following: 
(i)    The developer shall construct the required pedestrian connections within open space or 

Resource Conservation Area owned by a homeowner’s association, using a minimum five-(5) 
foot width instead of the 10-foot wide standard section for concrete greenways; 

(ii)    The developer shall provide a 10-foot wide public access and maintenance easement along 
these paths, with the paths in the center of the easements; 

(iii)  The open space shall be provided between lots (not within lots) to maintain pedestrian 
connectivity and shall include destination and directional signs; 
 

Without the provision of direct internal pedestrian connection to the Thoroughfare, staff cannot recommend 
support of the Roberts Road Properties PUD as presented.   

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board heard this rezoning at their January 11, 2021 meeting and voted on January 13, 2021 to 
recommend approval, with the conditions as offered by the applicant, by a vote of 8-0.  
 

ANALYSIS STATEMENT OF THE REASONABLENESS OF THE PROPOSED REZONING: 
This Statement will address consistency with the Town’s comprehensive and other applicable plans, 
reasonableness, and effect on public interest: 
 

The proposed rezoning to the PUD-CZ zoning district is reasonable in that it is consistent with the 2045 
Land Use Map, which classifies the subject property as Medium Density Residential. 
  
While the proposed rezoning allows for infill single-family residential development consistent and 
compatible with existing single-family residential development in the area, the proposed rezoning is not 
in the public interest because of the lack of a pedestrian connection between the future residential 
development and Roberts Road.  

 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS: 
Standards  
In return for greater flexibility in site design requirements, Planned Development (PD) Districts are expected 
to deliver exceptional quality community designs that preserve critical environmental resources; provide high 
quality community amenities; incorporate creative design in the layout of buildings, Resource Conservation 

- Page 141 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 8 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

Area and circulation; ensure compatibility with surrounding land uses and neighborhood character; provide 
high quality architecture; and provide greater efficiency in the layout and provision of roads, utilities, and other 
infrastructure. The Planned Development (PD) Districts shall not be used as a means of circumventing the 
Town’s adopted land development regulations for routine developments.  
 
1) Planned Unit Development (PUD-CZ) District  

In approving a Planned Development (PD) Zoning District designation for a PUD-CZ, the Town Council 
shall find the PUD-CZ district designation and PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance with the 
following standards:  

 
a)  Development parameters  

(i)  The uses proposed to be developed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ are those uses permitted in 
Sec. 4.2.2 Use Table.  

 
(ii)  The uses proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ can be entirely residential, entirely non-

residential, or a mix of residential and non-residential uses, provided a minimum percentage 
of non-residential land area is included in certain mixed use areas as specified on the 2045 
Land Use Map. The location of uses proposed by the PUD-CZ must be shown in the PD Plan 
with a maximum density for each type of residential use and a maximum square footage for 
each type of non-residential use.  

 
(iii)  The dimensional standards in Sec. 5.1.3 Table of Intensity and Dimensional Standards, 

Planned Development Districts may be varied in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ. The PUD-CZ shall 
demonstrate compliance with all other dimensional standards of the UDO, North Carolina 
Building Code, and North Carolina Fire Code.  

 
(iv)  The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ encourages cluster and compact 

development to the greatest extent possible that is interrelated and linked by pedestrian 
ways, bikeways and other transportation systems. At a minimum, the PD Plan must show 
sidewalk improvements as required by the Apex Transportation Plan and the Town of Apex 
Standard Specifications and Standard Details, and greenway improvements as required by 
the Town of Apex Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space Plan and the Apex 
Transportation Plan. In addition, sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all streets for 
single-family detached homes.  

 
(v)  The design of development in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ results in land use patterns that 

promote and expand opportunities for walkability, connectivity, public transportation, and 
an efficient compact network of streets. Cul-de-sacs shall be avoided unless the design of 
the subdivision and the existing or proposed street system in the surrounding area indicate 
that a through street is not essential in the location of the proposed cul-de-sac, or where 
sensitive environmental areas such as streams, floodplains, and wetlands would be 
substantially disturbed by making road connections.  

 
(vi)  The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ is compatible with the character of 

surrounding land uses and maintains and enhances the value of surrounding properties.  
 
(vii)  The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ has architectural and design standards 

that are exceptional and provide higher quality than routine developments. All residential 

- Page 142 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 9 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

uses proposed in a PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall provide architectural elevations representative 
of the residential structures to be built to ensure the Standards of this Section are met.  

 
b)  Off-street parking and loading. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with the 

standards of Sec. 8.3 Off-Street Parking and Loading, except that variations from these standards 
may be permitted if a comprehensive parking and loading plan for the PUD-CZ is submitted as part 
of the PD Plan that is determined to be suitable for the PUD-CZ, and generally consistent with the 
intent and purpose of the off-street parking and loading standards.  

 
c)  RCA. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with Sec. 8.1.2 Resource Conservation 

Area, except that the percentage of RCA required under Sec. 8.1.2 may be reduced by the Town 
Council by no more than ten percent (10%) provided that the PD Plan for PUD-CA includes one or 
more of the following: 

 
(i)  A non-residential component; or  
 
(ii)  An overall density of 7 residential units per acre or more; or 
 
(iii)      Environmental measures including but not limited to the following: 

(a) The installation of a solar photovoltaic (PV) system on a certain number or 
percentage of single-family or townhouse lots or on a certain number or 
percentage of multifamily, mixed-use, or nonresidential buildings. All required 
solar installation shall be completed or under construction prior to 90% of the 
building permits being issued for the approved number of lots or buildings. For 
single-family or townhouse installations, the lots on which these homes are 
located shall be identified on the Master Subdivision Plat, which may be amended;  

(b)  The installation of a geothermal system for a certain number or percentage of units 
within the development; or  

(c)   Energy efficiency standards that exceed minimum Building Code requirements (i.e. 
SEER rating for HVAC). 

 
d)  Landscaping. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with the standards of Sec. 8.2 

Landscaping, Buffering and Screening, except that variations from these standards may be 
permitted where it is demonstrated that the proposed landscaping sufficiently buffers uses from 
each other, ensures compatibility with land uses on surrounding properties, creates attractive 
streetscapes and parking areas and is consistent with the character of the area. In no case shall a 
buffer be less than one half of the width required by Sec. 8.2 or 10 feet in width, whichever is 
greater.  

 
e) Signs. Signage in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall demonstrate compliance with Sec. 8.7 Signs, except 

that the standards can be varied if a master signage plan is submitted for review and approval 
concurrent with the PD plan and is determined by the Town Council to be suitable for the PUD-CZ 
and generally consistent with the intent and purpose of the sign standards of the UDO. The master 
signage plan shall have design standards that are exceptional and provide for higher quality signs 
than those in routine developments and shall comply with Sec. 8.7.2 Prohibited Signs. 

 

- Page 143 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 10 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

f)  Public facilities. The improvements standards and guarantees applicable to the public facilities that 
will serve the site shall comply with Article 7: Subdivision and Article 14: Parks, Recreation, 
Greenways, and Open Space.  

 
(i)  The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site transportation circulation 

system. The on-site transportation circulation system shall be integrated with the off-site 
transportation circulation system of the Town. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall be consistent 
with the Apex Transportation Plan and the Town of Apex Standard Specifications and 
Standard Details and show required right-of-way widths and road sections. A Traffic Impact 
Analysis (TIA) shall be required per Sec. 13.19.  

 
(ii)  The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site system of potable water 

and wastewater lines that can accommodate the proposed development, and are efficiently 
integrated into off-site potable water and wastewater public improvement plans. The PD 
Plan shall include a proposed water and wastewater plan.  

 
(iii)  Adequate off-site facilities for potable water supply, sewage disposal, solid waste disposal, 

electrical supply, fire protection and roads shall be planned and programmed for the 
development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ, and the development is conveniently 
located in relation to schools and police protection services.  

 
(iv)  The PD Plan shall demonstrate compliance with the parks and recreation requirements of 

Article 14: Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space and Sec. 7.3.1 Privately-owned 
Play Lawns if there is a residential component in the PUD-CZ.  

 
g)  Natural resource and environmental protection. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance 

with the current regulatory standards of this Ordinance related to natural resource and 
environmental protection in Sec. 6.1 Watershed Protection Overlay District, Sec. 6.2 Flood Damage 
Prevention Overlay District, and Sec. 8.1 Resource Conservation.  

 
h)  Storm water management. The PD Plan shall demonstrate that the post-development rate of on-

site storm water discharge from the entire site shall not exceed pre-development levels in 
accordance with Sec. 6.1.7 of the UDO.  

 
i)  Phasing. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall include a phasing plan for the development. If development 

of the PUD-CZ is proposed to occur in more than one phase, then guarantees shall be provided 
that project improvements and amenities that are necessary and desirable for residents of the 
project, or that are of benefit to the Town, are constructed with the first phase of the project, or, 
if this is not possible, then as early in the project as is technically feasible.  

 
j)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates consistency with the 

goals and policies established in the Town’s 2045 Land Use.  
 
k)  Complies with the UDO. The PD Plan for PUD-CZ demonstrates compliance with all other relevant 

portions of the UDO.  
 
 
 

- Page 144 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD 
January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 11 of 11  Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS: 
The Town Council shall find the Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) designation 
demonstrates compliance with the following standards. 2.3.3.F: 
 

Legislative Considerations  
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or 
not the proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These 
considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public 
interest.  
              

1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
appropriateness for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.  

 

2)  Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its 
proposed location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.  

 

3)  Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
compliance with Sec 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.  

 

4)  Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District 
use’s minimization of adverse effects, including  visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent 
lands; and avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, 
service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
minimization of environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and 
air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 

6)  Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having 
adverse impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater 
facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 

7)  Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the 
health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 

 

8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 
substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 

 

9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 
constitutes a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of 
persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 

10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District 
use complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance 
for use, layout, and general development characteristics. 

 

- Page 145 -



- Page 146 -



- Page 147 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11

bbrock
Typewritten Text
10/1/2020



Owner Mail Address 1 Mail Address 2 PIN SITE ADDRESS
MATTHEW & MICHELLE MICHELA 7517 ROBERTS RD CARY NC 27519-8920 0733059045 7517 ROBERTS RD
JUSTIN & MARYANN MICHELA AND 
MATTHEW & MICHELLE MICHELA 2000 CABIN COVE RD CARY NC 27519-8919 0733049734 2310 POLLARD PL
JUSTIN & MARYANN MICHELA 2000 CABIN COVE RD CARY NC 27519-8966 0733049444 2000 CABIN COVE RD

- Page 148 -



- Page 149 -



- Page 150 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11

bbrock
Typewritten Text
10/1/2020



2050 Roberts Rd Properties Adjacent Property Owners

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

A B C D E F

Parcel Owner Mail Address 1 Mail Address 2 Mail Address 3 PIN

NA Town of Apex Planning Department PO Box 250 Apex NC 27502

1 HERMAN ROBERTS 7517 ROBERTS RD CARY NC 27519-8920 0733059045

2 BRIAN & JULIE ROBERTS 7421 ROBERTS RD CARY NC 27519-8919 0733049734

3 MICHAEL & CATHERINE ROBERTS 2000 CABIN COVE RD CARY NC 27519-8966 0733049444

4 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733049008

5 CRESTMONT OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC CHARLESTON MANAGEMENT CORPORATION PO BOX 97243 RALEIGH NC 27624-7243 0723948119

6 NATARAJ DASGUPTA & SURAIYA NAHAR 363 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044300

7 SUNIL KUMAR & RASHMI MARUVADA 359 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044373

8 SRIKANTH & SWARNALATHA CHERUKURI 355 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733045348

9 DEEPTI KRISHNAKUMAR &  ARUNKUMAR VIJAYAKUMAR 351 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733045495

10 AJIT & DEEPTI DABADE 347 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733046524

11 JAYARAM MUMMADI & ANITHA GUDDHETI 339 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733046627

12 NEELKAMAL DOPPALAPUDI &  GNANALAKSHMI SAISUDHA KATRAGADDA 335 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733046723

13 LINGMING HOU & WEIHONG CAO 331 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733046729

14 MINGLIANG WEI & CHUNHUA YANG 327 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733046825

15 JEFFREY & MEGHAN RICHMOND 323 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733046921

16 CHAKRADHAR REDDY CHEEMARLA & DAMODHAR PRATHIBA REDDY CHARLA 319 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733046927

17 SHANNON & WILLIAM ALMAND IV 315 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733056023

18 MIKLOS NAGY & ILDIKO HORVATH 311 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733056039

19 SHIVA REDDY BUSIREDDY &  RASHMI RAJKUMAR WADHWA 307 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733056135

20 UMESH KEDLA & SAPNA GUDDEKOPPA 303 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733056222

21 CRESTMONT OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC 812 SALEM WOODS DR STE 202 RALEIGH NC 27615-3346 0733053268

22 VARUN KUMAR SINGH & KUMUDINI TEWARI 302 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733054222

23 CELESTE & ORLANDO DIZON JR 2304 FILLMORE HALL LN APEX NC 27523-7126 0733054123

24 BAIHAN YU & JING PAN 2300 FILLMORE HALL LN APEX NC 27523-7126 0733054183

25 PRANAVI BUKKA & PRAVEEN KUMAR  KONALA 318 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044959

26 SUNIL KUMAR SINGH RAMBRICHH & SNEHLATA SINGH 322 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044953

27 JAWAHAR & SMITHA RUDDARRAJU 326 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044857

28 NAGARJUNA REDDY CHINTA & SIRISHA SINGASANI 330 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044851

29 KRISHNAM RAJU & LAKSHMI PENUMATCHA 334 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044756

30 SRIKANTH MAKINENI & CHANDANA BUJINGA TUMMALA 338 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044750

31 MEENAKSHI SUNDARAM RAMANATHAN & GEETHA MEENAKSHI SUNDARAM 342 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044644

32 DANIEL & JESSICA THORN 346 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044548

33 IAN & MA FATIMA GOMEZ 350 STONEHOUSE DR APEX NC 27523-7127 0733044530

34  RAJESH & MANASA NADIPALLI 267 CRESTMONT RIDGE DR APEX NC 27523-7119 0733043453

35 PRANAB & PUJA SHRESTHA 263 CRESTMONT RIDGE DR APEX NC 27523-7119 0733043439

36 TAO FENG & JING CHAI 2305 BRAXTON WOOD LN APEX NC 27523-7128 0733043618

37 RAMASAMEERA PALAVALI & SIVANAGARJUNA SANIVARAPU 2301 BRAXTON WOOD LN APEX NC 27523-7128 0733043734

38 ADAM & STACEY LISI 2300 BRAXTON WOOD LN APEX NC 27523-7128 0733043833

39  CHINAR KULKARNI &  SANUJA DABADE 2307 FILLMORE HALL LN APEX NC 27523-7126 0733043966

40 WAKE CNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION RE SERVICES DIRECTOR 1551 ROCK QUARRY RD RALEIGH NC 27610-4145 0733061465

41 121 LENNOX LLC SMULTRON LP 1892 BLUE JAY PT APEX NC 27502-9711 0733153781

42 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733141997

43 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733153015

44 AMANDALEE2 LLC 6410 MCCRIMMON PKWY MORRISVILLE NC 27560-8136 0733146978

45 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733143822

46 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733143892

47 HYUNSOOK CHAE & IL WON 2218 POLLARD PL CARY NC 27519-8963 0733144851

48 JIN S & YOUNG LEE 2214 POLLARD PL CARY NC 27519-8963 0733145811

- Page 151 -



2050 Roberts Rd Properties Adjacent Property Owners

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

A B C D E F

49 CHIRAG A SAXENA & PUJITA PATNI 251 GARTRELL WAY CARY NC 27519-8962 0733143676

50 JAVEEDA MIYA &  NURUS SABA 2215 POLLARD PL CARY NC 27519-8963 0733145614

51 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733144610

52 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733144565

53 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733145522

54 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733145314

55 HAN ZHU & RUI WANG 309 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733144296

56 DAOYU WANG & QINGFANG LIN 313 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733144270

57 MADHUSUDHAN BELLAMKONDA & USHA ANNAMANENI 317 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733144145

58 ELDHOSE KURIAN THATTARATH & CAROLINE THOMAS 321 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733144009

59 NARENDER & JYOTI RAO YELLANKI 325 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733143054

60 LALIT GOEL & ANUBHA GUPTA 329 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733143001

61 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733132947

62 BONG JIN YOUM & HAEJA KIM 336 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733141110

63 KAI-DI & CHENG-KUO CHI 332 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733141163

64 ALI QAMAR & MADIHA ALI 326 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733142117

65 SARAH YONGMEI XU & DONG XIANG 7 RANDOLPH CIR WESTFORD MA 01886-2595 0733142261

66 CHANDRA SEKHAR VELIGETI BHASKARA & ANUSHA KARYAMPUDI 314 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733142297

67 YANG LI WU & YU FANG  SHANG 310 PARLIER DR CARY NC 27519-8964 0733143323

68 TOLL NC II LP 250 GIBRALTAR RD HORSHAM PA 19044-2323 0733142477

69 NIKITA SWAPNIL PATIL & SWAPNIL KHANDERAO PATIL 2308 FILLMORE HALL LANE APEX, NC 27523-7126 0733053163

PATIL, NIKITA SWAPNIL PATIL, SWAPNIL KHANDERAO

- Page 152 -



- Page 153 -



,, 

AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM -;.i 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Justin & Maryann Michela is the owner* of the property for which the attached ----------------------
application is being submitted; 

□ Land Use Amendment 

□ Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

□ Site Plan 

0 Subdivision 

□ Variance 

□ Other: 

The property address is: 2000 Cabin Cove Road 

The agent for this project is: Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 

□ I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name: Patrick Kiernan 

Address: 221 N . Salem St, Suite 001, Apex NC 27502 

Telephone Number: 919-387-1174 

E-Mail Address: patrick@jonescnossen.com 

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 

~ ~ 
Type or print name 

Type or print name 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not 
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization. 

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town's Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

Page 9 of 16 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 - Page 154 -

svanevery
Pencil

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11



,, 

AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP , 

Application#: Submittal Date: 

The undersigned, Justin & Maryann Michela 

swears or affirms as follows: 
(the "Affiant") first being duly sworn, hereby 

1. Affiant is over eighteen (18) years of age and authorized to make this Affidavit. The Affiant is the sole 
owner, or is the authorized agent of all owners, of the property located at 
2000 Cabin Cove Road and legally described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein (the "Property"). 

2. This Affidavit of Ownership is made for the purpose offiling an application for development approval with 
the Town of Apex. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

If Affiant is the owner of the Property, Affiant acquired ownership by deed, dated _1_11_18_12_0_20 ____ _, 
and recorded in the Wake County Register of Deeds Office on 1113012020 in Book_o_18_21_3 ___ Page 
01641-01642 

If Affiant is the authorized agent of the owner(s) of the Property, Affiant possesses documentation 
indicating the agency relationship granting the Affiant the authority to apply for development approval 
on behalf of the owner(s). 

If Affiant is the owner of the Property, from the time Affiant was deeded the Property on 
1111812020 Affiant has claimed sole ownership of the Property. Affiant or Affiant's predecessors 
in interest have been in sole and undisturbed possession and use of the property during the period of 
ownership. Since taking possession of the Property on 1111812020 no one has questioned 
Affiant's ownership or right to possession nor demanded any rents or profits. To Affiant's knowledge, no 
claim or action has been brought against Affiant (if Affiant is the owner), or against owner(s) (if Affiant is 
acting as an authorized agent for owner(s)), which questions title or right to possession of the property, 
nor is any claim or action pending against Affiant or owner(s) in court regarding possession of the 
Property. 

This the )_ ~ day of {l.LU..m ht< , 20_1Q_. 

~~ 
M l011}0,.,11u'.\ t\/lt < l Lt l c'--

ype or print name 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF _\....,A...,_.l-A............,.~ ...... ~---

1, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County of WA\<J;;. , hereby certify that 

' ,lvs-\," ,_rY\ov140Yffi rn,·,h,~Affiant, personally known to me or known to me by said Affiant's presentation of 

said Affiant's ch~" e(~ \, ca;,~ , personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the 

due and voluntary execution of the foregoing Affidavit.___ ~ _ 

~== ~~ 
North Carolina State of North Carolina 

MyCommlsslon Expns ~ \4i My Commission Expires: tJmtW\ bu{ \4 ,~Oa!) 
[NOTARY SEAL] 

Page 10 of 16 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 - Page 155 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A- LEGAL DESCRIPTION : 
" 

Application#: Submittal Date: 

Insert legal description below. 

BEING all of Lot 6, containing 3.228 acres, as shown on map entitled "Recombination and 
Subdivision Map of Herman Wayne Roberts Property", dated August 25, 1996, by Kenneth 
Close, Inc., Land Surveying, and recorded in Book of Maps 1997, Page 1624, Wake County 
Registry, reference to which is hereby made for greater certainty of description. 
ifOGETHER WITH an appurtenant perpetual easement and right of ingress and egress upon 
and over the 30-foot private access easement and turn around shown on the above 
referenced map as Cabin Cove Road extending from said property to S.R. 1608 [Roberts 
Road]. 
The property hereinabove described was acquired by Grantor by instrument recorded in Deed 
Book 7694, Page 597, Wake County Registry. 

Page 11 of 16 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 - Page 156 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11



Application#: Submittal Date: 

Justin & Maryann Michela and Matthew & Michelle Michela 
is the owner* of the property for which the attached ----------------------

application is being submitted: . 

□ Land Use Amendment 

□ Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

□ Site Plan 

0 Subdivision 

□ Variance 

□ Other: 

The property address is: 2310 Pollard Place 

The agent for this project is: Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 

□ I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name: Patrick Kiernan 

Address: 221 N . Salem St, Suite 001, Apex NC 27502 

Telephone Number: 919-387-1174 

E-Mail Address: patrick@jonescnossen.com 

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 

~~ 
{,/ 

fv\J\dh-
Jv-:sh~ lt,c ~l~ 

Type or print name 

Type or print name 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not 
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization. 

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town's Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

Page 9 of 16 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 
- Page 157 -

svanevery
Pencil

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP 

Application #: 

Justin & Maryann Michela and 
The undersigned, Matthew & Michelle Michela 

swears or affirms as follows: 

Submittal Date: 

(the 11 Affiant 11
) first being duly sworn, hereby 

1. Affiant is over eighteen {18) years of age and authorized to make this Affidavit. The Affiant is the sole 
owner, or is ·the authorized agent of all owners, of the property located at 
2310 Pollard Place and legally described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein (the "Property"). 

2. This Affidavit of Ownership is made for the purpose of filing an application for development approval with 
the Town of Apex. 

3. If Affiant is the owner of the Property, Affiant acquired ownership by deed, dated _1_11_1a_,2_0_20 ____ _, 

and recorded in the Wake County Register of Deeds Office on 1113012020 in Book _0_1a_21_3 ___ Page 
01665-01666 

4. If Affiant is the authorized agent of the owner(s) of the Property, Affiant possesses documentation 
indicating the agency relationship granting the Affiant the authority to apply for development approval 
on behalf of the owner(s). 

5. If Affiant is the owner of the Property, from the time Affiant was deeded the Property on 
1111a12020 Affiant has claimed sole ownership of the Property. Affiant or Affiant's predecessors 
in interest have been in sole and undisturbed possession and use of the property during the period of 
ownership. Since taking possession of the Property on 1111a12020 no one has questioned 
Affiant's ownership or right to possession nor demanded any rents or profits. To Affiant's knowledge, no 
claim or action has been brought against Affiant (if Affiant is the owner), or against owner(s) (if Affiant is 
acting as an authorized agent for owner(s)), which questions title or right to possession of the property, 
nor is any claim or action pending against Affiant or owner(s) in court regarding possession of the 
Property. 

This the 1--- Y day of Of-~~20_,¾;)_.. 

< ~ ~ ~~ v 
J.J,.,_ A.tlr.ef II M~IW\ Ml~ 

~-:;;----71-<,1,ui ~J._ 

lvVJ-n,, 6-"- P? 1 "•c { /l4 1 C l:li;:z ( B"=yi ll I { l{-et,'°fo 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTYOF WAKt. -----'--=------

Type or print name 

. I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County of WAKE: , hereby certify that 
.l V ~--\ \ l"'\' ~T"1 lAl\Y'\ fn ,· ~N. \,-.. ""'J. 
YY)"-\-\h"', ~ ffi,<..b«,\\.... to \c,\,,.J,.__ , Affiant, personally known to me or known to me by said Affiant's presentation of 

said Affiant's ch~vC,Y-;\ \{~ , personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the 

due and voluntary execution of the foregoing Affidavit. 

ERIN MARCUM 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

WakeCounty 
North Carolina 

My Commission Expires 

[NOTARY SEAL] 

Notary Public 
State of North Carolina 
My Commission Expires: l\)ovcu,nbuc\Ci 1 ~i\5 

Page 10 of 16 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 - Page 158 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11



" 
AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A- LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Application#: Submittal Date: 

Insert legal description below. 

BEING all of Lot 2, containing 3.228 acres including the Cabin Cove Road access easement, 
Exempt Plat Herman Wayne Roberts as recording in Book of Maps 2017, Page 2026, Wake 
County Registry. 

Page 11 of 16 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 - Page 159 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11



O, i§' 

AGENT AUTHORIZATION FORM , ~': 
-~'It ,,: 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Matthew & Michelle Michela is the owner* of the property for which the attached 

appliGation is being submitted: 

□ Land Use Amendment 

D Rezoning: For Conditional Zoning and Planned Development rezoning applications, this 
authorization includes express consent to zoning conditions that are agreed to by the 
Agent which will apply if the application is approved. 

□ Site Plan 

0 Subdivision 

□ Variance 

□ Other: 

The property address is: 7 517 Roberts Road 

The agent for this project is: Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 

□ I am the owner of the property and will be acting as my own agent 

Agent Name: Patrick Kiernan 

Address: 221 N . Salem St, Suite 001, Apex NC 27502 

Telephone Number: 919-387-1174 

E-Mail Address: patrick@jonescnossen.com 

Signature(s) of Owner(s)* 

~--==z.__-

MA,.,-t,:,~\.4,) M' C Mi£ LA 
Type or print name Date 

~--~?ff, , l .~ 
vY/ , uM:L,L G Vk1 , c '-' GLA 

' Type or print name Date 

Attach additional sheets if there are additional owners. 

*Owner of record as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls of Wake County. An option to purchase does not 
constitute ownership. If ownership has been recently transferred, a copy of the deed must accompany this authorization. 

Pursuant to Article 40 of Chapter 66 of the North Carolina General Statutes (the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act) this 
application and all documents related hereto containing an electronic or digitized signature are legally binding in the same 
manner as are hard copy documents executed by hand signature. The parties hereby consent to use electronic or digitized 
signatures in accordance with the Town's Electronic Signature Policy and intend to be bound by the application and any 
related documents. If electronic signatures are used the application shall be delivered in an electronic record capable of 
retention by the recipient at the time of receipt. 

Page 9 of 16 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 - Page 160 -

svanevery
Pencil

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11



' 
AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP ,2: ",: *~ 

Application #: 

The undersigned, /V\>r,,.,-r,,~ ..J /VI• c.>, ,J;.vl, 

Submittal Date: 

. ,._ I. 
+ JV/ ,c.~<:llr J'Y1•'{t~e ~ Affiant") first being duly sworn, hereby 

swears or affirms as follows: 

1. Affiant is over eighteen (18) years of age and authorized to make this Affidavit. The Affiant is the sole 
owner, or is the authorized agent of all owners, of the property located at 
7517 Roberts Road and legally described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein (the "Property"). 

2. This Affidavit of Ownership is made for the purpose offiling an application for development approval with 
the Town of Apex. 

3. If Affiant is the owner of the Property, Affiant acquired ownership by deed, dated _1_11_18_12_0_20 ____ -

and recorded in the Wake County Register of Deeds Office on 1113012020 in Book _0_18_21_3 ___ Page 
01679-01680 

4. If Affiant is the authorized agent of the owner(s) of the Property, Affiant possesses documentation 
indicating the agency relationship granting the Affiant the authority to apply for development approval 
on behalf of the owner(s). 

5. If Affiant is the owner of the Property, from the time Affiant was deeded the Property on 
1111812020 Affiant has claimed sole ownership of the Property. Affiant or Affiant's predecessors 
in interest have been in sole and undisturbed possession and use of the property during the period of 
ownership. Since taking possession of the Property on 1111812020 no one has questioned 
Affiant's ownership or right to possession nor demanded any rents or profits. To Affiant's knowledge, no 
claim or action has been brought against Affiant (if Affiant is the owner), or against owner(s) (if Affiant is 
acting as an authorized agent for owner(s)), which questions title or right to possession of the property, 
nor is any claim or action pending against Affiant or owner(s) in court regarding possession of the 
Property. 

This the Z&A day of D~, e- t...., 20~. 

~-~~k----
t-"1+-rrt1 6:. ~C-:.;,.. ~ ~i MtCl-i E..l+ 

(seal} 

Type or print name 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF _W.._A--'--'\S'--cf_ __ _ 

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County of WA \(:E, , hereby certify that 

M Q#~ '~ fu,c.h«.\',_ Y\'),<N..~Affiant, personally known to me or known to me by said Affiant's presentation of 

said Affiant's dr,Y(kf \i cp~ , personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the 

due and voluntary execution of the foregoing Affidavit. ~ 

ERIN MARCUM ~~~-:_--:_--.--NOTARY PUBLIC _N ...... o .... ta-ry----:r-ub_l __ ic _____ _._ _________ _ = = State of North Carolina 
MyCommisslon Expires ' My Commission Expires: ~O\IU)'\b,,v::\C,,~~ 5 

[NOTARY SEAL] 

Page 10 of 16 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 - Page 161 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11



:::;;; ~ @.,: y = 

AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 1lt, , 
Application#: Submittal Date: 

Insert legal description below. 

BEING all of Lot 1 of that certain map entitled "Herman Wayne Roberts" dated November 16, 
2016, surveyed by Smith and Smith surveyors and recorded in Book of Maps 2017, Page 
2026, Wake County Registry. 
The property hereinabove described was acquired by Grantor by instrument recorded in Deed 
Book 3814, Page 154 and Deed Book 3673, Page 127, Wake County Registry. 

Page 11 of 16 Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 - Page 162 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20CZ11



WAKE COUNTY 
PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM Wake County Residential Development Notification 

Company Name 
-------·~-----·•····-·••o·.·•·"·"···~··-,.·"•••------

Company Phone Number 

Developer Representative Name Justin Michela 

Developer Representative Phone Number 978-875-0821 

Developer Representative Email justin@themichelas.org 

Date of Application for Subdivision I October 01, 2020 

City, Town or Wake County Jurisdiction I Apex 

Name of Subdivision I TBD 

Please complete each 

section of this form and 

submit with your 

application. 

Town of Apex staff will 

enter this information 

into the online WCPSS 

form. 

Please send any questions 

about this form to: 

Address of Subdivision (if unknown enter nearest cross streets) 7517 ROBERTS RD, 2310 POLLARD PL, 2000 CABIN COVE RD 

studentassignment-gis

group@wcpss.net 

REID(s) 0147821, 0450952, 0235566 

PIN{s) 0733-05-9045, 0733-04-9734, 0733-04-9444 

oWSubdivision Projected First o~~~p._a_n_c_y_D_a_t_e ______ _ 

b.O 

E E C 

0 
·s 

0 
0 Total# of 

I ::i 0 ... ... 
"'C 

... 0 "'C 
Unit Type I Units 0 :a cu cu ·2 :::s m m cu +,I 

~ N V) V) 

E E 
0 0 

I 
Square Foot 0 0 I Price Range I Anticipated Completion Units & Dates ... ... 

Range "'C "'C cu cu 
m m 
M 111::1' 

Min Max Low High Year # Units Year # Units I Year I # Units 

Single Family 40 10 I 30 1800 3500 $275K $600K 2022 5 2023 20 I 2024 I 15 

Town homes 10 5 5 I 1200 2100 $180K $320K 2022 5 2023 5 
Condos 

... ~~~,~~~.~n~~ ......... 1~,···· •···· 1 • ·"'"'~{ 1 r · ··: t ! ·· ! i ······ ·l · 1 i I · · ·1 ····· ··· · · · ·: i '''"·'''''"''I 
Other 

Revised 08/10/2018 

- Page 163 -



- Page 164 -



- Page 165 -



- Page 166 -



- Page 167 -



- Page 168 -



- Page 169 -



- Page 170 -



- Page 171 -



Civil Engineering I Construction Management I Land Planning 

NIKITA SWAPNIL PATIL it SWAPNIL KHANDERAO PATIL 
2308 FILLMORE HALL LANE 
APEX, NC 27523-7 I 2G 

Dear Neighbor, 

221 N. SALEM ST, SUITE 001 
PO BOX 1062 

APEX, NC 27502 
Office: 919-387-1174 

Fax:919-387-3375 
www.jonescnossen.com 

October I 3, 2020 

We conducted a Neighborhood Meeting on September 28th regarding a Rezoning for several 
properties on Roberts Road that are w1th1n 300' of your property. Your names and address were 
inadvertently missed in our mailing of the notices for that meeting. We are enclosing the notification 
that was mailed for that previous meeting for your reference. We have scheduled an additional Zoom 
meeting on October 29 th at G pm, so that we can ensure that you have an opportunity to hear 
about the proJect and ask us any questions that you may have. The meeting details are enclosed. 

You are always welcome to contact us by phone or email with any questions, 1f you would prefer. As 
well, 1f you would like to receive future updates regarding the proJect or to receive a copy of the 
proJect documents that were submitted to the Town, we can send those by email. We would need 
for you to call our office or email us to provide your email address. The proJect information 1s also 
publicly accessible on the Town of Apex website (www.apexnc.org) by clicking on the link for the 
"Interactive Development Map" 1f that 1s more convenient. 

I can be reached at (9 I 9) 387-1 I 7 4 or by email at patr1ck@1onescnossen.com with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Enclosures 

- Page 172 -



Civil Engineering I Construction Management I Land Planning 

Zoom Meeting Details - Roberts Rd Properties Rezoning 

When: Oct 29, 2020 0G:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

Register in advance for this meeting: 

221 N. SALEM ST, SUITE 001 
PO BOX 1062 

APEX, NC 27502 
Office: 919-387-i 174 

Fax:919-387-3375 
www.jonescnossen.com 

https://zoom.us/meeting/register/tJcsfuygrz4vHNQYwXHctvK5ai801 Wd-eGR_ 

The Meeting Reg1strat1on form will request your First and Last Name, email address and Address to 

help us with attendance at the meeting. 

After registering, you will receive a conf1rmat1on email containing information about Joining the 

meeting. 

If there are any questions regarding the upcoming meeting or you experience any issues registering 

for the meeting, please contact our office. 

Meeting #2 Details.docx 

- Page 173 -



NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town's website 

or disclosed to third parties. 

September 18, 2020 

Date 

Dear Neighbo"r: 

You are invited to an electronic neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at 

7517 ROBERTS RD, 2310 POLLARD PL, 2000 CABIN COVE RD 0733-05-9045, 0733-04-9734, 0733-04-9444 

Address(es) PIN(s) 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Electronic Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended 

to be a way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors 

and neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors 

an opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is 

officially submitted. If you are unable to attend, you may contact the applicant before or after the meeting is 

held. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive 

Development Map or the Apex Development Report located on the Town of Apex website at 

www.apexnc.org. If at all feasible given emergency declarations, limits on in-person gatherings, and social 
distancing, an additional in-person Neighborhood Meeting may be scheduled and held prior to a public 

hearing or staff decision on the application. 

An Electronic Neighborhood Meeting is required because this project includes (check all that apply): 

Application Type Approving Authority 

0 Rezoning (including Planned Unit Development) Town Council 

□ Major Site Plan Town Council (QJPH*) 

0 Special Use Permit Town Council (QJPH*) 

0 Residential Master Subdivision Plan (excludes exempt subdivisions) 
Technical Review 
Committee (staff) 

*Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: The Town Council cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing. 

The following is a description of the proposal (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)): 
The parcels are currently zoned Rural Residential (RR). We are proposing a change in zoning to Planned Unit 

Development Conditional District (PUD-CZ). This will allow for a mix of primarily single family homes and 

a small number of townhomes. The parcels will remain Medium Density Residential for the Land Use. 

Estimated submittal date: October 01, 2020 

MEETING INFORMATION: 
Property Owner(s) name(s): HERMAN ROBERTS; BRIAN & JULIE ROBERTS; MICHAEL & CATHERINE ROBERTS 

Applicant(s): 

Contact information (email/phone): 

Electronic Meeting invitation/call in 

info: 

Date of meeting**: 

Time of meeting**: 

MEETING AGENDA TIMES: 

Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 

patrick@jonescnossen.com; 919-387-1174 

See enclosed instructions 

September 28, 2020 

6:00 pm - 8:00 pm 

Welcome: _6_:0_0_pm ___ _ Project Presentation: 6:05 pm Question & Answer: 6:30 pm 

**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized 
holidays). If you have questions about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning Department 
at 919-249-3426. You may also find information about the Apex Planning Department and on-going planning efforts at 
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning. 

Page 3 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020 - Page 174 -



** Jones & Cnossen 
,_ ENGINEERING, PLLC 

Civil Engineering I Construction Management I Land Planning 

2oom Meeting Details - Roberts Rd Properties Rezoning 

When: Sep 28, 2020 OG:OO FM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

Register in advance for this meeting: 

221 N. SALEM ST, SUITE 001 
PO BOX 1062 

APEX, NC 27502 
Office: 919-387-1174 

Fax: 919-387-3375 
www.jonescnossen.com 

https://zoom.us/meeting/register/tJwvceqvrDspHdLp8ExGEy06GbEh8Lo9ky1 o 

The Meeting Reg1strat1on form will request your First and Last Name, email address and Address to 

help us with attendance at the meeting. 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about JOlning the 

meeting. 

If there are any questions regarding the upcoming meeting or you experience any issues registering 

for the meeting, please contact our office. 

Meeting Details.docx 
- Page 175 -



PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town's website 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Project Name: . Roberts Road Properties. Zon~ng: RR 
----------

Location: 7517 ROBERTS RD, 2310 POLLARD PL, 2000 CABIN COVE RD 

Property Pl N (s): o733-os-9o4s, 0733-04-9734, 0733.04-9444 Acreage/Square Feet: 1 O .48 
--------------

Property Owner: HERMAN ROBERTS; BRIAN & JULIE ROBERTS; MICHAEL & CATHERINE ROBERTS 

Address: 7517 ROBERTS RD; 7421 ROBERTS RD; 2000 CABIN COVE RD 

City: Cary State: NC Zip: 27519 ---------------- ------
Phone: Email: 

Developer: Justin Michela 

Address: 714 Main Street 

City: Hudson State: MA Zip: 017 49 ------
Phone: Fax: Email: 

Engineer: Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC - Patrick Kiernan 

Address: PO Box 1062 

City: Apex State: NC Zip: 27502 ---------
Phone: 919-387-1174 Fax: 919-387-3375 Email: patrick@jonescnossen.com 

---------

Builder (if known): 

Address: -----------------------------------
City: ________________ State: ______ Zip: ________ _ 

Phone: Fax: Email: 

Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 

they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

I Planning Department Main Number 
{Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) 

j Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 

Angela Reineke, Parks Planner 

: Public Works - Transportation 

Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Water Resources Department 

Jes~ica Bolin, Senior Engineer {St~rmwater, Sedimentation & E_rosion Control) 

Stan Fortier, Senior Engineer (Stormwater, Sedimentation & Erosion Control) 

i {919} 249-3426 

• (919} 249-7468 

: (919} 249-3358 

{919} 249-~537 
{919} 249-1166 

James Gregg, Utility Engi_neer(_Water & Sewer) ....................... ····· ... {_9_19} _ _24_9-_33_2_4 __ 
: Electric Utilities Division 

Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager {919} 249-3342 

Page 4 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020 - Page 176 -



(· .. 

i ] 
nr;;i ::, 
l~ .. !!/1 "j 

{ 

N 

A 0 215 430 

1 inch = 400 feet 

~ 
860 ft iMaps makes every effort to·produce and publish 

the most current and accurate information possible. 

However, the maps are produced for information purposes, 
and are NOT surveys. No warranties, expressed or implied 
,are provided for the data therein, its use,or its interpretation. 

- Page 177 -



~ TOWN Rfau1Rt.D l'UO H0Yf5: 

~ . [~:y~~Jff§!ffi~~Nft~!:m~~litifi!f £:: ----1- ----------------
----- "~'~:~\:;;~:.:,;-------------

/ a-=a 

·,;viir-i;,:i,.;,~ ~r.....c,-,r.i.i 
flll10 C':".:l ✓.,,_,~,~ 

ROBERTS ROAD 

•cwG11.•o,,.,..· 
'ZIW•t"~LU:1~1.iu.lr.O,I·' 

~~~~ti;'g/,~:°too~-~l:~~if~~~:'.';,~Jt~ ~:/t~~~::cc:i l~~( 
~~,.~;~ .. ;u;~£~t ~~rt~~~.1~~~~~•:/:~;;~~-~7.t J~•o;~~~~1~t:i1:: 
BrTht 20'1dlG 1:11,0SJ:::"IACIH OffiCt'l;.; ::.ucr- ,.r:.:,,.:;,, .\~YINCU:O::" &.:VT ,.1-.:;. I/QT 

2 ~~~r,~r~~Fc~~~11~:~~~ fil~i~~:~~~i~~~~vf ~t;c J 

~;~~;~e~~T!.,":~~~~~flO 11~ ;~:,~Ji~~~~!~~,d ..iu~T tA!l:"T 

· ili~~~~1Rzi~~Tfiir-!1~it;~~;;;;;~:~~:., 1 
1 J-~-T~-~Tc;---.,~i~~ r-----------------------[-- ---------------------- V 

-1. IIO :1G1ti I\X.t. ,nw·•~o Id, f'IJ(f Qt 11. l'UD-CZ fl>U Aff~•/IIJ.. A :tf-... ~!AI[ f------------------------------------· !':.lfil ft'.iJ.Alf Ull:',T i,t:: O~JA.IU!.0 

----- i ----- _____ J _____ i ____ _) ! ..:,,-;:..~11,::, 

30' T'rrf B 
TtlOROUGt1f Al(f 

BUFFER 
I 
I 
I ~ :s: 

--------~~==~-~-~~,~-~~~-,~N~-------, !-·!;?,'?. I \ 
! ! r-~~~~~1. .~~e,J. ) 

IO'T'tl'f B 
LAIID~CAPE 

f:>UFFEI<. 

L_ 

I 
_J 

~ 
~ 
<( 
0 

/ r: :~--:;:.;:,~;,.;.:-- I 0.48 ACRES \ / I / 
/ llJ 

I 
ul(. ..... .,.~nr:-uuc1nr:11Gc.,o... M/\XIMUM tlUMBEJtOf 5-ll~Glf FAMILYLOT5 "'40 I I I J 

--,<, t--t--_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-~- 6 ! N~Z'";:t:f.~f:' ~;i~~ur-~:i~~~~:o;E!~~
1
~
0

i~~~~\~11.
1
A~RE \ / / / ... __ ... 

) ~ I .~;~~~fl~:;~ LOCATION Of FUTURE \ : _) ',, _____ _l______ _ ____ l_ ____ j__ ;,----,-

(, /------- : .,,~".::::~.~-' ROAD COH►JfCTIOII FOi<. POLLARD PLACE ----- \ ~ , \"l[fl<.COuucCTIVllYTO I (fl ,' t-----~ I •o.·c.i:.·.:.i., .... :.:r CRE~TMONT ,,------------- - J ---\ l \ ,,, l_J"f~: - -----\ \ _ --- -----r---- ----< 
\ 0 \ j-----~' LOC/\TIOU Of FUTUKf \ \, .,,.,,.,,,,,,.' / I . 
\ ~ I \ ROAD COUNfCTION FOR , \ ,/ I 
, \ __ , ,..-----------1---- UHl::RCONNCCTIVITYTO \ ',,,.,,. : 

\ ~ \ ; :' I THE ~;~;5~~:N'.f \ ',,, / I 
i ~ \ ,, / ~!iJ!fi"fft::· I \,, ,,__ ,/ ---

----- \ 0 \ r-,,, 1 I IO'T'tl'fD ID'TYffB ',, ',, / [~ 
I -;(\ I ,' ---- ' : LAND~CAPE LAIJDSCAl't: ', ',, / I 
\ C::. \ _ / ,c..·c-.•o~•~·•'', / I 131Jfffk. BUFFER ',, '-./., 

1 

.C:.. I ___ / "-'""u~,-~·-••• 7 1___) L_ .,,,•ou<ow~, , ', 

\ C',; __ _.,,, .--/·<?~~? I ---- --1§: .. , ·-)'" l::::_~::::::r~~~~~~ 
/ ~ ,' 

------/ ~ ,' 
/ C) :_ 

\ \ \ / tf!f / ',, __ _ 

,_), \ \__,/\_/ """e~i~'""' ·=ilf· A~--~/71:~>------;'•, L'.= «--'-, \ / / /~ --y: ______ _ 

~ 
1 w11r1 Tr.!" ~•"I' or 1n.- ~ii ~o Tnr rr~,c.~rr, r,:-u:.1TY. 1n1s ~n!' r.:-r~ 

UOI JJ:Q\,;lf'.!: A ff:>ICfOf~l,oJ1011 W,f'ICJ AIIAl..'J;:.t;,, 
z. r"uruiu: tuouc J..OAO,VA"' co1111::c:10•a:; Al'..t. ~r.c.wu 10 c:::.'-101i;.1KA1:: 

~~,ci~~c;,~·~,~/t~'~~·~:~~: ~~:;~!;J~l'tCJt~ UY_.t.Jl\_ilj::, wi:.l t't 

,. E~~.~~:~~.~~!>~~~~~':\C,:i~~~~~l~~tA~~~~:;:~~~I~~_; 

-I, ~~;,i1g~~~~~~~:~l~~~:\'~l~~~1::t;t ~1t:.g;,~~T;O:~)~~~· 27 
S. ;~~;'k.~~~~~v!~'f~fgfvfL'o"i~~~~•W: ;1~:. 

i-u r! 
GRAPMIC SCALE t 

PRELIMINARY PLANS 
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

j~_rl 
l_'.J C 

z ~ 

~~1 
z :!! ~ 
~ l 

I,: i ~! 
~6 

Zl'IN.SALB,(S[ 

"""'"" ,0101( ..... 

N"Dr,,HCV& 
0..'1Nil7-1114 
...,...,..lklll: r--om -

D 
=:i 

;; f-

[L ::i 
0 

D >--
<l z s os ~ Q... 62 
lf) D 

<( 

f- Q... 
z 

~ 2 
UJ =:i 
(0 

UJ 
ri 

0 Q... 

~ 

5fP'Tft.18CR I a. o:'.O.::o 

2050 

- Page 178 -



ELECTRONIC NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING ATTENDANCE SHEET 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town's website or disclosed to third parties. 

Meeting Format: Zoom meeting --------------------------------
Date of meeting: October 29, 2020 Time of meeting: 6:00 pm - 8:00 pm 

Property Owner(s) name(s): HERMAN ROBERTS; BRIAN & JULIE ROBERTS; MICHAEL & CATHERINE ROBERTS 

Applicant(s): Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 

Please list Electronic Neighborhood Meeting Attendees who provided their name and/or contact information either during the meeting or v·ia phone/email 
before or after the meeting. 

NAME/ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE# EMAIL 
SEND PLANS 

& UPDATES 

1. t\Jo Of<L c"~~Q,~ 
2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

Use additional sheets, if necessary. 

Page 7 of9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020 - Page 179 -



SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE ELECTRONIC 
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town's website 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Property Owner(s} name(s}: HERMAN ROBERTS; BRIAN & JULIE ROBERTS; MICHAEL & CATHERINE ROBERTS 

Applicant(s}: Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 

Contact information (email/phone}: patrick@jonescnossen.com; 919-387-1174 

Meeting Format: Zoom meeting ----------------------------------
Date of meeting: October 29, 2020 Time of meeting: 6:00 pm - 8:00 pm 

Please summarize the questions/comments and your response from the Electronic Neighborhood Meeting in the 
spaces below (attach additional sheets, if necessary}. Please state if/how the project has been modified in response 
to any concerns. The response should not be "Noted" or "No Response". There has to be documentation of what 
consideration the neighbor's concern was given and justification for why no change was deemed warranted. 

Question/Concern #1: 
No one attended. 

Applicant's Response: 

Question/Concern #2: 

Applicant's Response: 

Question/Concern #3: 

Applicant's Response: 

Question/Concern #4: 

Applicant's Response: 

Page 8 of 9 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020 
- Page 180 -



AFFIDAVIT OF CONDUCTING AN ELECTRONIC NEIGHBORHOOD 

MEETING AND ISSUES/RESPONSES SUBMITTAL 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town's website 
or disclosed to third parties. 

1, _P_a_tr_ic_k_K_i_e_rn_a_n ___________ _, do hereby declare as follows: 

Print Name 

1. I have conducted an Electronic Neighborhood Meeting for the proposed Rezoning, Major Site Plan, 
Residential Master Subdivision Plan, or Special Use Permit in accordance with UDO Sec. 2.2.7 
Neighborhood Meeting. 

2. The meeting invitations were mailed to the Apex Planning Department, all property owners within 300 

feet of the subject property and any neighborhood association that represents citizens in the area via 

first class mail a minimum of 10 days in advance of the Electronic Neighborhood Meeting. 

3. The meeting was conducted via Zoom meeting (indicate format of -----------------
meeting) on October 29, 2020 (date) from 6:00 pm (start time) to 8:00 pm (end time). 

4. I have included the mailing list, meeting invitation, attendance sheet issue/response summary, and 
zoning map/reduced plans with the application. 

5. I have prepared these materials in good faith and to the best of my ability. 

' I /oate 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WAKE 

Sworn and subscribed before me, 7 ,l:,f\~{cur{\ , a Notary Public for the above State and 

County, on this the 2,D~ day of O, 1obu-: , 20~ . ~ - -

SEAL 4 
7=:: l'Jotarypu blic 

Page 9 of9 

ERIN MARCUM 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

w,_eeounty 
Northcarollna 

My Commission Expires 1, 

2.r~v'I Ware v~ 
Print Name 

My Commission Expires: N ()Vo rn6 f \ q, c)l};X) 

Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Electronic Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: March 25, 2020 
- Page 181 -



- Page 182 -



- Page 183 -



- Page 184 -



 
PUD PLAN 

 
Roberts Road Properties  

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

 
 

 
OWNER/DEVELOPER: 

 
 Justin Michela 

 
 
 
 

October 1, 2020 
Revised: 11/05/20 
Revised: 12/03/20 
Revised: 12/21/20 
Revised: 01/14/21 

 
 
 

 
Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 

221 N. Salem Street, Suite 001 
P.O. Box 1062 

Apex, NC  27502 
(919)387-1174 

- Page 185 -



1 
 

 
 

SECTION 1 – TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

SECTION             HEADING            PAGE 
 

SECTION 1  TABLE OF CONTENTS……………………….…      1 
 
SECTION 2   VICINITY MAP……..……………………………                   2 
 
SECTION 3  PROJECT DATA……………………………….   3 
 
SECTION 4  PURPOSE STATEMENT……………………….   3 
 
SECTION 5  PERMITTED USES…………………………….   4 
 
SECTION 6  DESIGN CONTROLS…..……………………..   4 
 
SECTION 7  ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS…………….   6 
 
SECTION 8  PARKING AND LOADING…………………….   8 
 
SECTION 9  SIGNS........................……………………   8 
 
SECTION 10   NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT DATA……  8 
 
SECTION 11  STORMWATER MANAGEMENT………………   9 
 
SECTION 12  PARKS AND RECREATION….……………….   9 
 
SECTION 13  PUBLIC FACILITIES….……………………….            9 
 
SECTION 14  PHASING…………………………………..….   10 
 
SECTION 15  CONSISTENCY………………………………..   10 
 
SECTION 16  COMPLIANCE WITH THE UDO……….…….   10 
 
SECTION 17  LAND USE NOTES.………..…….…………..   11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 186 -



2 
 

 
SECTION 2 – VICINITY MAP  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vacinity Map.pdf
 

 
 

. 

- Page 187 -



3 
 

SECTION 3 – PROJECT DATA 
 

A. Project name:   Roberts Road Properties 
 

B. Owner/Developer Justin Michela  
714 Main Street 
Hudson, MA 01749 

 
C. Prepared by:   Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 

   P.O. Box 1062, 221 N. Salem Street, Suite 001 
   Apex, NC   27502 

             (919) 387-1174  
 

D. Designated Single Point of Contact: 
Patrick L. Kiernan (Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC) 

 
E. Current and Proposed Zoning of the Property: 
  Current zoning: Rural Residential (RR) 

Proposed zoning: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
 

F. Current and Proposed Land Uses: 
    Current: Residential, Vacant  
  Proposed: Residential 
 

G. Current and Proposed 2045 Land Use Designation: 
Current/Proposed: Medium Density Residential  

 
SECTION 4 – PURPOSE STATEMENT 
 
Roberts Road Properties PUD is a proposed residential project to be developed under the 
Town of Apex ordinance as a Planned Unit Development (PUD).  This project contains three (3) 
parcels under contract by Justin Michela.  The project is located along Roberts Road and is 
situated between two (2) Residential Developments. The PUD may develop as single-family 
detached homes, residential townhomes, or a combination of these uses.  The project will 
provide vehicular connections to the Crestmont subdivision to the west and the Pines at Wake 
Crossing subdivision to the east, improving traffic circulation in the area, and completing the 
residential development of this basin.  The three (3) parcels that form the Roberts Road 
Properties PUD are all designated as Medium Density Residential on the 2045 Land Use Map, 
and that designation shall remain with this proposed project.  The proposal to rezone these 
properties to PUD-CZ is in keeping with the Town’s objectives to create high-quality 
developments with a small-town feel.  This development will be a pedestrian friendly community 
with sidewalk along both sides of the internal public streets, as well as sidewalk 
interconnectivity between the subdivisions to the east and west.  This project shall include the 
preservation of the existing estate located at 2000 Cabin Cove Road, in order to re-purpose 
it as a community center/recreation site.  This development will enhance the value of the 
surrounding properties by providing quality residential development for the area, as a small 
residential infill project.   

- Page 188 -



4 
 

 
SECTION 5 – PERMITTED USES 
 
The Town of Apex UDO allows a mixture of uses in the PUD zoning district and the owners have 
chosen to further restrict the allowable uses as listed below: 
 

Residential Uses 
Single-Family (Min. lot size = 6,000 sf) 
Townhouse 
Accessory apartment 
 
Utilities 
Utility, minor 
 
Recreational Uses 
Park, active  
Park, passive 
Greenway 
Recreational facility, private 
 

SECTION 6 – DESIGN CONTROLS 
 

A. Maximum Densities  
Maximum residential density for the project is 3.2 units per gross acre. 
Maximum number of residential lots = 33 

 Maximum number of Single-Family detached lots (min. lot size = 6,000 SF) = 25 
 Maximum number of Townhome lots = 8 

 
B. Proposed Maximum Height of the Buildings and Number of Stories 

 
  Maximum height – 45’   Maximum stories – 3  
 

C. Proposed Minimum Building Setbacks 
 
Residential Single-Family Detached 

  From Buffer or RCA – 10’ 
  Front Yard – 10’ Minimum 
  Side Yard – 5’ Minimum (no aggregate) 
  Rear Yard – 10’ Minimum 

Driveways from back of sidewalk to garage – 20’ (12’ min. width) 
 
 
Townhouse 

  From Buffer or RCA – 10’ 
Front – 15’  

  Rear – 15’ 

- Page 189 -



5 
 

  Side (end units) – 5’  
  Side (corner) – 10’ 

Driveways from back of sidewalk to garage – 20’ (12’ min. width) 
Building Side to Side – 10’ 
Building Side to Rear – 30’ 
Building Rear to Rear – 40’ 
 

D. Percentage of Built upon Area  
  

The UDO allows for a maximum 70 percent of built upon area in a PUD project and the 
Roberts Road Properties PUD will not exceed that amount. 

 
E. Perimeter Buffers 

 
The PUD plans show buffers around the site to provide visual breaks between uses and 
public roads as shown on Sheet 2 of the PUD Plans (Layout Plan).  These buffers include 
10’ Type B Landscape Buffers along the southern, eastern, and western perimeters, 
and a 30’ Type B Thoroughfare Buffer (undisturbed) along Roberts Road to the north.  
In the case that the thoroughfare buffer along Roberts Road must be disturbed, the 
width of the type B buffer shall increase from 30’ to 50’.  See Section 6.F for 
increase in Roberts Road buffer width in exchange for a 5% reduction in required RCA. 

 
F. Percentage of Resource Conservation Area 

 
The Roberts Road Properties PUD is requesting to reduce the required percentage of 
Resource Conservation Area to 25% of the total acreage (which amounts to 2.64 
acres of RCA) based on the provisions stated in UDO Sec. 2.3.4.F.1.c (RCA).  This 
5% reduction from the standard 30% required per UDO Sec. 8.1.2 (Resource 
Conservation Area) is being requested in exchange for the additional zoning conditions 
listed below.  If Town Council votes to approve without the RCA reduction, these 
zoning conditions shall not be included in the approval.  

 In addition to all single-family detached homes being pre-configured with conduit 
for a solar energy system (condition #12 in Section 7), at least 8% of the total 
number of homes proposed in the Master Subdivision Plan shall be built with solar 
PV systems installed at the time of construction.  When measurements of the 
number of units results in a fractional number greater than 0.10, it shall be 
rounded to the next higher whole number.  All solar installation required by this 
condition shall be completed or under construction prior to 90% of the building 
permits being issued for the development. The lot(s) on which the home(s) is 
located shall be identified on the Master Subdivision Plat, which may be amended 
from time to time. 

 This project shall be stage graded per Section 7.2.5.C. 
 All single-family detached homes within this development shall be built with HVAC 

systems that meet or exceed a SEER rating of 18. 

- Page 190 -



6 
 

 The 30’ Type B thoroughfare buffer (undisturbed) along Roberts Road shall be 
increased to a 40’ Type B thoroughfare buffer (undisturbed).  In the case that 
this buffer must be disturbed, the width of the type B buffer shall increase from 
40’ to 60’.  See Section 6.E and Section 10.D for reference to the 30’ Type 
B thoroughfare buffer (undisturbed) that would otherwise be proposed if not for 
the condition to reduce the RCA requirement. 

 Evergreen trees shall be planted as a windbreak on the northern side of 
buildings, where practical. 

 Landscape design shall include pollinator-friendly flora in common areas. 
 Landscape design shall include a minimum of three (3) native hardwood species. 
 A pet waste station shall be installed at the mail kiosk, or at the community 

center/recreation site, to be determined at the time of Master Subdivision Plan. 

G. Affordable Housing Condition 
 
If the Town of Apex has a fund or other mechanism in place to receive donations to 
construct, subsidize, or participate in the development of affordable housing units (the 
“Fund”), the developer will contribute $215 per lot to this Fund prior to Master 
Subdivision Final Plat approval for each phase. In the event the Fund has not been 
established by the Town of Apex, the money will be conveyed to a non-profit 
organization participating in affordable housing. The developer will work with the Town of 
Apex to identify a mutually acceptable non-profit organization to receive these funds. 
 

H. Builder Condition 
 
This project shall consist of lots developed with custom homes. 
 

I. Construction Access Condition 

 
The location of the temporary gravel construction entrance shall be limited to only 

         provide construction access from Pollard Place to the east via Gartrell Way. 
 

J. Neighborhod Meeting Condition 
 
This project shall hold a neighborhood meeting prior to the first Master Subdivision Plan 
submittal, in accordance with UDO Sec. 2.2.7. 

 
SECTION 7 – ARCHITECURAL STANDARDS 
 
Single-Family Detached Residential Standards 
1.  Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are    

permitted. 
2. The visible side of a home facing the public street shall contain at least three (3) 

decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  

- Page 191 -



7 
 

 Windows 
 Bay window 
 Recessed window  
• Decorative window 
• Trim around the windows 
• Wrap around porch or side porch 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative brick/stone 
• Decorative trim 
• Decorative shake 
• Decorative air vents on gable 
• Decorative gable 
• Decorative cornice 
• Column 
• Portico 
• Balcony 
• Dormer   

3.  A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 
minimum of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and 
accent colors complementing the siding color. 

4. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have 
trim around the windows. 

5. Homeowner Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling 
units. 

6. Garage doors shall have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on 
them. 

7. The garage shall not protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade and/or front 
porch for at least 75% of building designs. 

8. Garages on the front façade of a home that faces the street shall not exceed 40% of the 
total width of the house and garage together. 

9. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 
10. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent 

covered porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 
11. All single-family detached homes shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy 

system. 
 
Townhouse Residential Standards 
1.  Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are    

permitted. 
2.  Garage doors must have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on 

them. 
3.  The visible side of a townhome facing the public street shall contain at least three (3) 

decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  
• Windows 
• Bay window  
• Recessed window 

- Page 192 -



8 
 

• Decorative window 
• Trim around the windows 
• Wrap around porch or side porch 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative brick/stone 
• Decorative trim 
• Decorative shake 
• Decorative air vents on gable 
• Decorative gable 
• Decorative cornice 
• Column 
• Portico 
• Balcony 
• Dormer   

4.  A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 
minimum of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and 
accent colors complementing the siding color. 

5. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have 
trim around the windows. 

6. Building facades shall have horizontal relief achieved by the use of recesses and 
projections. 

7. For townhome buildings with three (3) units or more, the roofline cannot be a single mass; 
it must be broken up horizontally and vertically between every unit. 

8. The garage cannot protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade or front porch. 
9. Maximum number of units per townhome building shall be limited to four (4) units. 
10. No townhomes shall be constructed along the western property line. 
 
 
SECTION 8 – PARKING AND LOADING 
 
Parking and loading requirements for the residential areas shall conform to the parking 
standards listed in the Town of Apex UDO Section 8.3.   
 
SECTION 9– SIGNS 
 
Signage for this project will comply with UDO section 8.7.  The developer shall submit a 
master sign plan that shows signage locations and details of signage patterns throughout the 
development.   
 
SECTION 10 – NATURAL RESOURCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA: 
 

A. This project is located in the White Oak Creek drainage basin, which is in the Jordan 
Lake Basin.  This project currently falls within both the primary and the secondary 
watershed protection overlay districts, as shown on the Town of Apex Watershed 
Protection Overlay District Map.   

 

- Page 193 -



9 
 

B. There are no FEMA mapped floodplains on these parcels as shown on FEMA FIRM Map 
Number 3720073300J, dated May 2, 2006. 

 
C. There are no known historic structures on this project. 

 
 

D. To demonstrate the project’s commitment to preserving and re-establishing tree 
canopy in our region, the developer seeks to replant and restore existing tree canopy 
that is removed from those portions of the property that are anticipated to contain 
single family and townhome lots.  To that end, prior to recording the first subdivision 
plat for the property, the developer will provide a donation of $1,600 to a local non-
profit organization with a mission towards tree preservation and replacement.  In those 
portions of the site where trees are removed for single family or townhome lots, the 
developer anticipates it can offset such removal by preserving 1.6 acres of existing 
tree canopy in other places on the site, and replacing and replanting trees over 0.8 
acres of the rest of the property.  As such, this $1,600 donation represents an 
assigned per-tree value in substitute canopy for the remainder of the property. 
 

 
SECTION 11 – STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
 
Roberts Road Properties PUD will meet all applicable requirements and standards as 
described in section 6.1 of the Apex UDO.  This project will meet all stormwater reduction 
requirements including limiting the post-development stormwater flows to not exceed the pre-
development stormwater runoff for the 1-year and 10-year 24 hour storm events. 
 
Roberts Road Properties PUD will use approved devices to control the stormwater and 
sediment runoff.  These devices may include detention ponds, retention ponds, bioretention 
areas, or any other approved SCM stormwater control.  Stormwater control devices shall be 
landscaped and constructed to be an amenity to the development and shall blend into the 
surroundings.  
 
SECTION 12 – PARKS AND RECREATION 
 
The project was reviewed by the PRCR Advisory Commission on December 9th, 2020 and the 
Commission unanimously recommended a fee-in-lieu for recreation land dedication based on the 
number of units and types proposed at the time of Master Subdivision Approval.  The fee rate 
will be based on the rate of the current year when the PUD is approved by Town Council.   
 
SECTION 13 – PUBLIC FACILITIES 
 
Roberts Road Properties PUD will include the extension of public streets into the site from 
Pollard Place to the west (coming from the Crestmont subdivision), as well as Pollard Place to 
the east (coming from the Pines at Wake Crossing subdivision). There will be no direct vehicular 
access to Roberts Road.  All public streets (with the exception of Pollard Place) will have a 5’ 
sidewalk on both sides of the street.  The Pollard Place extension will have an 8’ Side Path on 

- Page 194 -



10 
 

the north side of the road to connect to the existing 8’ Side Path on the north side of 
existing Pollard Place (to the east). The future amenity center shall provide pedestrian 
connection to the existing pedestrian path on Gartrell Way.  The project shall provide 
pedestrian access from the future subdivision to Roberts Road via the 8’ Side Path along 
Pollard Place and Gartrell Way, unless a public street within the subdivision is constructed 
within 300 -feet of the northwest property corner, in which case a direct pedestrian 
connection shall be made to Roberts Road, consistent with UDO Sec. 7.5.4.C.  The project 
will dedicate additional right-of-way along Roberts Road in the northeast corner to achieve a 
total of 40’ for ½ of the Roberts Road R/W. A 5’ public sidewalk shall be installed along the 
frontage of the project along Roberts Road prior to the first plat.  The transportation network 
for Roberts Road Properties PUD will be consistent with the Town of Apex Transportation Plan 
and associated requirements of the UDO.  
 
As shown on the PUD Utility Plan, the sanitary sewer connection will come by connecting to 
the existing sewer system in Pollard Place to the west, from the Crestmont subdivision.  Water 
distribution service will be provided to this project by the connection to an existing eight inch 
waterline along Pollard Place to the west (coming from the Crestmont subdivision), as well as 
Pollard Place to the east (coming from the Pines at Wake Crossing subdivision). 
 
Roberts Road Properties PUD shall include the preservation of the existing estate located at 
2000 Cabin Cove Road, in order to re-purpose it as a community center/recreation site, 
which will be owned and maintained by the HOA.  The exterior appearance of the structure may 
remain unchanged during its conversion, but parking, as well as ADA accessible paths, shall be 
provided in accordance with the Town of Apex UDO.  The timing of the conversion shall not be 
tied to any specific number of lots being platted.   
 
SECTION 14 – PHASING  
 
The project shall be developed in at least two (2) phases.  The first phase will be developed 
because of the availability of sewer and water connections, and access to Pollard Place to the 
east and to the west.  The development of Phase 1 will likely begin construction in 2021. The 
timing of the subsequent phase(s) will depend on market demand.   
 
SECTION 15 – CONSISTENCY WITH LAND USE PLAN 
 
The Town of Apex 2045 Land Use Map currently designates these parcels as Medium Density 
Residential.  We believe this PUD is appropriate for the area and is consistent with the current 
Land Use Map.  
 
 
SECTION 16 – COMPLIANCE WITH THE UDO 
 
The proposed plans for Roberts Road Properties PUD are in compliance with the standards 
and allowances provided in the current approved version of the Town of Apex Unified 
Development Ordinance.  Any variance from UDO requirements has been noted in this plan. 
 

- Page 195 -



11 
 

SECTION 17 – LAND USE NOTES 
 

A. This project will require the formation of at least one Homeowners Association, which 
will handle the maintenance of common areas, buffers, RCA, stormwater devices, etc. 

- Page 196 -



- Page 197 -



- Page 198 -



- Page 199 -



- Page 200 -



- Page 201 -



- Page 202 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 203 -



Wake County Residential Development Notification

Revised 0 / /201

Developer Company Information
Company Name 
Company Phone Number
Developer Representative Name
Developer Representative Phone Number
Developer Representative Email

New Residential Subdivision  Information 
Date of Application for Subdivision
City, Town or Wake County Jurisdiction
Name of Subdivision
Address of Subdivision (if unknown enter nearest cross streets)
REID(s)
PIN(s) 

Projected Dates Information
Subdivision Completion Date
Subdivision Projected First Occupancy Date 

Lot by Lot Development Information

Unit Type
Total # of 
Units 

Se
ni

or
 L

iv
in

g

St
ud

io

1 
Be

dr
oo

m

2 
Be

dr
oo

m

3 
Be

dr
oo

m

4 
Be

dr
oo

m

Square Foot  
Range 

Price Range Anticipated Completion Units & Dates 

Min Max Low High Year # Units Year # Units Year # Units

Single Family

Townhomes

Condos
Apartments

Other

Town of Apex staff will 
enter this information  
into the online WCPSS 
form.

Please complete each 
section of this form and 
submit with your 
application.

Please send any questions 
about this form to:

studentassignment-gis-
group@wcpss.net

- Page 204 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 
 

Page 1 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS §160D-604(b), all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall be submitted to the 
Planning Board for review and comment. If no written report is received from the Planning Board within 30 days of 
referral of the amendment to the Planning Board, the Town Council may act on the amendment without the Planning 
Board report. The Town Council is not bound by the recommendations, if any, of the Planning Board. 
 
Per NCGS §160D-604(d), the Planning Board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed action is consistent 
with all applicable officially adopted plans, and provide a written recommendation to the Town Council that addresses 
plan consistency and other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the Planning 
Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the officially adopted plans shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the Town Council. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Acreage:  
PIN(s): 
 

 

Current Zoning: 
 

 

Proposed Zoning:  
 

 

2045 Land Use Map: 
 

 

Town Limits:  
 
Applicable Officially Adopted Plans: 

 

The Board must state whether the project is consistent or inconsistent with the following officially adopted plans, 
if applicable. Applicable plans have a check mark next to them.  

 2045 Land Use Map 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

 Apex Transportation Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenways Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

January 11 and 13, 2021

20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD

±10.54 acres
0733059045, 0733049734, 0733049444

Rural Residential (RR)

Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ)

Medium Density Residential  

ETJ

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 205 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 
 

Page 2 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Legislative Considerations: 
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the 
proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude 
the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. 
 
1. Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for 

its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use 
Plan. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
  
 
 
 
 
2. Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed location 

and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
3. Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s compliance with 

Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
4. Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 

minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, 
parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
5. Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s minimization of 

environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife 
habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
  

January 11 and 13, 2021

20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 206 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 
 

Page 3 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

 
6. Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having adverse 

impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, 
schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
7. Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, safety, 

or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
8. Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 

substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
9. Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a 

nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the 
Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
10. Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 

complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, 
and general development characteristics. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

January 11 and 13, 2021

20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

- Page 207 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  
Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 
 

Page 4 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
 

Motion:  

Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  

  
 Approval: the project is consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and the applicable legislative 

considerations listed above. 
 

 Approval with conditions: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the 
applicable legislative considerations as noted above, so the following conditions are recommended to be 
included in the project in order to make it fully consistent: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 Denial: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the applicable 

legislative considerations as noted above. 
  
  

 With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “aye” 
 

With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “no” 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  

  

  

  

  
This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the  day of  2021. 
  
  
Attest:  
 
 

 

   
Michael Marks, Planning Board Chair  Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and 

Community Development 
 

To recommend approval with conditions as offered by applicant
Reginald Skinner
Keith Braswell

Conditions offered by applicant as presented on January 11, 2021, five new/amended conditions
presented on January 13, 2021 (see attached), and a sixth condition offered by the applicant at the
January 13th meeting to hold an additional neighborhood meeting prior to submitting the Master
Subdivision Plan.

8

0

13th January

January 11 and 13, 2021

20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD

Michael Marks Digitally signed by Michael Marks 
Date: 2021.01.13 19:01:01 -05'00' Dianne Khin Digitally signed by Dianne Khin 

Date: 2021.01.13 17:55:12 
-05'00'

✔

- Page 208 -



- Page 209 -



TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 
 

Published Dates: December 30, 2020 – January 11, 2021 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #20CZ11 
Roberts Road Properties PUD 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160A-364 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Planning Board of the Town of Apex. The purpose of  
these hearings is to consider the following: 
 

Applicant: Justin Michela 
Authorized Agent: Patrick Kiernan, Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 
Property Addresses: 7517 Roberts Road, 2310 Pollard Place, 2000 Cabin Cove Road 
Acreage: ±10.54 acres  
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0733059045, 0733049734, 0733049444  
2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential   
Existing Zoning of Properties: Rural Residential (RR)  
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 

 

Planning Board Remote Public Hearing Date and Time:  January 11, 2021  4:30 PM 
Watch and listen to the livestream here: https://bit.ly/2JYJWQk or http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx (click on the 

Planning Board link for this day in the calendar) 
Call in using the phone number to listen only: 828-552-5717    Conference ID: 406 480 557# 
Follow along with the presentation by viewing a copy of the meeting materials posted the day of the meeting at: 
http://www.apexnc.org/182 
 

Comments may be provided by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-minute 
limit) according to the Remote Participation Policy at: http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. You must 
provide your name and address for the record. Comments shared by noon on Friday, January 8, 2021, will be read during 
the Planning Board meeting.  

 

*Planning Board Remote Review of Additional Comments and Vote Date and Time:  January 13, 2021  5:00 PM 
*According to NCGS §166A-19.24, when a public hearing is held with at least one member attending virtually, written comments 
on the subject of the public hearing may be submitted between publication of any required notice and 24 hours after the public 
hearing. 

Watch and listen to the livestream here: https://bit.ly/3nrLl09 or http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx (click on the 

Planning Board link for this day in the calendar) 
Call in using the phone number to listen only: 828-552-5717    Conference ID: 504 607 753# 
Follow along with the presentation by viewing a copy of the meeting materials posted the day of the meeting at: 
http://www.apexnc.org/182 

 

Comments may be provided by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-minute 
limit) according to the Remote Participation Policy at: http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. You must 
provide your name and address for the record. Comments shared between noon on Friday, January 8, 2021, and 24 hours 
after the end of the first Planning Board meeting will be read during this meeting. 

 

A separate notice of the Town Council public hearing on this project will be mailed and posted in order to comply with 
State public notice requirements. 
 

Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent this notice via first class mail. All interested 
parties may appear at the public hearing and be heard with respect to the application. Maps showing the location for the above 
site(s) to be considered in addition to a copy of the 2045 Land Use Map can be inspected at the Apex Town Hall or call 919-249-
3426, Department of Planning and Community Development, for further information. To view the petition and related documents 
on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33516. 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 210 -

https://bit.ly/2JYJWQk
http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx
http://www.apexnc.org/182
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
https://bit.ly/3nrLl09
http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx
http://www.apexnc.org/182
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/478
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33516/20CZ11?bidId=


- Page 211 -



- Page 212 -



- Page 213 -



TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

Published Dates: January 4-26, 2021 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #20CZ11 
Roberts Road Properties PUD  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160A-364 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Town Council of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 
 

Applicant Justin Michela  
Authorized Agent: Patrick Kiernan, Jones & Cnossen Engineering, PLLC 
Property Addresses: 7517 Roberts Road, 2310 Pollard Place, 2000 Cabin Cove Road 
Acreage: ±10.54 acres 
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0733059045, 0733049734, 0733049444 
2045 Land Use Map Designation: Medium Density Residential 
Existing Zoning of Properties: Rural Residential (RR)  
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) 
 
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  

                                       Council Chambers, 2nd Floor 
                                       73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

 
Comments received prior to or during the Planning Board public hearing will not be read during the Town Council 

public hearing. Separate comments must be provided for the two public hearings in the time frames specified below. 
 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  January 26, 2021    6:00 PM  
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 
If you are unable to attend, you may provide comments no sooner than Friday, January 8, 2021 at noon but 
no later than noon on Monday, January 25, 2021 by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or 
voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-minute limit) according to the Remote Participation Policy at: 
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. You must provide your name and address for the 
record. These comments will be read during the Town Council meeting. 
 
If the Council meeting is held with at least one member attending virtually, written comments on the subject 
of the public hearing may be submitted between publication of any required notice and 24 hours after the 
public hearing and the Council’s vote will occur at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent this notice via first class mail. All interested 
parties may appear at the public hearing and be heard with respect to the application. Maps showing the location for the above 
site(s) to be considered in addition to a copy of the 2045 Land Use Map can be inspected at the Apex Town Hall or call 919-
249-3426, Department of Planning and Community Development, for further information. To view the petition and related 
documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33516. 

 
Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 214 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/478
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33516


- Page 215 -



X

X X X

X

- Page 216 -



1

Sarah Van Every

From: Glenn Carrozza _ Staff - StudentAssignment <gcarrozza@wcpss.net>
Sent: Tuesday, January 12, 2021 10:21 AM
To: Amanda Bunce
Cc: Sarah Van Every
Subject: Re: Request for Letter of Impact: Rezoning 20CZ11 Roberts Rd Properties PUD

 

Notice: This message is from an external sender. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you trust the sender, and can 

verify the content is safe. 
 
That reduction would not be significant enough to make an impact. 
 

From: Amanda Bunce <Amanda.Bunce@apexnc.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 12, 2021 10:18 AM 
To: Glenn Carrozza _ Staff - StudentAssignment <gcarrozza@wcpss.net> 
Cc: Sarah Van Every <Sarah.VanEvery@apexnc.org> 
Subject: RE: Request for Letter of Impact: Rezoning 20CZ11 Roberts Rd Properties PUD  
  
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization! Proceed with caution!  
 
Glenn, 
  
During the Planning Board meeting last night, the applicant for rezoning 20CZ11 Roberts Rd Properties PUD reduced the 
maximum number of residential lots from 50 (40 single-family, 10 townhomes) to 33 (25 single-family, 8 townhomes). 
One of the Planning Board members wants to know, ideally before they vote tomorrow evening, whether this 18 lot 
reduction would change the capacity concern for the elementary, middle or high schools in this area.  
  
A response to this email would be sufficient, rather than a new letter. We will ensure this gets shared with Town Council 
as well.  
  
Thanks in advance, 
Amanda 
  

From: Glenn Carrozza _ Staff - StudentAssignment <gcarrozza@wcpss.net>  
Sent: Monday, January 4, 2021 12:12 PM 
To: Amanda Bunce <Amanda.Bunce@apexnc.org> 
Subject: Re: Request for Letter of Impact: Rezoning 20CZ11 Roberts Rd Properties PUD 
  
  

Notice: This message is from an external sender. 

Do not click links or open attachments unless you trust the sender, and can 
verify the content is safe. 

  

- Page 217 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for  cons iderat ion by the Apex Town Counci l  

 

 I tem Type:  PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date:  January 26 , 2021  

Item Details  

Presenter :  Sarah Van Every , Senior  Planner  

Depar tment:  P lanning and Communi ty Development  

Requested Motion  

Publ ic hear ing and poss ible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Quest ion of  Annexat ion –  Apex 

Town Counci l ’s  intent to annex Yumeewarra Farm Assembly property  contain ing 18.737 acres located 

at 0 ,  0 ,  and 8633 Humie Ol ive Road , Annexation #702 into the Town’s corporate l imi ts .  

Approval  Recommended?  

Yes , by the P lanning and Communi ty Development Depar tment.  

I tem Detai l s  

The Town Clerk cert i f ies to the invest igat ion of  said annexation.  

Attachments  

  Annexation Ordinance  

  Annexation Pet i t ion  

  Legal  Descr ipt ion  

  Prel iminary P lat  

 

- Page 218 -



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
   

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
Municipality No. 333 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-0126-04  
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. #702 

Yumeewarra Farm Assembly 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
OF THE TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA  

P.O. Box 250, Apex, North Carolina  27502 
 

       WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has been petitioned under G.S.§160A-31, as 
amended, to annex the area described herein; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has by Resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of said petition; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a 
public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at Apex Town Hall at 
6:00 p.m. on January 26, 2021,  after due notice by posting to the Town of Apex 
website, http://www.apexnc.org/news/public-notices-legal-ads; and  
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council does hereby find as a fact that said petition 
meets the requirements of G.S.§160A-31, as amended. 
 
 

After recording, please return to: 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Town of Apex 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC  27502 

- Page 219 -



Page 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina: 

    Section 1.   By virtue of the authority granted by G.S.§160A-31, as amended, the 
territory described in the attached property description and also shown as 
“Annexation Area” on the below identified survey plat is hereby annexed and 
made part of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as of the date of adoption of this 
Ordinance on January 26, 2021.  The survey plat that describes the annexed 
territory is that certain survey plat entitled “Annexation Map for The Town of Apex, 
CE Group,  dated October 23, 2020” and recorded in Book of Maps book number 
2021  and page number                              , Wake County Registry.   

    Section 2.   Upon and after the adoption of this ordinance, the territory described 
herein and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances 
and regulations in force in the Town of Apex, North Carolina, and shall be entitled 
to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town of Apex.  Said territory 
shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S.§160A-58.10, as amended. 

    Section 3.   The Clerk of the Town of Apex, North Carolina shall cause to be 
recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County and in the Office 
of the Secretary of State at Raleigh, North Carolina and in the Office of the Wake 
County Board of Elections an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in 
Section 1 hereof, together with a duly certified copy of this Ordinance. 

    Adopted this the 26th day of January 2021. 

________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST:  

_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 

- Page 220 -



Page 3 

Legal Description 

COMMENCING AT A POINT, SAID POINT BEING PUBLISHED IN THE NATIONAL 
GEODETIC SURVEY AS JORDAN LAKE CORS ARP (PID: DL3891) AND HAVING NC 
GRID COORDINATES OF NORTHING: 739,273.05' & EASTING: 1,989,789.69'; THENCE 
S45°13'18"E A GRID DISTANCE OF 41,628.09' TO A 60D "MAG HUB" NAIL KNOWN AS 
CE GROUP POINT NUMBER 2 HAVING NC GRID COORDINATES OF NORTHING: 
709,949.21' AND EASTING: 2,019,341.41'; THENCE N78°49'38"E A DISTANCE OF 537.58' 
TO AN EXISTING RAILROAD SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD 
(NCSR 1142) 0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING PAVEMENT WHICH IS HEREBY KNOW AS 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
BEGINNING AT A RAILROAD SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD 
(NCSR 1142) 0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING PAVEMENT; THENCE FROM SAID POINT OF 
BEGINNING A BEARING OF S06°53'52"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.02 FEET TO A POINT 
LYING ON THE SOUTHERN MARGIN OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) HAVING A 
60 FOOT RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE ALONG THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN 
YUMEEWARRA FARM, LLC AND JERIF AND LISA CICIN A BEARING OF S06°53'52"E FOR 
A DISTANCE OF 448.68 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S06°53'52"E FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 101.69 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND, SAID PIPE BEING A COMMON 
CORNER WITH EDWARD AND DEBORAH PEART; THENCE, N89°49'36"W FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 617.64 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND, SAID PIPE BEING THE 
NORTHEASTERN MOST CORNER OF THE WILLIAM AND JILL GOODMAN PROPERTY; 
THENCE, N89°46'37"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 532.95 FEET TO A PINCHED TOP IRON 
FOUND, SAID IRON BEING THE NORTHEASTERN MOST CORNER OF DENNIS AND 
SELENA RUSH AND BEING A COMMON CORNER WITH GOODMAN; THENCE, 
N89°47'51"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 280.22 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND, SAID IRON 
PIPE BEING THE SOUTHWESTERN COMMON CORNER WITH BRIAN OLIVE; THENCE 
ALONG THE COMMON LINE WITH OLIVE A BEARING N 00°11' 11"E FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 272.20 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE N00°11'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 
484.52 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT LYING ON THE SOUTHERN MARGIN OF HUMIE 
OLIVE ROAD(NCSR 1142); THENCE, N 00°11'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.45 FEET TO 
A RAILROAD SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 
0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING PAVEMENT; THENCE FOLLOWING THE CENTERLINE OF 
HUMIE OLIVE ROAD THE FOLLOWING TWENTY FOUR CALLS: THENCE, S79°56'58"E FOR 
A DISTANCE OF 15.49 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S76°36'37"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 
50.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S71°54'37"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.92 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE, S69°08'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 21.22 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, 
S69°08'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 28.73 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S67°48'08"E FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 17.56 FEET TO A RAILROAD SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE 
OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING PAVEMENT; THENCE, 
S67°51'05"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 32.37 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S64°43'10"E FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 99.91 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S61°40'23"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 61.40 
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S62°07'30"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 38.78 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE, S 58°43'01"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 150.03 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, 
S61°52'28"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.83 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S67°24'09"E FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 50.11 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S74°44'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 50.55 

- Page 221 -



FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S81°32'42"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.41 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE, S85°55'20'E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.79 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N89°18'11"E 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.93 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N84°27'44"E FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 47.90 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N82°55'35"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 63.56 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE, N80°49'28"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 99.97 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, 
N80° 40'19"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 115.15 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N81°08'07"E FOR 
A DISTANCE OF 121.56 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N80°48'24"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 
98.53 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N81°04'38"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 19.75 FEET TO A 
POINT, SAID POINT BEING KNOWN AS THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, 
HAVING AN AREA OF 816,193 SQUARE FEET, OR 18.737 ACRES OF WHICH 42,998 
SQUARE FEET OR 0.987 ACRES ARE WITHIN THE 60 FOOT RIGHT OF WAY FOR HUMIE 
OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142). 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION 

I, Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk, Town of Apex, North Carolina, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Annexation Ordinance 
No. 2021-0126-04, adopted at a meeting of the Town Council, on the 26th day of 
January, 2021, the original of which will be on file in the Office of the Town Clerk of 
Apex, North Carolina. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official Seal of 
the Town of Apex, North Carolina, this the 27th day of January 2021. 

_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

     (SEAL)

Page 4

- Page 222 -



- Page 223 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
702

bbrock
Typewritten Text

bbrock
Typewritten Text
200

bbrock
Typewritten Text
11/2/2020

bbrock
Typewritten Text
3107



- Page 224 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
702

bbrock
Typewritten Text
11/2/2020



- Page 225 -



- Page 226 -



- Page 227 -



- Page 228 -



- Page 229 -



- Page 230 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  2 6 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Sa r ah  Va n  E ve r y ,  Sen i o r  P l anner  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g &  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  Hear i n g a nd p os s i b le  mo t i on  to  ap p rove  R ezo n i ng Ap p l i c at i o n  #20C Z1 3  Yu me e war r a  Far m 

As s e mb l y  an d Or d i na nc e .   The  a pp l i c an t ,  B i l l  Z ahn ,  Hu mi e  O l i ve  As s oc i a tes ,  seek s  to  rezo ne  

ap pro x i mat e l y  1 8 .737  ac res  l oc a te d  a t  0  &  8633  Hu mi e  O l i ve  R oa d (P I Ns  0 7 1 1 8 0 5 0 9 0 ,  0 7 1 0 8 9 7 9 7 2 ,  

0 7 1 0 9 9 3 7 1 2 )  f ro m Wa ke  Coun ty  R e s i den t i a l - 4 0 W (R -40 W)  t o  Lo w  Dens i t y  R es i de nt i a l - Con di t i on a l  

Zon i n g (LD - CZ ) .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

The  P l ann i n g a nd  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  De p ar t me nt  rec o m m end s  a p pro va l .  

 

The  P l ann i n g B oar d h e ld  a  Pu b l i c  H ear i n g on  J anu ar y  11 ,  2021  a nd vot ed  on  J anu ary  13 ,  2021  t o  

rec o mmen d a ppr o va l ,  w i t h  the  c on d i t i ons  as  o f fe re d by  t he  ap p l i c ant ,  b y  a  vot e  o f  8 - 0 .  

I tem De ta i l s  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  S taf f  R e p or t  

  Vi c i n i ty  M a p  

  Ap p l i c at i on  

  Ord i n anc e  

 

- Page 231 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 1 of 5   Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

All property owners and neighborhood associations within 300 feet of this rezoning have been notified 
per UDO Sec. 2.2.11 Public Notification. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Location:  0 & 8633 Humie Olive Road  
Applicant: Bill Zahn, Humie Olive Associates 
Owner: Yumeewarra Farm, LLC 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Acreage:  ±18.737 acres 
PINs:  0711805090, 0710897972, 0710993712 
Current Zoning:  Wake County Residential-40W (R-40W) 
Proposed Zoning:  Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ) 
2045 Land Use Map: Low Density Residential 
Town Limits:  Outside (annexation is required at the time of rezoning) 
 
Adjacent Zoning & Land Uses: 
 

 Zoning Land Use 

North:  Wake County Residential-40W (R-40W) Humie Olive Rd; Single-family Residential 

South: 
Wake County Residential-40W (R-40W); 
Planned Unit Development-Conditional 

Zoning (PUD-CZ #19CZ21) 

Single-family Residential; Future Heelan 
Subdivision  

East:  
Planned Unit Development-Conditional 

Zoning (PUD-CZ #19CZ21) 
Vacant (Future Heelan Subdivision) 

West: Wake County Residential-40W (R-40W); Single-family Residential 
 

 
EXISTING CONDITIONS: 
The properties to be rezoned are located on the south side of Humie Olive Road, approximately 800 feet 
east of New Hill Olive Chapel Road.  Two (2) of the properties are vacant; the other contains a single-
family residence, barn, accessory structures, and pond.  There are two (2) small streams that transverse 
the developed property.  
 
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING: 
The applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting on October 27, 2020.  The neighborhood meeting 
report is attached. 
 
 
WCPSS Coordination: 
A Letter of Impact from Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) was received for this rezoning and is 
included in the staff report packet.  WCPSS indicates that elementary and high schools within the current 

- Page 232 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 2 of 5   Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

assignment area for this rezoning/development are anticipated to have insufficient capacity for future 
students; transportation to schools outside of the current assignment area should be anticipated.  School 
expansion or construction within the next five (5) years is not anticipated to address these concerns. 
 
2045 LAND USE MAP: 
The 2045 Land Use Map classifies the subject properties as Low Density Residential.  The proposed 
rezoning to Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ) is consistent with that land use 
classification.  
 
PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 
Limitation of Uses: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses 
are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such 
references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply. 
 

1. Single-family 
2. Family care home 
3. Accessory apartment 
4. Utility, minor  

5. Park, active 
6. Park, passive 
7. Greenway 
8. Recreation facility, private 

 
Conditions: 

1. The project density will not exceed 3.00 dwelling units/acre. Maximum number of units is 56 dwelling 
units. Minimum lot size shall be 5,865 sqft.  

2. The project will provide a minimum of two (2) points of access if over fifty (50) residential lots are 
proposed. Project shall be accessed on Humie Olive Road, and a stub provided to the N/F Edward & 
Deborah Peart property (PIN 0720-09-3139), consistent with the location of the stub streets approved 
in the Heelan PUD, or as agreed upon with the Town of Apex Planning and Transportation staff during 
Master Subdivision Plan review and approval. 

3. All homes shall have a crawl space or raised foundation which at a minimum rises 20 inches from 
average grade across the front of the house to the finished floor level at the front door. Zero-entry 
homes without the 20-inch rise are permitted if 1st- floor owner suite is provided. Lots permitted as 
“zero-entry” shall be noted on the Final Plat. 

4. Setbacks shall be as follows to correspond with the approved Heelan PUD: 

 Front:  Reduce from 25’ minimum to 20’ minimum 

 Side:  Reduce from 8’ minimum with a 20’ aggregate to a 5’ minimum 

 Rear:  Reduce from 25’ minimum to 15’ minimum 

 Corner side: Reduce from 18’ minimum to 15’ minimum 
5. The project will provide sidewalk on both sides of all internal streets. 
6. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted. 
7. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 
8. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 decorative 

elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  

 Windows 

 Bay window 

 Recessed or Decorative window 

 Trim around the window 

 Wrap around porch or side porch 

 Two or more building materials 

- Page 233 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 3 of 5   Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

 Decorative brick/stone 

 Decorative trim 

 Decorative shake 

 Decorative gable 

 Decorative air vents on gable 

 Decorative cornice 

 Column 

 Portico 

 Balcony 

 Dormer 
9. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision, to include a minimum 

of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter and accent colors 
complementing the siding color.  

10. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 
porch/stoop area leading to the front door. Front façades and porches may encroach up to 5-feet 
into front setback provided the garage is located no closer than 20-feet from the right-of-way. 

11. Garage may protrude up to 5-feet from the front façade or front porch. Garage doors shall have 
windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on them. Garage may protrude more 
than 5-feet with J-drives or courtyards for side entry doors. 

12. All homes shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 
13. Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict construction of any accessory dwelling unit. 
14. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
15. Garages on the front façade of a home that faces the street shall not exceed 50% of the total 

width of the house and garage together. 
16. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 

around the windows. 
17. Front porches shall be a minimum of 6 feet deep. 
18. Existing deciduous trees greater than 18” in diameter that are removed by site development shall 

be replaced by planting a 1.5” caliper native tree from the Town of Apex Design and Development 
Manual either on-site or at an alternative site location approved by Town Planning Staff, above 
and beyond standard UDO requirements. 

19. The overhead electric easement along Humie Olive Road shall be counted towards the required 

RCA and buffer standards as identified within various UDO sections. The buffer is proposed to be 

an average width buffer of 50’. The buffer shall be planted to a Type ‘B’ buffer standard along the 

Humie Olive Road frontage. 

20. Left turn lane(s) meeting NCDOT requirements shall be provided on Humie Olive Road for each 
proposed point of access where left turn movements are proposed if permitted by NCDOT. 

 

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of Rezoning #20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly as proposed by 
the applicant.  
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board heard this rezoning at their January 11, 2021 meeting and voted on January 13, 2021 
to recommend approval, with the conditions as offered by the applicant, by a vote of 8-0.  
 
ANALYSIS STATEMENT OF THE REASONABLENESS OF THE PROPOSED REZONING: 
This Statement will address consistency with the Town’s comprehensive and other applicable plans, 
reasonableness, and effect on public interest: 
 

- Page 234 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 4 of 5   Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

Approval of the rezoning is reasonable because the proposed Low Density Residential-Conditional 
Zoning (LD-CZ) district is consistent with the Low Density Residential land use classification on the 
2045 Land Use Map.   
 
The proposed rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest because it will allow for future 
development consistent and compatible with the proposed residential development to the east and 
south.   

 
CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS:  
The Town Council shall find the Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ) designation 
demonstrates compliance with the following standards. Sec. 2.3.3.F: 
 

Legislative Considerations  
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether 
or not the proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These 
considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the 
public interest.  

1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
appropriateness for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.  

2)  Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its 
proposed location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.  

3)  Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s 
compliance with Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.  

4)  Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District 
use’s minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent 
lands; and avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, 
service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance.  

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
minimization of environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water 
and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources.  

6)  Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of 
having adverse impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and 
wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS facilities.  

7)  Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the 
health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ.  

8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 
substantially detrimental to adjacent properties.  

9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 
constitutes a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of 
persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use.  

- Page 235 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 5 of 5   Prepared by: Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) 
District use complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this 
Ordinance for use, layout, and general development characteristics. 

- Page 236 -



- Page 237 -



(REZONING) PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP & 
2045 LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT  
Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 
 

 

Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

PRE-APPLICATION MEETING: A pre-application meeting with 
members of the Technical Review Committee is required to be 
scheduled prior to the submittal of a Rezoning Petition.  
Pre-application meetings are typically scheduled on the 1st, 2nd and 5th 
Thursdays of the month.  

To schedule a meeting, applicants must e-mail a pdf map, drawing, 
model, site or sketch plan to Planner Lauren Staudenmaier 
(lauren.staudenmaier@apexnc.org) no later than five (5) working 
days prior to the desired meeting day. 

PURPOSE OF A CONDITIONAL ZONING:   
Conditional Zoning (CZ) Districts are zoning districts in which the development and use of property is subject to the ordinance 
standards applicable to the corresponding general use district as well as additional rules, regulations, and conditions that are 
imposed as part of the legislative decision creating the district. A Conditional Zoning (CZ) District allows particular uses to be 
established only in accordance with site specific standards and conditions pertaining to each individual development project. All 
site-specific standards and conditions must be consistent with the objectives of these regulations, the adopted 2045 Land Use Map 
and adopted area plans. The review process established in this part provides for the accommodation of such uses by a 
reclassification of property into a CZ District, subject to site-specific standards and conditions.  

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING: Neighborhood meetings are required per UDO Section 2.2.7 prior to application submission. The 
applicant is required to notify property owners and any neighborhood association that represents citizens within that area within 
300 feet of the subject property via first class mail a minimum of 10 days in advance of the neighborhood meeting. The applicant 
shall use their own return address on the envelopes as the meeting is a private meeting between the developer and the neighbors. 
The applicant shall submit the “Certified List of Property Owners” and “Neighborhood Meeting Packet” forms included in this 
application packet with their initial submittal. The Neighborhood Meeting Packet is located at the very end of this document. 

ANNEXATION REQUIREMENTS: If a property or portion thereof subject to this rezoning is outside the corporate limits and ETJ, an 
annexation petition is required to be submitted on the same day as this application.  

Electronic Submittal Requirements:  Submit via IDT 
 Upload one full copy of the application and other sheets listed below via IDT.  

Hard Copy Submittal Requirements:  Submit to Planning Department  
 

 One (1) original Rezoning Petition Application 

 Petition Fee  

 Legal Description (metes and bounds) 

 Certified List of Property Owners within 300 feet of 
subject property 

 Agent Authorization Form 

 Neighborhood Meeting Packet 

 If applicable: Annexation Petition, map, legal description 
and $200.00 fee 

 One (1) set of envelopes addressed to Certified List of 
Property Owners within 300 feet of subject property and 
all the HOAs of those properties within 300’ of the subject 
property. Planning staff may require an additional set of 

envelopes based on the timing of the Planning Board and 
Town Council meetings. 

 Addresses must be from a current list obtained from the 
Wake County GIS Map Services. A buffer report service is 
offered for $1 per page. Please contact them at 919-856-
6360 or 
http://www.wakegov.com/gis/services/Pages/gisservices.
aspx  

 Affixed with first class stamps & the following return 
address:   
Town of Apex 
Planning Department 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC  27502 

 

REZONING PETITION SUBMISSION:  Applications are 
due by 12:00 pm on the first business day of each 
month. See the Rezoning Schedule on the website for 
details. 
 
REZONING PETITION FEES:   
Conditional Zoning: $900.00 
Rezoning: $600.00* 
2045 Land Use Map Amendment: $700.00 

Page 1 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application
- Page 238 -



(REZONING) PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP & 2045 LAND USE MAP   

 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING:  Neighborhood meetings are required per UDO Section 2.2.7 prior to application submission. The applicant 
is required to notify property owners and any neighborhood association that represents citizens within that area within 300 feet 
of the subject property via first class mail a minimum of 10 days in advance of the neighborhood meeting. The applicant shall use 
their own return address on the envelopes as the meeting is a private meeting between the developer and the neighbors. In their 
initial submittal, the applicant shall submit the “Certified List of Property Owners” and “Neighborhood Meeting Packet” forms  
included in this application packet. The Neighborhood Meeting Packet is located at the very end of this document. 
 
REVIEW FOR SUFFICIENCY:  Incomplete plans will be returned to the applicant and sufficiently complete applications are forwarded to 
the planning staff for review.   

REVIEW BY STAFF:  Planning staff reviews the application to determine compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).  
If the application is determined not to be compliant with the UDO, comments will be sent to the applicant.  The applicant must 
address all staff comments before any public hearings are scheduled. 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTIFICATION:  Notification of the public hearing will take place by three different methods.  A written notice will be 
sent to nearby property owners not more than 25 days nor less than 14 days prior to the public hearings, as required by the UDO. 
The Planning Department will prepare these written notifications for all property owners of the land subject to the application and 
all property owners within 300 feet of the land subject to the application.  A notice will be published on the Town of Apex website 
(www.apexnc.org) no less than 10 days, but not more than 25 days, prior to the public hearings, and a notice will be posted at the 
land subject to the application at least 14 days prior to the public hearings.  

1ST PUBLIC HEARING/PLANNING BOARD MEETING:  The Planning Board will consider the application, relevant support materials, the Staff 
Report and public testimony given at the public hearing.  After the public hearing the Planning Board will make a recommendation 
to the Town Council.  The Planning Board may recommend approval, approval with conditions or disapproval.  The application is 
then forwarded to the Town Council.  The Planning Board meets at 4:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers on the date 
indicated on the Rezoning Schedule. 

2ND PUBLIC HEARING/TOWN COUNCIL MEETING:  The Town Council will consider the application, relevant support materials, the Staff 
Report, the Planning Board recommendation and public testimony given at the public hearing.  After the public hearing the Town 
Council will vote to approve, approve with conditions or disapprove the rezoning.  The Town Council meets at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Town Council Chambers on the date indicated on the Rezoning Schedule. 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application
- Page 239 -



PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP & 2045 LAND USE MAP   

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to 
third parties. 
Application #:  Submittal Date:  

2045 LUM  Amendment:  Fee Paid:  
 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

Project Information 

Project Name:  

Address(es):  

PIN(s):  

  Acreage:  

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning:  

Current 2045 LUM Designation:  

Proposed 2045 LUM Designation:  

See next page for LUM Amendment.  

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

Area classified as mixed use: Acreage:  

Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage:  

Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent:  
   

Applicant Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
  

Owner Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
  

Agent Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Other contacts:  

  

  

  

Page 3 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

Yumeewarra Farm Assembly

0 & 8633 Humie Olive Road, Apex, NC 27502

0711-80-5090, 0710-89-7972,  0710-99-3712

18.737

R-40W LD-CZ (Low Density-Conditional Zoning)

Low Density Residential

N/A

Humie Olive Associates (Bill Zahn)

113 Duncansby Drive

Cary NC 27511

(919) 522-5626 billzahn@bellsouth.net

Yumeewarra Farm LLC

8633 Humie Olive Road

Apex NC 27502

Peak Engineering & Design (Jeff Roach)

1125 Apex Peakway

Apex NC 27502

(919) 439-0100 jroach@peakengineering.com

jedwards@peakengineering.com

dwoods@peakengineering.com

fspinnenweber@peakengineering.com

- Page 240 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13

abunce
Typewritten Text

abunce
Typewritten Text



PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP & 2045 LAND USE MAP   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  
 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

2045 LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT (IF APPLICABLE) 

The applicant does hereby respectfully request the Town Council amend the 2045 Land Use Map. In support of this 
request, the following facts are shown: 

The area sought to be amended on the 2045 Land Use Map is located at:  

 

 

Current 2045 Land Use Classification:  

Proposed 2045 Land Use Classification:  

  

What condition(s) justifies the passage of the amendment to the 2045 Land Use Map? Discuss the existing use 
classifications of the subject area in addition to the adjacent land use classifications. Use additional pages as needed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

N/A

Low Density Residential

no change

N/A

- Page 241 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

An application has been duly filed requesting that the property described in this application be rezoned from 
                       to                        .  It is understood and acknowledged that if the property is rezoned as requested, the property 
described in this request will be perpetually bound to the use(s) authorized and subject to such conditions as imposed, unless 
subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance.  It is further understood and 
acknowledged that final plans for any specific development to be made pursuant to any such Conditional Zoning shall be 
submitted for site or subdivision plan approval. Use additional pages as needed.  

PROPOSED USES: 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are subject to 
the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated below. For 
convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that other sections of 
the UDO do not apply. 

1   21  

2   22  

3   23  

4   24  

5   25  

6   26  

7   27  

8   28  

9   29  

10   30  

11   31  

12   32  

13   33  

14   34  

15   35  

16   36  

17   37  

18   38  

19   39  

20   40  

Page 5 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

R-40W LD-CZ

Single-Family

Family care home

Accessory apartment

Utility, minor

Park, active

Park, passive

Greenway

Recreation facility, private

- Page 242 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 

The applicant hereby requests that the Town Council of the Town of Apex, pursuant to the Unified Development 
Ordinance, approve the Conditional Zoning for the above listed use(s) subject to the following condition(s). Use 
additional pages as needed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATIONS - CONDITIONAL ZONING 

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following considerations, 
which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the proposed conditional 
zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration 
of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. Use additional pages as needed. 

1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its 
proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map. 

 

 

 

 

 

2)  Compatibility.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed location and 
compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 

 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

Please see attached sheet for proposed zoning conditions.

The proposed residential development will not require a modification to the 2045 Land Use Map and is in

keeping with the adopted plans from the Town of Apex. The LD zoning district restricts density to a maximum of

3.0 dwelling units/acre and complies with the 2045 Land Use Map.

The proposed residential use is in keeping with the surrounding uses (residential) as well as compliance with

the Town Future Land Use Map for residential at this location. Buffers being provided are based upon UDO standards

to assure compatibility with surrounding properties. Building architectural standards are also provided to assure

compatibility.

- Page 243 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

  
 

3)  Zoning district supplemental standards.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s compliance with Sec 4.4, 
Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 

 

 

 

 

 

4)  Design minimizes adverse impact.  The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s minimization of 
adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and avoidance of significant adverse 
impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and 
vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 

 

 

 

 

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact.  The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s minimization of environmental 
impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and 
other natural resources. 

 

 

 

 

 

6)  Impact on public facilities.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having adverse impacts on 
public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS 
facilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

7)  Health, safety, and welfare.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, safety, or welfare 
of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

The site and proposed use(s) will comply with UDO Section 4.4 - Supplemental Standards as applicable.

The rezoning proposes use restrictions, a maximum density, perimeter buffers, established RCA, stormwater 

controls, utility extensions, architectural standards and compliance with various UDO standards to assure

minimization of impacts on surrounding properties.

The site is proposed to meet UDO standards for stormwater controls, minimization and avoidance of

environmentally sensitive areas, preservation of perimeter landscaping/buffers, and grading only to the extent

require for the infrastructure and home sites.

The site is located close to or will extend ex public facilities, including water, sewer, stormwater, gas, electric and 

telephone to the property. Recently approved developments in the area are bringing said services along with

roadway improvements for easy emergency vehicles access.

The proposed residential development will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of Apex residents. The

proposed will provided housing options for current and future Apex residents.

- Page 244 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is substantially 
detrimental to adjacent properties. 

 

 

 

 

 

9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a nuisance 
or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning 
(CZ) District use. 

 

 

 

 

 

10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use complies with 
all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, and general development 
characteristics. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

The use is in keeping with the adopted plans and compatible with the existing surrounding properties. The

residential use will not be detrimental to adjacent properties with the buffers and setbacks from property lines.

The residential use and limited number of dwellings does not constitute a nuisance or hazard based upon the

anticipated project size, density, and required utility extensions.

The proposed development will meet the standards within various sections of the Town of Apex UDO not otherwise

noted in the zoning application.

- Page 245 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



HUMIE OLIVE RESIDENTIAL (YUMEEWARRA FARM) 
CONDITIONS OF ZONING 

 
Single-Family Detached Residential: 
 

1. The project density will not exceed 3.00 dwelling units/acre. Maximum number of units is 56 dwelling 
units. Minimum lot size shall be 5,865 sqft.  
 

2. The project will provide a minimum of two (2) points of access if over fifty (50) residential lots are 
proposed. Project shall be accessed on Humie Olive Road, a stub provided to the N/F Edward & 
Deborah Peart property (PIN 0720-09-3139), consistent with the location of the stub streets approved 
in the Heelan PUD, or as agreed upon with the Town of Apex Planning and Transportation staff during 
Master Subdivision Plan review and approval. 
 

3. All homes shall have a crawl space or raised foundation which at a minimum rises 20 inches from 
average grade across the front of the house to the finished floor level at the front door. Zero-entry homes 
without the 20-inch rise are permitted if 1st- floor owner suite is provided. Lots permitted as “zero-
entry” shall be noted on the Final Plat. 
 

4. Setbacks shall be as follows to correspond with the approved Heelan PUD: 
• Front:  Reduce from 25’ minimum to 20’ minimum 
• Side:  Reduce from 8’ minimum with a 20’ aggregate to a 5’ minimum 
• Rear:  Reduce from 25’ minimum to 15’ minimum 
• Corner side: Reduce from 18’ minimum to 15’ minimum 
 

5. The project will provide sidewalk on both sides of all internal streets. 
 
6. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted. 

 
7. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 

 
8. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 decorative 

elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  
• Windows 
• Bay window 
• Recessed or Decorative window 
• Trim around the window 
• Wrap around porch or side porch 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative brick/stone 
• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 
• Decorative gable 
• Decorative air vents on gable 
• Decorative cornice 
• Column 
• Portico 
• Balcony 
• Dormer 

 
9. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision, to include a minimum 

of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter and accent colors 
complementing the siding color.  
 

10. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 
porch/stoop area leading to the front door. Front façades and porches may encroach up to 5-feet 
into front setback provided the garage is located no closer than 20-feet from the right-of-way. 
 

11. Garage may protrude up to 5-feet from the front façade or front porch. Garage doors shall have 
windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on them. Garage may protrude more than 
5-feet with J-drives or courtyards for side entry doors. 

  
- Page 246 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



HUMIE OLIVE RESIDENTIAL (YUMEEWARRA FARM) 
CONDITIONS OF ZONING 

(continued) 
 
 

12. All homes shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 
 

13. Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict construction of any accessory dwelling unit. 
 

14. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
 

15. Garages on the front façade of a home that faces the street shall not exceed 50% of the total width 
of the house and garage together. 
 

16. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 
around the windows. 
 

17. Front porches shall be a minimum of 6 feet deep. 
 

18. Existing deciduous trees greater than 18” in diameter that are removed by site development shall 
be replaced by planting a 1.5” caliper native tree from the Town of Apex Design and Development 
Manual either on-site or at an alternative site location approved by Town Planning Staff, above and 
beyond standard UDO requirements. 
 

19. The existing overhead electric easement along Humie Olive Road shall be counted towards the 
required RCA and buffer standards as identified within various UDO sections. The buffer is 
proposed to be an average width buffer of 50’. The buffer shall be planted to a Type ‘B’ buffer 
standard along the Humie Olive Road frontage. 
 

20. Left turn lane(s) meeting NCDOT requirements shall be provided on Humie Olive Road for each 
proposed point of access where left turn movements are proposed if permitted by NCDOT. 

- Page 247 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



- Page 248 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



- Page 249 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



- Page 250 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  

 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

 

 

Page 12 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

COMMENCING AT A POINT, SAID POINT BEING PUBLISHED IN THE NATIONAL GEODETIC SURVEY AS 
JORDAN LAKE CORS ARP (PID: DL3891) AND HAVING NC GRID COORDINATES OF NORTHING: 739,273.05' & 
EASTING: 1,989,789.69'; THENCE S45°13'18"E A GRID DISTANCE OF 41,628.09' TO A 60D "MAG HUB" NAIL 
KNOWN AS CE GROUP POINT NUMBER 2 HAVING NC GRID COORDINATES OF NORTHING: 709,949.21' AND 
EASTING: 2,019,341.41'; THENCE N78°49'38"E A DISTANCE OF 537.58' TO AN EXISTING RAILROAD SPIKE 
FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING 
PAVEMENT WHICH IS HEREBY KNOW AS THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

BEGINNING AT A RAILROAD SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 0.3 
FEET BELOW THE EXISTING PAVEMENT; THENCE FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING A BEARING OF S06°
53'52"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.02 FEET TO A POINT LYING ON THE SOUTHERN MARGIN OF HUMIE OLIVE 
ROAD (NCSR 1142) HAVING A 60 FOOT RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE ALONG THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN 
YUMEEWARRA FARM, LLC AND JERIF AND LISA CICIN A BEARING OF S06°53'52"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 
448.68 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S06°53'52"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 101.69 FEET TO AN IRON 
PIPE FOUND, SAID PIPE BEING A COMMON CORNER WITH EDWARD AND DEBORAH PEART; THENCE, N89°
49'36"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 617.64 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND, SAID PIPE BEING THE NORTHEASTERN 
MOST CORNER OF THE WILLIAM AND JILL GOODMAN PROPERTY; THENCE, N89°46'37"W FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 532.95 FEET TO A PINCHED TOP IRON FOUND, SAID IRON BEING THE NORTHEASTERN 
MOST CORNER OF DENNIS AND SELENA RUSH AND BEING A COMMON CORNER WITH GOODMAN; 
THENCE, N89°47'51"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 280.22 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND, SAID IRON PIPE BEING 
THE SOUTHWESTERN COMMON CORNER WITH BRIAN OLIVE; THENCE ALONG THE COMMON LINE WITH 
OLIVE A BEARING N 00°11' 11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 272.20 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE N00°
11'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 484.52 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT LYING ON THE SOUTHERN MARGIN OF 
HUMIE OLIVE ROAD(NCSR 1142); THENCE, N 00°11'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.45 FEET TO A RAILROAD 
SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING 
PAVEMENT; THENCE FOLLOWING THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD THE FOLLOWING TWENTY 
FOUR CALLS: THENCE, S79°56'58"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 15.49 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S76°36'37"E FOR 
A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S71°54'37"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.92 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE, S69°08'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 21.22 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S69°08'04"E FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 28.73 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S67°48'08"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 17.56 FEET TO A RAILROAD SPIKE 
FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING 
PAVEMENT; THENCE, S67°51'05"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 32.37 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S64°43'10"E FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 99.91 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S61°40'23"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 61.40 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE, S62°07'30"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 38.78 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S 58°43'01"E FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 150.03 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S61°52'28"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.83 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, 
S67°24'09"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 50.11 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S74°44'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 50.55 
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S81°32'42"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.41 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S85°55'19'E 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.79 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N89°18'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.93 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE, N84°27'44"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 47.90 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N82°55'35"E FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 63.56 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N80°49'28"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 99.97 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE, N80°40'19"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 115.15 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N81°08'07"E FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 121.56 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N80°48'24"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 98.53 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, 
N81°04'38"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 19.75 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING KNOWN AS THE POINT AND 
PLACE OF BEGINNING, HAVING AN AREA OF 816,193 SQUARE FEET, OR 18.737 ACRES OF WHICH 42,998 
SQUARE FEET OR 0.987 ACRES ARE WITHIN THE 60 FOOT RIGHT OF WAY FOR HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 
1142). 

 

- Page 251 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for 

Neighborhood Meetings 
 
 
 

This packet consists of instructions and templates for conducting a required 
Neighborhood Meeting. Planning Department staff are available to advise you in the 
preparation of these materials. Call the Planning Department at (919) 249-3426 for 
more information. 

 
 

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF A NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING? 
A neighborhood meeting is a required form of community outreach to receive initial feedback 
regarding certain project types prior to submittal to the Planning Department per the standards 
found in UDO Sec. 2.2.7. The intention of the meeting is to initiate neighbor communication 
and identify issues and concerns early on and provide the applicant an opportunity to address 
neighbor concerns about the potential impacts of the project prior to submitting an application. 
A neighborhood meeting is valid for six (6) months prior to the submission of an application; a 
delay in submission requires a new neighborhood meeting. 
 
 

WHEN IS A NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING REQUIRED? 

 Rezonings (including Planned Unit Developments); 

 Major Site Plans; 

 Residential Master Subdivision Plans (excluding exempt subdivisions); or 

 Special Use Permits 

 
 

INSTRUCTIONS 
Prior to submitting an application for a Rezoning, Major Site Plan, residential Master Subdivision 
Plan (excluding exempt subdivisions), or Special Use Permit, the applicant must conduct at least 
one (1) Neighborhood Meeting. The applicant shall submit all forms included in this packet with 
the initial application submittal.  
 
The Neighborhood Meeting must be held in accordance with the following rules: 
 
These groups and individuals must be invited to the meeting: 

 The applicant is required to notify the Planning Department, all property owners within 
300 feet of the subject property, and any neighborhood association that represents 
citizens in the area via first class mail a minimum of 10 days in advance of the 
neighborhood meeting, not including the day of mailing. The applicant shall use their own 
return address on the envelopes as the meeting is a private meeting between the 
applicant and the neighbors. 

 The applicant shall include with the meeting notice a vicinity map in addition to either the 
existing zoning map of the area or preliminary plans of the proposed development (see 
Handout requirements below). 

Town of Apex 
Planning Department 
PO Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502 
 
T: 919-249-3426 
F: 919-249-3338 

Page 1 of 9
- Page 252 -



Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

The meeting must be held within specific timeframes and meet certain requirements: 

 The meeting must be held for a minimum of two (2) hours, Monday through Thursday, 
during the 5:00 p.m. - 9:00 p.m. time period. The meeting cannot be held on a Town 
recognized holiday (which coincide with the State of North Carolina recognized holidays). 

 The meeting shall be held at a place that is generally accessible to neighbors that reside 
in close proximity to the land subject to the application. 

 A sign-in sheet must be used in order to verify attendance. Ensure each attendee signs 
in. Please note if any person(s) refuses to sign in. Note if no one attended.  

 Handout requirements: 

o For rezonings (excluding rezonings to PUD-CZ, TND-CZ and MEC-CZ), a vicinity map 
and existing zoning map of the area must be provided to help facilitate discussion.  

o For rezonings to PUD-CZ, TND-CZ and MEC-CZ; Major Site Plans; residential Master 
Subdivision Plans; and Special Use Permits, preliminary plans of the proposed 
development must be available at the meeting to help facilitate discussion. Neighbors 
may request emailed/mailed copies of the maps or plans from the applicant by 
checking the “send plans” box on the sign-in sheet; applicant shall provide reduced 
copies upon request. 

o Printed copies must equal the number of notices required to be sent. 

o Contact information for the applicant’s representative and Town Staff must be 
provided on the attached “Project Contact Information” form. 

o “Common Construction Issues & Who to Call” sheet (attached) must be included as 
part of the handout. 

o A copy of the handout must be included as part of the Neighborhood Meeting report. 

 The agenda of the meeting shall include: 

o Explanation of all processes the meeting is being held for (rezoning, subdivision, etc.). 

o Explanation of future meetings (additional neighborhood meetings, Planning Board, 
Town Council, etc.). 

o Explanation of development proposal – uses and conditions for rezonings, layout for 
subdivision and site plans, and builder/end user if known/public knowledge. 

 Questions or concerns by attendees, and responses by the applicant, if any, must be 
noted. Provide blank comment sheets or notecards for neighbors to submit written 
comments. The applicant shall also include any questions and concerns received via 
written correspondence (such as email) or phone call along with responses provided by 
the applicant. 

 The applicant shall be responsible for notifying any neighbors who check the “Send Plans 
& Updates” box on the sign-in sheet of any additional neighborhood meetings and the 
actual submittal date to the Town with a link to the Town of Apex’s Interactive 
Development Map. 

 

For accountability purposes, please submit the following with your application: 

 A copy of the letter mailed to neighbors and neighborhood organizations (use attached 
invitation template); 

 A list of those persons and neighborhood organizations invited to the meeting; 

 A copy of the sign-in sheet (use attached sign-in sheet template); 

 A summary of the meeting and a list of any changes made to the project as a result of the 
neighborhood comments (use attached meeting summary template); 

 The affidavit, signed, dated, and notarized (use attached affidavit template); and 

 One reduced copy of the maps and/or plans presented to the neighbors at the 
Neighborhood Meeting.

Page 2 of 9
- Page 253 -



NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website  
or disclosed to third parties. 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

 
Date 

 
Dear Neighbor: 
You are invited to a neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at  

   
Address(es)  PIN(s) 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended to be a 
way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors and 
neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors an 
opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is officially 
submitted. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive 
Development Map or the Apex Development Report located on the Town of Apex website at 
www.apexnc.org.  

 
A Neighborhood Meeting is required because this project includes (check all that apply): 

Application Type Approving Authority 
 Rezoning (including Planned Unit Development) Town Council 

 Major Site Plan Town Council (QJPH*) 

 Special Use Permit Town Council (QJPH*) 

 Residential Master Subdivision Plan (excludes exempt subdivisions) Technical Review 
Committee (staff) 

*Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: The Town Council cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing. 

The following is a description of the proposal (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)):  
 

 

 

Estimated submittal date:  
 

MEETING INFORMATION:  

Property Owner(s) name(s):  

Applicant(s):    

Contact information (email/phone):     

Meeting Address:    

Date of meeting**:    

Time of meeting**:    
 

MEETING AGENDA TIMES: 
Welcome:  _____________    Project Presentation:  _____________    Question & Answer:  _____________ 
 

**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized 
holidays). If you have questions about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning Department 
at 919-249-3426. You may also find information about the Apex Planning Department and on-going planning efforts at 
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning. 

Page 3 of 9

10/09/2020

8633 HUMIE OLIVE RD, APEX NC 27502-8976 0710993712, 0711805090, 0710897972

✔

✔

Property to rezone from R-40W to MD-CZ (Medium Density-Conditional Zoning) (single family residential).

Meeting will take place via Zoom. Please use web address below to register for meeting. Please pre-register.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84248014980?pwd=Y05HUzlsNzlUa0J6UDJqUkRaUWc0UT09

November 2, 2020

YUMEEWARRA FARM LLC

Humie Olive Associates

Jeff Roach, jeffroach@peakengineering.com, 919-439-0100

Meeting being held via Zoom

10/27/2020

5:30

5:30-5:40 5:40- 6:00 6:00 - ?

- Page 254 -



PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website  
or disclosed to third parties. 
 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

Development Contacts:  

Project Name:  Zoning:  
Location:  
Property PIN(s):  Acreage/Square Feet:  
 

Property Owner:  
Address:  
City:  State:  Zip:  
Phone:  Email:  

Developer:  
Address:  
City:  State:  Zip:  
Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Engineer:  
Address:  
City:  State:  Zip:  
Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Builder (if known):  
Address:  
City:  State:  Zip:  
Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

 
Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 
they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

Town of Apex Department Contacts 
Planning Department Main Number 

(Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) 
 
(919) 249-3426 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 
Angela Reincke, Parks Planner  

 
(919) 249-7468 

Public Works - Transportation 
Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 
(919) 249-3358 

Water Resources Department  
Mike Deaton, Stormwater & Utility Engineering Manager 
Stan Fortier, Senior Engineer (Sedimentation & Erosion Control) 

 
(919) 249-3413 
(919) 249-1166 

Electric Utilities Division 
Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager 

 
(919) 249-3342 

Page 4 of 9

Yumeewarra Farms- To be named R-40W, Wake County
8633 Humie Olive Rd, Apex, NC 27502-8976

0710993712, 0711805090, 0710897972 17.75 acres

Yumeewarra Farms LLC
8633 Humie Olive Rd

Apex NC 27502-8976

Humie Olive Associates (Bill Zahn)
113 Duncansby Drive

Cary NC 27511
(919) 522-5626 billzahn@bellsouth.net

Peak Engineering & Design (Jeff Roach)
1125 Apex Peakway

Apex NC 27502
(919) 439-0100 jroach@peakengineering.com

N/A

18.737 acres

- Page 255 -



 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

Providing Input to Town Council:  
Each Town Council meeting agenda includes a Public Forum time when anyone is permitted to speak for 
three (3) minutes on any topic with the exception of items listed as Public Hearings for that meeting. The 
Town Council meets on the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays of each month at 6:00 p.m. (except for holidays, see schedule 
of meetings at http://www.apexnc.org/838/Agendas-Minutes). You may also contact Town Council by e-mail 
at AllCouncil@apexnc.org. 
 

Private Agreements and Easement Negotiation:   

The Town of Apex cannot enforce private agreements between developers and neighbors and is not a party 
to the easement and right-of-way negotiation that occurs between developers and neighboring property 
owners for easements or rights-of-way that are necessary to build the project.  
 
It is recommended that all private agreements be made in writing and that if a property owner feels it 
necessary, they should obtain private legal counsel in order to protect their interests in both private 
agreements and during easement negotiations. The only conditions that the Town of Apex can enforce are 
those conditions that are made a part of the conditional zoning of the property by agreement of the 
developer and the Town.  
 
As an example, if a developer offers to build a fence for a neighbor to mitigate some impact, the Town can 
only enforce the construction of the fence if the fence becomes a condition of the rezoning. This would occur 
by the developer offering the condition as part of their conditional zoning application package or at the Town 
Council public hearing on the conditional zoning and the Town accepting it as a condition. Private agreements 
regarding a fence being constructed will not be enforced by the Town. 
 
To request that any agreement with a developer is made a part of the conditional zoning at the time of 
approval, you may ask at the Town Council public hearing if the agreement is included in the conditions. If it 
is not, you may request that the Town Council not approve the rezoning without the agreement being 
included in the conditions (note that it is up to Town Council whether to approve or deny the rezoning but 
they cannot impose conditions that the applicant does not agree to add). The developer’s proposed 
conditions can be viewed any time after a rezoning is submitted on the Interactive Development Map at: 
http://apexnc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/OnePane/basicviewer/index.html?appid=fa9ba2017b784030b15ef4d
a27d9e795 

Documentation:   

Neighbors to a requested new development and/or rezoning are strongly encouraged to fully document (such 
as through dated photographs) the condition of their property before any work is initiated for the new 
development. Stormwater controls installed on developed property are not designed to and will likely not 
remove 100% of the soil particles transported by stormwater runoff. As a result, creeks and ponds could 
become cloudy for a period of time after rain events. 
 

Page 5 of 9
- Page 256 -



Disclaimer
iMaps makes every effort to produce and publish 
the most current and accurate information possible.
However, the maps are produced for information purposes,
and are NOT surveys. No warranties, expressed or implied
,are provided for the data therein, its use,or its interpretation.

Yumeewarra Farm

0 430 860215 ft

1 inch = 400 feet

±

Area to be rezoned

- Page 257 -



NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SIGN-IN SHEET 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to third parties. 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

Meeting Address:   _______________________________________________________________
Date of meeting:  ______________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________

Property Owner(s) name(s):  _________________________________________________________
Applicant(s):  ___________________________________________________________________

Please print your name below, state your address and/or affiliation with a neighborhood group, and provide your phone number and email address. 
Providing your name below does not represent support or opposition to the project; it is for documentation purposes only.  

NAME/ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE # EMAIL 
SEND PLANS 
& UPDATES 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

Use additional sheets, if necessary. 

Page 7 of 9

Jill Goodman   8825 New Hope Farm Rd, New Hill, NC 27562   Yes

Vicki DiProfio   8801 New Hope Farm Rd, New HIll NC 27562   Yes

Deborah Peart   8829 New Hope Farm Rd, New Hill, NC 27562   Yes

Bill Zahn (Humie Olive  Assoc) 113 Duncansby Ct, Cary, NC 27511    Yes

Craig Duerr (Land Alternatives) 403 April Bloom Dr, Cary, NC 27519  Yes

Jeff Roach - Peak Engineering  1125 Apex Peakway, Apex, NC 2750 ---

Meeting held via Zoom
October 27, 2020 5:30 - 7:30 pm

Yumeewarra Farm LLC
Humie Olive Associates

- Page 258 -

abunce
Line



SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

Property Owner(s) name(s): _____________________________________________________
Applicant(s):  ______________________________________________________________
Contact information (email/phone):   _______________________________________________
Meeting Address:  ___________________________________________________________
Date of meeting:  __________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________

Please summarize the questions/comments and your response from the Neighborhood Meeting in the spaces 
below (attach additional sheets, if necessary). Please state if/how the project has been modified in response to 
any concerns. The response should not be “Noted” or “No Response”. There has to be documentation of what 
consideration the neighbor’s concern was given and justification for why no change was deemed warranted. 

Question/Concern #1: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Question/Concern #2: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Question/Concern #3: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Question/Concern #4: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________

Page 8 of 9

A discussion was held with the attendees where a number of topics related to timing, process, layout and surrounding area were had.

Yumeewarra Farm LLC

Humie Olive Associates

Jeff Roach, jroach@peakengineering.com, (919) 439-0100

Meeting held via Zoom

October 27, 2020 5:30 - 7:30 pm

The property owners asked about zoning and the schedule associated with the project?

Explained the process, timing and documents which are required. Spoke a lot about the Heelan property which

was recently rezoned. Also discussed the existing properties on New Hope Farm Road and what would happen

with these properties in the future (sell, stay, development?).

Would the project start construction prior to the development of Heelan? Deborah Peart was asking as her
property currently abuts the Yumeewarra property.

Explained that earliest timing would be start construction in late 2021 with zoning, MSP and CD approvals. 

Project should not be started prior to Heelan as the Yumeewarra site requires sewer from Heelan to develop.

Is there an option to purchase the properties on New Hope Farm Road? Combine the properties into Yumeewarra or

Heelan projects?

That is something that we can look at with the builders/buyers. But that is not a decision for this project - this is

something that the owners in the area need to decide what they want to do. Developer did offer to evaluate the

properties on New Hope Farm Road 

What would the project look like?

Showed a proposed Sketch Plan (SP-3) to those on the call showing 53 lots, 2 points of access to Humie Olive

and a stub to Peart property (part of Heelan PUD). Also discussed buffers, roadway improvements and 
project specifics.

- Page 259 -



- Page 260 -



Wake County Residential Development Notification 

Revised 08/10/2018 

Developer Company Information 
Company Name 
Company Phone Number 
Developer Representative Name 
Developer Representative Phone Number 
Developer Representative Email 

New Residential Subdivision  Information 
Date of Application for Subdivision 
City, Town or Wake County Jurisdiction 
Name of Subdivision 
Address of Subdivision (if unknown enter nearest cross streets) 
REID(s) 
PIN(s) 

Projected Dates Information 
Subdivision Completion Date 
Subdivision Projected First Occupancy Date 

Lot by Lot Development Information 

Unit Type Total # of 
Units 

Se
ni

or
 L

iv
in

g 

St
ud

io
 

1 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

2 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

3 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

4 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

Square Foot  
Range Price Range Anticipated Completion Units & Dates 

Min Max Low High Year # Units Year # Units Year # Units 
Single Family 

Townhomes 

Condos 
Apartments 

Other 

Humie Olive Associates, LLC

(919) 522-5626

Bill Zahn

billzahn@bellsouth.net

November 2, 2020

Apex

TBD (currently submitted as Yumeewarra Farm Assembly)

8633 and 0 Humie Olive Road (Apex, NC)

022444; 0224441; 0244622

0711-80-5090; 0710-89-7972; 0710-99-3712

June 2023

March 2022

53 2800 3500 2022 35 2023 18

Jeff Roach, jroach@peakengineering.com, (919) 439-0100

Town of Apex staff will 
enter this information  
into the online WCPSS form.

Please complete each 
section of this form and 
submit with your 
application.

Please send any questions 
about this form to:
studentassignment-gis-
group@wcpss.net

- Page 261 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  

Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 

 

Page 1 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS §160D-604(b), all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall be submitted to the 
Planning Board for review and comment. If no written report is received from the Planning Board within 30 days of 
referral of the amendment to the Planning Board, the Town Council may act on the amendment without the Planning 
Board report. The Town Council is not bound by the recommendations, if any, of the Planning Board. 
 
Per NCGS §160D-604(d), the Planning Board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed action is consistent 
with all applicable officially adopted plans, and provide a written recommendation to the Town Council that addresses 
plan consistency and other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the Planning 
Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the officially adopted plans shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the Town Council. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Acreage:  

PIN(s): 
 

 

Current Zoning: 
 

 

Proposed Zoning:  
 

 

2045 Land Use Map: 
 

 

Town Limits:  
 

Applicable Officially Adopted Plans: 
 

The Board must state whether the project is consistent or inconsistent with the following officially adopted plans, 
if applicable. Applicable plans have a check mark next to them.  

 2045 Land Use Map 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

 Apex Transportation Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenways Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 

January  11 and 13, 2021

20CZ13Yumeewarra Farm Assembly

±18.737 acres
0711805090, 0710897972, 0710993712

Wake County Residential-40 (R-40W)

Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning 

Low Density Residential

Outside (annexation required at time of rezoning)

- Page 262 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  

Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 

 

Page 2 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Legislative Considerations: 
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the 
proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude 
the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. 
 
1. Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan. The proposed Conditional 

its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use 
Plan. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
  
 
 
 
 
2. Compatibility. 

and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
3. Zoning district supplemental standards. The 

Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
4. Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of 

minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, 
parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
5. Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning 

environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife 
habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
  

January  11 and 13, 2021

20CZ13Yumeewarra Farm Assembly

- Page 263 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  

Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 

 

Page 3 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

 
6. Impact on public facilities. 

impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, 
schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
7. Health, safety, and welfare. effect on the health, safety, 

or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
8. Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 

substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 
 
 
 
 
9. Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a 

nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the 
Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
10. Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 

complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, 
and general development characteristics. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

January  11 and 13, 2021

20CZ13Yumeewarra Farm Assembly

- Page 264 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case:  

Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 

 

Page 4 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
 

Motion:  

Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  

  
 Approval: the project is consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and the applicable legislative 

considerations listed above. 
 

 Approval with conditions: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the 
applicable legislative considerations as noted above, so the following conditions are recommended to be 
included in the project in order to make it fully consistent: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 Denial: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the applicable 

legislative considerations as noted above. 
  
  

 With ____ Planning  
 

 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  

  

  

  

  
This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the  day of  2021. 
  
  
Attest:  
 
 

 

   
Michael Marks, Planning Board Chair  Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and 

Community Development 
 

To recommend approval with conditions as offered by applicant.

Ryan Akers
Tim Royal

Conditions as offered by applicant.

8

0

13th January

January  11 and 13, 2021

20CZ13Yumeewarra Farm Assembly

- Page 265 -



- Page 266 -



TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 
 

Published Dates: December 23, 2020 – January 11, 2021 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #20CZ13 
Yumeewarra Farm Assembly 
0 & 8633 Humie Olive Road 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160A-364 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Planning Board of the Town of Apex. The purpose of 
these hearings is to consider the following: 
 

Applicant: Bill Zahn, Humie Olive Associates 
Authorized Agent: Jeff Roach, Peak Engineering & Design 
Property Addresses: 0 & 8633 Humie Olive Road 
Acreage: ±18.737 acres  
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0711805090, 0710897972, 0710993712 
2045 Land Use Map Designation: Low Density Residential  
Existing Zoning of Properties: Wake County Residential-40 (R-40W) 
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ) 

 

Planning Board Remote Public Hearing Date and Time:  January 11, 2021   4:30 PM 
Watch and listen to the livestream here: https://bit.ly/2JYJWQk or http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx (click on the 

Planning Board link for this day in the calendar) 

Call in using the phone number to listen only: 828-552-5717    Conference ID: 406 480 557# 
Follow along with the presentation by viewing a copy of the meeting materials posted the day of the meeting at: 
http://www.apexnc.org/182 
 

Comments may be provided by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-minute 
limit) according to the Remote Participation Policy at: http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. You must 
provide your name and address for the record. Comments shared by noon on Friday, January 8, 2021, will be read during 
the Planning Board meeting.  

 

*Planning Board Remote Review of Additional Comments and Vote Date and Time: January 13, 2021    5:00 PM 
*According to NCGS §166A-19.24, when a public hearing is held with at least one member attending virtually, written comments 
on the subject of the public hearing may be submitted between publication of any required notice and 24 hours after the public 
hearing. 

Watch and listen to the livestream here: https://bit.ly/3nrLl09 or http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx (click on the 

Planning Board link for this day in the calendar) 
Call in using the phone number to listen only: 828-552-5717    Conference ID: 504 607 753# 
Follow along with the presentation by viewing a copy of the meeting materials posted the day of the meeting at: 
http://www.apexnc.org/182 

 

Comments may be provided by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-minute 
limit) according to the Remote Participation Policy at: http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. You must 
provide your name and address for the record. Comments shared between noon on Friday, January 8, 2021, and 24 hours 
after the end of the first Planning Board meeting will be read during this meeting. 

 

A separate notice of the Town Council public hearing on this project will be mailed and posted in order to comply with 
State public notice requirements. 
 

Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent this notice via first class mail. All interested 
parties may appear at the public hearing and be heard with respect to the application. Maps showing the location for the above 
site(s) to be considered in addition to a copy of the 2045 Land Use Map can be inspected at the Apex Town Hall or call 919-249-
3426, Department of Planning and Community Development, for further information. To view the petition and related documents 
on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33874. 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 267 -

https://bit.ly/2JYJWQk
http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx
http://www.apexnc.org/182
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
https://bit.ly/3nrLl09
http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx
http://www.apexnc.org/182
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/478
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33874/20CZ13_Redacted?bidId=.


- Page 268 -



- Page 269 -



- Page 270 -



TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

Published Dates: January 4-26, 2021 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #20CZ13 
Yumeewarra Farm Assembly 
0 & 8633 Humie Olive Road   

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160A-364 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Town Council of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 
 

Applicant: Bill Zahn, Humie Olive Associates 
Authorized Agent: Jeff Roach, Peak Engineering & Design 
Property Addresses: 0 & 8633 Humie Olive Road  
Acreage: ±18.737 acres 
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0711805090, 0710897972, 0710993712 
2045 Land Use Map Designation: Low Density Residential 
Existing Zoning of Properties: Wake County Residential-40W (R-40W) 
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ) 
 
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  

                                       Council Chambers, 2nd Floor 
                                       73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

 
Comments received prior to or during the Planning Board public hearing will not be read during the Town Council 

public hearing. Separate comments must be provided for the two public hearings in the time frames specified below. 
 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  January 26, 2021    6:00 PM  
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 
If you are unable to attend, you may provide comments no sooner than Friday, January 8, 2021 at noon but 
no later than noon on Monday, January 25, 2021 by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or 
voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-minute limit) according to the Remote Participation Policy at: 
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. You must provide your name and address for the 
record. These comments will be read during the Town Council meeting. 
 
If the Council meeting is held with at least one member attending virtually, written comments on the subject 
of the public hearing may be submitted between publication of any required notice and 24 hours after the 
public hearing and the Council’s vote will occur at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent this notice via first class mail. All interested 
parties may appear at the public hearing and be heard with respect to the application. Maps showing the location for the above 
site(s) to be considered in addition to a copy of the 2045 Land Use Map can be inspected at the Apex Town Hall or call 919-
249-3426, Department of Planning and Community Development, for further information. To view the petition and related 
documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33874. 

 
Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 271 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/478
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33874/20CZ13_Redacted?bidId=.


- Page 272 -



 

Glenn Carrozza 

5625 Dillard Drive                   919-694-0306 

Cary, NC 27511                  FAX:      919-694-7753 

 

January 4, 2021 

 

Dianne Khin, AICP 

Director, Department of Planning and Community Development 

Town of Apex 

Dianne.Khin@apexnc.org 
 

Dear Dianne, 

The Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) Office of School Assignment received information about a proposed 

rezoning/development within the Town of Apex planning area. We are providing this letter to share information about 

WCPSS’s capacity related to the proposal. The following information about the proposed rezoning/development was 

provided through the Wake County Residential Development Notification database: 

• Date of application: November 2, 2020 

• Name of development: 20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm 

• Address of rezoning/development: 0 and 8633 Humie Olive Rd 

• Total number of proposed residential units: 56 

• Type(s) of residential units proposed: Single-family; accessory apartment 

Based on the information received at the time of application, the Office of School Assignment is providing the following 

assessment of possible impacts to the Wake County Public School System: 

☐ Schools at all grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed rezoning/development are 

anticipated to have sufficient capacity for future students. 

☐ Schools at the following grade levels within the current assignment area for the proposed rezoning/development 

are anticipated to have insufficient capacity for future students; transportation to schools outside of the current 

assignment area should be anticipated: 

☐ Elementary ☐ Middle ☐ High 

The following mitigation of capacity concerns due to school construction or expansion is anticipated:  

☐ Not applicable – existing school capacity is anticipated to be sufficient. 

☐ School expansion or construction within the next five years is not anticipated to address concerns. 

☐ School expansion or construction within the next five years may address concerns at these grade levels:  

☐ Elementary ☐ Middle ☐ High 

Thank you for sharing this information with the Town of Apex Planning Board and Town Council as they consider 

the proposed rezoning/development. 

 

Sincerely, 

Glenn Carrozza, Senior Director 

X

X X

X

- Page 273 -

mailto:Dianne.khin@apexnc.org


ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE TOWN OF APEX TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 18.737 ACRES LOCATED ON 0 AND 8633 HUMIE OLIVE 
ROAD FROM WAKE COUNTY RESIDENTIAL-40W (R-40W) TO LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL-
CONDITIONAL ZONING (LD-CZ) 
 

#20CZ13 
 
WHEREAS, the application of Bill Zahn, Humie Olive Associates, petitioner, for the rezoning of lands 
hereinafter described was duly filed with the office of the Planning Director and thereafter a public hearings 
was held hereon on the 11th day of January 2021 before the Planning Board and on the 13th day of January 
2021 the Planning Board voted. Thereafter, the Planning Board submitted its final report to the Town 
Council recommending approval of said application for the rezoning of the lands hereinafter described, all in 
accordance with the requirements of the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance and the provisions 
of Chapter 160A, Article 19, of the North Carolina General Statutes. A public hearing was held on the 26th 
day of January 2021, before the Town Council. All public hearings were held pursuant to due notice mailed 
and published pursuant to G.S. § 160A-384; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 
 
 
 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are hereafter 
referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 
 
 
            Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Wake County Residential-40W (R-40W)to Low Density 
Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ) District, subject to the conditions stated herein. 
 
 

Section 3:  The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the following conditions which are imposed as 
part of this rezoning: 
 
 
Zoning Conditions: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses 
are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such 
references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  

1. Single-family 
2. Family care home 
3. Accessory apartment 
4. Utility, minor  
5. Park, active 
6. Park, passive 
7. Greenway 
8. Recreation facility, private 

 
Conditions: 

1. The project density will not exceed 3.00 dwelling units/acre. Maximum number of units is 56 
dwelling units. Minimum lot size shall be 5,865 sq.ft.  

- Page 274 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map  #20CZ13 
Page 2 
 

2. The project will provide a minimum of two (2) points of access if over fifty (50) residential lots are 
proposed. Project shall be accessed on Humie Olive Road, and a stub provided to the N/F Edward & 
Deborah Peart property (PIN 0720-09-3139), consistent with the location of the stub streets 
approved in the Heelan PUD, or as agreed upon with the Town of Apex Planning and Transportation 
staff during Master Subdivision Plan review and approval. 

3. All homes shall have a crawl space or raised foundation which at a minimum rises 20 inches from 
average grade across the front of the house to the finished floor level at the front door. Zero-entry 
homes without the 20-inch rise are permitted if 1st- floor owner suite is provided. Lots permitted as 
“zero-entry” shall be noted on the Final Plat. 

4. Setbacks shall be as follows to correspond with the approved Heelan PUD: 

• Front:  Reduce from 25’ minimum to 20’ minimum 

• Side:  Reduce from 8’ minimum with a 20’ aggregate to a 5’ minimum 

• Rear:  Reduce from 25’ minimum to 15’ minimum 

• Corner side: Reduce from 18’ minimum to 15’ minimum 
5. The project will provide sidewalk on both sides of all internal streets. 
6. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted. 
7. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 
8. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 decorative 

elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  

• Windows 

• Bay window 

• Recessed or Decorative window 

• Trim around the window 

• Wrap around porch or side porch 

• Two or more building materials 

• Decorative brick/stone 

• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 

• Decorative gable 

• Decorative air vents on gable 

• Decorative cornice 

• Column 

• Portico 

• Balcony 

• Dormer 
9. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision, to include a minimum 

of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter and accent colors 
complementing the siding color.  

10. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 
porch/stoop area leading to the front door. Front façades and porches may encroach up to 5-feet 
into front setback provided the garage is located no closer than 20-feet from the right-of-way. 

11. Garage may protrude up to 5-feet from the front façade or front porch. Garage doors shall have 
windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on them. Garage may protrude more 
than 5-feet with J-drives or courtyards for side entry doors. 

12. All homes shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 
13. Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict construction of any accessory dwelling unit. 
14. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
15. Garages on the front façade of a home that faces the street shall not exceed 50% of the total width 

of the house and garage together. 
16. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 

around the windows. 
17. Front porches shall be a minimum of 6 feet deep. 
18. Existing deciduous trees greater than 18” in diameter that are removed by site development shall 

be replaced by planting a 1.5” caliper native tree from the Town of Apex Design and Development 
Manual either on-site or at an alternative site location approved by Town Planning Staff, above and 
beyond standard UDO requirements. 

19. The existing overhead electric easement along Humie Olive Road shall be counted towards the 

required RCA and buffer standards as identified within various UDO sections. The buffer is 
- Page 275 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map  #20CZ13 
Page 3 
 

proposed to be an average width buffer of 50’. The buffer shall be planted to a Type ‘B’ buffer 

standard along the Humie Olive Road frontage. 

20. Left turn lane(s) meeting NCDOT requirements shall be provided on Humie Olive Road for each 
proposed point of access where left turn movements are proposed if permitted by NCDOT. 

 
 

Section 4:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official Zoning 
District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect the 
zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 

 
 
Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including 

the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance.  Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

 
 
Section 6:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
 
 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 
 
 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 
 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 
 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 
 
 This the _____ day of _________________ 2021. 
 
 

                                                                   TOWN OF APEX 
 
 

                                                                      ____________________________________ 
                                                                                                                              Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
                        Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
                     Town Attorney 

- Page 276 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  

 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

 

 

Page 12 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

COMMENCING AT A POINT, SAID POINT BEING PUBLISHED IN THE NATIONAL GEODETIC SURVEY AS 
JORDAN LAKE CORS ARP (PID: DL3891) AND HAVING NC GRID COORDINATES OF NORTHING: 739,273.05' & 
EASTING: 1,989,789.69'; THENCE S45°13'18"E A GRID DISTANCE OF 41,628.09' TO A 60D "MAG HUB" NAIL 
KNOWN AS CE GROUP POINT NUMBER 2 HAVING NC GRID COORDINATES OF NORTHING: 709,949.21' AND 
EASTING: 2,019,341.41'; THENCE N78°49'38"E A DISTANCE OF 537.58' TO AN EXISTING RAILROAD SPIKE 
FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING 
PAVEMENT WHICH IS HEREBY KNOW AS THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

BEGINNING AT A RAILROAD SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 0.3 
FEET BELOW THE EXISTING PAVEMENT; THENCE FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING A BEARING OF S06°
53'52"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.02 FEET TO A POINT LYING ON THE SOUTHERN MARGIN OF HUMIE OLIVE 
ROAD (NCSR 1142) HAVING A 60 FOOT RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE ALONG THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN 
YUMEEWARRA FARM, LLC AND JERIF AND LISA CICIN A BEARING OF S06°53'52"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 
448.68 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S06°53'52"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 101.69 FEET TO AN IRON 
PIPE FOUND, SAID PIPE BEING A COMMON CORNER WITH EDWARD AND DEBORAH PEART; THENCE, N89°
49'36"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 617.64 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND, SAID PIPE BEING THE NORTHEASTERN 
MOST CORNER OF THE WILLIAM AND JILL GOODMAN PROPERTY; THENCE, N89°46'37"W FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 532.95 FEET TO A PINCHED TOP IRON FOUND, SAID IRON BEING THE NORTHEASTERN 
MOST CORNER OF DENNIS AND SELENA RUSH AND BEING A COMMON CORNER WITH GOODMAN; 
THENCE, N89°47'51"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 280.22 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND, SAID IRON PIPE BEING 
THE SOUTHWESTERN COMMON CORNER WITH BRIAN OLIVE; THENCE ALONG THE COMMON LINE WITH 
OLIVE A BEARING N 00°11' 11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 272.20 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE N00°
11'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 484.52 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT LYING ON THE SOUTHERN MARGIN OF 
HUMIE OLIVE ROAD(NCSR 1142); THENCE, N 00°11'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.45 FEET TO A RAILROAD 
SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING 
PAVEMENT; THENCE FOLLOWING THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD THE FOLLOWING TWENTY 
FOUR CALLS: THENCE, S79°56'58"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 15.49 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S76°36'37"E FOR 
A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S71°54'37"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.92 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE, S69°08'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 21.22 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S69°08'04"E FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 28.73 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S67°48'08"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 17.56 FEET TO A RAILROAD SPIKE 
FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 1142) 0.3 FEET BELOW THE EXISTING 
PAVEMENT; THENCE, S67°51'05"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 32.37 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S64°43'10"E FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 99.91 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S61°40'23"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 61.40 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE, S62°07'30"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 38.78 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S 58°43'01"E FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 150.03 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S61°52'28"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.83 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, 
S67°24'09"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 50.11 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S74°44'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 50.55 
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S81°32'42"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.41 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, S85°55'19'E 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.79 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N89°18'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 49.93 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE, N84°27'44"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 47.90 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N82°55'35"E FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 63.56 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N80°49'28"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 99.97 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE, N80°40'19"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 115.15 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N81°08'07"E FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 121.56 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, N80°48'24"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 98.53 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE, 
N81°04'38"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 19.75 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING KNOWN AS THE POINT AND 
PLACE OF BEGINNING, HAVING AN AREA OF 816,193 SQUARE FEET, OR 18.737 ACRES OF WHICH 42,998 
SQUARE FEET OR 0.987 ACRES ARE WITHIN THE 60 FOOT RIGHT OF WAY FOR HUMIE OLIVE ROAD (NCSR 
1142). 

 

- Page 277 -

abunce
Typewritten Text
20CZ13



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  2 6 ,  2 0 2 1  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Lau ren  S tau de n mai e r ,  P l ann er  I  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t   

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  He ar i ng  an d p os s i b le  mo t i on  to  a p pro ve  R ezo n i ng Ap p l i c at i o n  # 20 CZ 1 5  S mi th f i e ld  R o a d 

Co l l i s i on  C en te r .  Th e  ap p l i c an t ,  S penc er  B .  Te r r y  I I I ,  P .E ,  C aro l i na  Lan d De v e lo p men t  G roup ,  I nc . ,  

seeks  to  rez one  a ppr ox i ma te l y  3 .86  ac res  fo r  the  p r oper t i e s  l oc at ed  at  5920  &  0  O l d  S mi th f i e l d  

R oa d (p o r t i on  o f  P I N  0740649391  an d por t i on  o f  P I N  0740649679) ,  f ro m R u r a l  R es i d en t i a l  (R R )  an d 

H i gh  Dens i ty  S i n g le -F a mi l y  R es i de nt i a l  (H D S F )  t o  L i gh t  I ndus t r i a l -C ondi t i on a l  Zon i n g (L I -CZ ) .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

The  P l ann i n g a nd  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  De p ar t me nt  rec o m m end s  a p pro va l .   

 

The  P l ann i n g B oar d h e ld  a  Pu b l i c  H ear i n g on  J anu ar y  11 ,  202 1  a nd vot ed  on  J anu ary  1 3 ,  2 0 2 1  t o  

rec o mmen d a ppr o va l  o f  the  re zon i n g  w i th  t he  c on d i t i on s  as  o f fe r ed by  t he  ap p l i c an t ,  by  a  vo te  

o f  8 -0 .   

I tem De ta i l s  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  S taf f  R e p or t  

  Vi c i n i ty  M a p  

  Ap p l i c at i on  

 

 

- Page 278 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center 
5920 & 0 Old Smithfield Road 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 1 of 4 Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 
 

All property owners within 300 feet of this rezoning have been notified per UDO Sec. 2.2.11 Public 
Notification. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
Location:  5920 & 0 Old Smithfield Road 
Applicant/Owner:   Spencer B. Terry III, Carolina Land Development Group, Inc./Anthony K. & Melissa 

S. Woodell and R. Markham & Ruth B. Stewart 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Acreage: +3.816 
PINs: 0740-64-9391 (portion of) and 0740-64-9679 (portion of) 
Current Zoning: Rural Residential (RR) and High Density Single-Family Residential (HDSF)  
Proposed Zoning:  Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) 
2045 Land Use Map: Industrial Employment 
Town Limits: Corporate Limits and ETJ 

 
Adjacent Zoning & Land Uses:  

                     Zoning Land Use 

North:  High Density-Single Family (HDSF) NC 540 Highway; vacant 

South: Holly Springs Residential-15 (R-15) Old Smithfield Rd; vacant  

East:  
High Density-Single Family (HDSF); Rural 

Residential (RR) 
Highway 55 Bypass; vacant  

West: 
Light Industrial (LI); High Density-Single Family 

(HDSF) 
Greenway Waste Solutions; Wake County 

Sanitary Landfill  

 
Existing Conditions: 
The subject properties are a total of +/- 3.816 acres and are located west of Highway 55 Bypass, south of NC 
540 Highway, and east of the Wake County Landfill. Both properties are vacant and wooded with a stream 
located generally along the common property line.  
 
Neighborhood Meeting: 
The applicant conducted neighborhood meetings on October 29, 2020 and December 10, 2020. The 
neighborhood meeting reports are attached. 
 
2045 LAND USE MAP: 
The 2045 Land Use Map identifies the subject properties as Industrial Employment. The proposed rezoning to 
Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) is consistent with that land use classification.  
 
 
 
 

- Page 279 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center 
5920 & 0 Old Smithfield Road 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 2 of 4 Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 
 

PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 
 

Limitation of Uses: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are 
subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated 
below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply 
that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  
 
Permitted Uses and Limitations:  

1. Security or caretaker quarters (P) 33.  Repair services, limited (P) 

2. Government service (P) 34.  Retail sales, bulky goods (P) 
3. Transportation facility (P) 35.  Self-service storage (P) 
4. Veterinary clinic or hospital (P) 36.  Studio for art (P) 
5. Vocational school (P) 37.  Upholstery shop (P) 
6. Communication tower, commercial (S) 38.  Pet services (P) 
7. Communication tower, constructed stealth (S) 39.  Automotive Accessory Sales and Installation (P) 
8. Communication tower, camouflage stealth (S) 40.  Automotive paint or body shop (P) 
9. Communication tower, public safety (S) 41.  Automotive parts (P) 
10. Electrical power facility (S) 42.  Automotive service station (P) 
11. Recycling collection station (P) 43.  Car wash or auto detailing (P) 
12. Utility, minor (P) 44.  Repair and maintenance, general (P) 
13. Wireless support structure (P) 45.  Towing service (P) 
14. Wireless communication facility (P) 46.  Towing service storage (P) 
15. Botanical garden (P) 47.  Truck terminal (P) 
16. Entertainment, indoor (P) 48.  Vehicle sales and rental, heavy (P) 
17. Entertainment, outdoor (S) 49.  Building supplies, wholesale (P) 
18. Greenway (P) 50.  Contractor’s office and storage yard (P) 
19. Park, active (P) 51.  Gas and fuel, wholesale (P) 
20. Park, passive (P) 52.  Laboratory, industrial research (P) 
21. Broadcasting station (radio and television (P) 53.  Machine or welding shop (P) 
22. Radio and television recording studio (P) 54.  Warehousing (P) 
23. Commissary (P) 55.  Woodworking or cabinetmaking (P) 
24. Dispatching office (P) 56.  Wholesaling, general (P) 
25. Medical or dental office or clinic (P) 57.  Brewery (P) 
26. Medical or dental laboratory (P) 58.  Distillery (P) 
27. Office, business or professional (P) 59.  Manufacturing and processing (P) 
28. Research facility (P) 60.  Manufacturing and processing, minor (P) 
29. Artisan Studio (P) 61.  Microbrewery (P) 
30. Gas and fuel, retail (P) 62.  Microdistillery (P) 
31. Glass sales (P)  
32. Kennel (P)  

 
 
 
 

- Page 280 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center 
5920 & 0 Old Smithfield Road 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 3 of 4 Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 
 

Conditions: 
 

1. Predominant exterior building materials shall be high quality, including brick, wood, staked stone, other 
native stone, and tinted/textured concrete masonry units. Elevations of non-residential buildings facing 
public roadways and public areas within the development shall be constructed with similar materials.  

2. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be used in the first four feet above grade and shall be limited to only 
25% of each building façade. 

3. The rear elevations of non-residential buildings that are not visible from parking lots or public streets 
may include decorative concrete masonry, metal coping, or EIFS trim.  

4. A 100’ riparian buffer shall be provided for all perennial streams in accordance with the requirements 
of UDO Sec.6.1 as of November 2, 2020. 

 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of the rezoning #20CZ15 with conditions offered by the applicant.  
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board held a Public Hearing on January 11, 2021 and voted on January 13, 2021 to unanimously 
recommend approval of the rezoning with the conditions offered by the applicant, by a vote of 8-0. 
 
ANALYSIS STATEMENT OF THE REASONABLENESS OF THE PROPOSED REZONING: 
This Statement will address consistency with the Town’s comprehensive and other applicable plans, 
reasonableness, and effect on public interest: 
 
Approval of the rezoning is reasonable because the proposed Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) 
district is consistent with the 2045 Land Use Plan and other adopted plans. The 2045 Land Use Map classifies 
the subject property as Industrial Employment which includes the LI-CZ district.  
 
The proposed rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest because it will allow for the development of 
non-residential uses that are consistent with the surrounding properties, especially those to the west. It will 
also encourage compatible development of the property and increase the tax base.  

 
CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS: 
The Town Council shall find the LI-CZ designation demonstrates compliance with the following standards. 
2.3.3.F: 

 

Legislative Considerations  
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or 
not the proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These considerations 
do not exclude the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest.  

 

1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
appropriateness for its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and 
policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.  

 

- Page 281 -



STAFF REPORT 
Rezoning #20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center 
5920 & 0 Old Smithfield Road 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

Page 4 of 4 Prepared by: Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner I 
 

2)  Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s appropriateness for its proposed 
location and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.  

 

3)  Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s compliance 
with Sec 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable.  

 

4)  Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service 
delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s 
minimization of environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and 
air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 

6)  Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s avoidance of having 
adverse impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater 
facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 

7)  Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s effect on the health, 
safety, or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 

 

8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning District use is 
substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 

 

9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning District use 
constitutes a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons 
who will be using the Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 

10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning District use 
complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for 
use, layout, and general development characteristics. 

- Page 282 -



- Page 283 -



PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP & 2045 LAND USE MAP   
sclosed to 

third parties. 
Application #:  Submittal Date:  

2045 LUM  Amendment:  Fee Paid:  

Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

Project Information 

Project Name:  

Address(es):  

PIN(s):  

  Acreage:  

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning:  

Current 2045 LUM Designation:  

Proposed 2045 LUM Designation:  
See next page for LUM Amendment.  

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

Area classified as mixed use: Acreage:  

Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage:  

Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent:  
   

Applicant Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
  

Owner Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
  

Agent Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Other contacts:  

  

  

  

Page 3 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application
- Page 284 -

Spencer
Text Box

Spencer
Text Box
20CZ15

Spencer
Text Box
11/2/20



PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP & 2045 LAND USE MAP   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

2045 LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT (IF APPLICABLE) 

The applicant does hereby respectfully request the Town Council amend the 2045 Land Use Map. In support of this 
request, the following facts are shown: 

The area sought to be amended on the 2045 Land Use Map is located at:  
 

 

Current 2045 Land Use Classification:  

Proposed 2045 Land Use Classification:  
 

What condition(s) justifies the passage of the amendment to the 2045 Land Use Map? Discuss the existing use 
classifications of the subject area in addition to the adjacent land use classifications. Use additional pages as needed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application
- Page 285 -



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

An application has been duly filed requesting that the property described in this application be rezoned from 
                       to                        .  It is understood and acknowledged that if the property is rezoned as requested, the property 
described in this request will be perpetually bound to the use(s) authorized and subject to such conditions as imposed, unless 
subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance.  It is further understood and 
acknowledged that final plans for any specific development to be made pursuant to any such Conditional Zoning shall be 
submitted for site or subdivision plan approval. Use additional pages as needed.  

PROPOSED USES: 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are subject to 
the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated below. For 
convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that other sections of 
the UDO do not apply. 

1   21  

2   22  

3   23  

4   24  

5   25  

6   26  

7   27  

8   28  

9   29  

10   30  

11   31  

12   32  

13   33  

14   34  

15   35  

16   36  

17   37  

18   38  

19   39  

20   40  

Page 5 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application
- Page 286 -



Light Industrial permitted uses per Section 4.2 
 

1. Security or caretaker quarters (P) 
2. Government service (P) 

3. Transportation facility (P) 
4. Veterinary clinic or hospital (P) 
5. Vocational school (P) 
6. Communication tower, commercial (S) 
7. Communication tower, constructed stealth (S) 
8. Communication tower, camouflage stealth (S) 
9. Communication tower, public safety (S) 
10. Electrical power facility (S) 
11. Recycling collection station (P) 
12. Utility, minor (P) 
13. Wireless support structure (P) 
14. Wireless communication facility (P) 
15. Botanical garden (P) 
16. Entertainment, indoor (P) 
17. Entertainment, outdoor (S) 
18. Greenway (P) 
19. Park, active (P) 
20. Park, passive (P) 
21. Broadcasting station (radio and television (P) 
22. Radio and television recording studio (P) 
23. Commissary (P) 
24. Dispatching office (P) 
25. Medical or dental office or clinic (P) 
26. Medical or dental laboratory (P) 
27. Office, business or professional (P) 
28. Research facility (P) 
29. Artisan Studio (P) 
30. Gas and fuel, retail (P) 
31. Glass sales (P) 
32. Kennel (P) 
33. Repair services, limited (P) 
34. Retail sales, bulky goods (P) 
35. Self-service storage (P) 
36. Studio for art (P) 
37. Upholstery shop (P) 
38. Pet services (P) 
39. Automotive Accessory Sales and Installation (P) 
40. Automotive paint or body shop (P) 
41. Automotive parts (P) 
42. Automotive service station (P) 
43. Car wash or auto detailing (P) 
44. Repair and maintenance, general (P) 
45. Towing service (P) 
46. Towing service storage (P) 
47. Truck terminal (P) 
48. Vehicle sales and rental, heavy (P) 
49. Building supplies, wholesale (P) 
50. Contractor’s office and storage yard (P) 
51. Gas and fuel, wholesale (P) 
52. Laboratory, industrial research (P) 

- Page 287 -



53. Machine or welding shop (P) 
54. Warehousing (P) 
55. Woodworking or cabinetmaking (P) 
56. Wholesaling, general (P) 
57. Brewery (P) 
58. Distillery (P) 
59. Manufacturing and processing (P) 
60. Manufacturing and processing, minor (P) 
61. Microbrewery (P) 
62. Microdistillery (P) 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

- Page 288 -



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  
 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 

The applicant hereby requests that the Town Council of the Town of Apex, pursuant to the Unified Development 
Ordinance, approve the Conditional Zoning for the above listed use(s) subject to the following condition(s). Use 
additional pages as needed. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATIONS - CONDITIONAL ZONING 

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following considerations, 
which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the proposed conditional 
zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration 
of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. Use additional pages as needed. 

1)  Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map.  
proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map. 
 

 

 

 

 
2)  Compatibility.  
compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 
 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application
- Page 289 -



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  
 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

  
 

3)  Zoning 
Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 

 

 

 

 

 
4) Design minimizes adverse impact.  
adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and avoidance of significant adverse 
impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and 
vibration and not create a nuisance. 
 

 

 

 

 
5)  Design minimizes environmental impact.  
impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and 
other natural resources. 
 

 

 

 

 
6)  Impact on public facilities.  
public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS 
facilities. 
 

 

 

 

 
7)  Health, safety, and welfare.  effect on the health, safety, or welfare 
of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 
 

 

 

Page 7 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application
- Page 290 -



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  
 

 Last Updated: January 10, 2020 

8) Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is substantially 
detrimental to adjacent properties. 
 

 

 

 

 
9)  Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a nuisance 
or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning 
(CZ) District use. 
 

 

 

 

 
10)  Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use complies with 
all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, and general development 
characteristics. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 8 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application
- Page 291 -



- Page 292 -



- Page 293 -



- Page 294 -



- Page 295 -



- Page 296 -



- Page 297 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A  LEGAL DESCRIPTION   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

 

Page 12 of 12 Rezoning & 2045 Land Use Map Amendment Application

All that tract or parcel of land lying or being in Holly Springs Township, Wake County, North Carolina 
and being more particularly described as follows:                                 
                                                                   
     Beginning at an existing PK nail on the northern margin of SR 1172 (Old Smithfield Road) a 
variable Public R/W, said point being the southeast corner of Greenway Waste Solutions of Apex, LLC 
as described in Deed Book 9909, page 1039, Deed Book 16777, Page 570 and Book of Maps 2002, 
Pages 1159-1161 all of the Wake County Registry, and runs thence as the eastern line of said 
Greenway Waste Solutions of Apex, LLC North 02 degrees 38 minutes 11 seconds East for a distance 
of 442.33 feet to an existing iron pipe;                             
     THENCE continuing along the eastern line said Greenway Waste Solutions of Apex, LLC North 02 
degrees 09 minutes 07 seconds East for a distance of 238.93 feet to an existing iron pipe;                        
     THENCE continuing along a northern line of said Greenway Waste Solutions of Apex, LLC North 
87 degrees 50 minutes 57 seconds West for a distance of 59.98 to an existing PK nail;
     THENCE along an eastern line of said Greenway Waste Solutions of Apex, LLC North 02 degrees 
39 minutes 33 seconds East for a distance of 198.30 feet to an existing concrete R/W monument on the 
southern margin of a ramp from NC 540 a variable Public R/W;
     THENCE leaving said Greenway Waste Solutions of Apex and along the southern margin of said 
ramp from NC 540 South 65 degrees 58 minutes 50 seconds East for a distance of 224.31 feet to an 
existing concrete R/W monument;
     THENE continuing along the southern margin of said NC 540 South 45 degrees 40 minutes 17 
seconds East for a distance of 105.83 feet to an existing concrete R/W monument, said point being on 
the western margin of NC 55 Bypass (GB Alford Highway) a variable public R/W;
     THENCE leaving said NC 540 and along the western margin of NC 55 Bypass South 23 degrees 05 
minutes 18 seconds West for a distance of 81.32 feet to an existing concrete R/W monument;
     THENCE continuing along the western margin of NC 55 Bypass South 12 degrees 45 minutes 06 
seconds West for a distance of 160.24 feet to a point;
     THENCE continuing along the western margin of NC 55 Bypass South 22 degrees 12 minutes 15 
seconds East for a distance of 67.46 feet to an existing concrete R/W monument;
     THENCE continuing along the western margin of NC 55 Bypass South 04 degrees 13 minutes 24 
seconds East for a distance of 285.56 feet to an existing concrete R/W monument;
     THENCE continuing along the margin of said NC 55 Bypass South 47 degrees 06 minutes 06 
seconds West for a distance of 102.56 to an existing concrete R/W monument on the northern margin of 
said SR 1172;
     THENCE along the northern margin of said SR 1172 along a curve to the left having a radius of 
1031.81 feet and an arc length of 176.94 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of South 67 degrees 
31 minutes 37 seconds West for a distance of 176.73 feet to the Point and Place of BEGINNG;                
 
     Together with and subject to 60 Access Easement as described in Deed Book 9488, Page 925, 
Sanitary Sewer Easement as described in Deed Book 3059, Page 114, 30' Powerline easement as 
described in Deed Book 8522, Page 2338 all of the Wake County Registry as well as all covenants, 
easements, and restrictions of record.   
                                                                  
     Said property contains 3.816 acres more or less.        

- Page 298 -



NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
 

or disclosed to third parties. 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

 
Date 

Dear Neighbor: 
You are invited to a neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at  

   
Address(es)  PIN(s) 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended to be a 
way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors and 
neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors an 
opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is officially 
submitted. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive 
Development Map or the Apex Development Report located on the Town of Apex website at 
www.apexnc.org.  

 
A Neighborhood Meeting is required because this project includes (check all that apply): 

Application Type Approving Authority 

 Rezoning (including Planned Unit Development) Town Council 

 Major Site Plan Town Council (QJPH*) 

 Special Use Permit Town Council (QJPH*) 

 Residential Master Subdivision Plan (excludes exempt subdivisions) Technical Review 
Committee (staff) 

*Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: The Town Council cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing. 

The following is a description of the proposal (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)):  
 

 

 

Estimated submittal date:  

MEETING INFORMATION:  

Property Owner(s) name(s):  

Applicant(s):    

Contact information (email/phone):     

Meeting Address:    

Date of meeting**:    

Time of meeting**:    

MEETING AGENDA TIMES: 
Welcome:  _____________    Project Presentation:  _____________    Question & Answer:  _____________ 
 

**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized 
holidays). If you have questions about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning Department 
at 919-249-3426. You may also find information about the Apex Planning Department and on-going planning efforts at 
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning. 

Page 3 of 9
- Page 299 -



PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

or disclosed to third parties. 
 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

Development Contacts:  

Project Name:  Zoning:  

Location:  

Property PIN(s):  Acreage/Square Feet:  
 

Property Owner:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Email:  

Developer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Engineer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Builder (if known):  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 
they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

Town of Apex Department Contacts 
Planning Department Main Number 

(Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) 
 
(919) 249-3426 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 
Angela Reincke, Parks Planner  

 
(919) 249-7468 

Public Works - Transportation 
Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 
(919) 249-3358 

Water Resources Department  
Mike Deaton, Stormwater & Utility Engineering Manager 
Stan Fortier, Senior Engineer (Sedimentation & Erosion Control) 

 
(919) 249-3413 
(919) 249-1166 

Electric Utilities Division 
Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager 

 
(919) 249-3342 

Page 4 of 9
- Page 300 -

Spencer
Text Box
/ R. Markham and Ruth B. Stewart



- Page 301 -



- Page 302 -



- Page 303 -



- Page 304 -



- Page 305 -



- Page 306 -



Parcel 1 – Main Tract 
Anthony Woodell and Melissa Woodell 
345 Camelot Lane 
Sanford NC 27330 
 
Parcel 2 – Main Tract 
Anthony Woodell and Melissa Woodell 
345 Camelot Lane 
Sanford NC 27330 
 
Parcel 3 – Greenway Waste (Private Landfill) 
Greenway Waste Solutions of Apex, LLC 
19109 W. Catawha Ave. Ste 110 
Cornelius, NC 28031 
 
Parcel 4 – Highway 55 C & D Landfill LLC 
Highway 55 C & D Landfill LLC. 
19109 W. Catawha Ave. Ste 110 
Cornelius, NC 28031 
 
Parcel 5 – Highway 55 C & D Landfill LLC 
Highway 55 C & D Landfill LLC. 
19109 W. Catawha Ave. Ste 110 
Cornelius, NC 28031 
 
Parcel 6 – Town of Apex 
Town of Apex 
PO Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502 
 
Parcel 7 – Wake County Landfill 
Wake County Attorney’s Office 
PO Box 550 
Raleigh, NC 27602 
 
Parcel 8 – Patsy Smith Morgan Trustee 
Patsy Smith Morgan Trustee 
323 Golf Course Drive 
Raleigh, NC 27610 
 
Parcel 9 – Patsy Smith Morgan Trustee 
323 Golf Course Drive 
Raleigh, NC 27610 
 
Parcel 10 – Patsy Smith Morgan Trustee 
323 Golf Course Drive 
Raleigh, NC 27610 

- Page 307 -



NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
 

or disclosed to third parties. 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

 
Date 

Dear Neighbor: 
You are invited to a neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at  

   
Address(es)  PIN(s) 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended to be a 
way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors and 
neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors an 
opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is officially 
submitted. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive 
Development Map or the Apex Development Report located on the Town of Apex website at 
www.apexnc.org.  

 
A Neighborhood Meeting is required because this project includes (check all that apply): 

Application Type Approving Authority 

 Rezoning (including Planned Unit Development) Town Council 

 Major Site Plan Town Council (QJPH*) 

 Special Use Permit Town Council (QJPH*) 

 Residential Master Subdivision Plan (excludes exempt subdivisions) Technical Review 
Committee (staff) 

*Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: The Town Council cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing. 

The following is a description of the proposal (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)):  
 

 

 

Estimated submittal date:  

MEETING INFORMATION:  

Property Owner(s) name(s):  

Applicant(s):    

Contact information (email/phone):     

Meeting Address:    

Date of meeting**:    

Time of meeting**:    

MEETING AGENDA TIMES: 
Welcome:  _____________    Project Presentation:  _____________    Question & Answer:  _____________ 
 

**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized 
holidays). If you have questions about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning Department 
at 919-249-3426. You may also find information about the Apex Planning Department and on-going planning efforts at 
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning. 

Page 3 of 9
- Page 308 -

Spencer
Text Box

Spencer
Text Box
/ R. Markham and Ruth B. Stewart



PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

or disclosed to third parties. 
 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

Development Contacts:  

Project Name:  Zoning:  

Location:  

Property PIN(s):  Acreage/Square Feet:  
 

Property Owner:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Email:  

Developer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Engineer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Builder (if known):  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 
they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

Town of Apex Department Contacts 
Planning Department Main Number 

(Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) 
 
(919) 249-3426 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 
Angela Reincke, Parks Planner  

 
(919) 249-7468 

Public Works - Transportation 
Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 
(919) 249-3358 

Water Resources Department  
Mike Deaton, Stormwater & Utility Engineering Manager 
Stan Fortier, Senior Engineer (Sedimentation & Erosion Control) 

 
(919) 249-3413 
(919) 249-1166 

Electric Utilities Division 
Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager 

 
(919) 249-3342 

Page 4 of 9
- Page 309 -

Spencer
Text Box
/ R. Markham and Ruth B. Stewart



Disclaimer
iMaps makes every effort to produce and publish 
the most current and accurate information possible.
However, the maps are produced for information purposes,
and are NOT surveys. No warranties, expressed or implied
,are provided for the data therein, its use,or its interpretation.

VICINITY MAP

0 850 1,700425 ft

1 inch = 800 feet

±

- Page 310 -



- Page 311 -



- Page 312 -



- Page 313 -



SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for Neighborhood Meetings  Last Updated: December 20, 2019 

 

Property Owner(s) name(s): _____________________________________________________ 

Applicant(s):  ______________________________________________________________ 

Contact information (email/phone):   _______________________________________________ 

Meeting Address:  ___________________________________________________________ 

Date of meeting:  __________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________ 
 
Please summarize the questions/comments and your response from the Neighborhood Meeting in the spaces 
below (attach additional sheets, if necessary). Please state if/how the project has been modified in response to 
any concerns. 

ven and justification for why no change was deemed warranted. 
 

Question/Concern #1: 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

 Response: 
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Question/Concern #2: 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

 Response: 
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Question/Concern #3: 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Response: 
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Question/Concern #4: 
_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

 Response: 
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________

Page 8 of 9
- Page 314 -

Spencer
Text Box
There  were no questions or concerns with the development the project.

Spencer
Text Box

Spencer
Text Box



- Page 315 -



 
 
Parcel 11 – Natalie B Hinton-Brooks 
Natalie B. Hinton-Brooks 
5900 Old Smithfield Road 
Apex, NC 27539 
 
 
Parcel 12 – Natalie B Hinton-Brooks 
Natalie B. Hinton-Brooks 
5900 Old Smithfield Road 
Apex, NC 27539 
 
Parcel 13 – Alice Beckwith Lee 
Alice Beckwith Lee 
209 West St 
Apex, NC 27502 
 
Parcel 14 – Patsy Smith Morgan Trustee 
Patsy Smith Morgan Trustee 
323 Golf Course Drive 
Raleigh, NC 27610 
 
Parcel 15 – Patsy Smith Morgan Trustee 
Patsy Smith Morgan Trustee 
323 Golf Course Drive 
Raleigh, NC 27610 
 
Parcel 16 – NC Dept of Transportation Turnpike Authority 
NC Dept. of Transportation Turnpike Authority 
Transportation Section 
1578 MSC 
Raleigh, NC 27699 
 
Parcel 17 – R Markham Stewart – B. Ruth Stewart 
R. Markham Stewart and B. Ruth Stewart 
345 Camelot Lane 
Sanford NC 27330 
 
Parcel 18 – R Markham Stewart – B. Ruth Stewart 
R. Markham Stewart and B. Ruth Stewart 
345 Camelot Lane 
Sanford NC 27330 
 

- Page 316 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 

Page 1 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS §160D-604(b), all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall be submitted to the 
Planning Board for review and comment. If no written report is received from the Planning Board within 30 days of 
referral of the amendment to the Planning Board, the Town Council may act on the amendment without the Planning 
Board report. The Town Council is not bound by the recommendations, if any, of the Planning Board. 

Per NCGS §160D-604(d), the Planning Board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed action is consistent 
with all applicable officially adopted plans, and provide a written recommendation to the Town Council that addresses 
plan consistency and other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the Planning 
Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the officially adopted plans shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the Town Council. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
Acreage:  

PIN(s):  

Current Zoning:  

Proposed Zoning:   

2045 Land Use Map:  

Town Limits:  

Applicable Officially Adopted Plans: 
 

The Board must state whether the project is consistent or inconsistent with the following officially adopted plans, 
if applicable. Applicable plans have a check mark next to them.  

 2045 Land Use Map 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 Apex Transportation Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenways Plan 
 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

January 11 and 13, 2021

20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center

+/- 3.816
0740649391 (portion of) and 0740649679 (portion of)

Rural Residential (RR) and High Density- Single Family (HDSF)

Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ)

Industrial Employment 

0740649391 (portion of) in ETJ; 0740649679 (portion of) in Corporate Limits

- Page 317 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 

Page 2 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Legislative Considerations: 
The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following 
considerations, which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the 
proposed conditional zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude 
the legislative consideration of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. 

1. Consistency with 2045 Land Use Plan. The proposed Conditional 
its proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use 
Plan. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  
 

2. Compatibility. 
and compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

3. Zoning district supplemental standards. The 
Sec. 4.4 Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

4. Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of 
minimization of adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and 
avoidance of significant adverse impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, 
parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

5. Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning 
environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife 
habitat, scenic resources, and other natural resources. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 

January 11 and 13, 2021

20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center

- Page 318 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 

Page 3 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

 
6. Impact on public facilities. 

impacts on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, 
schools, police, fire and EMS facilities. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

7. Health, safety, and welfare. effect on the health, safety, 
or welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

8. Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is 
substantially detrimental to adjacent properties. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

9. Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a 
nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the 
Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

10. Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use 
complies with all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, 
and general development characteristics. 

 Consistent  Inconsistent Reason:  

 

January 11 and 13, 2021

20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center

- Page 319 -



 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Rezoning Case: 

Planning Board Meeting Date: 
 

Page 4 Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Planning Board Recommendation: 

Motion:  

Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  

  
 Approval: the project is consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and the applicable legislative 

considerations listed above. 
 

 Approval with conditions: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the 
applicable legislative considerations as noted above, so the following conditions are recommended to be 
included in the project in order to make it fully consistent: 

 
 Denial: the project is not consistent with all applicable officially adopted plans and/or the applicable 

legislative considerations as noted above. 
 
 

 With ____ Planning  
 

 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  

  

  

  

  
This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the  day of  2021. 

 
 

Attest:  
 

  
Michael Marks, Planning Board Chair  Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and 

Community Development 
 

To recommend approval with conditions as offered by applicant.

Mark Steele
Reginald Skinner

Conditions as offered by applicant.

8

0

13th January

January 11 and 13, 2021

20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center

- Page 320 -



- Page 321 -



TOWN OF APEX
POST OFFICE BOX 250
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502
PHONE 919-249-3426

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS

CONDITIONAL ZONING #20CZ15
Smithfield Road Collision Center

5920 & 0 Old Smithfield Road

Published Dates: December 29, 2020- January 11, 2021

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160A-364 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Planning Board of the Town of Apex. The
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following:

Applicant: Spencer B. Terry III, P.E. Carolina Land Development Group, Inc.
Authorized Agent: John L. Auton, III, Imperial Self Storage Development, Inc.
Property Address(es): 5920 Old Smithfield Road & 0 Old Smithfield Road
Acreage: ±3.816 acres
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0740-64-9391 (portion of) and 0740-64-9679 (portion of)
2045 Land Use Map Designation: Industrial Employment
Existing Zoning of Properties: Rural Residential (RR) and High Density Single-Family Residential (HDSF)
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ)

Planning Board Remote Public Hearing Date and Time:  January 11, 2021   4:30 PM
Watch and listen to the livestream here: https://bit.ly/2JYJWQk  or http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx (click on the

Planning Board link for this day in the calendar)

Call in using the phone number to listen only: 828-552-5717    Conference ID: 406 480 557#

Follow along with the presentation by viewing a copy of the meeting materials posted the day of the meeting at:
http://www.apexnc.org/182

Comments may be provided by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-
minute limit) according to the Remote Participation Policy at: http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/.
You must provide your name and address for the record. Comments shared by noon on Friday, January 8, 2021 will be
read during the Planning Board meeting. 

*Planning Board Remote Review of Additional Comments and Vote Date and Time: January 13, 2021    5:00 PM
*According to NCGS §166A-19.24, when a public hearing is held with at least one member attending virtually, written comments
on the subject of the public hearing may be submitted between publication of any required notice and 24 hours after the public
hearing.

Watch and listen to the livestream here: https://bit.ly/3nrLl09  or http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx (click on the
Planning Board link for this day in the calendar)

Call in using the phone number to listen only: 828-552-5717    Conference ID: 504 607 753#

Follow along with the presentation by viewing a copy of the meeting materials posted the day of the meeting at:
http://www.apexnc.org/182

Comments may be provided by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-
minute limit) according to the Remote Participation Policy at: http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/.
You must provide your name and address for the record. Comments shared between noon on Friday, January 8, 2021,
and 24 hours after the end of the first Planning Board meeting will be read during this meeting.

A separate notice of the Town Council public hearing on this project will be mailed and posted in order to comply with
State public notice requirements.

Vicinity Map:

Property owners within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent this notice via first class mail. All interested
parties may appear at the public hearing and be heard with respect to the application. Maps showing the location for the above
site(s) to be considered in addition to a copy of the 2045  Land  Use  Map can be inspected at the Apex Town Hall or call 919-249-
3426, Department of Planning and Community Development, for further information. To view the petition and related
documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33877.

Dianne F. Khin, AICP
Director of Planning and Community Development

- Page 322 -

https://bit.ly/2JYJWQk
http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx
http://www.apexnc.org/182
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
https://bit.ly/3nrLl09
http://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx
http://www.apexnc.org/182
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/478
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33877/20CZ15?bidId=.


- Page 323 -



- Page 324 -



TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

Published Dates: January 4- 26, 2021 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

CONDITIONAL ZONING #20CZ15 
Smithfield Road Collision Center 

5920 5220 & 0 Old Smithfield Road  

 
Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160A-364 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Section 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of public hearings before the Town Council of the Town of Apex. The 
purpose of these hearings is to consider the following: 
 

Applicant: Spencer B. Terry III, P.E., Carolina Land Development Group, Inc. 
Authorized Agent: John L. Auton, III, Imperial Self Storage Development, Inc.   
Property Addresses: 5920 Old Smithfield Road & 0 Old Smithfield Road 
Acreage: ±3.816 acres 
Property Identification Numbers (PINs): 0740-64-9391 (portion of) and 0740-64-9679 (portion of) 
2045 Land Use Map Designation: Industrial Employment  
Existing Zoning of Properties: Rural Residential (RR) and High Density Single-Family Residential (HDSF)  
Proposed Zoning of Properties: Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) 
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  

                                       Council Chambers, 2nd Floor 
                                       73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

 
Comments received prior to or during the Planning Board public hearing will not be read during the Town Council 

public hearing. Separate comments must be provided for the two public hearings in the time frames specified below. 
 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  January, 26 2021    6:00 PM  
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 
If you are unable to attend, you may provide comments no sooner than Friday, January 8, 2021 at noon but 
no later than noon on Monday, January 25, 2021 by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or 
voicemail (919-362-7300, 3-minute limit) according to the Remote Participation Policy at: 
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. You must provide your name and address for the 
record. These comments will be read during the Town Council meeting. 
 
If the Council meeting is held with at least one member attending virtually, written comments on the subject 
of the public hearing may be submitted between publication of any required notice and 24 hours after the 
public hearing and the Council’s vote will occur at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
Vicinity Map:  

 
Property owners within 300 feet of the proposed conditional zoning have been sent this notice via first class mail. All interested 
parties may appear at the public hearing and be heard with respect to the application. Maps showing the location for the above 
site(s) to be considered in addition to a copy of the 2045 Land Use Map can be inspected at the Apex Town Hall or call 919-
249-3426, Department of Planning and Community Development, for further information. To view the petition and related 
documents on-line: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33877. 
 

 
Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

- Page 325 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/Home/View/478
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/33877


- Page 326 -



- Page 327 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  26 ,  2 0 2 1  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Sh anno n  C ox ,  Lon g R an ge P l ann i n g M an a g er  an d S arah  K i r k ,  HR & A Ad v i so r s  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  hear i n g an d p os s i b le  mo t i o n  re gar d i ng  a d op t i on  o f  the  T own  o f  A pex  Af f o rda b l e  H ous i n g 

P l an .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

P l ann i n g s t a f f  rec o mmen ds  a d op t i on  o f  th e  T own o f  Ap ex  Af f o rda b l e  H ou s in g P l an ,  a s  

rec o mmen de d b y  the  S tee r i n g C o mmi t te e ,  w i th  c h an ge s  de sc r i bed i n  the  s ta f f  r ep or t  an d 

prese nt a t i on .  

 

The  P l ann i n g B oar d  h e ld  a  pu b l i c  he ar i ng on  J anu ar y  11 ,  2021  a nd vot ed  on  J anu ary  13 ,  2021 .   

The i r  rec o mme n da t i o n  w as  s p l i t  w i t h  fou r  i n  fa vor  an d f ou r  a ga i n s t  rec o m men di ng  a d op t i on  o f  

the  T o wn o f  Ap ex  Af fo rd a b l e  H ous i n g P l an  as  r ec o m men de d b y  t he  S tee r i n g C o m mi t te e  w i t h  

a l te rn a te  wor d i n g fo r  the  I nc ent i ve  Z on i ng  Con di t i on  a s  ex p l a i ne d i n  the  s t a f f  re por t .  

I tem De ta i l s  

The  Tow n o f  Ap e x  en g a ge d HR & A Ad v i s o r s  t o  de ve l op  t he  To wn’ s  f i r s t  Af fo r d ab le  Hou s i ng P l an  

(P l an ) .  The  P la n  i s  i n t ende d t o :  e s ta b l i sh  a  v i s i on  an d go a l s  re l a t ed t o  a f f o r da b le  hou s i ng ,  

ana l yze  ne ed s  ba se d on  ex i s t i n g  c o nd i t i ons  an d t ren ds ,  a nd  p r o v i de  rec o m men d at i on s  w i th  an  

ac t i o n  p la n  fo r  i mp le men t at i o n .  De ve lo p m ent  o f  the  P lan  k i c ked  o f f  i n  M ay ,  2020 .  Th e  p roc e ss  

wa s  i n fo r me d by  a  we l l - r oun de d S t ee r i ng C o mmi t te e  a nd  r o bus t  pub l i c  eng a ge men t  p roc es s .  

Up d at es  were  p r o v i de d to  t he  To wn C ounc i l  i n  Sep te mb er ,  2020  a nd D ec e mber ,  2020 .  The  

R ec o mmen de d Draf t  Af f o r d ab le  Hou s i ng  P l an  as  r ec o m men de d by  th e  S t ee r i ng Co m mi t tee ,  w i th  

ad di t i ona l  c h an ges  p rop ose d as  p ar t  o f  on go i n g c o mmun i ty  en g a ge men t  p r oc e ss  w i l l  be  

p rese nt ed  t o  the  To w n Counc i l  f o r  c ons i de r at i o n  a nd  p os s i b le  a d op t i on .   

At t ac h men t s  

  S taf f  R e p or t  

  At t ac h men t  1 :  De t a i l ed D i s po s i t i on  o f  Pu b l i c  Co mmen t s  

  At t ac h men t  2 :  Tow n o f  Ap ex  Af f o r da b le  H o us i ng P l an ,  Dec e mb er  2020  Pu b l i c  D r af t  

  At t ac h men t  3 :  Tow n o f  Ap ex  Af f o r da b le  H o us i ng P l an ,  J anu ary  2 021 ,  S tee r i n g C o mmi t t ee  

R ec o mmen de d Draf t  

  At t ac h men t  4 :  Al t e rn at e  wor d i ng  fo r  the  I nc ent i ve  Z on i ng  C on di t i on  (p a g e 32 )  

 

- Page 328 -



STAFF REPORT 
The Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

In May of 2020, The Town of Apex began work to develop the first Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan (Plan). 
The Plan was prepared for the Town by HR&A Advisors. The Town Council will consider the Plan, hear 
comments from the public, and formulate a decision regarding Plan adoption. 
 
The purpose of the Plan is to guide the Town’s efforts to identify and address the affordable housing needs of 
its residents. The Plan includes a detailed assessment of housing needs based on analysis of data and public 
input. Using that assessment, the Plan establishes the following vision: “Apex welcomes people of diverse 
backgrounds, and supports opportunities for affordable, safe, sanitary, and quality housing that meets the 
needs of people of all incomes, ages, and abilities.” 
 
To fulfill this vision, the Plan outlines the following goals: 

• Welcome, attract, and retain a diverse population. 
• Meet the housing needs of a diverse population, including providing housing that is affordable to 

people with moderate and low incomes. 
• Connect affordable housing development with transit service, transportation infrastructure, and 

amenities. 
• Partner regionally to meet the needs of vulnerable populations. 
• Raise community awareness of affordable housing needs, solutions, and broader impacts. 

 
The Plan includes 14 recommendations generally grouped in three categories: (1) Building the Town’s Capacity, 
(2) Advancing Advocacy and Public Education, and (3) Implementing Programs and Policies. An Action Plan is 
included to provide guidance for prioritizing implementation of each recommendation over time, measuring 
success, and allocating funds from the Town’s Affordable Housing Fund. 
 
The planning process, including establishment of the vision and goals and development of recommendations, 
was guided by a Steering Committee with representation from: 

• Citizen stakeholders 
• Wake County 
• Triangle J Council of Governments 
• Town Council 
• Planning Board 
• Apex Business Community 

• Non-profit organizations 
• Developers, including developers of 

affordable single-family and multi-family 
homes 

• Town of Cary 

 
In addition to citizen representation on the Steering Committee, the Apex community was engaged through an 
online survey, stakeholder interviews, a virtual presentation of the Plan, and the project web page. Information 
about the planning process was distributed through flyers in utility bills, flyers posted in public places, social 
media, the Town’s website, information available throughout Town Hall, email notifications, and through 
support from the Steering Committee.  
 
Public Comments 
The Plan was presented to the public on December 17, 2020. Comments were requested by December 28, 
2020. Comments received by December 28, 2020 are summarized in Table 1 of Attachment 1. These comments 
were considered by the Steering Committee during their final meeting on January 7, 2021. 
 
Comments may be received up to and through the public hearings before the Planning Board and Town Council. 
Comments received from December 29, 2020 through January 18, 2021 are summarized in Table 2 of 

- Page 329 -



STAFF REPORT 
The Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Attachment 1. These comments were received following the final meeting of the Steering Committee, and 
therefore were not considered as part of the Steering Committee’s recommendation. 
 
Plan Versions 
The Plan, as presented to the public on December 17, 2020, is provided as Attachment 2.   
 
The Plan, as recommended by the Steering Committee on January 7, 2021, is provided as Attachment 3. 
Changes to the December draft are highlighted and shown with a red star on the upper right corner of each 
page. 
 
Based on comments received following the Steering Committee recommendation, additional changes to the 
Incentive Zoning Condition recommendation (page 32) the Plan have been proposed. An alternative version of 
the Incentive Zoning Condition is provided as Attachment 4.  
 
Recommendations 
Steering Committee Recommendation: 
The Steering Committee met on January 7, 2021 to review public comments and consider recommending the 
Plan for adoption. The Steering Committee members in attendance unanimously recommended adoption of 
the Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan, January 2021, Steering Committee Recommended Draft 
(Attachment 3). 
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
The Planning Board held a remote public hearing on January 11, 2021 and a vote on January 13, 2021. 
Comments on the Incentive Zoning Condition (page 32) were received during the public hearing. Alternate 
wording to the Incentive Zoning Condition intended to address those comments was presented on January 13, 
2021. The Planning Board voted four in favor and four against recommending adoption of the Town of Apex 
Affordable Housing Plan, January 2021, Steering Committee Recommended Draft with the alternate wording to 
the Town Council.  
 
The Planning Board requested that details of their deliberation and specific reasons for their vote be shared 
with Town Council: 

• One Planning Board member indicated he would vote against recommending adoption of any version 
of the Plan and is generally opposed to the Plan. 

• Seven of eight Planning Board members indicated that they were initially prepared to vote in favor of 
recommending adoption of the Plan, prior to introduction of the alternate wording. 

o Three of eight Planning Board members expressed concerns mainly with the process of 
changing the Plan following the Steering Committee recommendation. They were concerned 
the alternate wording of the Incentive Zoning Condition could not be vetted with the Steering 
Committee or other stakeholders and may not be representative of all perspectives. 

o Four of eight Planning Board members expressed support for the Plan with the alternate 
wording. They indicated the alternate wording clarifies the intent of the Incentive Zoning 
Condition recommendation and removes ambiguity. 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
Planning staff requests that the Town Council adopt The Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan, January 2021, 
Steering Committee Recommended Draft with the alternate wording proposed for the Incentive Zoning 

- Page 330 -



STAFF REPORT 
The Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Condition provided in Attachment 4. Note that staff considers both versions shown in Attachment 3 and 
Attachment 4 valid, but the alternate wording in Attachment 4 is more clear in terms of what state law allows. 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment 1: Detailed Disposition of Public Comments 
Attachment 2: Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan, December 2020 Public Draft 
Attachment 3: Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan, January 2021, Steering Committee Recommended Draft 
Attachment 4: Alternate wording for the Incentive Zoning Condition (page 32) 

- Page 331 -



1 
 

Summary of Questions, Comments & Responses on the Town of Apex Draft Affordable Housing Plan  
The Town of Apex Draft Affordable Housing Plan (Draft Plan) was presented to the public during a virtual presentation on December 17, 2020 at 6:00 PM. A comment form was made available for written comments. The following document 

summarizes comments received both during the presentation and via the comment form.  

Table 1 includes comments received by December 28, 2020 and considered by the Steering Committee. Changes recommended by the Steering Committee based on these comments are included in the Recommended Draft Affordable Housing 

Plan.  

Table 2 includes comments received between December 29, 2020 and January 19, 2021. This table includes comments made during the Planning Board public hearing and additional comments received through the comment form. Additional 

comments may be received up to and through the Town Council public hearing. Any substantive comments received following the preparation of the staff report will be summarized during the public hearing presentation. 

Table 1. Comments received by December 28, 2020 and Considered as part of the Steering Committee’s Recommended Draft Affordable Housing Plan 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

01 General Will there be clear construction density and design guidelines? Presentation Construction density and design guidelines are not included in the 
Draft Plan. The Future Land Use Map establishes the vision for future 
land use in the Town’s planning area. The Draft Plan does include 
recommendations to consider amending the Future Land Use Map to 
increase residential densities in areas adjacent to transit. This is an 
action that Town staff are actively working on per direction from the 
Planning Committee of Town Council. A workshop will be held on 
January 19th to review potential amendments. As transit services 
increase and improve, further amendments to the Future Land Use 
Map may be considered. Amendments to the Future Land Use Map are 
always presented through a public hearing before the Planning Board 
and Town Council with opportunities for the public to provide 
comments. 
 

None 

02 General Would the Town of Apex have a role in determining who is eligible for 
affordable housing units or would the Town’s main role be to subsidize the 
building of housing units? Would the Town operate similarly to the Durham 
Housing Authority? 

Presentation The Town of Apex does not have a Housing Authority, so the Town’s 
role would not be similar to Durham’s. Generally, the Town would not 
have influence over who lives in affordable housing units. As part of 
providing funding, the Town could make requests regarding levels of 
affordability of the housing units. The Town may have more 
responsibility for determining eligibility for recommendations like the 
Down Payment Assistance Program and Owner-Occupied 
Rehabilitation Assistance Program, depending on how those programs 
are implemented and structured. 

None 

03 General How can the Town assure that the housing units are not only affordable but 
also accessible? 

Presentation The Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance Program includes 
measures to address needs to renovate homes to address accessibility 
needs. The Plan does not include specific benchmarks for Senior or 
Accessible housing units, but as the programs are designed, these 
measures could be put in place. 
 

None 

04 General Can we obtain a copy of the slide set? If so, how? Presentation The slides will be made available on the Affordable Housing Plan web 
page. An email will be sent to those who have signed up for updates 
when this material is available. 

None 

05 General Will there be any requirements for vegetation and landscaping for affordable 
housing developments? 

Presentation Affordable housing developments have to meet all of the requirements 
of the Unified Development Ordinance for landscaping unless those 

None 

- Page 332 -



2 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

requirements are reduced through a zoning condition. Such a condition 
would require approval by Town Council through a public hearing 
process with notification to surrounding property owners. At this 
point, the affordable housing that has moved forward for multi-family 
housing has met the requirements. There have been some reductions 
for single-family residential housing. 

06 General I am hoping to join other residents in stopping this proposed plan. It is a 
terrible idea and will ruin our community. 

Survey Comment noted. None 

07 General I think it would be unfortunate if the outcome of all of these actions is to 
create islands of affordable housing that are not integrated into the life of the 
community. 

Survey Comment noted. None 

08 General Great work by all involved! This is much needed in Apex. We need to also keep 
a strong focus on providing opportunities for next gen to stay in our town. This 
is a great way to accomplish this!  

Survey Comment noted. None 

09 General I agree that Apex should prioritize affordable housing in order to encourage 
and enable a diversity of folks to live in and contribute to our town.  The 
cultural richness from a variety of backgrounds will continue to be an essential 
component to Apex! 

Survey Comment noted. None 

10 General This is very impressive. Way to go Apex! Another feather in your cap, this is 
why I love living here. Thanks so much for focusing on this tremendously 
important issue. 

Survey Comment noted. None 

11 General Appendix Public Survey Results: 
So, 1,250 respondents, 89% were Apex residents...so 1,113 Apex respondents.  
Apex population is approximately 53,852 as of 2018.   
 
58% of respondents (1,250*.58) = 725 total think the Town should address AH.  
So, that's...1.35% of Apex's population. 

Survey The survey is a sample of sentiment and is not intended to be a 
statistical survey. That said, participation is generally high compared to 
other surveys. The public has additional opportunities to participate 
through the public draft, public hearings, and through the budgeting 
process. 

None 

12 Purpose Regarding the first question about the Purpose of the Plan, it seems like this is 
on page 6, not page 4. The middle paragraph (“To accommodate future 
growth…”) on that page is a little confusing to me. Are these meant to be the 
motivations behind the Vision?  I would think that those were covered in the 
first paragraph.  If this paragraph is retained, I would suggest the following 
edits: 
To plan intelligently for future growth, encourage a much broader range of 
home prices, align housing development with other Town, County and State 
planning efforts, and attract and retain a more diverse population, Apex has 
set a vision for its future. 

Survey The suggested language clarifies the purpose (on p 6). P6 – Change sentence as follows: 
To plan intelligently for future 
growth, encourage a much 
broader range of home prices, 
align housing development with 
other Town, County and State 
planning efforts, and attract and 
retain a more diverse population, 
Apex has set a vision for its 
future. 

13 Purpose Page 8: "These Town policies and practices impact the type of housing 
available and the cost of housing."  I completely agree with this statement and 
encourage the Town to put priority on actions to change Town policies sooner 
rather than later that add to housing costs and create a narrow community in 
Apex. 

Survey Comment noted. None 

14 Needs Assessment Per last bullet on page 16...Historically, Apex didn't want "affordable housing".  
They implemented all kinds of policies that fly in the face of it...aesthetic 
controls, alleys, solar requirements, not approving density, etc.  They wanted 
the upper end housing...not the "affordable housing".  It's not the fault of the 

Survey Comment noted. None 

- Page 333 -



3 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

development community, they didn't bring other stuff before Council b/c it 
wouldn't get approved. 

15 Needs Assessment Page 17: "Struggle to find housing of the type they want."  That they "want" or 
that they can afford?  I struggle to find what I want, but that's because I want 
more than I can afford, as do many.  It should read, "Struggle to find housing 
of the type they can afford." 

Survey The Plan is reporting results of the initial survey. The wording reflects 
what was asked in the survey. 

None 

16 Needs Assessment On p. 16 – First bullet (paraphrase) – significant shortage of rental housing 
that is affordable for low-income households is estimated to be about 2,000 
homes now, doubling to almost 4,000 over next 10 years. Second bullet 
(paraphrase) – presently a total of 3,850 cost-burdened and extremely cost-
burdened households in Apex. These are a good start at estimating the gap in 
affordable homes, both now and projected out 10 years.  In addition, we need 
an estimate of essential workers who work in Apex, but don’t live here, in 
many cases because they can’t find affordable homes here. This estimate 
should be converted to households by accounting for an average of more than 
one worker per household.  The 10-year projection of these totals could be 
divided by 10 to provide an approximate annual target. It’s not unreasonable 
to expect a number as high as 1,000 additional affordable homes per year 
using this approximate method. This is illustrative of the type of numeric 
objective for affordable homes which Town Council members, Town planners 
and affordable housing advocates could use to track progress on an affordable 
housing dashboard. 

Survey The Housing Needs Assessment includes the metrics that are most 
meaningful based on the current and projected situation in Apex. 
There is not a good way to reasonably estimate the need for units at 
different price points for homeownership. That is why the needs 
assessment focuses on the loss of moderate-income families, loss of 
starter homes, and overall trends in the number of cost-burdened 
households. The specific data points that are most compelling and 
informing to the public can be explored and improved upon over time 
through regional coordination on the Annual Housing Report & 
Dashboard. 

None 

17 Vision and Goals Keep a solid focus on next gen in our goals.  Survey Comment noted. None 

18 Vision and Goals On p. 24 – I agree with revised first goal: “Welcome, attract, and retain a 
diverse population” Please consider updating first goal on p. 3 to be 
consistent. 

Survey This was an oversight that will be corrected. P3 – Correct goal to “Welcome, 
attract, and retain…” 

19 Vision and Goals The recommendations, vision, and goal statements regarding diversity extend 
beyond the scope of the Affordable Housing Plan. They are not related to 
housing affordability and should not be included in the Draft Plan. 

Presentation The Steering Committee felt it was important for the Town to be 
welcoming to diverse residents and established that as the first goal to 
inform recommendations. Housing and race have been tied to each 
other for a very long time in this country and the Town is making a 
bold step to address that in a direct way. 
 

None 

20 Vision and Goals I agree this project needs to be all-inclusive and welcoming. Presentation Comment noted. 
 

None 

21 Vision and Goals "Meeting the needs of a diverse housing population, including providing 
housing that is affordable to people with moderate to low incomes." As stated 
in a comment earlier, is Apex talking about being in the business of actually 
building affordable housing units or are they "approving housing that..." 
instead of "providing housing that..." 

Survey Based on the recommendations, “approve” would be too specific of a 
term. “Provide” is intended to reflect the Town’s typical role of 
approving as well as providing gap financing, owner-occupied 
rehabilitation assistance, etc.  

None 

22 Vision and Goals Regarding the third question about the Vision and Goals, they do relate to 
housing needs with the possible exception of “Partner regionally to meet the 
needs of vulnerable.” I recall a steering committee discussion in which service 
providers strongly recommended that this Plan be tightly focused on 
affordable housing, specifically, vs. social services, in general. Furthermore, I 
find it hard to assess if the goals are reasonable and achievable without 
associated quantified and time-specific objectives. 

Survey  P 3 & 24 – Consider revising to 
“Partner regionally to meet the 
housing needs of vulnerable 
populations.” 

- Page 334 -



4 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

23 Recommendations What plans are you making for affordable units for very low income families? Presentation Very low income households are typically those that earn 50% or less 
of the Area Median Income. While the Draft Plan makes it clear that it 
is important to address the housing needs of very low income 
households, the Draft Plan does not set quantitative targets for units 
for specific household income levels. Low Income Housing Tax Credit 
Gap Financing is the best tool to meet the needs of very low income 
households. The Draft Plan includes this tool as a recommendation for 
the Town and further stresses the importance of working with the 
County to address the needs of households at different income levels. 

None 

24 Recommendations Need a recommendation for very low income (less than 50% AMI); this is a 
HUGE need in the Triangle, and every town should do its share. 

Survey Very low income households are typically those that earn 50% or less 
of the Area Median Income. While the Draft Plan makes it clear that it 
is important to address the housing needs of very low income 
households, the Draft Plan does not set quantitative targets for units 
for specific household income levels. Low Income Housing Tax Credit 
Gap Financing is the best tool to meet the needs of very low income 
households. The Draft Plan includes this tool as a recommendation for 
the Town and further stresses the importance of working with the 
County to address the needs of households at different income levels. 

None 

25 Recommendations I’d like to see the Town targeting younger, first-time homebuyers. 
 

Presentation The Down Payment Assistance program recommendation is intended 
for first-time homebuyers. The Vision and Goals also address diversity 
including age. 

P. 26, 36 – Clarified that DPA is a 
recommendation for first-time 
homebuyers. 

26 Recommendations Do you foresee an Affordable Housing Zoning Overlay covering specific areas 
in Apex, such as the Downtown or other areas? 

Presentation This is not anticipated; however, the Town is looking at the Future 
Land Use Map and considering amendments to increase residential 
densities near transit routes. More information will be available during 
a workshop on January 19, 2021. Any amendments that move forward 
will also be presented during public hearings to the Planning Board and 
Town Council. 

None 

27 Recommendations There need to be city guidelines around design density and construction 
material recommendations. 

Presentation For single-family and duplexes, State law prohibits the Town from 
having requirements for architectural standards in terms of material 
and quality of development. 

None 

28 Recommendations Consider amending the Town’s Fair Housing Ordinance to include source of 
income, in other words Section 8 vouchers, or pass a law to prohibit property 
managers and landlords from refusing to accept Section 8 vouchers. Section 8 
vouchers are the best way to eliminate homelessness. Other cities have done 
this, but not in North Carolina. 

Presentation The Town does not have authority to prohibit landlords from refusing 
to accept Section 8 vouchers.  Based on our research we don’t believe 
this is a power the state has given to local governments at this time.  
There are some localities in other states that have anti-discrimination 
ordinances applying to housing and these may be general enough to 
encompass section 8 vouchers.  Local legislation would be needed for 
something that goes beyond current state standards.  

None 

29 Recommendations I understand the plan  concerns housing affordability and not homelessness 
however if the Town really wants to be bold it should require property 
managers and landlords to accepts housing choice vouchers (section 8) when 
presented by prospective tenants. Today, a landlord can refuse to accept a 
voucher which is used by low income people to afford market-rate rental 
units. Many cities and municipalizes across the county have enacted such laws 
or amended their fair housing ordinance to include source of income as a 
protected class. None exist in North Carolina although a group of homeless 
service providers and advocates are pushing for one in Charlotte.  Numerous 

Survey The Town does not have authority to prohibit landlords from refusing 
to accept Section 8 vouchers.  Based on our research we don’t believe 
this is a power the state has given to local governments at this time.  
There are some localities in other states that have anti-discrimination 
ordinances applying to housing and these may be general enough to 
encompass section 8 vouchers.  Local legislation would be needed for 
something that goes beyond current state standards. 

None 

- Page 335 -



5 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

studies have shown that long-term rental assistance is the best solution to 
ending homeless.   Expanding the voucher program is a key part of the 
incoming Biden administration housing plan. One idea is to require any new 
rental developments to accept vouchers. Property managers and landlords 
refuse to accept vouchers for many reasons but implicit in their refusal is that 
they don't want "poor" people or people of color in their properties which are 
often in high opportunity areas of the town. That is exactly where we want 
people who have been impacted by racism or poverty to live. Accepting the 
voucher is not a panacea. There are other reasons why landlords deny 
applicants (convictions, income, previous evictions, etc..). However if Apex 
were to do this it would send a strong message to other cities in NC that it 
does not matter where your income comes from when it comes to paying the 
rent. 

30 Recommendations We’ve made good progress toward the stated goals. Low Income Housing Tax 
Credit Gap Financing via the Town’s Affordable Housing Fund is the best 
opportunity to spur actual development. Other ideas thus far don’t go far 
enough to provide incentive to developers. Rent at $1,000 isn’t feasible to 
spur development of 2-bedroom units as it is too far below market. Consider 
granting land and foregoing water and sewer capital fees and other significant 
cost reductions for the developer. 

Presentation The recommendation for an Incentive Zoning Condition is intended to 
increase the feasibility for developers to build affordable units. The 
specific design of the Incentive Zoning Condition recommendation will 
create the structure for addressing these types of incentives. 

None 

31 Recommendations Good  Survey Comment noted. None 

32 Recommendations I would suggest a focus on beautifying the landscape while meeting housing 
needs. 

Survey Affordable housing developments have to meet all of the requirements 
of the Unified Development Ordinance for landscaping unless those 
requirements are reduced through a zoning condition. Such a condition 
would require approval by Town Council through a public hearing 
process with notification to surrounding property owners. At this 
point, the affordable housing that has moved forward for multi-family 
housing has met the requirements. There have been some reductions 
for single-family residential housing. 

None 

33 Recommendations Yes on walkability! As a young adult who purchased in Apex planning to start a 
family. After a breakup, I greatly regret moving here and I plan to rent my 
house and move out of Apex. 

Survey Comment noted. None 

34 Recommendations Require electric car parking! Survey Requirements for electric car parking are included in the Town’s 
Unified Development Ordinance. Currently EV parking is required for 
parking structures. 

None 

35 Recommendations On p. 41 – In the description of Accessory Apartments, there’s a proposal for 
the Town to “pilot a program to provide permanent financing, to be re-paid 
over time, for the construction of Accessory Apartments that are rented to 
low-income renters.” I think partnering with local community-minded financial 
institutions to provide these mortgages, under guidelines established by the 
Town would be more effective. When Habitat-Wake formed similar 
partnerships with local mortgage providers, it was able to greatly expand its 
ability to produce affordable homes. Does the Town really want to be in the 
business of servicing mortgages? 

Survey This recommendation could be implemented through a partnership 
with Town funding, much like the Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation 
Assistance Program (Apex Cares). This can be clarified in the plan. 

P41 – Implementation box – 
clarify “Conduct a pilot program 
to develop 5 affordable units by 
offering $50,000 low-cost 
construction loans. Consider a 
partnership for management of 
loans. 

36 Recommendations Just know that a Housing manager will add annually recurring personnel costs, 
which can be quite burdensome too. 

Survey Comment noted. None 

- Page 336 -



6 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

37 Recommendations The staff positions working to implement the recommendations in the Draft 
Plan should be representative of the populations the Town of Apex is trying to 
attract and have the ability to address potential language barriers. 

Presentation The comment is noted for further consideration. The Town of Apex is 
an Equal Opportunity Employer. 
 

None 

38 Recommendations A housing advisory board is more for the town to manage, thereby adding to 
administrative cost.  Also, this may add to the approval process for a project if 
required to be seen by this board, which usually adds time and thereby 
additional cost. I'm not suggesting the ideas aren't valid, but I think costs of a 
housing manager and an advisory board should be quantified and shared.  

Survey The intent is not that development proposals would be required to be 
reviewed by the Housing Advisory Board. As part of the personnel 
request and budgeting process, the salary grade for the Housing 
Manager will be determined. This is public information shared through 
the budgeting process. More information is available at: 
www.apexnc.org/Budget. The administrative cost is not anticipated to 
be paid for using the Affordable Housing Fund. There is a cost of 
managing and staffing a committee. It varies greatly by the committee 
and their tasks. There are also advantages to having these types of 
working committees in place as they can assist with plan 
implementation.   

None 

39 Recommendations It will be important to be intentional about the advisory board. Make sure 
housing advocates and representatives of non-profits are included, also the 
faith community.  

Survey Comment noted. None 

40 Recommendations Under Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning, need to add some language in 
there that says that unwillingness to include affordable housing cannot, by 
itself, be grounds for denial of a project.  This section is very wishy washy and 
uses words like "suggest" and "incentive" and then turns around and uses 
words like "ensure" and "set expectations for developers to provide affordable 
units or an equivalent fee payment..." 

Survey  P32 – “Recommendations for 
Apex” paragraph has been 
revised to make it clear that it is 
an incentive, not a requirement. 

41 Recommendations The section on Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning needs more work.  This is 
essentially saying that a "voluntary" incentive is going to be mandated to get a 
rezoning through...or you have to pay into the fund, which is extortion given 
that inclusionary zoning is not a tool allowed by the NC general assembly. 

Survey  P32 – “Recommendations for 
Apex” paragraph has been 
revised to make it clear that it is 
an incentive, not a requirement. 

42 Recommendations I am from the Friendship/New Hill community. My family and neighbors 
owned much land in the area with rich history. A lot of people moved here 
and developed here not understanding the roots of the community. A place 
that was once affordable, diverse and all ethnic was welcomed. Now the once 
majority and now the minority. We can talk about equality, equity etc globally 
but we must start in the communities that we live and are developing. I have 
yet to see one affordable community for the people who lived here or would 
like to live here. Let’s get some minority development and diversity.  

Survey Comment noted. None 

43 Recommendations Good Survey Comment noted. None 

44 Recommendations Yes to making affordable housing tenants not need cars Survey Comment noted. None 

45 Recommendations On p. 45 – The response to my fourth comment on this page in the November 
draft (p. 56) indicated that the priority of Public Land Acquisition and Sale 
would be changed to “Mid-Term.” Maybe I misunderstand this response? 

Survey This was an oversight and will be corrected. P43 and P45 – Changed Public 
Land Acquisition & Sale from 
Long Term to Mid Term 

46 Recommendations Is there any program that would forgive homeowners in affordable housing a 
forgiveness of their property taxes for a period of time?  I realize that this is a 
Wake County issue, but if no such program exists, could the plan include an 
action to work with the County to develop such a program? 

Survey Tax abatement is not allowed under NC law.  None 

47 Recommendations My quick review of the plan did not turn up any reference to the role of HOAs 
in affordable housing.  It would be great if HOAs could provide support for 

Survey The Plan focuses on actions the Town can take and does not make 
recommendations for HOA actions. 

None 

- Page 337 -

http://www.apexnc.org/Budget


7 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

families in low cost housing in their community.  This might include help with 
ongoing maintenance (e.g., lawn mowing), holiday decorating, landscaping, 
etc.  Thanks! 

48 Recommendations Good progress toward the stated goals.  LIHTC $ via the Town Annual fund has 
the best chance of spurring actual development.  Other ideas thus far don't go 
far enough toward providing incentive to developers.   Rent at $1000 isn't 
feasible to spur development of 2BR units because it is too far below market.  
Consider granting land and forgoing Water Sewer Capital fees and other 
significant cost reductions for the developer.   

Survey This is the intent of the Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning 
recommendation. 

None 

49 Recommendations I don't think that we should overlook the issue of parking and landscape. Most 
families will have multiple cars and most likely will not use the public 
transportation service. 

Survey Parking requirements and landscaping requirements are addressed in 
the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance. Any reductions or relief 
from requirements in the UDO would need to be considered through a 
public hearing process as part of a rezoning. 

None 

50 Recommendations Why should we subsidize housing for workers outside of Apex? If you get any 
subsidy in Apex, you should need to work in apex as well.  

Survey Comment noted.  None 

51 Recommendations No down payment assistance! We shouldn't give someone 20,000 to move to 
apex!  

Survey Comment noted. None 

52 Action Plan On p. 46 – Second page under Action Plan is labeled Metrics of Success. I 
agree that the metrics and targets are critical to measuring progress during 
implementation of the AHP.  The response to my questions about these 
comments (my fourth through sixth comments on p. 38 of November draft) 
was: “We make it very clear that these are samples of the types of metrics 
that can and should be tracked by the Town. We have also (in response to 
discussion with the Town and the Steering Committee) made it more clear 
which metrics the Town should merely track vs. set targets for.” So, I guess 
what I’m trying to understand is whether the Affordable Housing Plan will 
include a set of metrics and specific targets for measuring progress?  If either 
of these will not be included in the Plan, it seems more work will be needed to 
deliver a plan that is ready to implement.  If so, what entities will be 
responsible for deciding on the implementation metrics and targets, e.g., the 
new Housing Manager (who won’t be in place until the second half of 2021 at 
the earliest), or a return engagement of HR&A? 
I was hoping that an Action Plan would lead to tangible results during 2021.  
Based on the housing needs analysis, I’m convinced that the need is urgent. 
Note: there are a couple of responses to questions on the Metrics for Success 
that say: “This will need to be addressed through the implementation 
process.” So, I’m wondering how the “implementation process” is related to 
the AHP? Does this imply that the AHP is not implementable by itself? 

Survey The AHP establishes a guiding vision and recommendations to address 
the need for affordable housing in Apex. More work will definitely 
need to be done to implement each recommendation. This work will 
be done by Town staff, along with the recommended Housing Advisory 
Board and regional partners, and with ultimate approvals from Town 
Council. It is not anticipated that HR&A or other professional 
consultants will need to be engaged to implement plan 
recommendations at this time. The metrics in the plan give us a good 
starting point for measuring success but the intent was to provide 
enough flexibility that these measures can be refined over time. 

None 

53 Action Plan The Sample Target for Equitable impacts of housing programs is 
“Disaggregated housing program metrics show no racial or other disparities.” I 
realize there may be limited space here, but maybe a couple of examples 
would be helpful? 

Survey This will be evaluated further as part of the development of each 
program. 

None 

54 Action Plan On p. 46 – Number of households served… “75 newly-developed units serving 
households at or below 50% AMI receive Town funding or zoning incentives 
within five years.” Would the Town funding come from the affordable housing 
fund? Is that reflected in the potential allocations on the next page (p. 47)? 

Survey The intent of the sample metric 75 units would be produced through 
LIHTC Gap Financing or through the incentive zoning overlay 
The 300 units are of any income level including market rate, so yes it 
would theoretically be inclusive of the 75 low-income units, but again 

None 

- Page 338 -



8 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

these are not necessarily meant to be targets that all align exactly 
because they are samples. 

55 Action Plan On p. 46 – Number of new subsidized affordable units developed “300 units 
developed or in development within five years” Are these 300 homes in 
addition to the 75 newly-developed units within 5 years  which are serving 
households in the category above? If these are in addition, would the Town 
need to allocate additional funds from the Affordable Housing Fund for this 
purpose? 

Survey The intent of the sample metric 75 units would be produced through 
LIHTC Gap Financing or through the incentive zoning overlay 
The 300 units are of any income level including market rate, so yes it 
would theoretically be inclusive of the 75 low-income units, but again 
these are not necessarily meant to be targets that all align exactly 
because they are samples. 

None 

56 Action Plan On p. 47 – Response to my third comment on p. 39 of November draft (which 
corresponds to this page in December draft) reads: “Regarding how 
recommended programs & their impacts relate to housing need, we do not 
have a direct estimate. It is fair to say that the production of new rental units 
across multiple programs is more likely to keep the rental affordability gap 
from growing, rather than close the gap. We have focused on showing how 
Apex can use funds already allocated to address housing needs. Specific 
targets for particular programs, as outlined on the metrics page, should be set 
by the Town in partnership with the Housing Advisory Board.” 
My concern is one of the timing of the implementation of the AHP. I would like 
to see the setting of initial targets for particular programs taking place in the 
first half of 2021; if necessary, before the Housing Manager is hired and the 
Housing Advisory Board established.  Since ultimately the Town Council will 
approve the targets, Planning staff along with some members of the steering 
committee should be well-qualified to propose targets for Council to review 
and approve. As mentioned before, the issue is one of the urgency and priority 
of launching these programs as soon as possible.  Waiting to launch the AHP-
recommended programs until late in 2021 will lose valuable time and 
momentum.  I believe that the AHP provides ample evidence and direction for 
beginning implementation of multiple parts of the recommended Action Plan 
beginning in early 2021. 
Given the estimated gap of well over 4,000 affordable homes now, with the 
needs of essential workers included (see comment on p. 16 above), and if an 
average of about 100 affordable homes are added each year, it could literally 
take decades to fill a gap that could well multiply during that time. 
To me, this reinforces the need for accurate estimates of the gaps in 
affordable homes here – both now and projected into the future. There are 
estimates in the December draft on this on pages 21-21. The estimates on 
page 21 appear to be limited to cost-burdened renters (not homeowners). The 
projected additional jobs over the next decade with incomes below $75,000 is 
also a good start, but doesn’t account for essential workers already 
commuting to work here who also would benefit from affordable housing 
opportunities in Apex. 

Survey Per the response above, the data points provided in the Housing Needs 
Assessment are the most meaningful to the needs identified in Apex. 
The full needs assessment is also provided in the Appendix. Early 
implementation efforts are already underway and the Action Plan now 
highlights the need for maintaining momentum and prioritizing the 
hiring of the Housing Manager position. 

P47 – Additions made to Action 
Plan to stress the need for 
maintaining momentum and 
hiring a Housing Manager. 

57 Action Plan Page 45: The decision on some of these being near, mid and long term is 
interesting.   
Why not tackle the low hanging fruit of accessory apartments first?  Also, it 
seems that "emergency" rental assistance and supportive services should be 
of high priority, instead of "long-term" along with public land acquisition & 
sale... 

Survey While all recommendations are worthwhile, they cannot all be 
accomplished in the near- or mid-term. The accessory apartments 
recommendation is palatable to the public based on the survey 
responses, but results in fewer new units than other 
recommendations. 

None 

- Page 339 -



9 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

58 Action Plan Regarding the fourth question about Recommendations, in general, I think the 
Plan Recommendations are a constructive start. However, I believe that 
limiting the funding to the total in the Affordable Housing Fund each year is 
unrealistic in the 5-10 time frame.  I’m basing this on a very rough estimate of 
filling a gap of at least 7,000-8,000 affordable homes (rehabbed and new) over 
the next 10 years. 

Survey  P47 & Appendix – Text was added 
to indicate the Town should 
pursue and leverage other funds 
beyond the local Affordable 
Housing Fund. A list of 
opportunities is provided as a 
new Appendix. 

59 Action Plan Regarding the fifth question about timing priorities, I “agree,” but with the 
caveat that the need for affordable homes is urgent enough that the near-
term goals should be targeted for the first and second half of 2021, i.e., 6-12 
months vs. 0-2 years.  I go into more detail on that below. 

Survey Given that this is a 10-year plan a near-term period of 0-2 years is 
reasonable. Recommendations can and will move forward in less time 
than 2 years. 

None 

60 Action Plan Regarding the sixth question about the sample allocation, I “agree,” but with 
the following caveats. First, referring to the explanation given with the third 
question above, the $50,000 allocated to Emergency Rental Assistance (ERA) 
and Supportive Services should be allocated to other affordable housing 
recommendations, because these services won’t produce any additional 
affordable homes. Second, this allocation is limited to the $1M collected 
annually in the Affordable Housing Fund.  As pointed out in my final comment 
on the Action Plan above, this Plan seems to be limited by this $1M annual 
budget over the entire time horizon of the Plan. The best that can be expected 
is “to keep the rental affordability gap from growing, rather than close the 
gap.” I think Apex can and must find ways to significantly reduce the housing 
affordability gap over the 10-year Plan horizon. 

Survey  A second sample allocation has 
been added so that there is a 
recommendation for the near-
term than removes the funding 
for ERA & Supportive services. 
Additional text explains the fund 
should be prioritized for 
programs that create new units 
or preserve existing units. Other 
possible funding sources are 
referenced in a new appendix. 

61 Action Plan On p. 46 – I’m repeating my first comment on this page (p. 38) of November 
draft. Given that hiring a Housing Manager and setting up a Housing Advisory 
Board are high priority/ near-term objectives, I would urge Town Council and 
staff to expedite these two actions, so they’re in place during the first half of 
2021. I understand the comment about the normal personnel process being 
tied to the next fiscal year budget, but hiring the Housing Manager and 
appointing HAB members are in the critical path for implementation of the 
plan which is even more essential with the pandemic and related economic 
impacts. Surely, these circumstances would warrant exceptional treatment? In 
addition, 2021 is an election year, so it could be beneficial for incumbents to 
point to these early accomplishments. 

Survey Hiring a Housing Manager prior to July 2021 would require use of the 
Affordable Housing Fund, which is not the main priority. It is also not 
desirable to rush the hiring process too much and risk not finding the 
best candidate. Steps can be taken to prepare for the position and 
target a start date in early July. 

Text has been added to the 
Action Plan, Housing Manager 
recommendation, and Metrics of 
Success pages to reiterate this is 
a critical milestone and should 
move forward efficiently. 

62 Action Plan An expedited transition from planning into implementation. The three 
updates you (Shannon Cox) provided on 12/17/20 are impressive.  Maybe the 
raised awareness of the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem, as a result of their 
participation on the steering committee, led to a smoother approval of the 
major funding for DHIC's Broadstone Walk project? My concern is what 
happens in early 2021 right after the Plan is approved?  Here are the practical 
constraints and dependencies that I picked up as I read over the December 
draft: 
• The Housing Manager position won't be funded until the new fiscal year 
which begins July 2021. So the position can't be filled until the second half of 
the year. 
• The Housing Manager needs to be in place before the Housing Advisory 

Survey Hiring a Housing Manager prior to July 2021 would require use of the 
Affordable Housing Fund, which is not the main priority. It is also not 
desirable to rush the hiring process too much and risk not finding the 
best candidate. Steps can be taken to prepare for the position and 
target a start date in early July. 

Text has been added to the 
Action Plan, Housing Manager 
recommendation, and Metrics of 
Success pages to reiterate this is 
a critical milestone and should 
move forward efficiently. 

- Page 340 -



10 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

Board can be constituted. 
I understand the need for a Housing Manager to provide the dedicated 
support needed to implement housing initiatives.  I've been saying this for at 
least the last year.  Since that hiring appears to be in the critical path, I wonder 
what could be done to bridge the funding gap until the second half of 2021?  
For example, could funds in this year's Affordable Housing Fund be used to 
temporarily fund a Housing Manager until the next fiscal year budget is in 
place?  Are there any funds in this fiscal year's budget that won't be spent due 
to the COVID pandemic that might be allocated to temporarily fund the 
Housing Manager position? 
Regarding the Housing Advisory Board, I wonder whether some of the steering 
committee members might be willing to help out on a temporary basis until 
the HAB members are appointed? With the SC members' involvement in the 
creation of the Affordable Housing Plan, it should be relatively easy for some 
of them to serve in transitional roles from the Plan approval until the HAB is 
appointed? 

63 Action Plan I completely agree with…Urgency to hire a Housing Manager position early in 
2021. While I realize it is not yet in the approved budget, I also know there are 
ways to deal with that and I believe this will be the most important move to 
give momentum to the plan. It is a critical step and needs to happen as quickly 
as possible.  

Email Hiring a Housing Manager prior to July 2021 would require use of the 
Affordable Housing Fund, which is not the main priority. It is also not 
desirable to rush the hiring process too much and risk not finding the 
best candidate. Steps can be taken to prepare for the position and 
target a start date in early July. 

Text has been added to the 
Action Plan, Housing Manager 
recommendation, and Metrics of 
Success pages to reiterate this is 
a critical milestone and should 
move forward efficiently. 

64 Action Plan Is the Town planning to hire a Housing Manager? 
 

Presentation Staff will be requesting the Housing Manager position through the 
annual budget process. It will be Town Council’s determination as part 
of the budget process whether and when a Housing Manager position 
will be created. The budget will not be approved until June 2021. 
 

None 

65 Action Plan Appendix Public Survey Results:  
I don't see the timeline of near, mid and long term reflecting these responses.  
Seems that supportive/emergency services and ADU's (accessory apartments) 
should be higher priority on the timeline. 

Survey Supportive services and ADUs were some of the more supported tools 
based on the initial public survey. The Steering Committee 
recommended “long-term” priorities for these given the other sources 
of funds for supportive services and the relatively low number of units 
anticipated to be created through ADUs. 

None 

66 Action Plan Estimates of total gap(s) in need for affordable homes. I believe we need 
accurate estimates of the need for affordable homes to drive the programs 
and priorities. The Action Plan's recommendations, proposed metrics and 
sample budget allocations in the draft Plan are a great starting point. But the 
need is much greater than what the sample allocation implies to be at most 
about 100 homes a year. I think the key is in the response I quoted above:   
“It is fair to say that the production of new rental units across multiple 
programs is more likely to keep the rental affordability gap from growing, 
rather than close the gap. We have focused on showing how Apex can use 
funds already allocated to address housing needs.” 
I was hoping and praying that this Plan would envision filling the affordability 
gap over a reasonable timeframe, say, 5-10 years, and tapping into resources 
beyond the penny tax, e.g., an affordable housing bond along the lines of what 
Durham and Raleigh have recently passed, and the possibility of far-sighted 

Survey  P47 & Appendix – Text was added 
to indicate the Town should 
pursue and leverage other funds 
beyond the local Affordable 
Housing Fund. A list of 
opportunities is provided as a 
new Appendix. 

- Page 341 -



11 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

business leaders and community-minded philanthropists providing additional 
resources. 
 
From a political standpoint, I understand that it might be easier to marshal 
support for additional resources once there are a couple of success stories to 
point to? 
 

67 Action Plan I also agree we need to develop strategies to increase the funding for 
affordable housing action by the town beyond the $1M from the additional 
tax. I believe there are opportunities for public/private partnerships.  

Email  P47 & Appendix – Text was added 
to indicate the Town should 
pursue and leverage other funds 
beyond the local Affordable 
Housing Fund. A list of 
opportunities is provided as a 
new Appendix. 

68 Action Plan …The funds set aside for services or for rental assistance should not be taken 
from the $1M. Services are crisis response and I believe these funds need to 
be directed toward long-term sustainable solutions. The outcome for these 
funds needs to focus on 1. New units of affordable housing or 2. Maintaining 
current affordable housing stock. Services and rental assistance are necessary 
to be sure, but it does not impact an increase of affordable housing. 

Email  Provide both a near-term and 
long-term sample allocation. 

69 Action Plan I am extremely concerned about the long-term affordability of a plan such as 
this. As an Apex homeowner, I am concerned that the costs of a program like 
this will require me to pay a lot more in taxes to support in the long run, which 
will in and of itself make my home unaffordable for our family.  

Survey  P47 & Appendix – Text was added 
to indicate the Town should 
pursue and leverage other funds 
beyond the local Affordable 
Housing Fund. A list of 
opportunities is provided as a 
new Appendix. 

70 Action Plan What will implementation of the Affordable Housing Plan cost in taxpayer 
dollars? 

Presentation The total cost to fully implement the Affordable Housing Plan has not 
been quantified; however, the Town Council created an Affordable 
Housing Fund in Fiscal Year 2020 that is anticipated to generate 
approximately $1 million per year. The sample allocation of funds 
included in the Action Plan is based on the assumption that $1 million 
per year will be available to advance Plan recommendations. 

P47 & Appendix – Text was added 
to indicate the Town should 
pursue and leverage other funds 
beyond the local Affordable 
Housing Fund. A list of 
opportunities is provided as a 
new Appendix. 

 

  

- Page 342 -



12 
 

Table 2. Comments received between December 29, 2020 and January 18, 2021 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

71 Process The Town should review successful programs in other jurisdictions rather than recreate a program from scratch.  
For example, Durham just successfully adopted a new housing policy and there are numerous other jurisdictions 
with affordable housing plans in place long enough to provide best practices. 

Planning Board 
Public Hearing 

The consultant team includes experts in the field with 
experience drafting other local and regional Affordable 
Housing Plans. Town staff are collaborating in regional 
efforts to address affordable housing. 

None 

72 Process We applaud the Town for their efforts to address the issue of housing affordability. No doubt, this was especially 
challenging to kick off in a year such as 2020 played out to be. That being said, the timing of this draft becoming 
available for public comment was very poor. It was basically put out there over the holiday season with an 
expectation to squeeze in two public hearings 2 weeks apart with a potential final vote on January 26th. This is 
not a recipe for getting meaningful public input on the document or to potentially incorporate those comments 
into a second draft. 

Planning Board 
Public Hearing 

The development of the Affordable Housing Plan was 
guided by a Public Engagement Plan and opportunities for 
input throughout the nine-month process. The Draft 
Affordable Housing Plan was made available for review and 
comment between December 4, 2020 and January 26, 
2021. 

None 

73 Process Secondly, the stakeholder group should have included the private residential building industry if there is an 
expectation to strongly encourage them to utilize affordable housing incentive zoning. The Home Builders 
Association of Raleigh-Wake County is a great resource to provide member volunteers who do business in Apex 
and can provide useful insight and perspective.  This was a missed opportunity. 

Planning Board 
Public Hearing 

The Triangle Community Coalition (TCC), a strategic partner 
of the Home Builders Association (HBA), was represented 
on the Steering Committee. The HBA was included on all 
public communications, and market-rate developers were 
included in the stakeholder interviews. The process was 
intended to balance the many perspectives and 
stakeholders of the Affordable Housing Plan. The HBA will 
be included among the stakeholders in the drafting of the 
Incentive Zoning Condition Policy. 

None 

74 Process As a Latino, I'm highly offended by the use of the Term LatinX as a placeholder in the presentation. While I 
understand and appreciate that the document is trying to be inclusive, you've chosen gender identification OVER 
my culture and heritage. The Spanish Language by default is a masculine and feminine...and using this term is 
taking the Latin out of Latino (i.e. how is it pronounced, the "a" is no longer pronounced the same...it's no longer 
Spanish but an English construct). I would explore more about the acceptance of "Latinx" in the Latino 
community...it's deeply disliked. 

Survey Based on feedback received during the initial public survey, 
and research into concerns presented then, documents and 
presentations use Latino/Latina/Latinx to attempt to 
represent the varied perspectives on this issue. Use of 
Latinx alone would have been a reference to early plan 
documentation. 

None 

75 Vision and Goals This is good.... especially the Regional Vision Survey Comment noted. None 

76 Needs Assessment The biggest concern I see is the lack of defining what is "affordable housing" to Apex. I see HUD's definition and 
the types, but what is it to Apex? Housing affordability, missing middle, 80% AMI, 60% AMI, market rate, 30% 
housing costs of income, all of the above, etc? Trying to establish market rate components, which are likely the 
most suitable as they are the least subsidized, means council members trying to assess each project case by case 
on what affordable is as development occurs. That can be unpredictable and may cause challenges with the 
development community and ultimately hinder development, which increases demand thus raising prices and 
increasing the housing affordability issue. Having a clear definition and clear incentives is critical to make progress 
on the affordability issues. In summary, Apex is a great community in which many people want to live. Hence the 
strong demand and challenging affordability. However, Apex has a wonderful staff and a passionate and active 
council that I have complete confidence can preserve and enhance the ability for all individuals to live in Apex. 

Survey The Summary of Housing Needs on page 16 is intended to 
briefly capture those needs related to affordable housing 
that were found to be the most pressing issues for Apex. 
The Incentive Zoning Condition policy, when drafted, can be 
more specific related to specific ranges of area median 
income. The Metrics of Success on page 46 do include some 
specific sample targets for specific income levels; however, 
these are intended to be flexible and adjusted by the 
Housing Advisory Board. 

None 

77 Needs Assessment Before proceeding further with the Plan, the Town must set clear policy and priorities for the need being served.  
As noted in the Plan, there are multiple strata of housing needs and each requires a different set of actions.   

Planning Board 
Public Hearing 

The Summary of Housing Needs on page 16 is intended to 
briefly capture those needs related to affordable housing 
that were found to be the most pressing issues for Apex. 
The Incentive Zoning Condition policy, when drafted, can be 
more specific related to specific ranges of area median 
income. The Metrics of Success on page 46 do include some 
specific sample targets for specific income levels; however, 
these are intended to be flexible and adjusted by the 
Housing Advisory Board. 

None 

- Page 343 -



13 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

78 Needs Assessment It is clear and accurate. I would love to see a REGIONAL PLAN. Every city/town big and small has the same issues 
with affordability. Yet, every city/town forms a committee, pays a consultant. does "the study." This same thing 
was completed in Cary 10 to 15 years ago. I was on the TCAP "Town Center Area Plan" Committee. What I'm 
reading in this report is much the same. I Realize all towns are different and the political will ebbs and flows. As a 
builder doing primarily infill a common set of guidelines to support affordable housing would be nice. As a 
downtown Apex resident I see the gentrification coming on FAST. I wish I had perfect answers... This form is a 
great start! Thank you. I was involved in an affordable housing plan in Downtown Cary 21 townhomes units in 
partnership with DHIC they provided down payment assistance with income limits. 30% median income if I recall 
correctly. 

Survey Comment noted. None 

79 Recommendations Diversity and Racial Equity Initiatives (page 30) 
 
This section deals with many diversity issues that are beyond the scope of any need to increase the availability of 
affordable housing. The Steering Committee that drafted this plan has stepped beyond the goal of providing a 
plan for affordable housing and has introduced several policy issues pertaining to social and morality diversity that 
are not germane to the issue of housing affordability. This section inappropriately includes reference to diversity 
policies based upon race, ethnicity, personal beliefs, sexual orientation, and gender identity. Such policies have no 
direct relevance to housing affordability should be completely removed from this Plan. 
 
In addition, I speak now to those diversity policies proposed in this section of the Plan. I speak to the statement, 
“Racial equity initiatives acknowledge the intentional design of many racial inequities….” In this country racism is 
now abhorrent to almost everyone. We are to be proud that we as a country have effectively reduced racism to 
the point that those individuals who are racist have no substantial power in this country. The diligent efforts of 
the black community have very effectively reduced racism in this country to a very small minority, and race is not 
tolerated as a legitimate basis for discrimination. I do not see evidence that there is “intentional design of many 
racial inequities.” There should be equality of opportunity, i.e., decisions should be blind to race, and that is what 
we have now in this country. Today in this country, one is free to pursue whatever he wants, free from racial 
discrimination. This has been described by many as the most profound moral accomplishment in history, for no 
other country has been able to rectify this moral sin like the US has. 
 
I am opposed to setting “racial equity goals.” There should be no initiatives to force some type of racial balance. 
The achievements and accomplishments of a free man, including the black man in this country, are his own 
doings. They are not impeded based upon his race. It is good to remove any policies that currently intentionally 
favor someone based on the person’s race, such as “affirmative action” policies. 
 
Regarding diversity initiatives, we should be strongly opposed to promoting any type of balance initiatives that 
encourage immoral sexual orientation or behavior, confused gender identities, or any other groups that are 
embrace immoral behavior as determined by the standard of the Holy Word of God as contained in the Bible. 
Such immoral “diversity” is not to be encouraged and is not a thing to be pursued within this Plan. 

Survey Diversity and racial equity were purposefully and 
intentionally included in both the vision and goals and the 
recommendations by the Steering Committee. 

None 

80 Recommendations Multiple: Town Staff Capacity (page 27), Housing Advisory Board (page 28), Diversity & Racial Equity Initiatives 
(page 30) 
 
The Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan is focused on increasing the diversity of the citizens in Apex.  
Narrowing this focus to housing will not improve citizen diversity. Apex needs a more holistic approach to this 
goal.   
Apex has spent years legislating for higher pricing homes by requiring certain aesthetic controls, development 
standards, low density and solar requirements.  These requirements add costs to housing and lead to a lack of 
“affordable housing”.   The goal at the time these requirements were enacted was to increase housing 

Planning Board 
Public Hearing 

Diversity and Racial Equity Initiatives are included among 
the Plan recommendations. “Welcome, attract, and retrain 
a diverse population” is listed among the Plan goals. 
Diversity in these references includes, but is not limited to, 
racial and cultural diversity. Also, while a part of the plan, 
this is not the only focus of the plan. The Steering 
Committee strongly recommended prioritizing the hiring of 
a Housing Manager and establishing the Housing Advisory 
Board to carry out all of the plan recommendations. The 

None 

- Page 344 -



14 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

assessments to expand the tax base and limit “certain” kind of home. The first step to increasing diversity in 
housing should be to roll back these high cost requirements. 
 
The second step to increase citizen diversity would be to improve town cultural offerings that are targeted to 
certain demographics.  If you review the town’s list of programming, there is absolutely no offerings of cultural 
activities geared toward minorities.  Instead of wasting taxpayer dollars on a housing manager, the town should 
focus on utilizing existing staff to plan a more diverse cultural program offering. 
 
The third step to increase citizen diversity would be through economic development.   The town has four staff 
members on the economic development staff.  These staff members could recruit minority owned businesses.  
The town could subsidize the rent for minority owned businesses in the Coworking Station.  The town could set up 
a grant to help minority owned business buy building to expand their businesses.   
 
The fourth step to increase citizen diversity would be through staff recruiting and development.  Recruiting to fill 
town staff positions through minority-based colleges, churches or organizations. Creating scholarship programs 
for minority citizens to attend the law enforcement academy or the community college for a trade education.   
 
The Town of Apex has several boards and committees that can successfully managed a diversity and inclusion 
plan.  A Housing Advisory Board is not needed.  The Planning and Community Development Board, the Parks, 
Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission and the Public Arts Committee along with the Economic 
Development Department can work together to successfully address the issue of citizen diversity in the Town of 
Apex.   
 
Thank you for your time and I look forward to hearing from you with any questions you may have. 

comments regarding incorporating diversity and inclusion 
across Town departments has been shared with Town 
Administration. 

81 Recommendations Incentive Zoning Conditions (page 32) 
 
While I support having affordable, equitable, and quality housing for all, I am concerned with the incentive zoning 
components. The first sentence includes the sentence "the town has the opportunity to ensure that new 
development includes affordable housing." "Ensure" does not read as an option, but more as a requirement. 
Furthermore, the only town listed options for incentives were increased density and reduced parking 
requirements/setbacks. Having increased density is a great way to provide more housing and increase supply 
which helps combat cost increases. However, not ever[y] site has the opportunity to increase density. The existing 
RCA, perimeter buffer, stream buffer, stormwater requirements per the UDO utilize a great deal of developable 
area that in many cases the density is already at its capacity from what a site can yield horizontally. I would offer 
the increased density is likely more pertinent to apartment/condos however, if the land is maximized horizontally, 
then the only option is to go vertical. This is possible, but this likely transitions an apartment from a garden style 
to an internal corridor, elevator and possible not stick built. These components equal more costs and likely equate 
to the demand for higher rents, which in turn may provide some affordable housing units, but also increases the 
cost of the other units. Ultimately, higher density may not be a great incentive to developers if the density is not 
feasible. 
 
The other option is parking reductions. This may help in a few specific circumstances, but if you apply this to 
townhomes, then you may be compounding concerns from staff regarding citizen complaints of nowhere to park. 
I would also add SF homes in Apex rarely have reduction needs, so there is not much incentive present. Parking 
reductions typically work well if there is dependable public transit in which communities are not car dependent. I 
do not believe Apex is set up on a large scale for that, thus not making this incentive a wide scale incentive. 
 

Survey The two types of incentives shown as part of this 
recommendation are examples only. Other types of 
incentives could be considered when the Incentive Zoning 
Conditions policy is drafted. The language is intended to 
reflect that the policy should be designed in a way that 
ensures developers are able to provide affordable housing. 
The alternative wording to clarify the intent and remove 
the use of “ensure” that was presented to the Planning 
Board will also be provided for Town Council consideration. 
The plan does not establish policy. When the Incentive 
Zoning Condition policy is drafted, it will be within the 
bounds of State law. 

P32 – Revised 
wording clarifies 
that incentive 
zoning is not a 
requirement and 
that the two types 
of incentives listed 
are examples only. 

- Page 345 -



15 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

I understand this document states that the goal would be to establish a clear policy for Apex for incentive zoning, 
but I was hoping that is what this documents would do. I think the goals are good, but there is a strong demand 
for housing and a strong demand for affordability so the quicker the better. 
 
In developing the future "policy setting expectations for developers to provide affordable housing" (again doesn't 
sound optional) I think it would also be wise to consider incentives like waiving the architectural requirements 
that Apex requires that add cost. I think you could consider waiving/reducing the amount of fees that are 
associated with development. There are some high fees that a reduction in those would seem more of an 
incentive to the masses and could be substantial in providing more affordability. 

82 Recommendations Incentive Zoning Conditions (page 32) 
 
The Incentive Zoning and “Soft Density” By-Right Zoning are very effective tools at providing additional housing 
units, directly and indirectly influencing affordability.  By-right zoning can bring units to the market more 
efficiently (both in terms of time and dollars) and can be applied throughout the Town.  Incentive zoning is also a 
useful tool, if used properly.  In North Carolina, where inclusionary zoning is not permitted, the incentives must be 
tailored to actually produce affordable units (“affordable” should be specifically defined) and should include more 
than just bonus density, such as waiver of UDO standards, reduction or elimination of fees and/or expediated 
approvals.  Specifically, because such conditions are voluntary, affordable housing proffers must be just that, 
proffers, not the price of the rezoning:  all projects cannot support significant affordable housing obligations and if 
a one-size-fits-all standard becomes the norm, there will less impact than otherwise could be produced.  Finally, 
the architectural conditions traditionally applied in zoning proceedings have the unintended consequence of 
preventing affordable units because the smaller the unit, the more affordable; however, the garage requirement, 
among other elements, prohibit smaller homes with a two car garage. 

Planning Board 
Public Hearing 

The two types of incentives shown as part of this 
recommendation are examples only. Other types of 
incentives could be considered when the Incentive Zoning 
Conditions policy is drafted. The language is intended to 
reflect that the policy should be designed in a way that 
ensures developers are able to provide affordable housing. 
The alternative wording to clarify the intent and remove 
the use of “ensure” that was presented to the Planning 
Board will also be provided for Town Council consideration. 
The plan does not establish policy. When the Incentive 
Zoning Condition policy is drafted, it will be within the 
bounds of State law. 

P32 – Revised 
wording clarifies 
that incentive 
zoning is not a 
requirement and 
that the two types 
of incentives listed 
are examples only. 

83 Recommendations Incentive Zoning Conditions (page 32) 
 
In reading the draft plan, it suggests the use of affordable housing incentive zoning as a way to achieve affordable 
housing units.  The use of this zoning would presumably be voluntary given that required inclusionary zoning is 
illegal in North Carolina.  However, the word “voluntary” is not in the document at all and instead, words and 
phrases like, “ensure” and “sets expectations” are used, which sound more required that voluntary. We request 
that the Affordable Housing Plan incorporate clear language that states that the unwillingness or inability to 
include affordable housing units (or payment in lieu) cannot, by itself, be grounds for denial of a project. The 
economics just cannot work for every project out there, especially the smaller in scale they are. 

Planning Board 
Public Hearing 

The two types of incentives shown as part of this 
recommendation are examples only. Other types of 
incentives could be considered when the Incentive Zoning 
Conditions policy is drafted. The language is intended to 
reflect that the policy should be designed in a way that 
ensures developers are able to provide affordable housing. 
The alternative wording to clarify the intent and remove 
the use of “ensure” that was presented to the Planning 
Board will also be provided for Town Council consideration. 
The plan does not establish policy. When the Incentive 
Zoning Condition policy is drafted, it will be within the 
bounds of State law. 

P32 – Revised 
wording clarifies 
that incentive 
zoning is not a 
requirement and 
that the two types 
of incentives listed 
are examples only. 

84 Recommendations Accessory Apartments (page 41) 
 
ADU's will required more cooperation and perhaps a different set of setbacks and other Dimensional Standards 
changes to make the numbers work. 

Survey This input will be used to inform implementation of the 
Accessory Apartments recommendation. 

None 

85 Recommendations Accessory Apartments (page 41) 
 
I strongly support the program of "Encouragement of development of accessory apartments ". I think this idea has 
a good potential of accomplishing the desired goal. In this regard, I beg to draw your attention to two challenges 
and request you to work on them if you haven't already: 
 

Survey This input will be used to inform implementation of the 
Accessory Apartments recommendation. 

None 

- Page 346 -



16 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

1. Utility companies are known to oppose "sub-metering". So some support will be required from 
planning/utilities departments for providing a way to meter the resident of accessory apartment, for electricity & 
water. 
 
2. Accessory apartments are currently restricted to 25% of the total square footage (Ordinance section 4.5.2.A). 
Assuming that a reasonable accessory apartment will be around 800 sq ft in size, it implies that the main dwelling 
unit must be 3200 sq ft or bigger in size. I think a family that can afford a 3200 sq ft home in Apex area in today's 
time will probably not be driven to generate extra wealth from an accessory unit. I mean, a family that lives in a 
2000 ~2400 sq ft home with sufficient lot size is more likely to be motivated to take the pain of building a 700~800 
sq ft acessory apartment, which is possible only when 25% size restriction is increased to at least 33%. 

86 Recommendations Multiple: Soft Density By-Right Zoning (page 43) and Accessory Apartments (page 41) 
 
My thoughts & a couple of questions most pertaining to infill lots located in Downtown Apex. 
The downtown area is at a precipice of major gentrification which of course is the exact opposite of affordable 
housing. 
1. As land prices soar builders must build bigger & bigger homes on smaller lots to justify the square footage value 
of the lot price. Currently around $125k to $200k. 
2. The charm of Downtown Apex will remain in tact assuming there is tight architectural control combined with 
higher density. 

 Downtown Apex Small town Character UDO permits a min. lot width of 60’. Compared to other adjoining 
jurisdictions min lot size 5,000 sf, min width at 50’ with 3’ side setbacks. 6’ aggregate. Medium Density 
Residential MDR width = 40’ 

 Relaxing the min lot width could help with affordability allowing smaller lots. It would also help with 
density for public transportation (assuming these folks would use public transportation. ) but the bigger 
issue would be to reduce “super high priced homes” and the continued gentrification of the downtown 
area, due to the large single family lots. Yes it would protect the existing housing stock and charm keeping 
the min lot width at 60’. 

 Political will to reduce lot widths? Staff would have to agree.  

 The town is encouraging ADU’s (accessory Apartments) as mentioned in the preliminary affordable draft 
plan on pg. 41. 

 Assuming this counts as an affordable rental. 
3. Affordability has a shot assuming a combination of: 

 Increased density. Townhomes, Duplexes, Triplexes. 

 Public - private partnership 

 Discounted fees in exchange of for a % of units committed to buyers that meet the Wake county 
Threshold 30%. 

 Down payment money that can be forgiven after a period of time. 

Survey These specific comments will be considered as part of Plan 
implementation. 

None 

87 Action Plan The Plan’s implementation schedule ignores certain low-hanging fruit, such as by-right zoning, accessory 
apartments, and housing assistance.  These elements can be implemented quickly and have immediate and direct 
impact. 

Planning Board 
Public Hearing 

Since it is not possible to move forward all 
recommendations in the near-term, the action plan 
prioritizes those recommendations that are anticipated to 
result in the most affordable housing units and/or are most 
needed now. 

None 

88 Action Plan Lastly, we are perplexed by the prioritization in the Action Plan section under the Matrix of Recommendations.  
We would recommend putting low hanging fruit such as the Accessory Apartments and “Soft Density” Zoning By-
Right in the near-term timeline as well as Emergency Rental Assistance and Supportive Services given its urgent 
nature. 

Planning Board 
Public Hearing 

Since it is not possible to move forward all 
recommendations in the near-term, the action plan 
prioritizes those recommendations that are anticipated to 
result in the most affordable housing units and/or are most 

None 

- Page 347 -



17 
 

# Category Comment Source Response Suggested Change 

needed now. Emergency Rental Assistance is currently 
being supported through other resources. 

89 Action Plan Action plan is a very good start and detailed enough...of course execution is key. Survey Comment noted. None 

 

- Page 348 -



Town of Apex 
Affordable 

Housing Plan

DRAFT
December 2020

- Page 349 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 2DRAFT

Acknowledgements
The Apex Affordable Housing Plan was guided by the efforts of the Steering
Committee, a group of engaged residents and housing professionals who lent their
support, guidance, and opinions to the planning process over an eight-month
period.
Bill Ahern
Habitat for Humanity Wake County

Francisco Arellano
Citizen Stakeholder

Alicia Arnold
Wake County 

Mairym Azcona
Citizen Stakeholder

Beth Bordeaux
Western Wake Crisis Ministries

Erika Brown
Triangle J Council of Governments

John Buck
Citizen Stakeholder

Nicole Dozier
Mayor Pro Tem, Town of Apex

Phillip Farrington
Citizen Stakeholder

Tim Fisher
DHIC

Lou Fortunato
Apex Business Community

Seth Friedman
Passage Home

Jacques K. Gilbert
Mayor, Town of Apex

Michele Harrison
White Oak Foundation

Tyrell Hines
Citizen Stakeholder

Laura Holley
Citizen Stakeholder

Tahira Hyman 
Citizen Stakeholder

Yume Iwakura
Citizen Stakeholder

Morgan Mansa
Town of Cary 

Timothy Morgan
Evergreen Construction Company

Kandy Osborne
Citizen Stakeholder

Molly Rodgers
Citizen Stakeholder

Jacob Rogers
Triangle Community Coalition

Mark Steele
Apex Planning Board

Phil Welch
Citizen Stakeholder

- Page 350 -



Vision: Apex welcomes people of diverse backgrounds, and supports opportunities for
affordable, safe, sanitary, and quality housing that meets the needs of people of all incomes,
ages, and abilities.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 3DRAFT

Apex Affordable Housing Plan Overview

Welcome and attract a diverse population.

Meet the housing needs of a diverse population, including providing housing that is 
affordable to people with moderate and low incomes and of different age groups.

Connect affordable housing development with transit service, transportation 
infrastructure, and amenities.

Partner regionally to meet the needs of vulnerable populations.

Raise community awareness of affordable housing needs, solutions, and broader 
impacts.

To fulfill this vision, Apex will…

BUILDING THE TOWN’S CAPACITY

Town Staff Capacity

Housing Advisory Board

ADVANCING ADVOCACY AND PUBLIC 
EDUCATION

Annual Housing Report

Diversity & Racial Equity Initiatives

Affordable Housing Advocacy Partners

Apex will meet these goals by…

IMPLEMENTING PROGRAMS AND POLICIES

Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning

Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (OOR) 
Assistance
Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
Gap Financing

Support for Homeownership

Transit Oriented Development Density

“Soft Density” Zoning By-Right

Emergency Rental Assistance & 
Supportive Services

Accessory Apartments

Public Land Acquisition & Sale

- Page 351 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 4DRAFT

Table of Contents

05
Introduction
Purpose of the Affordable Housing Plan
Role of the Town in Housing Affordability
Definition and Types of Affordable Housing
Planning Context
Planning Process

14
Housing Needs Assessment
Purpose of a Housing Needs Assessment
Summary of Housing Needs
Public Input on Housing Needs
Housing Trends and Challenges

23 Vision and Goals

25
Recommendations
Build the Town's Capacity
Advance Advocacy and Public Education
Implement Programs and Policies

44
Action Plan
Matrix of Recommendations and Goals
Measures of Success
Apex Affordable Housing Fund

48
Appendix
Data Sources & Glossary
Housing Affordability Limits in Apex
Survey and Stakeholder Engagement Summary
Housing Needs Assessment Detail

- Page 352 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 5DRAFT

Title

Introduction

- Page 353 -



Purpose of the Affordable Housing Plan
Apex needs an Affordable Housing Plan to guide the Town’s efforts to 

identify and address the affordable housing needs of its residents.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 6DRAFT

Apex welcomes people of diverse backgrounds, and supports 
opportunities for affordable, safe, sanitary, and quality housing that 

meets the needs of people of all incomes, ages, and abilities.

Apex has experienced significant population growth in the past two decades, outpacing
growth in both the County and the State. As demand for new housing has grown, home prices
have been increasing sharply since the Great Recession. Because of this, an increasing number
of low- and moderate-income households in Apex struggle to afford their rent or mortgage. In
addition, the Town’s population has become less diverse compared with Countywide trends.

To accommodate future growth, reduce the market pressures on home prices, align housing
development with other Town planning efforts, and attract and retain a more diverse
population, Apex has set a vision for its future.

The Affordable Housing Plan sets goals and makes recommendations that will help Apex to
fulfill this vision.

- Page 354 -



FEDERAL PROGRAMS STATE PROGRAMS WAKE COUNTY PROGRAMS

• Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits 

• Community Development 
Block Grants

• Emergency Solutions 
Grant

• Home Investment 
Partnerships Program

• Housing Choice Vouchers
• Housing Opportunities for 

Persons with AIDS

• NC 1st Home Advantage 
Down Payment Assistance

• NC Home Advantage 
Mortgage

• NC Home Advantage Tax 
Credit

• Displacement Prevention 
Partnership

• Urgent Repair
• Community Partners Loan 

Pool

• Elderly & Disabled 
Housing Rehabilitation 

• Emergency Rehabilitation 
• Affordable Housing 

Development Program
• Public Land Disposition
• Rental Assistance Housing 

Program
• Emergency Assistance, 

Street Outreach, & Rapid 
Rehousing

Role of the Town in Housing Affordability

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 7DRAFT

The market alone cannot adequately address the affordable housing issues that Apex
residents face. Market rate rents are determined by both the cost to build housing, including
land, and the cost to operate housing. Because of high land costs and growing demand,
market rate rents are higher than what many low- and moderate-income households can
afford. The market cannot provide housing to these households without government support.

Land

Hard Costs

Soft Costs

Returns

Project 
Financing

Cost of Development Operating Costs

Operating 
Expenses

Market-Rate 
Rent

Required 
Rent

Revenue
Existing government programs to support housing affordability do not fully address the
affordability needs in Apex. These include federal programs administered by the North
Carolina Housing Finance Agency (NCHFA) and Wake County, as well as other State and
County programs. Apex can provide funding to leverage or supplement these existing
programs to help their impacts.

The affordability of housing is influenced by: market forces, state and local 
regulations, and affordable housing programs that receive funding from 

federal, state, county, and local governments.

- Page 355 -



Role of the Town in Housing Affordability

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 8DRAFT

The Town influences the 
regulatory 
environment in which 
developers make 
investment decisions 
and disseminates 
information to 
developers and 
residents.

e.g. Unified Development 
Ordinance, development 
review processes, 
building permit 
processes, design 
guidebooks

The Town deploys 
public funds for 
infrastructure, 
amenities, and 
development

e.g. parks and 
amenities, public 
transit, loans and 
grants for housing 
development

The Town of Apex already plays a central role in the housing market through regulation
and public investments, which influence both the supply of and the demand for housing. These
Town policies and practices impact the type of housing available and the cost of housing.

The Town of Apex can change its regulations and deploy funds to meet 
affordable housing needs not met by the market or existing federal, state, 

and county programs. 

The Affordable Housing Plan outlines recommendations that will help ensure 
that the Town’s policies and investments are aligned with its vision.

- Page 356 -



Definition and Types of Affordable Housing

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 9DRAFT

"Affordability" can have different meanings depending on the context. Under a standard

There are many different types of "affordable housing":
NO SUBSIDY

HIGHEST LEVEL OF SUBSIDY

Naturally Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH): Market-rate
housing (for rent or purchase) that is priced at levels that are
affordable to low- or moderate-income residents. In Apex, rising
rents, home prices, and redevelopment have led to a limited
amount of NOAH.

Subsidized Housing: Rental and ownership housing which has
received local, state, or federal subsidy funding to make it
affordable to income-qualified residents. The most common form
of subsidized housing is through the federal Low-Income Housing
Tax Credit (LIHTC) program, which in North Carolina primarily
serves households at or below 60% of Area Median Income, or
about $56,000 for a family of four in Wake County, well above
minimum wage. Apex presently has fewer than 200 units of
subsidized housing.

Public Housing: Housing owned and managed by public housing
agencies with operating and capital funds provided by HUD, and
typically serving extremely low-income households (a family of
four making $25,300 or less). The Wake County Housing
Authority operates 10 units of public housing in Apex.

Permanent Supportive Housing: Housing that also provides
health care and supportive services to help individuals and
families with higher levels of need (for example, adults with
chronic health or developmental difficulties) to remain housed and
lead more stable lives.

set by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD),
housing is affordable when a household’s housing costs (including rent or
mortgage and utilities) are less than 30% of the household’s income. A
household that spends 30% or more of its income on housing costs is
considered “cost burdened”. A summary of affordable housing costs by
income in Apex is provided in the Appendix.

Broadstone Walk

Oak Grove

Correnna St

- Page 357 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 10DRAFT

Planning Context
Prior plans in Apex and Wake County established a strong foundation to begin the
affordable housing planning processes. The Town’s and region’s prior comprehensive plans,
small area plans, and housing strategies helped the planning team to understand the local and
regional priorities that the Affordable Housing Plan would need to address for Apex, as well
as planned investments and ongoing initiatives around land use, transportation, and
affordable housing.

The Apex Downtown Master Plan (2019) provides a vision to
guide development in and around downtown.
• Expanding housing options including mixed-income and

senior-friendly housing near downtown is a key goal of the
plan

• Realtors see a need for additional duplex, triplex, and
quad housing near downtown to support housing
affordability

The Wake County Affordable Housing Plan (2017) identifies
strategies to produce and preserve affordable housing.
• Recommendations include use of public land, an acquisition

and preservation fund, funding for affordable rental
production, and dedicating funding for housing programs

Peak Plan 2030 (2013) is an update to the Town’s
Comprehensive Plan.
• The plan recommends allowing and encouraging more

housing development, especially rental housing, in and
around downtown; increasing density near downtown
without altering neighborhood character; increasing
diversity of housing types and tenure; and encouraging
weatherization and modernization, particularly for senior
and disabled housing

Advance Apex (2019) is a transportation and land use plan.
• It includes the 2045 Future Land Use map and sets the

goals of investing in activity centers, creating walkable,
mixed-use areas, and preserving rural character

• It identified the conceptual route for the first local transit
route in Apex

- Page 358 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 11DRAFT

Planning Process
The Apex Affordable Housing Plan is the result of an eight-month planning effort. The
planning process included:

• Assessing housing needs, which combined analysis of demographic, economic, and real
estate market trends with input from stakeholders to identify a clear picture of housing
trends and affordability needs in Apex;

• Working with a Steering Committee in six sessions to develop a vision and goals for the
plan and discuss potential affordable housing tools that Apex could implement to meet its
housing needs;

• Developing recommendations for feasible and impactful strategies and tools the Town can
pursue to address its housing needs and meet its affordable housing goals; and

• Drafting a plan for public review prior to adoption by the Town Council.

The Apex Affordable Housing Plan was developed in collaboration with Apex residents
and stakeholders from a diversity of backgrounds. Throughout the plan, input from
stakeholders provided crucial context about local needs and priorities. Engagement activity
included:

• 15 Interviews with stakeholders including providers of affordable housing, developers,
community leaders, nonprofit service providers, and Apex residents directly impacted by
housing challenges;

• A Town-wide public survey that was publicized in utility mailers, emails, Town social
media pages, posters, and through community leaders and Steering Committee members;

• Regular website and email updates to inform residents about the progress of the plan;

• A public presentation to share the draft plan and receive public feedback;

• Presentations to the Apex Planning Board and Town Council; and

• Input from a steering Committee of local stakeholders including engaged residents and
housing professionals who lent their support, guidance, and opinions throughout the
planning process.

Project 
Initiation

Housing Needs 
Assessment

Vision & 
Goals

Recommendations Draft
Plan

May 2020 June 2020 Aug. 2020 Sept. 2020 Nov. 2020 Jan. 2021

Public 
Hearings

- Page 359 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 12DRAFT

Planning Process
A town-wide public survey was released in July 2020 using publicinput.com in order to
gather broad feedback on the housing issues that Apex residents face. This survey took
place over a two-month period and reached over 1,250 residents, shaping the housing goals
around which the Apex Affordable Housing Plan is organized and informing the plan’s
recommendations. The survey was supplemented with individual interviews to reach
populations that were underrepresented in the survey. The survey also helped highlight topics
that require further public engagement and public education around Apex’s affordable
housing needs. This will need to continue throughout the implementation of the Affordable
Housing Plan and could be led by members of the Steering Committee as well as Town Staff.

The public survey received 1,250 responses offering a range of perspectives
on housing in Apex. 89% of respondents were Apex residents, and the
remainder were primarily from Holly Springs and Cary.

TENURE

Renters

Owners

10%

13%

13%

19%

19%

26%

INCOME

Prefer not 
to say/Other

Below $50K

$50K-$75K

$75K-$100K

$100K-$150K

Above $150K

66% 20% 6% 6%

White Prefer not to Say Black or African American Latinx/Latino/Latina Asian (2%)

RACE/ETHNICITY

86%

14%

- Page 360 -



Race of Apex Residents & 
Respondents

White Apex 
residents: 75%

White survey 
respondents*: 66%

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 13DRAFT

Planning Process
A public engagement plan (PEP) was developed to guide outreach throughout the planning
process. The PEP included the survey as well as targeted metrics reflecting a goal to reach a
diverse audience. The survey was supplemented with targeted interviews to reach lower
income households. Higher income homeowners are overrepresented in the survey, but
representation was more diverse than the targeted metrics.

Tenure of Apex Residents 
& Respondents

PEP Goal: 50 renter 
respondents 
Reached: 139 renter 
respondents

PEP Goal: Responses from all 
income groups, including low-
income.

PEP Goal: 60 non-white 
respondents
Reached: 150 non-white 
respondents

Apex 
homeowners: 74%

Respondent 
homeowners: 86%

Income of Apex Residents & 
Respondents

Apex households with 
incomes below $35k: 13%

Respondents with 
incomes below$35k*: 5%

*26% of survey respondents declined to state their household income and 22% of survey respondents declined to
state their race/ethnicity. Apex residents under the age of 35 are also underrepresented in the survey.

- Page 361 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 14DRAFT

Title

Housing Needs 
Assessment

- Page 362 -



The goal of the Housing Needs Assessment is to identify the primary affordable housing issues
in Apex to inform recommendations.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 15DRAFT

Purpose of a Housing Needs Assessment

What are the most pressing issues related to housing affordability in Apex?
Housing affordability is made up of many distinct but related factors including the supply and
diversity of available housing, the accessibility of homeownership, and the availability of
housing and services to meet the needs of all residents including seniors, adults with disabilities,
and households that rely on public transit. The Housing Needs Assessment provides insight into
which of these issues are most pressing for Apex residents.

What policies or market trends are driving these issues?
Local and regional trends in population and income, housing development and prices,
employment, and other factors all impact housing affordability in Apex. In addition, the Town’s
policies related to development review, land use, housing programs, and other regulations
impact the cost of development and the cost of living in Apex. The Housing Needs Assessment
evaluates which of these trends are most contributing to housing affordability challenges in the
Town.

Who is and is not served by Apex’s housing market?
Some residents may face affordability challenges that others do not. In addition, there may be
regional residents who want to live in Apex but cannot, or who choose not to live in Apex.
Understanding who is struggling with housing affordability in Apex is crucial to informing the
priorities of the Affordable Housing Plan.

The Housing Needs Assessment identifies the most pressing housing 
affordability challenges in Apex.

In particular, the Housing Needs Assessment uses demographic and market data as well as
stakeholder input to answer three questions:

- Page 363 -



• There is a significant shortage of rental housing that is affordable for low-income
households (2,000 units for households earning less than $40,000), and that rental
housing gap is projected to nearly double over the next 10 years. While it is not possible
to quantify a homeownership gap, the increasing cost burden of low-income homeowners
and qualitative data on homeownership indicate that there is an unmet need.

• In Apex, there are presently 3,150 cost burdened households earning less than
$75,000, and 700 extremely cost burdened households (those paying over 50% of their
income in housing costs).

• Apex is rapidly losing affordable entry-point homes or “starter homes” for new owners
including young families.

• Apex is attracting a less racially diverse population compared to Wake County overall.

• Affordable housing options and supportive services are limited for seniors who want to
age in place.

• Apex does not have a proportional share of the region’s subsidized rental housing,
and new development of LIHTC units has been limited. Barriers to subsidized affordable
housing development include high land costs and limited access to transit.

• Most of the supportive housing and services in Apex are provided through small
programs run by religious organizations or other nonprofits.

• Market pressures appear to be displacing moderate-income families, including
homeowners, and threaten existing Naturally-Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH).

• High land and maintenance costs place redevelopment pressure on NOAH in Apex,
including mobile home parks and older homes.

• Lack of clear affordable housing development requirements leads to uncertainty in
negotiation with developers, which can pose a barrier to the production of new housing.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 16DRAFT

Summary of Housing Needs in Apex

The key findings of the Housing Needs Assessment informed the goals and 
recommendations of the Affordable Housing Plan.

- Page 364 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 17DRAFT

Public Input on Housing Needs

Survey Prompt: Do you think that people in Apex…

0% 20% 40% 60%

Struggle to afford housing in neighborhood of choice

Struggle to make rent or mortgage payments

Struggle to find housing of the type they want

Struggle to pay for needed repairs

Have left Apex due to rising costs

Struggle to find housing near transit

Struggle to find housing near school, work, or other

Have experienced homelessness or emergency need

Have not experienced housing challenges in Apex 19%

24%

35%

35%

36%

51%

59%

36%

46%

The public survey was used to gather general input regarding housing needs. Survey
respondents agree that housing affordability is a challenge in Apex. The Appendix
provides more detailed public survey results.

- Page 365 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 18DRAFT

Public Input on Housing Needs
Respondents shared both their perspective on housing issues in Apex and the role that
they think the Town should play. The Appendix provides more detailed Public Survey results.

Many of the lower-income families would like to stay in Apex to 
give their children a better life. Many are forced to move to areas 

that have less access to resources. We would love to see Apex 
stay balanced and not become a place accessible only for a 

certain demographic.

I know many Latino families that have 
moved away from Apex because of rising 
housing cost. This racial/class gentrification 
by means of  rising housing costs, reduces 
social and economic diversity which hurts 

everyone's quality of life.

Couples in their late 20s and early 
30s with young children I know had 

a hard time affording a single 
family house in this area.

People retiring have to 
move to Fuquay or Holly 

Springs to downsize.

I believe the Town should 
be looking at ways to 
work with local and 

county organizations to 
develop more affordable 

housing.

I agree the Town should be the 
implementer of affordable housing 
and not hinder it through arbitrary 
zoning and land use laws. But I do 
not agree it is the Town's obligation 

to finance.

It should not be the Town’s 
responsibility to provide 
financial assistance or 

down payment assistance. 
There are federal 

programs available to 
support those needs.

- Page 366 -



Cost burden for Apex residents is increasing for homeowners at lower income
levels and renters at all income levels.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 19DRAFT

Housing Trends and Challenges

Homeowner Housing Cost Burden

Renter Housing Cost Burden

A household is cost burdened if it spends more than 30 percent of income on housing costs,
including utilities. In Apex, there are presently 3,150 cost burdened households earning less
than $75,000, and 700 extremely cost burdened households (those paying over 50% of
their income in housing costs).

Since 2010, cost burden has increased dramatically for low-income households who own and
rent, and also for higher-income renters, perhaps due to the luxury price points of new
multifamily development (a structure containing more than four dwelling units). This indicates the
growing need for affordable rental and homeownership opportunities within the Town.

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018)

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

Less than
$20,000

$20,000 to
$34,999

$35,000 to
$49,999

$50,000 to
$74,999

$75,000 or more

2010 2018

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

Less than
$20,000

$20,000 to
$34,999

$35,000 to
$49,999

$50,000 to
$74,999

$75,000 or more

2010 2018

- Page 367 -



Apex is losing moderate-income households, particularly among homeowners, who may
be moving to nearby towns with lower home prices.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 20DRAFT

Housing Trends and Challenges

While Apex has continued to gain higher-income households, the Town has seen a significant
decrease in households earning $50,000 to $75,000 each year, primarily driven by a loss
of homeowners. These income tiers are generally considered to be moderate-income
households in Wake County. Since 2010, the Town of Apex lost 605 homeowner households
earning between $50,000 to $75,000 each year.

Based on Apex’s increasing home values, as well as the survey responses and interviews of
Apex residents, this loss in moderate-income homeowners appears to be driven by a
combination of existing homeowners leaving Apex, and the inability of other moderate-
income homeowners to replace them. While existing homeowners may be leaving due to
their independent desire to sell or their inability to afford growing costs of homeownership
(such as rising property taxes), the rising financial barrier to moving to Apex is an undisputed
challenge for prospective residents earning moderate incomes, as well as the increasing cost
burden for low income renters and homeowners.

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Decennial Census (2010)

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

Less than
$20K

$20K to
$34,999

$35K to
$49,999

$50K to
$74,999

$75K to
$99,999

$100K to
$149,999

$150K or
more

Change in Income Distribution - Homeowners
2010 2018

“In some cases, people can’t stay here [in Apex]. I see this near Downtown and the 
Publix. So, they sell and move to Holly Springs.”
–Apex resident

- Page 368 -



The limited availability of subsidized rental housing and rising rents have led to a rental
housing gap of roughly 2,000 units affordable to households earning less than $40,000 in
Apex. When the need from individuals of certain incomes levels exceeds the number of units
affordable at that income level, a housing gap exists. This gap is particularly pronounced for
households earning less than $40,000 each year, as the number of units meeting their
maximum affordable rent ($750 each month for households making $30k and $1000 each
month for households making $40k, including utilities) continues to dwindle. As a result, many of
these renters are likely paying 50% or more of their income for housing. Like many towns,
Apex has a gap of rental units for low-income renters and a surplus of units for higher-income
renters. This indicates that the market is meeting the needs of most renters, particularly those
earning more than $50,000, but that public subsidy may be needed to increase the
availability of rental housing that is affordable to households with incomes below $40,000.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 21DRAFT

Housing Trends and Challenges

 -  500  1,000  1,500  2,000  2,500  3,000  3,500  4,000  4,500

Less than $100K

Less than $80K

Less than $60K

Less than $50K

Less than $40K

Less than $30K

Supply  Need
Apex Cumulative Rental Housing Gap, 2018

Source: ACS 5-Year Public Use Microdata Samples (2018)

-1,300 units

-650 units

+350 units

a +800 units

a
+950 
units

a
+700 
units

As rents increase, NOAH is lost, and the low-income population continues to grow; this gap is
projected to nearly double for lower income households over the next ten years. While the
Town can’t fully address the rental housing gap, funding and partnerships with the County will
help to reduce it or keep it from growing.

- Page 369 -



Over the next decade, Apex is projected to add 1,900 jobs with incomes below $75,000,
which will further contribute to the Town’s affordable housing need.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 22DRAFT

Housing Trends and Challenges

+650 Jobs from $35-50K

E.g. Firefighters

+350 Jobs from $50-75K

E.g. Registered Nurses

+900 Jobs under $35K

E.g. Grocery Cashier

Though not all people who work in Apex will
choose to live in the Town, employment
growth is one source of potential new
residents. Much of the projected
employment growth (83% of jobs added) in
Apex will be in occupations that pay less
than $75,000 annually, and almost half of
those jobs will be retail and service-industry
jobs that pay less than $35,000. For those
making minimum wage, annual salary can
be closer to $14,000 in North Carolina.

Presently, only 10.4% of people who work
in Apex live in the Town. 65% of all Apex
workers commute 10 miles or more from
Wake County and surrounding counties, a
rate that is high even amongst other suburbs.
By increasing the stock of quality,
affordable homes for low and moderate-
income households, Apex could retain a
larger share of its employees as residents,
ensuring that the individuals who help keep
the Town running are also able to call it
home. Further, given the location of these
jobs, it is beneficial for affordable units to
be located near retail and commercial
centers as well as transit access.

Source: EMSI, ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), LEHD OnTheMap
- Page 370 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 23DRAFT

Title

Vision and Goals

- Page 371 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 24DRAFT

Plan Vision and Goals

Apex welcomes people of diverse backgrounds, and supports 
opportunities for affordable, safe, sanitary, and quality housing that 

meets the needs of people of all incomes, ages, and abilities.

Welcome, attract, and retain a diverse population.

Meet the housing needs of a diverse population, 
including providing housing that is affordable to 
people with moderate and low incomes.

Connect affordable housing development with 
transit service, transportation infrastructure, and 
amenities.

Partner regionally to meet the needs of vulnerable 
populations.

Raise community awareness of affordable 
housing needs, solutions, and broader impacts.

To fulfill this vision, Apex will…

The Steering Committee used public input and the results of the 
Housing Needs Assessment to establish the plan vision and goals. 

- Page 372 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 25DRAFT

Title

Recommendations

- Page 373 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 26DRAFT

Recommendations Overview

The Affordable Housing Plan includes fourteen recommendations intended to address the plan 
vision and goals. These are generally grouped in three categories: (1) Building the Town’s 
Capacity, (2) Advancing Advocacy and Public Education, and (3) Implementing Programs and 
Policies. A brief explanation for each recommendation is provided in this section. 

BUILDING THE TOWN’S CAPACITY

Town Staff Capacity

Housing Advisory Board

ADVANCING ADVOCACY AND PUBLIC EDUCATION

Annual Housing Report & Dashboard

Diversity & Racial Equity Initiatives

Affordable Housing Advocacy Partners

IMPLEMENTING PROGRAMS AND POLICIES

Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning

Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (OOR) Assistance

Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Gap Financing

Support for Homeownership

Transit Oriented Development Density

“Soft Density” Zoning By-Right

Emergency Rental Assistance & Supportive Services

Accessory Apartments

Public Land Acquisition & Sale

- Page 374 -



Long-Range Planning

How it Works

Town Staff Capacity

What it Means
Aligning staff capacity with the level of programming is crucial to the success of the
Affordable Housing Plan. By ensuring that the Town’s departments are adequately staffed and
funded to administer and manage housing programs and development, and by setting clear
priorities and measures of success, the Town can increase both its ability to support affordable
housing and to communicate and engage with the public.

Need in Apex
Apex lacks housing staff to oversee the implementation of the Plan including the administration
of the Affordable Housing Fund and proposed Housing Advisory Board.

Recommendations for Apex
As the Town develops new housing programs, it will need a full-time Housing Manager to
manage and oversee those programs. This role would be responsible for continued program
improvement, research of best practice, and monitoring of success. The Town may need to
contribute additional staff time and resources to support the Housing Manager as needed.

Implementation
1. Hire a housing manager to oversee the implementation 

of the Affordable Housing Plan. 
2. Review current staffing and make changes to 

accommodate new priorities and increase capacity.

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

Apex will increase the capacity of staff to support the successful implementation of 
the Affordable Housing Plan by hiring a Housing Manager.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 27DRAFT

Town of Apex Planning & Community 
Development Department

Housing Manager
Staff (TBD)

Oversees affordable 
housing programs 
and the Housing 
Advisory Board

Zoning 
Compliance

Supervisor
4 Staff

Ensures that all 
development and 

land use is 
compliant with Town 

ordinances.

Current Planning

Manager
7 Staff

Oversees the plan 
review process and 
advises property 

owners and 
developers

Manager
4 Staff

Plans for the Town's 
future and oversees 
the implementation 

of long-range 
plans

- Page 375 -



How it Works

Housing Advisory Board

What it Means
A Housing Advisory Board or Committee is a public, non-regulatory committee that advises
Town leadership on policy and funding priorities related to affordable housing. Much like
other public boards, committees, and commissions, it should bring together stakeholders with
multiple viewpoints who can advocate for affordable housing to Town Council and the public.

Need in Apex
Apex has a committed base of housing advocates and professionals it can leverage to support
the activities of Town staff, to inform the priorities of Town leadership, and to communicate with
the public about affordable housing. In addition, meeting the housing needs of diverse
residents requires a mechanism for diverse voices to participate in the Town’s decision-making.

Recommendations for Apex
By establishing a Housing Advisory Board the Town can formalize existing advocacy efforts
and ensure the Town’s capacity to successfully implement the Affordable Housing Plan.

Implementation
1. After hiring a Town Housing Manager, establish a 

board and develop a charter and by-laws to guide 
inclusive membership, governance, and training.

2. Appoint members, hold regular meetings, and 
coordinate with the Planning Board and Town Council.

Apex will create a Housing Advisory Board to provide input on the use of the Town’s 
affordable housing funding and policy, as well as to be responsible for championing 

education and outreach around affordable housing.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 28DRAFT

MEMBERSHIP

TOWN STAFF 
ROLE

8-10 council-appointed members, representing the following groups:
• affordable housing 

providers (recipients of Town funds)
• real estate professionals & lenders
• at-large community members

• affordable housing residents
• regional representatives
• Planning Board member
• Town Council member (nonvoting)

RESPONSIBILITY 1. Provide Town Council with policy and funding recommendations.
2. Assist in the creation of an Annual Housing Report.
3. Advise on Housing Advocacy efforts.
Provide administrative support and technical assistance for board activity.
Provide information about related Town initiatives, policies, and programs.

Membership should reflect a broad diversity of ages, races, and 
incomes, and a combination of homeowners and renters.

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

- Page 376 -



Annual Housing Report & Dashboard

What it Means
An annual housing report with online dashboard serves two main functions: (1) To track key
performance indicators and metrics associated with affordable housing programs and
expenditures and monitor the impacts to ensure that the Town’s investments support racial
equity goals; and (2) To convey to residents the importance of housing affordability and racial
equity initiatives. It can both serve as an outreach tool and track efforts related to outreach
and education.

Need in Apex
Public engagement revealed uncertainty among Apex residents about the areas of greatest
need and the Town’s role in supporting affordable housing.

Recommendations for Apex
Producing an annual report on housing and an online dashboard, once implementation of
programs is underway, will provide a forum for educating and informing the public about the
state of housing affordability in Apex. Use advocacy to communicate early progress.

Implementation
1. Following the hiring of a Town Housing Manager, 

identify key housing metrics and program performance 
indicators to track and report.

2. Develop a format and begin annual housing report and 
dashboard for Town of Apex.

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Apex will produce an annual report and online dashboard on the impacts of the 
Town’s affordable housing activities and spending.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 29DRAFT

How it Works

Annual Housing Reports should include:

Metrics to diagnose affordability
e.g. entry price point, rates of housing cost burden by 
tenure

Key Performance Indicators for programs
e.g. households served by income range, units 
produced or preserved

The online dashboard can be updated more 
frequently, including data such as assistance provided 
through the Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Program.

- Page 377 -



Diversity & Racial Equity Initiatives 

What it Means
Diversity initiatives are comprised of marketing and partnership efforts that emphasize a
Town’s values, with the goal of becoming more welcoming of people of different races,
ethnicities, beliefs, sexual orientations, gender identities, incomes, and other groups. Racial
equity initiatives acknowledge the intentional design of many racial inequities and set racial
equity goals for programs.

Implementation of Diversity Initiatives Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Apex will identify and eliminate potential barriers to attracting a diverse population 
and adopt a racial equity lens to evaluate all housing policies and investments.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 30DRAFT

Implementation of Racial Equity Initiatives

1. Work with marginalized communities to understand 
Apex’s current messaging, and to develop core values 
that emphasize diversity.

2. Develop a resident marketing strategy for Town communications that reflects core values.
3. Engage with real estate professionals including brokers and mortgage lenders to align 

messaging and mitigate potential barriers to attracting diverse residents.

4. Adopt a racial equity lens to evaluate and make decisions about housing programs and 
investments. Track program impacts and disaggregate data by race.

5. Evaluate the need for a Diversity Officer and hire a Diversity Officer if needed.
6. Join the North Carolina cohort of GARE (Government Alliance on Race and Equity), and 

participate in educational sessions, technical assistance, and peer-to-peer exchanges to 
shape Town racial equity initiatives.

Need in Apex
Apex’s vision is to become a community that is welcoming to people of diverse backgrounds.
However, new residents in Apex are predominantly white, even as the County’s population
growth has been relatively diverse, indicating that the Town can do more to advance a
welcoming message and provide housing opportunities for prospective residents. Further, a
commitment to racial equity requires that the Town understands the impacts of its policies and
investments and makes decisions that mitigate rather than exacerbate racial disparities.

Recommendations for Apex
To advance diversity, the Town should engage with a diverse group of residents to understand
the current messages, explicit and implicit, that may influence who moves to Apex; work with
real estate agents to coordinate messaging and ensure understanding of and compliance with
Fair Housing regulations; and emphasize the Town’s values in all communications. As part of
ongoing Town efforts to increase diversity and equity, the Town should adopt a racial equity
lens to evaluate housing investments and consider hiring a Diversity Officer to implement these
changes throughout the Town’s government.

- Page 378 -



How it Works

Affordable Housing Advocacy Partners

What it Means
Advocacy activities can help to build public awareness and dispel misconceptions about
affordable housing. In small towns, many preexisting community groups function as advocates
by educating the public about the benefits of development, the need for affordable housing,
and the populations impacted by that need.

Need in Apex
Public engagement revealed a need for greater education and communication about the need
for affordable housing in Apex and the Town’s role in addressing affordable housing needs.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town should support the advocacy efforts of the Housing Advisory Board members and
their associated groups, offering organizational resources (such as public meeting space) and
educational resources about housing programs. Progress made and reported in the annual
housing report can be conveyed through these partnerships and a potential public forum.

Implementation
1. Work with Housing Advisory Board members and 

organizations to develop advocacy and education plan.
2. Develop public-facing informational materials to explain 

the Town’s affordable housing plan.
3. Integrate advocacy efforts into Annual Housing Report.

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Apex will develop partnerships with pro-affordable housing advocates to coordinate 
an education campaign.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 31DRAFT

The Town can partner with community groups to support advocacy efforts:

Tours of affordable 
housing 

developments

Publication of 
individual 

affordable housing 
stories

“Explainers” and 
fact sheets for 
proposed and 

existing programs

- Page 379 -



Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning
Apex will create a clear menu of suggested affordable housing zoning conditions for 

developers to choose from in exchange for incentives as part of the rezoning and 
Planned Unit Development approval processes.

What it Means
When proposed development requires Town Council approval, the Town has an opportunity to
ensure that new development includes affordable housing units. Incentive zoning conditions
encourage developers to provide a public good, such as affordable housing units, as part of a
proposed development, in exchange for incentives that compensate for the loss of revenue.

How it Works

Need in Apex
Apex already provides incentives for affordable housing and other public benefits, but lacks a
clear set of conditions, which can pose a barrier to the production of new housing. In addition,
the Town wants to protect Naturally-Occurring Affordable Housing and limit gentrification
pressures from new housing development.

Recommendations for Apex
Establishing a clear policy that sets expectations for developers to provide affordable housing
units or an equivalent fee payment toward the Town’s Housing Trust Fund will help to ensure
that affordable housing is created in Apex as part of new residential development. Further,
the program should include special requirements for discretionary development in areas
particularly sensitive to redevelopment, such as mobile home parks, to minimize displacement.

Implementation
1. Review existing approval processes and recently-

approved projects to help develop clear guidelines.
2. Develop an incentive zoning condition, specifying target 

affordability and available incentives.
3. Establish criteria and a process to review projects.

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

Long-term 
affordability of a 

portion of units 
through rent or price 

reduction or an 
equivalent fee

DEVELOPER
OFFERS

AFFORDABILITY

TOWN
OFFERS
INCENTIVES

Increased density

Reduced parking 
requirements or 

setbacks

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 32DRAFT
- Page 380 -



Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning (cont’d)

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 33DRAFT

Example Affordable Housing Incentives in Apex | Depot 499 PUD

The Project: A proposed 200-acre mixed-use development including residential and 
non-residential components, seeking rezoning as a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), a type of zoning district with specific requirements 
outlined in the Unified Development Ordinance. 

The Opportunity: The proposal included no affordable housing but was requesting a 
significant zoning change for the development to move forward.

The Request: The Town requested that the developer set aside at least 2 acres (1% of 
the total land area) for affordable housing or set aside a portion of the 
proposed multifamily housing units for affordable housing. 

The Outcome: The Developer agreed to make a monetary donation to an affordable 
housing fund or non-profit affordable housing developer if a target

Example Affordable Housing Incentives in Apex | Kissena Lane PUD

The Project: A proposed 10-lot development of affordable, detached single family 
housing within an existing subdivision, seeking rezoning as a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD).

The Opportunity: The proposal for a 100% affordable development serving households 
with incomes at or below 70% of Area Median Income required certain 
changes to the zoning requirements in order to provide housing that was 
both affordable and in character with surrounding development.

The Request: The developer requested changes to the zoning including the required lot 
width and building setbacks, as well as a grant to assist with fees, in 
order to make the development feasible at the specified level of 
affordability.

The Outcome: The Town approved the PUD, which enabled the project to move forward.

number of affordable housing units 
were not built by 2025. In addition, 
Wake County Public School System 
committed to building an elementary 
school within the development area. 
Based on these commitments, the Town 
approved the rezoning.

- Page 381 -



How it Works

Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (OOR) 
Assistance

What it Means
Owner-occupied rehabilitation programs help maintain the affordability of homeownership by
ensuring that income-qualifying homeowners can make necessary repairs to make their homes
safe. Qualifying repairs typically include structural repairs, modernization or repairs to
systems such as heating and plumbing, and weatherization, as well as accessibility
improvements to help seniors age in place. Cosmetic improvements are not eligible costs.

Need in Apex
Apex has been losing moderate-income homeowners, and older homes are one remaining
source of Naturally-Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH) in Apex.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town has approved a program, Apex Cares, to provide rehabilitation assistance to
income-qualified homeowners. Apex should implement Apex Cares in a way that compliments
the County rehabilitation programs. This program will help preserve NOAH, prevent
displacement of moderate-income homeowners, and allow seniors to age in place.

Implementation
1. Standardize Apex Cares program operations with 

Wake County rehabilitation program.
2. Identify qualified private contracts from the County.
3. Conduct outreach to potential Apex Cares participants.

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

Apex will work with a nonprofit partner to support homeowners in making repairs so 
they can remain in their homes and communities.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 34DRAFT

01 Determine Eligibility
Participants must be owner-occupants 
of single family homes, and earn 
below 65% AMI (roughly $61,000)

03 Complete Projects
Projects can include repair or 

replacement of roofing, electrical 
systems, plumbing, and any other items 

determined eligible by the Town

02 Town Assigns Contractors
The Town partners with a nonprofit 
housing provider and provides them 

with grants of up to $15,000 to 
make repairs for homeowners

- Page 382 -



staff and dedicate a portion of Apex Affordable Housing Funds to gap financing.
2. In the mid-term coordinate with Wake County to negotiate financing for proposed LIHTC 

developments and adopt a policy to provide grants for permit fees. 

How it Works

What it Means
LIHTC is a federal program administered through the state, and the primary tool for the
development of new affordable rental units. There are two types of LIHTC: 9%, which provide
greater federal subsidy but are highly competitive; and 4%, which have less federal subsidy
and therefore require more local support, but are not as competitive. Local governments
frequently provide low-cost loans to LIHTC developers to close the financial “gap”.

Need In Apex 
Apex has a low-income rental housing gap, and a disproportionately low share of the County’s
low-income housing. Land costs and site requirements make LIHTC development difficult.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town can leverage County funding to meet Apex’s affordable housing needs. Apex should
explore opportunities to support 9% as well as 4% projects, which have fewer barriers to
development in Apex. Apex should provide low-cost loans for LIHTC in partnership with Wake
County to account for the higher cost of land in Apex. In addition, the Town can provide grants
to reduce the costs of permit fees.

Implementation
1. In the near-term gather input on gap financing needs 

and loan requirements from developers and County 

Apex will collaborate with Wake County to provide gap financing to increase the 
production of LIHTC housing and adopt a policy to provide assistance to reduce the 

cost of local fees for affordable housing developments.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 35DRAFT

Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
Gap Financing

4% LIHTC Project
Total Project Costs: 
$38.9M 

200 New Construction 
Units:
216 units
Average 60% AMI

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

Wake County Loan 
$3.0M

Permanent Loan 
$24.2M

LIHTC Equity $9.3M

Deferred 
Developer 
Fee $0.4M 

Apex Loan $2.0M

Soft Costs $7.3M

Construction Costs 
$27.3M

Wake Land Costs 
$2.3M

Apex Land Premium 
$2.0M

PROJECT COSTS FUNDING SOURCES

- Page 383 -



Support for Homeownership
(Down Payment Assistance & Counseling)

What it Means
Down Payment Assistance (DPA) reduces the up-front costs of homeownership by providing
income-qualified households with a forgivable loan (for those meeting requirements) or grant
to cover a portion of the down payment and closing costs. Paired with homebuyer counseling,
Down Payment Assistance can help low-and moderate-income households find stable housing
and build wealth through home equity.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 36DRAFT

How it Works

Down Payment Assistance reduces the up-front costs of homeownership 
through grants or forgivable loans.

$242,000 
Affordable mortgage for 

a household making 
$56,000 annually

$280,000
Home Purchase Price

$13,000 from household

$25,000 DPA

Total 
Purchase 
Price

Apex will increase access to homeownership for residents through financial assistance 
and counseling services provided through nonprofit partners.

Homebuyer counseling provides prospective first-time homebuyers with assistance in planning
for buying a home and budgeting for the full costs of homeownership, including utilities,
insurance and maintenance, to ensure that households are financially prepared for
homeownership.

Homeownership counseling may include services such as: 

1. Identifying affordable purchase prices and evaluating mortgage options.
2. Learning how to choose a home, a real estate agent, insurance, etc.
3. Navigating inspections, home purchase, and closing.
4. Planning for full costs of homeownership including maintenance needs.
5. Avoiding discrimination & predatory lenders.
6. Financial planning assistance or foreclosure prevention.

- Page 384 -



Building Wealth versus Preserving Affordability

Forgivable Loan or 
Grant

Loan with 0% 
Interest

Loan with Interest Shared Equity 
Homeownership

If homebuyer remains in 
the home for a minimum 
period (e.g. 5 years), the 
down payment assistance 
loan is forgiven and 
becomes part of the 
household’s assets.

When homebuyer sells 
the home, they repay the 
down payment assistance 
out of sale proceeds. 
Funds are redirected to 
a new homebuyer. The 
loan could be partially 
forgiven.

When homebuyer sells 
the home, they repay the 
down payment assistance 
with interest out of sale 
proceeds. Funds are 
redirected to a new 
homebuyer.

Both the homebuyer and 
the homeownership 
program build equity in 
the property, which must 
be sold to another 
income-qualified 
household. 

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 37DRAFT

Need in Apex
Apex has been losing moderate-income homeowners, and the entry point for homeownership is
putting homeownership out of reach for young families and first-time homebuyers.

Recommendations for Apex
Apex can provide funding for Down Payment Assistance to nonprofit operators of local
programs, and layer funding with both State and County programs to maximize available
funding and help Apex residents build wealth. Because, in Apex, there are increasingly few
homes inexpensive enough North Carolina Housing Finance Agency requirements, this program
would work best with a higher maximum purchase price, and in combination with tools that
increase the supply of moderately-priced housing, including soft density zoning.

Implementation
1. Develop and issue a request for proposals for a nonprofit 

partner to administer homeownership programs.
2. Review proposals and select a nonprofit partner.
3. Provide funding to support homeownership programs.

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Support for Homeownership (continued)

Support for homeownership helps low- and moderate-income households build wealth by 
accumulating home equity, but Down Payment Assistance does not preserve the affordability 
of the home purchased after the homebuyer sells the house. Depending on the type of Down 
Payment Assistance, funds can be forgiven or become part of a revolving program to support 
new first-time homebuyers. Shared equity homeownership limits the wealth households can 
build but maintains the affordability of the house. This can be done through a variety of 
mechanisms, including Community Land Trusts. The Town must weigh the tradeoffs between 
helping residents build wealth and making housing affordable over the long-term.

EMPHASIS ON 
BUILDING 
WEALTH

EMPHASIS ON 
PRESERVING 

AFFORDABILITY 

TYPES OF FUNDING ASSISTANCE

- Page 385 -



How it Works

Transit-Oriented Development Density

What it Means
Allowing increased density of multifamily development will help to reduce development costs
and clearly communicate where the Town is interested in supporting new development.
Encouraging development of multifamily development near employment centers and transit
helps create denser nodes and reduces the need for renters to rely on personal vehicles.

Need in Apex
The Town of Apex is launching its first local bus route in Spring 2021, and enhanced
GoTriangle bus services including extended Apex to Raleigh service and a new Apex-Cary
Express which will connect to the planned multi-modal hub and further increase access to
public transit for Apex residents.

Recommendations for Apex
Apex has proposed increases in density for its 2045 Future Land Use Map. By planning for
denser multifamily, the Town can ensure that development is consistent with the Town’s growing
transit system and support the development of affordable housing near transit.

Implementation
1. Review current future land use map and proposed transit 

system improvements to identify areas suitable for 
increased density.

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Apex will amend its Future Land Use Map to show higher density multifamily 
development in areas adjacent to key transit infrastructure.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 38DRAFT

2. Determine desired density of residential or mixed-use in transit-adjacent areas.
3. Engage the public to explain TOD and adopt proposed Land Use Map changes.

Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) is…

CONNECTED
& ACCESSIBLE

FOCUSED
& COMPACT

MIXED-USE

- Page 386 -



“Soft Density” By-Right Zoning

What it Means
“Soft Density” refers to attached single family housing such as townhomes, duplexes, and
triplexes which can accommodate more households and provide smaller units for residents.
Allowing by-right development of more types of housing will help reduce development costs
and clearly communicate where the Town is interested in supporting new development.

Needs in Apex
Apex has been losing moderate-income homeowners, which may be due in part to a lack of
affordable smaller homes such as townhomes.
Recommendations for Apex
Apex has a “small town character” zoning overlay district to preserve the architectural
qualities that define the downtown. The Town can amend this overlay district to ensure that it
allows soft density development, minimizes barriers to the development of soft density, and
limits the maximum unit size of new development. This should help to provide smaller housing
units near downtown while preserving affordability and enhancing neighborhood character.

Implementation
1. Review current zoning regulations including 

Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning condition to 
identify areas suitable for increased density.

2. Engage with developers and residents in downtown-

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Apex will amend its zoning to allow or encourage more types of housing, including 
duplexes, triplexes, and small multifamily developments, in residential districts 

adjacent to downtown.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 39DRAFT

How it Works

“Soft Density” or “Missing Middle” Housing

Detached 
Single Family 

Home

Townhome Duplex Triplex or Quad Mid-rise 
Apartment

Increasing Density

adjacent neighborhoods to evaluate opportunities and barriers to increasing the 
development of “soft density” housing.

3. Adopt proposed zoning changes.
- Page 387 -



or utility assistance, or other programs that meet demonstrated need.
2. Award funds and work with nonprofit partners to monitor ongoing need.

Emergency Rental Assistance 
and Supportive Services

What it Means
Emergency rental assistance helps households with a short-term need due to illness, job loss, or
another emergency to pay rent or utilities to avoid eviction and shut-offs. Supportive services
are a broad category of programs that help vulnerable populations maintain stable housing.
Vulnerable populations may include: the chronically homeless; veterans; seniors; adults with
chronic illness, addiction, or disabilities; and victims of domestic abuse.

Need in Apex
Apex provides grant funds to nonprofit service providers but can allocate Affordable Housing
Funds to expand supportive services and emergency assistance to vulnerable residents. Public
survey respondents supported assistance for residents facing housing instability.

Recommendations for Apex
Setting aside funds to help families facing short-term emergencies will help to reduce eviction
risk and providing funds for short-term emergencies can help avoid higher costs associated
with eviction and homelessness. The Town can provide funds for emergency and supportive
services through a competitive Request-for-Proposals process.

Implementation
1. Issue RFP for nonprofit partners to provide emergency 

or supportive services such as funding for supportive 
housing, resources for shared housing, emergency rental

Timing: Long-term (5-10 years)

Goals: 

Apex will support residents at risk of homelessness and other vulnerable populations 
with emergency rental assistance and related services.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 40DRAFT

How it Works

01
Allocate funds to serve 
vulnerable populations and set 
criteria to select awardees

03 
Award funds to nonprofits with 

highest-scoring proposals. Monitor 
impacts of implementation and 

ongoing need.

02 
Issue an RFP and score responses based on 

scoring criteria such as based on demonstrated 
need and organization capacity 

- Page 388 -



How it Works

Accessory Apartments

What it Means
Accessory apartments are small secondary units built as part of or adjacent to single family
homes. Cities around the country are beginning to explore ways to increase the construction of
accessory apartments to provide affordable housing and wealth-building opportunities.
Common strategies include making it easier for residents and developers to build accessory
apartments or providing low-cost construction loans.

Need in Apex
Apex allows accessory apartments, and costs range from approximately $45-90k per unit.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town can support the development of accessory apartments by working with developers
to provide them in new housing developments; providing design and regulatory assistance;
and encouraging Homeowners Associations (HOAs) to allow accessory apartments. In addition,
the Town could pilot a program to provide permanent financing, to be re-paid over time, for
the construction of Accessory Apartments that are rented to low-income renters.
Implementation
1. Identify best practices from successful regional and local 

examples.
2. Work with homeowners, HOAs, and developers to 

reduce barriers and encourage development.

Timing: Long-term (5-10 years)

Goals: 

Apex will provide residents with resources to encourage the development of accessory 
apartments. 

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 41DRAFT

01 Design Assistance
Develop a menu of potential designs or 
patterns for construction to reduce 
architecture costs to residents

03 Financial Assistance
Pilot a program to provide low-cost 

loans for the construction of 
accessory apartments

02 Regulatory Assistance
Simplify the permitting process for 

accessory apartments to make it easier 
and intuitive to get permits, or 

changing other requirements that may 
limit feasibility

2. Create a menu of designs based on the building code and the local building stock. 
3. Conduct a pilot program to develop 5 affordable units by offering $50,000 low-cost 

construction loans.
- Page 389 -



Case Study | Encinitas, California Permit Ready ADU Program (PRADU)

Accessory Apartments (continued)

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 42DRAFT

Source: City of Encinitas, DZN Partners, Design Path Studio; Western City

To encourage the construction of Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs), the
City of Encinitas, California offers a range of services to encourage and
reduce barriers to the development of ADUs. The City’s website provides
a selection of pre-approved building plans with customizable options
that fit the community’s character, as well as an expedited permit
process and reduced fees. Through a competitive process, the City
selected two local architects to develop criteria and create a selection
of designs and plans for the PRADU program, including a studio, a
one-bedroom, a two-bedroom, and a three-bedroom option. These plans are available for
download from the City’s website, along with a checklist, permit application, and other
relevant documents. The program was launched in 2019 to support the City’s goal of
supporting diverse housing options throughout Encinitas. Whereas in 2012, the City was
permitting fewer than 10 ADUs per year, in 2019 the City issued over 150 permits for ADUs.

- Page 390 -



How it Works

Public Land Acquisition and Sale

What it Means
Free or reduced cost land is another form of public subsidy the Town can use to create
opportunities for the development of new affordable housing. In North Carolina, local
governments can provide land to developers through a competitive process at reduced prices
in exchange for affordable housing.

Need in Apex
Land costs are high in Apex, which is a barrier to affordable housing development. In
addition, Apex owns limited public land that could be suitable for development.

Recommendations for Apex
Adopting a public land policy will help to ensure that suitable parcels are prioritized for
affordable housing, and that as the Town makes new purchases of land for public uses it
evaluates and identifies opportunities for affordable housing development. The Town may be
able to partner with Wake County to develop affordable housing on County-owned property.

Implementation
1. Develop a land policy that ensures suitable sites are 

designated for affordable housing.
2. Inventory and review opportunities on Town- and County-

public land in coordination with the Housing Advisory Board.

Timing: Long-term (5-10 years) 

Goals: 

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 43DRAFT

Apex will adopt a Town-wide policy to evaluate publicly-owned land prior to 
development and disposition and sell suitable property to developers at a reduced 

price in exchange for developing affordable units, and to evaluate any new purchases 
of property for affordable housing opportunities.

Determine feasibility by size, shape, 
and environmental constraints

Prioritize based on land 
use and road access

Filter for opp-
ortunity areas

Setting of affordable housing 
goals and release of RFP

Selection of a parcel of 
public land

Proposal or bid submission

Public private partnership 
established

Development

The public land process begins with assessing 
the feasibility of parcels and ends with 

disposition of these parcels for sale 

3. Release an RFP for development of priority sites.
- Page 391 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 44DRAFT

Title

Action Plan

- Page 392 -



Recommendation Timing

W
el

co
m

e,
 A

ttr
ac

t, 
an

d 
Re

ta
in

M
ee

t H
ou

si
ng

 
N

ee
ds

C
on

ne
ct

 w
ith

 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

Pa
rt

ne
r 

Re
gi

on
al

ly

Ra
is

e 
A

w
ar

en
es

s

BUILD THE TOWN’S CAPACITY To ensure the successful implementation of the Affordable 
Housing Plan, Apex needs to build its capacity to oversee new housing programs.

Town Staff Capacity Near-term

Housing Advisory Board Near-term

ADVANCE ADVOCACY AND PUBLIC EDUCATION Building awareness and understanding 
about Affordable Housing in Apex will be critical to the success of the Plan.

Annual Housing Report & Dashboard Mid-term

Diversity & Racial Equity Initiatives Mid-term

Affordable Housing Advocacy Partners Mid-term

IMPLEMENT PROGRAMS AND POLICIES Apex will provide funding for new programs and 
make policy changes to meet its affordable housing goals.

Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning Near-term

Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (OOR) Assistance Near-term

Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Gap Financing Near-term

Support for Homeownership Mid-term

Transit Oriented Development Density Mid-term

“Soft Density” Zoning By-Right Mid-term

Emergency Rental Assistance and Supportive Services Long-term

Accessory Apartments Long-term

Public Land Acquisition & Sale Long-term

While many affordable housing solutions require national, state, and county support, the Town
of Apex can take action to support affordable housing.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 45DRAFT

Matrix of Recommendations

- Page 393 -



Each of the Town’s actions will require specific metrics of success and targets to communicate
progress, evaluate program effectiveness, and assess the Town’s long-term prioritization. As the
Town works toward implementing the plan, it will need to set ambitious but achievable targets.
While the Town should track a broad array of housing affordability metrics, it should only set
targets for the direct outputs and impacts of Town programs.

Proposed Metric* Sample Target

BUILD THE TOWN’S CAPACITY

Number of dedicated housing staff Hire a Housing Manager within 1 year

Formation of a Housing Advisory Board Establish a Housing Advisory Board within 1 year

Number of Board meetings held Quarterly (4) at a minimum

ADVANCE ADVOCACY AND PUBLIC EDUCATION

Equitable impacts of housing programs
Disaggregated housing program metrics show no racial or other 
disparities

Publication of an annual housing report First report released within 2 years

Number of advocacy events held or 
materials produced by the Town or 
partners

One initiative per year with Town support

Increased diversity of Apex residents Track and report – no sample target

IMPLEMENT PROGRAMS AND POLICIES

Number of households served by 
program, tenure (renter or owner), and 
income

• Five households/year with income up to 80% of AMI receive 
down payment assistance 

• Fifteen households/year with income up to 65% of AMI receive 
Owner-Occupied rehabilitation assistance

• 75 newly-developed units serving households at or below 50% 
AMI receive Town funding or zoning incentives within five years

Number of new subsidized affordable 
units developed

• 300 units developed or in development within five years 
• Track development of subsidized units against identified gap 

of 2,000 rental units affordable to households under $40,000

Number of accessory apartments built
• Five permits for accessory apartments issued per year 
• Successful completion of a pilot program to build 5 units that 

are affordable to renters up to 60% AMI within 5 years

Total new housing units developed Track and report – no sample target

Median home price & median rent Track and report – no sample target

Homeownership rates Track and report – no sample target

Eviction rate Track and report – no sample target

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 46DRAFT

Metrics of Success

*Where applicable, all impact data should be disaggregated by income and race.
- Page 394 -



Sample Apex Affordable Housing Fund Allocation and Impacts

In recent years, many local governments have established Housing Trust Funds (HTF) to provide
funding for affordable housing programs. The Town of Apex recently created a new HTF,
referred to as the Apex Affordable Housing Fund, and approved a one cent property tax
increase (a “penny tax”) with the proceeds of this tax designated to the fund to support
affordable housing programs. This penny tax is anticipated to generate $1 million annually.
The specific allocation of these funds will be determined by Apex’s Town Council, with input
from the Housing Advisory Board, which will make annual budget allocation recommendations.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 47DRAFT

Apex Affordable Housing Fund

ERA & Supportive 
Services $50,000

Homeownership 
$200,000

Owner-Occupied 
Rehabilitation

$200,000

LIHTC Gap Financing
$500,000

$1,000,000

ANNUAL FUNDING

1 development every 2 to 
4 years, depending on tax 
credit type, size, and 
amount of County financing, 
or an average of 50 units 
per year

POTENTIAL 
ALLOCATION

ANTICIPATED 
IMPACTS

12 to 15 units per year

3-5 units per year

Varies by program

Funding priorities should be reevaluated each year. Budgeting should emphasize flexibility, so
that funds can be reallocated between approved programs as needed. Funds can be set aside
annually for expenditure in later years (such as for LIHTC gap financing). The Town can also
set aside funds to cover administrative costs such as a portion of staff time. In the long term,
the Town could explore dedicating a fund to preserve older affordable and market-
rate affordable rental housing, however the complexity of this program makes it a lower
priority for Apex.

Pilot program of 1 unit per 
year

Accessory 
Apartments $50,000

- Page 395 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 48DRAFT

Title

Appendix

- Page 396 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 49DRAFT

Title

1. Data Sources & 
Glossary

- Page 397 -



How it Works

Data Sources

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 50DRAFT

Data Source Used For

CoStar Commercial Listing Service
Data on multifamily developments including number of units, 
vacancy, and rent

EMSI (Economic Modeling Specialists, 
Inc.)

Current and projected employment data in industry-specific clusters. 
EMSI uses data from the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics and other 
public sources.

Housing Authority of Wake County Detailed property records for local subsidized housing

LEHD On the Map Data on commuter patterns and projected employment growth

NC Housing Finance Agency Qualified 
Allocation Plan

State-established eligibility and criteria for scoring of Low-Income 
Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) applications

Public survey responses
Comments and opinions shared by residents who completed the 
Town’s public Affordable Housing survey 

Resident and stakeholder interviews
Observations, data points, and recommendations from Apex 
residents and housing professionals

Steering Committee meetings and 
survey responses

Points of consensus and expert information from Steering Committee 
members during meetings and interim communication (such as survey 
responses and emails)

Town of Apex Development Report
Information regarding approved and proposed residential projects 
in the Town development process, including site plans, unit counts, 
and preliminary renderings

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) & HUD Exchange

Federal funding by program over time, Area Median Income limits

U.S. Census Bureau American 
Community Survey 2018 5-Year 
Estimates, 1-Year Estimates, & 2010 
Decennial Census

Demographic data including population estimates, income, and 
housing tenure

Zillow Home Value Index
Data on median housing values for each third of a housing market 
over the past decades

The Apex Affordable Housing Plan draws on public and proprietary data sources.

- Page 398 -



How it Works

Glossary of Terms

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 51DRAFT

Term Definition

Accessory Apartments Secondary rental units attached to or detached from a primary unit on a single 
family housing lot. Also known as Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs).

Area Median Income (AMI) See Page 33.

By-Right Development Development allowed under the Unified Development Ordinance without 
requiring Town approval such as a variance or rezoning.

Community Land Trust (CLT) A community-based nonprofit that reduces the cost of homeownership and 
supports long-term affordability of homes by separating the ownership of land 
from ownership of the home. The CLT owns the land and while the resident 
can build equity through a long-term lease.

Cost Burden Under a standard set by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, a household is considered cost burdened when it spends 30% or 
more of its income on gross housing costs, including rent, mortgage payments, 
and utilities.

Down Payment Assistance 
(DPA)

Down payment assistance programs support homeownership by providing a 
grant or forgivable loan to first-time homebuyers to reduce the upfront costs of 
purchasing a home.

Housing Trust Fund (HTF) A locally-designated and controlled fund to pay for affordable housing 
development and programs.

Infill Development Development or redevelopment of a vacant or under-used property within an 
existing developed area.

Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credit (LIHTC)

A federal program that provides a dollar-for-dollar tax credit to support the 
development of affordable rental housing. The LIHTC program distributes 
federal income tax credits to developers through states’ individual Housing 
Finance Agencies (HFA), which determine which projects receive tax credits 
under their federal allocation. There are two general types of credits that can 
be awarded, 9% credits and 4% credits.

Naturally-Occurring 
Affordable Housing 
(NOAH)

Market-rate housing that is affordable to low- or moderate-income households 
without public subsidy.

Planned Unit Development 
(PUD)

A zoning designation that permits variations from Apex’s other zoning 
categories in order to allow flexibility and site-specific development.

Soft Density Primarily single family areas that allow additional housing typologies such as 
duplexes, triplexes, quadplexes, townhomes or row houses, and live-work 
housing - also known as “missing middle” housing.

Subsidized Housing Affordable rental and ownership housing developed and/or operated by non-
profit and for-profit developers using public subsidies.

Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO)

The policy document through which Apex designates its zoning and land use 
regulations and other rules that govern development.- Page 399 -



How it Works

Housing Affordability Limits in Apex

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 52DRAFT

Income Level
1 Person 

Household
2 Person

Household
3 Person 

Household
4 Person 

Household
5 Person 

Household

30% AMI 
(Extremely Low Income)

19,800 22,600 23,450 28,250 30,680

50% AMI 
(Very Low Income)

32,950 37,650 42,350 47,050 50,850

60% AMI 39,540 45,180 49,500 56,460 61,140

80% AMI 
(Low Income)

52,750 60,250 67,800 75,300 81,350

100% AMI
65,900 75,300 82,500 94,100 101,900

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sets income limits by household size
that determine eligibility for subsidized housing programs. HUD develops income limits based
on Median Family Income estimates by Metropolitan Statistical Area. Apex is in the Raleigh
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), which includes Franklin, Johnston, and Wake Counties.

Source: U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

Income Level
1 Person 

Household
2 Person

Household
3 Person 

Household
4 Person 

Household
5 Person 

Household

30% AMI 
(Extremely Low Income)

$495 $565 $586 $706 $767

50% AMI 
(Very Low Income)

$824 $941 $1,059 $1,176 $1,271

60% AMI $989 $1,130 $1,238 $1,412 $1,529

80% AMI 
(Low Income)

$1,319 $1,506 $1,695 $1,883 $2,034

100% AMI $1,648 $1,883 $2,063 $2,353 $2,548

Housing costs are considered affordable when a household spends less than 30% of its income
on gross housing costs, including rent or mortgage payments and utilities. For example, a
household earning $50,000 can afford housing costs up to $1,250 per month. If housing costs
exceed that limit, the household is cost burdened. The monthly cost limit for households in Apex
by size and income level is shown in the table below.

Area Median Income (AMI) Limits for Raleigh MSA, 2020

Maximum Affordable Monthly Housing Costs for Raleigh MSA, 2020

- Page 400 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 53DRAFT

Title

2. Public Engagement

- Page 401 -



Public Survey Results

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 54DRAFT

58% of survey respondents think the Town should address affordable 
housing, but few types of potential tools received majority support.

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Provide direct financial assistance to build
affordable housing

Provide down payment assistance for first-time home
buyers

Provide financial assistance for home repairs for low
and moderate income homeowners

Provide public land to build affordable housing

Change its land use regulations in some areas to
allow for more apartments to be built

Ease requirements for developments that provide
affordable housing

Change its land use regulations in some areas to
allow for more duplexes, triplexes, and quadplexes

to be built

Change its land use regulations in some areas to
allow for more accessory dwellings units (ADUs) to be

built

Provide more supportive services to those
experiencing eviction, homelessness, and other

housing instability

Prioritize housing development near amenities such as
transit and retail

Do nothing to address affordable housing issues in
Apex

Agree Neutral Disagree

The Town should….

- Page 402 -



Public Survey Results

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 55DRAFT

Statement Owners Renters
Incomes $75k 

and Above
Incomes $35k 

and Below

Everyone deserves access to safe, quality 
housing that is affordable to their income

62% 85% 68% 82%

Those that work in Apex should be able to 
live in Apex

54% 82% 61% 75%

Displacement of Residents is a concern in 
Apex

31% 55% 37% 41%

The Town should provide direct financial 
assistance to build affordable housing

23% 50% 26% 52%

The Town should offer down-payment 
assistance for first-time  home buyers

19% 51% 24% 57%

Survey responses varied most significantly by housing tenure.

- Page 403 -



Stakeholder Engagement Summary

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 56DRAFT

HR&A interviewed 15 stakeholders between June 5th and August 10th as part of the initial data and information 
gathering process to guide the Housing Needs Assessment. These individuals are not quoted by name but are 
social service providers, housing developers, realtors, and individuals who have personally been impacted by 
affordable housing issues in Apex with a range of incomes and housing needs. 

Pressing Challenges: Vulnerable Populations
• Most of the residents that local housing service providers are working with have been in and around Apex 

for generations (“Apex is growing up around them”). They shared that there are not people moving to Apex 
who are at the lower income bracket, and so most of the housing vulnerabilities seen in their clients are 
about preservation of affordable housing and mitigation of displacement. 

• Apex residents utilizing housing services include both renters and multigenerational homeowners. Roughly 
40% of these residents are seniors.

• Lower income homeowners sometimes choose not to sell to flippers because they know that it won’t be 
enough to get them another house in Apex.

• Apex’s Hispanic/Latino/Latina/Latinx community has especially struggled with housing affordability, 
because of their incomes and because some are undocumented and thus unable to secure a mortgage.

• Several residents observed a steep shift in naturally-occurring affordable housing (NOAH) around 2014-
2016 and were priced out of Apex during this time frame. Others have observed a gradual trend since 
2008 of lower-income residents in Apex moving to Holly Springs, Clayton, and other further-out locations. 

• Several interviewees agreed that Apex’s remaining trailer parks are “ripe for the picking” and are 
concerned about the threat of displacement of Apex renters in this source of NOAH.

• Others felt that foreclosures are the biggest risk for displacement of homeowners. 
• Many interviewees were also unclear if many vulnerable individuals in the Triangle would want to live in the 

town if more affordable housing was available. Particular groups that may be less incentivized to live in 
Apex: families without cars (due to Apex’s limited transportation amenities), or racial and ethnic minorities 
(due to concerns about racism and racist events at local schools). 

Pressing Challenges: Land
• Many builders noted the high land costs in Western Wake County as a primary challenge in building 

affordable housing. 
• It is also difficult for affordable housing developers to acquire land for projects, as they have found 

challenges competing in the private market. The main form of land acquisition for affordable housing has 
come through donation of scattered sites, but interviewees did not see this as a sustainable long-term 
solution.

• National builders have come to the Western part of the County (Cary, Apex, Morrisville, Holly Springs) to 
meet growing demand and pushed prices up ($150,000 per acre for land zoned for 3-8 units/acre). At the 
same time: existing home prices are escalating in the eastern and southern parts of the County, even when 
their land prices are still in $60-70K/per acre.

• Apex also has a land availability problem because it lacks parcels that meet Qualified Allocation Plan 
(QAP) requirements. This directly inhibits the construction of Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) projects. 
Apex has few parcels that would meet an adequate site score due to the land’s distance from amenities and 
transit. 

- Page 404 -



Stakeholder Engagement Summary

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 57DRAFT

Who are the major service providers in the area, and what are they doing?
• Mostly the churches and County service providers have worked in Western Wake. 
• The towns (Apex, Cary, etc.) don’t have federal homelessness dollars in their communities, so most funding 

is private dollars from various fundraising activities that is disseminated towards small churches.
• Apex is seen as having “a good group of people that are coordinating and collaborating”, but not on a 

larger scale similar to the Continuum of Care. 
• When someone needs homeless prevention and rapid rehousing in Apex, housing service providers have 

to connect them with a larger organization in Raleigh or an Apex church or the Western Wake Crisis 
Ministry.

• Many providers are balancing providing emergency services now with trying to find land to build 
affordable housing in the long-term. 

• Others are providing support on down payment issues for first time home buyers and trying to educate 
these buyers with classes. However, participation for first-time homeownership programs in Apex is low, 
because home prices are so expensive.

How has COVID shifted the work of housing service providers? 
• Since COVID, housing providers have shifted from financial assistance to providing greater amounts of 

emergency rental assistance.
• Several partnerships (such as between local providers and the Partnership to End Homelessness) have 

emerged to meet the increased need, but these County-wide providers are at an immense backlog due 
to the need in lower-income sections of Wake County.

• Providers have witnessed more individuals at risk of homelessness in Apex than ever before. Roughly 4-5 
families per week in the town need to be housed in hotels or other accommodations. This is a third of the 
annual total of Apex families served in previous years.

• Apex and Western Wake housing providers are currently attempting to close the gap between intake, 
referral, and assistance (given the imminent risk of eviction for many families).

- Page 405 -



Stakeholder Engagement Summary

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 58DRAFT

Recommendations from Housing Advocates and Professionals 
• Try to use builders from Wake County and North Carolina (for affordable housing). 
• Nearly all stakeholders agreed that Apex needs to build more houses that cost under $200,000 and are 

affordable to lower-income households. There is a consensus that while down-payment assistance and 
mortgage programs could help supplement existing need, the core issue is about building more homes 
that are affordable with existing state programs and within reach of lower and middle-income 
households.

• Several also believe that the success of this plan will be tied to the ability to tell a compelling story 
about the benefits of affordable housing in Apex.  “If we can shift away from language that points the 
problem at the people who need housing to language about creating healthier communities, that will go 
very far.”

• A growing concern: on a few Apex projects completed by a regional affordable housing provider, 
property taxes were a concern for residents. These taxes are making it difficult for lower AMI 
homeowners to remain in their homes. 

• Housing providers that we spoke to want to see a shift to preservation through rehab and describe it as 
a crucial opportunity to serve communities as land is becoming more scarce and/or expensive. Rehab can 
take place through partnerships with the Town and other nonprofits.

• Finally, nearly all participants agreed that the Town will need to partner with housing providers to land 
bank for affordable housing. 
o “The more we can land bank now, the more we’ll be able to address future affordability 

challenges.”
o Some suggested that Town staff may need to go back to GIS and identify parcels that, even if 

unavailable now, would be priorities to “snatch up” when possible.  
o “We need the City’s buy-in as land values go up—they can help us find land at $20-$25K per 

lot.” 

Recommendations from Residents with Housing Challenges
• Residents with housing challenges equally prioritized the need for smaller, more affordable homes in 

Apex.
o Many remarked that 1,500 SF homes would be suitable sizes for “starter homes” and affordable 

homes for seniors. Interviewees named $300,000 as a feasible starting price in their communities. 
• Others agreed on the growing property tax burden for seniors and lower-income residents. One resident 

recommended that the County freeze property taxes for seniors (like herself), who are 65 years old and 
above.  

• Residents wanted the Town to try to use builders from Wake County and North Carolina (for affordable 
housing, in order to keep revenue for builders in NC.

• Other residents have witnessed instances of predatory lending and higher down-payment requirements 
for undocumented immigrants in Apex. This has led them to move to mobile home subdivisions instead of 
pursuing homeownership or expensive luxury apartments. 
o One interviewee felt that down payment assistance and/or alternative mortgage products would 

help improve this issue. 
• Finally, one resident felt that there is a potential opportunity for Apex to deliver more “affordable” 

student or employee housing.
o They felt that local universities and major employers (such as IBM, Lenovo, Red Hat, Cisco, GSK, 

Credit Suisse, and Fidelity) may be open to providing this for their employees. 

- Page 406 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 59DRAFT

Title

3. Housing Needs 
Assessment

- Page 407 -



In recent decades, Apex’s population has grown significantly faster than County, state,
and national trends. Since 2010, the Town of Apex has gained nearly 14,000 residents, an
overall growth rate of 40%. This is compared to 23% growth in the rest of Wake County, and
9.5% growth in the state of North Carolina. Since 1990, Apex’s population has grown by
nearly ten times the number of residents, meaning that much of the Town and its housing, are
relatively new.

This monumental growth is evidenced by several accolades that indicate Apex’s appeal. In the
past five years alone, Apex has been ranked the fastest growing suburb in the United States,
the second-best city in North Carolina to get a job, the fourth safest place to live in North
Carolina, and the best place to live in America.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 60DRAFT

Population Trends in Apex

4,968

20,212

34,427

48,254

1990 2000 2010 2018

Apex Population, 1990-2018

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Movoto, Realtor.Com, Money Magazine, Time Magazine

9.5%
North Carolina population 

growth since 2010

23.0%
Wake County population 

growth since 2010

40.0%
Apex population growth 

since 2010

- Page 408 -



Though population grew for many groups, Apex’s population remains predominantly
white and affluent. While Apex has grown amongst all income categories and racial or ethnic
groups since 2010, a significant majority of new residents continue to be white. From 2010 to
2018, Apex gained over 10,000 White residents, and the Town’s share of White residents
remained at 75%. During the same time period, Wake County’s share of White residents
declined, from 63% to 60%. This suggests that even through there has been some growth in the
Town’s residents of color, the population growth in Apex is less diverse than population growth
in the county. Asian) residents since 2010.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 61DRAFT

Population Trends in Apex 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

White Black or African
American

Hispanic Asian Other

Apex Population By Race
2010 2018

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Decennial Census (2010)

0
500

1,000
1,500
2,000
2,500
3,000
3,500
4,000
4,500

Less than
$20K

$20K to
$35K

$35K to
$50K

$50K to
$75K

$75K to
$100K

$100K to
$150K

$150K to
$200K

$200K or
more

Apex Income Distribution And Growth
2010 2018

Apex’s median income is much higher than Wake County’s. In 2018, the median household
in Apex earned $105,000, which is higher than the countywide median income of $72,000.
This difference is driven in part by significant growth in Apex’s high-income households.
Since 2010, 85% of new Apex households earn more than $100,000 each year. This rate is
similar to Wake County, where 81% of new households earn over $100,000 each year. Apex
has decreased its share of low and moderate-income residents (earning $35,000 to $75,000),
whereas Wake County, still has many moderate-income enclaves.

- Page 409 -



The majority of Apex households own their homes, but the number of renters is
increasing. Like many suburban towns, an overwhelming majority of Apex households own

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 62DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex 

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Decennial Census (2010)

Renters

Owners

Housing Tenure in Apex, 2018

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

34 and Under 35 to 54 55 to 74 75 and Over

Age Of Renters in Apex
2010 2018

their homes. 74% percent of Apex
households are homeowners, compared
to 64% of households in Wake County,
which includes more urbanized areas and
a larger stock of multifamily housing.

Homeowner households are continuing to
grow rapidly—Apex has added 3,700
homeowner households since 2010 for an
overall growth rate of 42%. However, in
a noted shift from prior trends, Apex
added 1,600 renter households since
2010, for an overall growth rate of
56%. This percent growth is high in part
because of the relatively low number of
renters (and available rental units) in
Apex in 2010. This growth in renters has
largely been at the highest-income bands
(over $75,000), reflecting the high price
point of recent multifamily developments.

74%

26%

- Page 410 -



The majority of Apex’s housing is single family, and large multifamily development
makes up a relatively small percentage of total units.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 63DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex 

69%

60%

13%

12%

10%

16%

6%

9%

2%

3%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Apex

Wake
County

Housing Units By Type

Small Multifamily 
(3-19 units)

Large Multifamily 
(20+ units)

Single Family 
Homes

Townhomes & 
Duplexes Other

Single family detached homes comprise just under 70% of Apex’s housing stock, indicating the
predominance of this form in the Town. The majority of these single family homes (89%) are
owner-occupied (versus renter-occupied), which confirms that tenure in Apex generally
correlates with housing type. Apex’s housing stock has a larger share of single family homes
and smaller share of small and large multifamily developments than the Wake County housing
stock as a whole.

Even with the predominance of single family housing stock, survey responses have indicated
that there is a need for greater affordable units amongst all housing types.

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018)

“The rising costs of  single family and multifamily homes are way too high for me, as a 
single parent.”
--Apex resident and survey respondent

- Page 411 -



“We purchased a home over a decade ago when prices were still reasonable. We 
would not be able to afford a home in Apex now, especially a new construction home 
that averages $400K.” 
–Apex resident and survey respondent. 

Single family home prices have been increasing sharply since the 2009 Great Recession,
with the entry point for homes in Apex becoming particularly high.

When discussing home values, the entry point represents the median value for the bottom third
of all homes in the housing market. This is generally the “point of entry” for most prospective
homebuyers. Since 2000, Apex’s entry point has ballooned to nearly $300,000, which is
consistent with the affordability challenges highlighted by many residents.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 64DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex

Apex and Wake County Home Values

$283K

$215K

Source: Zillow Home Value Index, ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018)

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

Apex Entry Point Wake County Entry Point

Rising home prices, particularly for the lowest cost 
homes in Apex, are increasingly putting homeownership 

out of reach for first-time homebuyers

40% growth
In entry-level home value, 2011-2018

- Page 412 -



If trends continue, households earning less than $100K will have limited access to
homeownership in Apex. Since the Great Recession, Apex home values have risen 4.2% each
year, and now exceed pre-recession prices. While this rebound is a sign of economic
prosperity and the desirability of the Town, in recent years, rising home values have
exacerbated affordability challenges in Apex. Accounting for inflation, the income required to
purchase a median value home in Apex has increased by 40% since 2011.

In order to purchase the median home in Apex, which costs $377,000, residents would need to
earn $94,000, or otherwise would spend more of their income on housing than is advised by
HUD guidelines. $377,000 is well above the affordable home value for Apex residents
without a college degree ($138,000), or the median household in Wake County ($307,000).
This gap suggests that many households will have increasing difficulty accessing
homeownership opportunities in Apex, as they continue to be priced out of its housing market.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 65DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex 

$80,900 

$68,000 

$94,100 

 $-
 $10,000
 $20,000
 $30,000
 $40,000
 $50,000
 $60,000
 $70,000
 $80,000
 $90,000

 $100,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Income Required to Purchase the 
Median Value Home in Apex

Source: Zillow Home Value Index, ACS 5-Year Estimates, Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index

40% increase
in required income, 2011-2018

The increasing income required to purchase a house in Apex makes it 
more difficult for low- and moderate-income households to participate in 

the housing market, which can contribute to gentrification and 
displacement.

- Page 413 -



The number of multifamily housing units in Apex has increased substantially in recent
years, in part due to the development of four new high-amenity apartment buildings.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 66DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex 

Source: CoStar Commercial Listing Service, ACS 5-Year Estimates

Meridian at 
Nichols Plaza
Built in 2020 | 270 Units 

Flats at 540
Built in 2017 | 212 Units 

Meridian at Ten Ten
Built in 2019 | 272 Units 

The Villages at 
Westford
Built in 2019 | 296 Units 

New construction typically has a rent premium, and these recently built communities have
luxury amenities. This has impacted the median gross rent in Apex, which is $1,300 compared
to $1,100 in Wake County, which has a broader range of multifamily housing including
apartments that have fewer amenities.

Excluding new developments, many of which are still in the lease-up and stabilization phases,
Apex has a healthy multifamily vacancy rate of 5%.

These newly built properties are commanding rents similar to other parts of Western Wake
County, and certain communities in Raleigh. However, while these other parts of Wake County
have seen a growth in market-rate apartment communities as well as new construction of
LIHTC-subsidized apartments, Apex has not grown its stock of affordable multifamily
development in recent years.

- Page 414 -



The Town also has several multifamily projects in development or recently completed.
These developments will help to add density near downtown and create mixed-use,
pedestrian-friendly activity centers in other sections of town. These developments will help to
meet demand amongst Apex’s quickly-growing population of high-income renters and deliver
housing that suits the preferences of the growing number of Americans who prefer to live in
suburban communities that feature walkable, mixed-use nodes.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 67DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex

Source: Town of Apex

Sweetwater Phase 9
230 multifamily units

0 Wrenn Street

Proposed

Small Town Character Overlay

3115 US Highway 64

Proposed

Mixed-Use Town Center

2030 Laura Duncan Road

Recently Completed

Senior Housing

The Reserve at Mills Farm
153 multifamily units

Linwood Creek Apartments
18 multifamily units

- Page 415 -



Stakeholder interviews and public survey responses confirm that rising home costs are
creating housing affordability challenges for Apex residents.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 68DRAFT

Housing Challenges in Apex

Market Challenges to Housing Affordability in Apex
• Gentrification reduces the availability of naturally-occurring affordable housing (NOAH)

and puts homeownership out of reach for many moderate-income households

• Zoning and development patterns limit opportunities for denser development that could
reduce price pressures by increasing the supply of housing. However, higher density
redevelopment can also lead to the loss of older housing that tends to be more affordable

• Mobile home parks, one type of NOAH in Apex, are susceptible to redevelopment,
which could displace current residents

• Older single family housing near downtown, another type of NOAH, is also susceptible
to redevelopment by property investors

• New construction is costly, which means that rents for new market rate apartments are
high compared to the limited number of older apartments in Apex

“We need to figure out how to slow gentrification. Charming affordable 1950s 
homes in my neighborhood are being demolished and replaced with McMansions 
crammed into little lots.”
-Apex resident and survey respondent

Source: Public Survey, Stakeholder interviews
- Page 416 -



Although Apex has seen additional multifamily development in recent years, the Town
has a very limited stock of subsidized affordable rental housing.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 69DRAFT

Housing Challenges in Apex

Because new market-rate development is expensive, subsidy is required to develop new
affordable rental housing. While continued luxury development can help free up some
naturally-occurring affordable units for low-income households, subsidized housing is a core
means of providing adequate housing for lower-income residents. Presently, Apex has
fewer than 200 subsidized units that can meet the needs of these residents. Apex has 4.2% of
all the housing units in Wake County, but only 1.6% of the subsidized units in Wake County.
While Wake County recently exceeded its subsidized housing development goal by funding
780 affordable housing units in a single year, the Town of Apex has not had a proportional
share of subsidized development over the past two decades. As rents and home prices continue
to increase in Apex, this leaves fewer options for low-income residents to remain in Apex.

Source: CoStar, NC HFA, Housing Authority of County of Wake (HACW) , Wake County Division of Housing 
Affordability and Community Revitalization 

Wake Acres Apartments
Built in 1983 || 48 Units 
Family & Senior

Beechridge Apartments
Built in 1997 || 40 Units || Family

West Haven Apartments
Built in 1997 || 72 Units || Family

- Page 417 -



High land costs and a lack of sites that meet LIHTC location requirements make it
expensive to increase Apex’s subsidized housing stock.

Compared to many neighboring parts of Wake County, Apex has prohibitively high land costs,
which makes it difficult for affordable housing developers (many of which are non-profits) to
compete with market-rate developers in the land sale process. The lack of available public
land from the Town, which could potentially offer low-cost land, further complicates this
challenge.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 70DRAFT

Housing Challenges in Apex

Source: NC HFA, Stakeholder interviews

“National builders came to Western Wake and pushed up land prices. You’re now at 
$150K per acre for land zoned for 3-8 units/acre, when [land in] the rest of the 
County is still at $60K per acre.”
–Non-profit housing developer in Wake County

Furthermore, even in the cases when affordable housing developers can find parcels that are
large enough for multifamily development, Apex’s suburban character makes it difficult to find
land that is proximate to grocery stores, transit, and other amenities. Due to the rigorous site
selection scoring in the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency’s Qualified Allocation Plan,
many parcels that are not close to these amenities do not score highly enough to be selected
for competitive Low-Income Housing Tax Credit funding. Several Wake County LIHTC
developers articulated this as a core challenge to realizing affordable rental housing in Apex.

Primary Amenities Under 1 mi. Under 1.5 mi. Under 2 mi.

Grocery 12 points 10 points 8 points

Shopping 7 points 6 points 5 points

Pharmacy 7 points 6 points 5 points

Transit
6 points if stop is: within 0.25 mi., has continuous sidewalks, and includes 

a covered waiting area

Site Score Evaluation Criteria
From 2020 NC Qualified Allocation Plan

- Page 418 -



The lack of racial diversity in Apex is an area of concern and will require an explicit focus
on racial equity to make sure that Apex is welcoming to all. This lack of diversity is likely
due to a combination of factors, including:

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 71DRAFT

Housing Challenges in Apex

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Public survey
* Richard Rothstein’s The Color of Law provides a thorough account of the federal and local policies that have 
created and shaped residential segregation in the United States

Historical national and local policies have contributed to creating
and enforcing patterns of segregation, particularly in suburbs*.
• Policies - including mortgage lending policy and suburban

zoning patterns - have historically restricted homeownership
opportunities for Black residents and other people of color

• Housing discrimination persists in communities across the US

HISTORICAL 
POLICIES AND 
ONGOING 
DRIVERS OF 
SEGREGATION

AFFORDABILITY 
CHALLENGES

In part due to this discrimination, income, wealth, and race are
correlated. A persistent racial wealth gap and access to credit
limits opportunities for homeownership by nonwhite households.

• In Wake County, the median income for Black households is
$52,300, compared with $89,700 for White, non-Hispanic
households.

• In Wake County, the homeownership rate is 44% for Black
householders compared with 72% for White, non-Hispanic
householders.

RESIDENT 
PERCEPTIONS 
AND 
EXPERIENCES

Public survey responses note challenges to Apex welcoming diverse
residents.

• “How can we better integrate our neighborhoods, instead of
having the ‘black’ and ‘white’ sides of Town divided by
Williams Street?”

• “I think more diverse people would move here if there were a
bigger POC [people of color] community, or at the very least
diverse businesses/restaurants/shops.”

- Page 419 -



Town of Apex 
Affordable 

Housing Plan

DRAFT
January 2021

- Page 420 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 2DRAFT

Acknowledgements
The Apex Affordable Housing Plan was guided by the efforts of the Steering
Committee, a group of engaged residents and housing professionals who lent their
support, guidance, and opinions to the planning process over an eight-month
period.
Bill Ahern
Habitat for Humanity Wake County

Francisco Arellano
Citizen Stakeholder

Alicia Arnold
Wake County 

Mairym Azcona
Citizen Stakeholder

Beth Bordeaux
Western Wake Crisis Ministries

Erika Brown
Triangle J Council of Governments

John Buck
Citizen Stakeholder

Nicole Dozier
Mayor Pro Tem, Town of Apex

Phillip Farrington
Citizen Stakeholder

Tim Fisher
DHIC

Lou Fortunato
Apex Business Community

Seth Friedman
Passage Home

Jacques K. Gilbert
Mayor, Town of Apex

Michele Harrison
White Oak Foundation

Tyrell Hines
Citizen Stakeholder

Laura Holley
Citizen Stakeholder

Tahira Hyman 
Citizen Stakeholder

Yume Iwakura
Citizen Stakeholder

Morgan Mansa
Town of Cary 

Timothy Morgan
Evergreen Construction Company

Kandy Osborne
Citizen Stakeholder

Molly Rodgers
Citizen Stakeholder

Jacob Rogers
Triangle Community Coalition

Mark Steele
Apex Planning Board

Phil Welch
Citizen Stakeholder

- Page 421 -



Vision: Apex welcomes people of diverse backgrounds, and supports opportunities for
affordable, safe, sanitary, and quality housing that meets the needs of people of all incomes,
ages, and abilities.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 3DRAFT

Apex Affordable Housing Plan Overview

Welcome, attract, and retain a diverse population.

Meet the housing needs of a diverse population, including providing housing that is 
affordable to people with moderate and low incomes and of different age groups.

Connect affordable housing development with transit service, transportation 
infrastructure, and amenities.

Partner regionally to meet the housing needs of vulnerable populations.

Raise community awareness of affordable housing needs, solutions, and broader 
impacts.

To fulfill this vision, Apex will…

BUILDING THE TOWN’S CAPACITY

Town Staff Capacity

Housing Advisory Board

ADVANCING ADVOCACY AND PUBLIC 
EDUCATION

Annual Housing Report

Diversity & Racial Equity Initiatives

Affordable Housing Advocacy Partners

Apex will meet these goals by…

IMPLEMENTING PROGRAMS AND POLICIES

Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning

Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (OOR) 
Assistance
Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
Gap Financing

Support for Homeownership

Transit Oriented Development Density

Public Land Acquisition & Sale

Emergency Rental Assistance & 
Supportive Services

Accessory Apartments

“Soft Density” Zoning By-Right

- Page 422 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 4DRAFT

Table of Contents

05
Introduction
Purpose of the Affordable Housing Plan
Role of the Town in Housing Affordability
Definition and Types of Affordable Housing
Planning Context
Planning Process

14
Housing Needs Assessment
Purpose of a Housing Needs Assessment
Summary of Housing Needs
Public Input on Housing Needs
Housing Trends and Challenges

23 Vision and Goals

25
Recommendations
Build the Town's Capacity
Advance Advocacy and Public Education
Implement Programs and Policies

44
Action Plan
Matrix of Recommendations and Goals
Measures of Success
Apex Affordable Housing Fund

48
Appendix
Data Sources & Glossary
Housing Affordability Limits in Apex
Funding Sources
Survey and Stakeholder Engagement Summary
Housing Needs Assessment Detail

- Page 423 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 5DRAFT

Title

Introduction

- Page 424 -



Purpose of the Affordable Housing Plan
Apex needs an Affordable Housing Plan to guide the Town’s efforts to 

identify and address the affordable housing needs of its residents.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 6DRAFT

Apex welcomes people of diverse backgrounds, and supports 
opportunities for affordable, safe, sanitary, and quality housing that 

meets the needs of people of all incomes, ages, and abilities.

Apex has experienced significant population growth in the past two decades, outpacing
growth in both the County and the State. As demand for new housing has grown, home prices
have been increasing sharply since the Great Recession. Because of this, an increasing number
of low- and moderate-income households in Apex struggle to afford their rent or mortgage. In
addition, the Town’s population has become less diverse compared with Countywide trends.

To plan intelligently for future growth; encourage a much broader range of home prices; align
housing development with other Town, County, and State planning efforts; and attract and
retain a more diverse population; Apex has set a vision for its future.

The Affordable Housing Plan sets goals and makes recommendations that will help Apex to
fulfill this vision.

- Page 425 -



FEDERAL PROGRAMS STATE PROGRAMS WAKE COUNTY PROGRAMS

• Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits 

• Community Development 
Block Grants

• Emergency Solutions 
Grant

• Home Investment 
Partnerships Program

• Housing Choice Vouchers
• Housing Opportunities for 

Persons with AIDS

• NC 1st Home Advantage 
Down Payment Assistance

• NC Home Advantage 
Mortgage

• NC Home Advantage Tax 
Credit

• Displacement Prevention 
Partnership

• Urgent Repair
• Community Partners Loan 

Pool

• Elderly & Disabled 
Housing Rehabilitation 

• Emergency Rehabilitation 
• Affordable Housing 

Development Program
• Public Land Disposition
• Rental Assistance Housing 

Program
• Emergency Assistance, 

Street Outreach, & Rapid 
Rehousing

Role of the Town in Housing Affordability

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 7DRAFT

The market alone cannot adequately address the affordable housing issues that Apex
residents face. Market rate rents are determined by both the cost to build housing, including
land, and the cost to operate housing. Because of high land costs and growing demand,
market rate rents are higher than what many low- and moderate-income households can
afford. The market cannot provide housing to these households without government support.

Land

Hard Costs

Soft Costs

Returns

Project 
Financing

Cost of Development Operating Costs

Operating 
Expenses

Market-Rate 
Rent

Required 
Rent

Revenue
Existing government programs to support housing affordability do not fully address the
affordability needs in Apex. These include federal programs administered by the North
Carolina Housing Finance Agency (NCHFA) and Wake County, as well as other State and
County programs. Apex can provide funding to leverage or supplement these existing
programs to help their impacts.

The affordability of housing is influenced by: market forces, state and local 
regulations, and affordable housing programs that receive funding from 

federal, state, county, and local governments.

- Page 426 -



Role of the Town in Housing Affordability

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 8DRAFT

The Town influences the 
regulatory 
environment in which 
developers make 
investment decisions 
and disseminates 
information to 
developers and 
residents.

e.g. Unified Development 
Ordinance, development 
review processes, 
building permit 
processes, design 
guidebooks

The Town deploys 
public funds for 
infrastructure, 
amenities, and 
development

e.g. parks and 
amenities, public 
transit, loans and 
grants for housing 
development

The Town of Apex already plays a central role in the housing market through regulation
and public investments, which influence both the supply of and the demand for housing. These
Town policies and practices impact the type of housing available and the cost of housing.

The Town of Apex can change its regulations and deploy funds to meet 
affordable housing needs not met by the market or existing federal, state, 

and county programs. 

The Affordable Housing Plan outlines recommendations that will help ensure 
that the Town’s policies and investments are aligned with its vision.

- Page 427 -



Definition and Types of Affordable Housing

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 9DRAFT

"Affordability" can have different meanings depending on the context. Under a standard

There are many different types of "affordable housing":
NO SUBSIDY

HIGHEST LEVEL OF SUBSIDY

Naturally Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH): Market-rate
housing (for rent or purchase) that is priced at levels that are
affordable to low- or moderate-income residents. In Apex, rising
rents, home prices, and redevelopment have led to a limited
amount of NOAH.

Subsidized Housing: Rental and ownership housing which has
received local, state, or federal subsidy funding to make it
affordable to income-qualified residents. The most common form
of subsidized housing is through the federal Low-Income Housing
Tax Credit (LIHTC) program, which in North Carolina primarily
serves households at or below 60% of Area Median Income, or
about $56,000 for a family of four in Wake County, well above
minimum wage. Apex presently has fewer than 200 units of
subsidized housing.

Public Housing: Housing owned and managed by public housing
agencies with operating and capital funds provided by HUD, and
typically serving extremely low-income households (a family of
four making $25,300 or less). The Wake County Housing
Authority operates 10 units of public housing in Apex.

Permanent Supportive Housing: Housing that also provides
health care and supportive services to help individuals and
families with higher levels of need (for example, adults with
chronic health or developmental difficulties) to remain housed and
lead more stable lives.

set by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD),
housing is affordable when a household’s housing costs (including rent or
mortgage and utilities) are less than 30% of the household’s income. A
household that spends 30% or more of its income on housing costs is
considered “cost burdened”. A summary of affordable housing costs by
income in Apex is provided in the Appendix.

Broadstone Walk

Oak Grove

Correnna St

- Page 428 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 10DRAFT

Planning Context
Prior plans in Apex and Wake County established a strong foundation to begin the
affordable housing planning processes. The Town’s and region’s prior comprehensive plans,
small area plans, and housing strategies helped the planning team to understand the local and
regional priorities that the Affordable Housing Plan would need to address for Apex, as well
as planned investments and ongoing initiatives around land use, transportation, and
affordable housing.

The Apex Downtown Master Plan (2019) provides a vision to
guide development in and around downtown.
• Expanding housing options including mixed-income and

senior-friendly housing near downtown is a key goal of the
plan

• Realtors see a need for additional duplex, triplex, and
quad housing near downtown to support housing
affordability

The Wake County Affordable Housing Plan (2017) identifies
strategies to produce and preserve affordable housing.
• Recommendations include use of public land, an acquisition

and preservation fund, funding for affordable rental
production, and dedicating funding for housing programs

Peak Plan 2030 (2013) is an update to the Town’s
Comprehensive Plan.
• The plan recommends allowing and encouraging more

housing development, especially rental housing, in and
around downtown; increasing density near downtown
without altering neighborhood character; increasing
diversity of housing types and tenure; and encouraging
weatherization and modernization, particularly for senior
and disabled housing

Advance Apex (2019) is a transportation and land use plan.
• It includes the 2045 Future Land Use map and sets the

goals of investing in activity centers, creating walkable,
mixed-use areas, and preserving rural character

• It identified the conceptual route for the first local transit
route in Apex

- Page 429 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 11DRAFT

Planning Process
The Apex Affordable Housing Plan is the result of an eight-month planning effort. The
planning process included:

• Assessing housing needs, which combined analysis of demographic, economic, and real
estate market trends with input from stakeholders to identify a clear picture of housing
trends and affordability needs in Apex;

• Working with a Steering Committee in six sessions to develop a vision and goals for the
plan and discuss potential affordable housing tools that Apex could implement to meet its
housing needs;

• Developing recommendations for feasible and impactful strategies and tools the Town can
pursue to address its housing needs and meet its affordable housing goals; and

• Drafting a plan for public review prior to adoption by the Town Council.

The Apex Affordable Housing Plan was developed in collaboration with Apex residents
and stakeholders from a diversity of backgrounds. Throughout the plan, input from
stakeholders provided crucial context about local needs and priorities. Engagement activity
included:

• 15 Interviews with stakeholders including providers of affordable housing, developers,
community leaders, nonprofit service providers, and Apex residents directly impacted by
housing challenges;

• A Town-wide public survey that was publicized in utility mailers, emails, Town social
media pages, posters, and through community leaders and Steering Committee members;

• Regular website and email updates to inform residents about the progress of the plan;

• A public presentation to share the draft plan and receive public feedback;

• Presentations to the Apex Planning Board and Town Council; and

• Input from a steering Committee of local stakeholders including engaged residents and
housing professionals who lent their support, guidance, and opinions throughout the
planning process.

Project 
Initiation

Housing Needs 
Assessment

Vision & 
Goals

Recommendations Draft
Plan

May 2020 June 2020 Aug. 2020 Sept. 2020 Nov. 2020 Jan. 2021

Public 
Hearings

- Page 430 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 12DRAFT

Planning Process
A town-wide public survey was released in July 2020 using publicinput.com in order to
gather broad feedback on the housing issues that Apex residents face. This survey took
place over a two-month period and reached over 1,250 residents, shaping the housing goals
around which the Apex Affordable Housing Plan is organized and informing the plan’s
recommendations. The survey was supplemented with individual interviews to reach
populations that were underrepresented in the survey. The survey also helped highlight topics
that require further public engagement and public education around Apex’s affordable
housing needs. This will need to continue throughout the implementation of the Affordable
Housing Plan and could be led by members of the Steering Committee as well as Town Staff.

The public survey received 1,250 responses offering a range of perspectives
on housing in Apex. 89% of respondents were Apex residents, and the
remainder were primarily from Holly Springs and Cary.

TENURE

Renters

Owners

15%

13%

13%

19%
19%

26%

INCOME

Prefer not 
to say/Other

Below $50K

$50K-$75K

$75K-$100K

$100K-$150K
Above $150K

66% 20% 6% 6%

White Prefer not to Say Black or African American Latinx/Latino/Latina Asian (2%)

RACE/ETHNICITY

86%

14%

- Page 431 -



Race of Apex Residents & 
Respondents

White Apex 
residents: 75%

White survey 
respondents*: 66%

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 13DRAFT

Planning Process
A public engagement plan (PEP) was developed to guide outreach throughout the planning
process. The PEP included the survey as well as targeted metrics reflecting a goal to reach a
diverse audience. The survey was supplemented with targeted interviews to reach lower
income households. Higher income homeowners are overrepresented in the survey, but
representation was more diverse than the targeted metrics.

Tenure of Apex Residents 
& Respondents

PEP Goal: 50 renter 
respondents 
Reached: 139 renter 
respondents

PEP Goal: Responses from all 
income groups, including low-
income.

PEP Goal: 60 non-white 
respondents
Reached: 150 non-white 
respondents

Apex 
homeowners: 74%

Respondent 
homeowners: 86%

Income of Apex Residents & 
Respondents

Apex households with 
incomes below $35k: 13%

Respondents with 
incomes below$35k*: 5%

*26% of survey respondents declined to state their household income and 22% of survey respondents declined to
state their race/ethnicity. Apex residents under the age of 35 are also underrepresented in the survey.

- Page 432 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 14DRAFT

Title

Housing Needs 
Assessment

- Page 433 -



The goal of the Housing Needs Assessment is to identify the primary affordable housing issues
in Apex to inform recommendations.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 15DRAFT

Purpose of a Housing Needs Assessment

What are the most pressing issues related to housing affordability in Apex?
Housing affordability is made up of many distinct but related factors including the supply and
diversity of available housing, the accessibility of homeownership, and the availability of
housing and services to meet the needs of all residents including seniors, adults with disabilities,
and households that rely on public transit. The Housing Needs Assessment provides insight into
which of these issues are most pressing for Apex residents.

What policies or market trends are driving these issues?
Local and regional trends in population and income, housing development and prices,
employment, and other factors all impact housing affordability in Apex. In addition, the Town’s
policies related to development review, land use, housing programs, and other regulations
impact the cost of development and the cost of living in Apex. The Housing Needs Assessment
evaluates which of these trends are most contributing to housing affordability challenges in the
Town.

Who is and is not served by Apex’s housing market?
Some residents may face affordability challenges that others do not. In addition, there may be
regional residents who want to live in Apex but cannot, or who choose not to live in Apex.
Understanding who is struggling with housing affordability in Apex is crucial to informing the
priorities of the Affordable Housing Plan.

The Housing Needs Assessment identifies the most pressing housing 
affordability challenges in Apex.

In particular, the Housing Needs Assessment uses demographic and market data as well as
stakeholder input to answer three questions:

- Page 434 -



• There is a significant shortage of rental housing that is affordable for low-income
households (2,000 units for households earning less than $40,000), and that rental
housing gap is projected to nearly double over the next 10 years. While it is not possible
to quantify a homeownership gap, the increasing cost burden of low-income homeowners
and qualitative data on homeownership indicate that there is an unmet need.

• In Apex, there are presently 3,150 cost burdened households earning less than
$75,000, and 700 extremely cost burdened households (those paying over 50% of their
income in housing costs).

• Apex is rapidly losing affordable entry-point homes or “starter homes” for new owners
including young families.

• Apex is attracting a less racially diverse population compared to Wake County overall.

• Affordable housing options and supportive services are limited for seniors who want to
age in place.

• Apex does not have a proportional share of the region’s subsidized rental housing,
and new development of LIHTC units has been limited. Barriers to subsidized affordable
housing development include high land costs and limited access to transit.

• Most of the supportive housing and services in Apex are provided through small
programs run by religious organizations or other nonprofits.

• Market pressures appear to be displacing moderate-income families, including
homeowners, and threaten existing Naturally-Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH).

• High land and maintenance costs place redevelopment pressure on NOAH in Apex,
including mobile home parks and older homes.

• Lack of clear affordable housing development requirements leads to uncertainty in
negotiation with developers, which can pose a barrier to the production of new housing.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 16DRAFT

Summary of Housing Needs in Apex

The key findings of the Housing Needs Assessment informed the goals and 
recommendations of the Affordable Housing Plan.

- Page 435 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 17DRAFT

Public Input on Housing Needs

Survey Prompt: Do you think that people in Apex…

0% 20% 40% 60%

Struggle to afford housing in neighborhood of
choice

Struggle to make rent or mortgage payments

Struggle to find housing of the type they want

Struggle to pay for needed repairs

Have left Apex due to rising costs

Struggle to find housing near transit

Struggle to find housing near school, work, or
other

Have experienced homelessness or
emergency need

Have not experienced housing challenges in
Apex 19%

24%

35%

35%

36%

51%

59%

36%

46%

The public survey was used to gather general input regarding housing needs. Survey
respondents agree that housing affordability is a challenge in Apex. The Appendix
provides more detailed public survey results.

- Page 436 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 18DRAFT

Public Input on Housing Needs
Respondents shared both their perspective on housing issues in Apex and the role that
they think the Town should play. The Appendix provides more detailed Public Survey results.

Many of the lower-income families would like to stay in Apex to 
give their children a better life. Many are forced to move to areas 

that have less access to resources. We would love to see Apex 
stay balanced and not become a place accessible only for a 

certain demographic.

I know many Latino families that have 
moved away from Apex because of rising 
housing cost. This racial/class gentrification 
by means of  rising housing costs, reduces 
social and economic diversity which hurts 

everyone's quality of life.

Couples in their late 20s and early 
30s with young children I know had 

a hard time affording a single 
family house in this area.

People retiring have to 
move to Fuquay or Holly 

Springs to downsize.

I believe the Town should 
be looking at ways to 
work with local and 

county organizations to 
develop more affordable 

housing.

I agree the Town should be the 
implementer of affordable housing 
and not hinder it through arbitrary 
zoning and land use laws. But I do 
not agree it is the Town's obligation 

to finance.

It should not be the Town’s 
responsibility to provide 
financial assistance or 

down payment assistance. 
There are federal 

programs available to 
support those needs.

- Page 437 -



Cost burden for Apex residents is increasing for homeowners at lower income
levels and renters at all income levels.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 19DRAFT

Housing Trends and Challenges

Homeowner Housing Cost Burden

Renter Housing Cost Burden

A household is cost burdened if it spends more than 30 percent of income on housing costs,
including utilities. In Apex, there are presently 3,150 cost burdened households earning less
than $75,000, and 700 extremely cost burdened households (those paying over 50% of
their income in housing costs).

Since 2010, cost burden has increased dramatically for low-income households who own and
rent, and also for higher-income renters, perhaps due to the luxury price points of new
multifamily development (a structure containing more than four dwelling units). This indicates the
growing need for affordable rental and homeownership opportunities within the Town.

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018)

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

Less than
$20,000

$20,000 to
$34,999

$35,000 to
$49,999

$50,000 to
$74,999

$75,000 or more

2010 2018

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

Less than
$20,000

$20,000 to
$34,999

$35,000 to
$49,999

$50,000 to
$74,999

$75,000 or more

2010 2018

- Page 438 -



Apex is losing moderate-income households, particularly among homeowners, who may
be moving to nearby towns with lower home prices.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 20DRAFT

Housing Trends and Challenges

While Apex has continued to gain higher-income households, the Town has seen a significant
decrease in households earning $50,000 to $75,000 each year, primarily driven by a loss
of homeowners. These income tiers are generally considered to be moderate-income
households in Wake County. Since 2010, the Town of Apex lost 605 homeowner households
earning between $50,000 to $75,000 each year.

Based on Apex’s increasing home values, as well as the survey responses and interviews of
Apex residents, this loss in moderate-income homeowners appears to be driven by a
combination of existing homeowners leaving Apex, and the inability of other moderate-
income homeowners to replace them. While existing homeowners may be leaving due to
their independent desire to sell or their inability to afford growing costs of homeownership
(such as rising property taxes), the rising financial barrier to moving to Apex is an undisputed
challenge for prospective residents earning moderate incomes, as well as the increasing cost
burden for low income renters and homeowners.

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Decennial Census (2010)

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

Less than
$20K

$20K to
$34,999

$35K to
$49,999

$50K to
$74,999

$75K to
$99,999

$100K to
$149,999

$150K or
more

Change in Income Distribution - Homeowners
2010 2018

“In some cases, people can’t stay here [in Apex]. I see this near Downtown and the 
Publix. So, they sell and move to Holly Springs.”
–Apex resident

- Page 439 -



The limited availability of subsidized rental housing and rising rents have led to a rental
housing gap of roughly 2,000 units affordable to households earning less than $40,000 in
Apex. When the need from individuals of certain incomes levels exceeds the number of units
affordable at that income level, a housing gap exists. This gap is particularly pronounced for
households earning less than $40,000 each year, as the number of units meeting their
maximum affordable rent ($750 each month for households making $30k and $1000 each
month for households making $40k, including utilities) continues to dwindle. As a result, many of
these renters are likely paying 50% or more of their income for housing. Like many towns,
Apex has a gap of rental units for low-income renters and a surplus of units for higher-income
renters. This indicates that the market is meeting the needs of most renters, particularly those
earning more than $50,000, but that public subsidy may be needed to increase the
availability of rental housing that is affordable to households with incomes below $40,000.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 21DRAFT

Housing Trends and Challenges

 -  500  1,000  1,500  2,000  2,500  3,000  3,500  4,000  4,500

Less than $100K

Less than $80K

Less than $60K

Less than $50K

Less than $40K

Less than $30K

Supply  Need
Apex Cumulative Rental Housing Gap, 2018

Source: ACS 5-Year Public Use Microdata Samples (2018)

-1,300 units

-650 units

+350 units

a +800 units

a
+950 
units

a
+700 
units

As rents increase, NOAH is lost, and the low-income population continues to grow; this gap is
projected to nearly double for lower income households over the next ten years. While the
Town can’t fully address the rental housing gap, funding and partnerships with the County will
help to reduce it or keep it from growing.

- Page 440 -



Over the next decade, Apex is projected to add 1,900 jobs with incomes below $75,000,
which will further contribute to the Town’s affordable housing need.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 22DRAFT

Housing Trends and Challenges

+650 Jobs from $35-50K

E.g. Firefighters

+350 Jobs from $50-75K

E.g. Registered Nurses

+900 Jobs under $35K

E.g. Grocery Cashier

Though not all people who work in Apex will
choose to live in the Town, employment
growth is one source of potential new
residents. Much of the projected
employment growth (83% of jobs added) in
Apex will be in occupations that pay less
than $75,000 annually, and almost half of
those jobs will be retail and service-industry
jobs that pay less than $35,000. For those
making minimum wage, annual salary can
be closer to $14,000 in North Carolina.

Presently, only 10.4% of people who work
in Apex live in the Town. 65% of all Apex
workers commute 10 miles or more from
Wake County and surrounding counties, a
rate that is high even amongst other suburbs.
By increasing the stock of quality,
affordable homes for low and moderate-
income households, Apex could retain a
larger share of its employees as residents,
ensuring that the individuals who help keep
the Town running are also able to call it
home. Further, given the location of these
jobs, it is beneficial for affordable units to
be located near retail and commercial
centers as well as transit access.

Source: EMSI, ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), LEHD OnTheMap
- Page 441 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 23DRAFT

Title

Vision and Goals

- Page 442 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 24DRAFT

Plan Vision and Goals

Apex welcomes people of diverse backgrounds, and supports 
opportunities for affordable, safe, sanitary, and quality housing that 

meets the needs of people of all incomes, ages, and abilities.

Welcome, attract, and retain a diverse population.

Meet the housing needs of a diverse population, 
including providing housing that is affordable to 
people with moderate and low incomes.

Connect affordable housing development with 
transit service, transportation infrastructure, and 
amenities.

Partner regionally to meet the housing needs of 
vulnerable populations.

Raise community awareness of affordable 
housing needs, solutions, and broader impacts.

To fulfill this vision, Apex will…

The Steering Committee used public input and the results of the 
Housing Needs Assessment to establish the plan vision and goals. 

- Page 443 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 25DRAFT

Title

Recommendations

- Page 444 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 26DRAFT

Recommendations Overview

The Affordable Housing Plan includes fourteen recommendations intended to address the plan 
vision and goals. These are generally grouped in three categories: (1) Building the Town’s 
Capacity, (2) Advancing Advocacy and Public Education, and (3) Implementing Programs and 
Policies. A brief explanation for each recommendation is provided in this section. 

BUILDING THE TOWN’S CAPACITY

Town Staff Capacity

Housing Advisory Board

ADVANCING ADVOCACY AND PUBLIC EDUCATION

Annual Housing Report & Dashboard

Diversity & Racial Equity Initiatives

Affordable Housing Advocacy Partners

IMPLEMENTING PROGRAMS AND POLICIES

Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning

Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (OOR) Assistance

Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Gap Financing

Support for Homeownership for First-Time Homebuyers

Transit Oriented Development Density

Public Land Acquisition & Sale

Emergency Rental Assistance & Supportive Services

Accessory Apartments

“Soft Density” Zoning By-Right

- Page 445 -



Long-Range Planning

How it Works

Town Staff Capacity

What it Means
Aligning staff capacity with the level of programming is crucial to the success of the
Affordable Housing Plan. By ensuring that the Town’s departments are adequately staffed and
funded to administer and manage housing programs and development, and by setting clear
priorities and measures of success, the Town can increase both its ability to support affordable
housing and to communicate and engage with the public.

Need in Apex
Apex lacks housing staff to oversee the implementation of the Plan including the administration
of the Affordable Housing Fund and proposed Housing Advisory Board.

Recommendations for Apex
As the Town develops new housing programs, it will need a full-time Housing Manager to
manage and oversee those programs. This role would also be responsible for continued
improvement, research, and monitoring of success. The Town may need to contribute additional
staff time and resources to support the Housing Manager as needed.

Implementation
1. Prioritize hiring a Housing Manager to oversee the 

implementation of the Affordable Housing Plan as soon 
as possible without using the Affordable Housing Fund. 

2. Review current staffing and make changes to 
accommodate new priorities and increase capacity.

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

Apex will increase the capacity of staff to support the successful implementation of 
the Affordable Housing Plan by hiring a Housing Manager.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 27DRAFT

Town of Apex Planning & Community 
Development Department

Housing Manager
Staff (TBD)

Oversees affordable 
housing programs 
and the Housing 
Advisory Board

Zoning 
Compliance

Supervisor
4 Staff

Ensures that all 
development and 

land use is 
compliant with Town 

ordinances.

Current Planning

Manager
7 Staff

Oversees the plan 
review process and 
advises property 

owners and 
developers

Manager
4 Staff

Plans for the Town's 
future and oversees 
the implementation 

of long-range 
plans

- Page 446 -



How it Works

Housing Advisory Board

What it Means
A Housing Advisory Board or Committee is a public, non-regulatory committee that advises
Town leadership on policy and funding priorities related to affordable housing. Much like
other public boards, committees, and commissions, it should bring together stakeholders with
multiple viewpoints who can advocate for affordable housing to Town Council and the public.

Need in Apex
Apex has a committed base of housing advocates and professionals it can leverage to support
the activities of Town staff, to inform the priorities of Town leadership, and to communicate with
the public about affordable housing. In addition, meeting the housing needs of diverse
residents requires a mechanism for diverse voices to participate in the Town’s decision-making.

Recommendations for Apex
By establishing a Housing Advisory Board the Town can formalize existing advocacy efforts
and ensure the Town’s capacity to successfully implement the Affordable Housing Plan.

Implementation
1. After hiring a Town Housing Manager, establish a 

board and develop a charter and by-laws to guide 
inclusive membership, governance, and training.

2. Appoint members, hold regular meetings, and 
coordinate with the Planning Board and Town Council.

Apex will create a Housing Advisory Board to provide input on the use of the Town’s 
affordable housing funding and policy, as well as to be responsible for championing 

education and outreach around affordable housing.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 28DRAFT

MEMBERSHIP

TOWN STAFF 
ROLE

8-10 council-appointed members, representing the following groups:
• affordable housing 

providers (recipients of Town funds)
• real estate professionals & lenders
• at-large community members

• affordable housing residents
• regional representatives
• Planning Board member
• Town Council member (nonvoting)

RESPONSIBILITY 1. Provide Town Council with policy and funding recommendations.
2. Assist in the creation of an Annual Housing Report.
3. Advise on Housing Advocacy efforts.
Provide administrative support and technical assistance for board activity.
Provide information about related Town initiatives, policies, and programs.

Membership should reflect a broad diversity of ages, races, and 
incomes, and a combination of homeowners and renters.

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

- Page 447 -



Annual Housing Report & Dashboard

What it Means
An annual housing report with online dashboard serves two main functions: (1) To track key
performance indicators and metrics associated with affordable housing programs and
expenditures and monitor the impacts to ensure that the Town’s investments support racial
equity goals; and (2) To convey to residents the importance of housing affordability and racial
equity initiatives. It can both serve as an outreach tool and track efforts related to outreach
and education. A dashboard can be enhanced over time through coordination with regional
partners and as additional data are gathered.

Need in Apex
Public engagement revealed uncertainty among Apex residents about the areas of greatest
need and the Town’s role in supporting affordable housing.

Recommendations for Apex
Producing an annual report on housing and an online dashboard, once implementation of
programs is underway, will provide a forum for educating and informing the public about the
state of housing affordability in Apex. Use advocacy to communicate early progress.

Implementation
1. Following the hiring of a Town Housing Manager, 

identify key housing metrics and program performance 
indicators to track and report.

2. Develop a format and begin annual housing report and 
dashboard for Town of Apex.

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Apex will produce an annual report and online dashboard on the impacts of the 
Town’s affordable housing activities and spending.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 29DRAFT

How it Works

Annual Housing Reports should include:

Metrics to diagnose affordability
e.g. entry price point, rates of housing cost burden by 
tenure

Key Performance Indicators for programs
e.g. households served by income range, units 
produced or preserved

The online dashboard can be updated more 
frequently, including data such as assistance provided 
through the Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Program.

- Page 448 -



Diversity & Racial Equity Initiatives 

What it Means
Diversity initiatives are comprised of marketing and partnership efforts that emphasize a
Town’s values, with the goal of becoming more welcoming of people of different races,
ethnicities, beliefs, sexual orientations, gender identities, incomes, and other groups. Racial
equity initiatives acknowledge the intentional design of many racial inequities and set racial
equity goals for programs.

Implementation of Diversity Initiatives Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Apex will identify and eliminate potential barriers to attracting a diverse population 
and adopt a racial equity lens to evaluate all housing policies and investments.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 30DRAFT

Implementation of Racial Equity Initiatives

1. Work with marginalized communities to understand 
Apex’s current messaging, and to develop core values 
that emphasize diversity.

2. Develop a resident marketing strategy for Town communications that reflects core values.
3. Engage with real estate professionals including brokers and mortgage lenders to align 

messaging and mitigate potential barriers to attracting diverse residents.

4. Adopt a racial equity lens to evaluate and make decisions about housing programs and 
investments. Track program impacts and disaggregate data by race.

5. Evaluate the need for a Diversity Officer and hire a Diversity Officer if needed.
6. Join the North Carolina cohort of GARE (Government Alliance on Race and Equity), and 

participate in educational sessions, technical assistance, and peer-to-peer exchanges to 
shape Town racial equity initiatives.

Need in Apex
Apex’s vision is to become a community that is welcoming to people of diverse backgrounds.
However, new residents in Apex are predominantly white, even as the County’s population
growth has been relatively diverse, indicating that the Town can do more to advance a
welcoming message and provide housing opportunities for prospective residents. Further, a
commitment to racial equity requires that the Town understands the impacts of its policies and
investments and makes decisions that mitigate rather than exacerbate racial disparities.

Recommendations for Apex
To advance diversity, the Town should conduct engagement to understand the current messages,
explicit and implicit, that may influence who moves to Apex; work with real estate agents to
coordinate messaging; and emphasize the Town’s values in all communications. As part of
ongoing Town efforts to increase diversity and equity, the Town should adopt a racial equity
lens to evaluate housing investments and evaluate hiring a Diversity Officer to implement these
changes throughout the Town’s government.

- Page 449 -



How it Works

Affordable Housing Advocacy Partners

What it Means
Advocacy activities can help to build public awareness and dispel misconceptions about
affordable housing. In small towns, many preexisting community groups function as advocates
by educating the public about the benefits of development, the need for affordable housing,
and the populations impacted by that need.

Need in Apex
Public engagement revealed a need for greater education and communication about the need
for affordable housing in Apex and the Town’s role in addressing affordable housing needs.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town should support the advocacy efforts of the Housing Advisory Board members and
their associated groups, offering organizational resources (such as public meeting space) and
educational resources about housing programs. Progress made and reported in the annual
housing report can be conveyed through these partnerships and a potential public forum.

Implementation
1. Work with Housing Advisory Board members and 

organizations to develop advocacy and education plan.
2. Develop public-facing informational materials to explain 

the Town’s affordable housing plan.
3. Integrate advocacy efforts into Annual Housing Report.

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Apex will develop partnerships with pro-affordable housing advocates to coordinate 
an education campaign.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 31DRAFT

The Town can partner with community groups to support advocacy efforts:

Tours of affordable 
housing 

developments

Publication of 
individual 

affordable housing 
stories

“Explainers” and 
fact sheets for 
proposed and 

existing programs

- Page 450 -



Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning
Apex will create a clear menu of suggested affordable housing zoning conditions for 

developers to choose from in exchange for incentives as part of the rezoning and 
Planned Unit Development approval processes.

What it Means
When proposed development requires Town Council approval, the Town has an opportunity to
ensure that new development includes affordable housing units. Incentive zoning conditions
encourage developers to provide a public good, such as affordable housing units, as part of a
proposed development, in exchange for incentives that compensate for the loss of revenue.

How it Works

Need in Apex
Apex already provides incentives for affordable housing and other public benefits, but lacks a
clear set of conditions, which can pose a barrier to the production of new housing. In addition,
the Town wants to protect Naturally-Occurring Affordable Housing and limit gentrification
pressures from new housing development.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town should establish a clear policy to provide incentives for developers in exchange for
affordable housing units or an equivalent fee payment toward the Town’s Housing Trust Fund to
help to ensure that affordable housing is created as part of new residential development. The
program should include special requirements for discretionary development in areas
particularly sensitive to redevelopment, such as mobile home parks, to minimize displacement.

Implementation
1. Review existing approval processes and recently-

approved projects to help develop clear guidelines.
2. Develop an incentive zoning condition, specifying target 

affordability and available incentives.
3. Establish criteria and a process to review projects.

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

Long-term 
affordability of a 

portion of units 
through rent or price 

reduction or an 
equivalent fee

DEVELOPER
OFFERS

AFFORDABILITY

TOWN
OFFERS
INCENTIVES

Increased density

Reduced parking 
requirements or 

setbacks

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 32DRAFT
- Page 451 -



Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning (cont’d)

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 33DRAFT

Example Affordable Housing Incentives in Apex | Depot 499 PUD

The Project: A proposed 200-acre mixed-use development including residential and 
non-residential components, seeking rezoning as a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), a type of zoning district with specific requirements 
outlined in the Unified Development Ordinance. 

The Opportunity: The proposal included no affordable housing but was requesting a 
significant zoning change for the development to move forward.

The Request: The Town requested that the developer set aside at least 2 acres (1% of 
the total land area) for affordable housing or set aside a portion of the 
proposed multifamily housing units for affordable housing. 

The Outcome: The Developer agreed to make a monetary donation to an affordable 
housing fund or non-profit affordable housing developer if a target

Example Affordable Housing Incentives in Apex | Kissena Lane PUD

The Project: A proposed 10-lot development of affordable, detached single family 
housing within an existing subdivision, seeking rezoning as a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD).

The Opportunity: The proposal for a 100% affordable development serving households 
with incomes at or below 70% of Area Median Income required certain 
changes to the zoning requirements in order to provide housing that was 
both affordable and in character with surrounding development.

The Request: The developer requested changes to the zoning including the required lot 
width and building setbacks, as well as a grant to assist with fees, in 
order to make the development feasible at the specified level of 
affordability.

The Outcome: The Town approved the PUD, which enabled the project to move forward.

number of affordable housing units 
were not built by 2025. In addition, 
Wake County Public School System 
committed to building an elementary 
school within the development area. 
Based on these commitments, the Town 
approved the rezoning.

- Page 452 -



How it Works

Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (OOR) 
Assistance

What it Means
Owner-occupied rehabilitation programs help maintain the affordability of homeownership by
ensuring that income-qualifying homeowners can make necessary repairs to make their homes
safe. Qualifying repairs typically include structural repairs, modernization or repairs to
systems such as heating and plumbing, and weatherization, as well as accessibility
improvements to help seniors age in place. Cosmetic improvements are not eligible costs.

Need in Apex
Apex has been losing moderate-income homeowners, and older homes are one remaining
source of Naturally-Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH) in Apex.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town has proposed a program, Apex Cares, to provide rehabilitation assistance to
income-qualified homeowners. Apex should implement Apex Cares in a way that compliments
the County rehabilitation programs. This program will help preserve NOAH, prevent
displacement of moderate-income homeowners, and allow seniors to age in place.

Implementation
1. Standardize Apex Cares program operations with 

Wake County rehabilitation program.
2. Identify qualified private contracts from the County.
3. Conduct outreach to potential Apex Cares participants.

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

Apex will work with a nonprofit partner to support homeowners in making repairs so 
they can remain in their homes and communities.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 34DRAFT

01 Determine Eligibility
Participants must be owner-occupants 
of single family homes, and earn 
below 65% AMI (roughly $61,000)

03 Complete Projects
Projects can include repair or 

replacement of roofing, electrical 
systems, plumbing, and any other items 

determined eligible by the Town

02 Town Assigns Contractors
The Town partners with a nonprofit 
housing provider and provides them 

with grants of up to $15,000 to 
make repairs for homeowners

- Page 453 -



staff and dedicate a portion of Apex Affordable Housing Funds to gap financing.
2. In the mid-term coordinate with Wake County to negotiate financing for proposed LIHTC 

developments and adopt a policy to provide grants for permit fees. 

How it Works

What it Means
LIHTC is a federal program administered through the state, and the primary tool for the
development of new affordable rental units. There are two types of LIHTC: 9%, which provide
greater federal subsidy but are highly competitive; and 4%, which have less federal subsidy
and therefore require more local support, but are not as competitive. Local governments
frequently provide low-cost loans to LIHTC developers to close the financial “gap”.

Need In Apex 
Apex has a low-income rental housing gap, and a disproportionately low share of the County’s
low-income housing. Land costs and site requirements make LIHTC development difficult.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town can leverage County funding to meet Apex’s affordable housing needs. Apex should
explore opportunities to support 9% as well as 4% projects, which have fewer barriers to
development in Apex. Apex should provide low-cost loans for LIHTC in partnership with Wake
County to account for the higher cost of land in Apex. In addition, the Town can provide grants
to reduce the costs of permit fees.

Implementation
1. In the near-term gather input on gap financing needs 

and loan requirements from developers and County 

Apex will collaborate with Wake County to provide gap financing to increase the 
production of LIHTC housing and adopt a policy to provide assistance to reduce the 

cost of local fees for affordable housing developments.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 35DRAFT

Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
Gap Financing

4% LIHTC Project
Total Project Costs: 
$38.9M 

200 New Construction 
Units:
216 units
Average 60% AMI

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

Wake County Loan 
$3.0M

Permanent Loan 
$24.2M

LIHTC Equity $9.3M

Deferred 
Developer 
Fee $0.4M 

Apex Loan $2.0M

Soft Costs $7.3M

Construction Costs 
$27.3M

Wake Land Costs 
$2.3M

Apex Land Premium 
$2.0M

PROJECT COSTS FUNDING SOURCES

- Page 454 -



Support for Homeownership
(Down Payment Assistance & Counseling)

What it Means
Down Payment Assistance (DPA) reduces the up-front costs of homeownership by providing
income-qualified households with a forgivable loan (for those meeting requirements) or grant
to cover a portion of the down payment and closing costs. Paired with homebuyer counseling,
Down Payment Assistance can help low-and moderate-income households find stable housing
and build wealth through home equity.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 36DRAFT

How it Works

Down Payment Assistance reduces the up-front costs of homeownership 
through grants or forgivable loans.

$242,000 
Affordable mortgage for 

a household making 
$56,000 annually

$280,000
Home Purchase Price

$13,000 from household

$25,000 DPA

Total 
Purchase 
Price

Apex will increase access to homeownership for first-time homebuyers through 
financial assistance and counseling services provided through nonprofit partners.

Homebuyer counseling provides prospective first-time homebuyers with assistance in planning
for buying a home and budgeting for the full costs of homeownership, including utilities,
insurance and maintenance, to ensure that households are financially prepared for
homeownership.

Homeownership counseling may include services such as: 

1. Identifying affordable purchase prices and evaluating mortgage options.
2. Learning how to choose a home, a real estate agent, insurance, etc.
3. Navigating inspections, home purchase, and closing.
4. Planning for full costs of homeownership including maintenance needs.
5. Avoiding discrimination & predatory lenders.
6. Financial planning assistance or foreclosure prevention.

- Page 455 -



Building Wealth versus Preserving Affordability

Forgivable Loan or 
Grant

Loan with 0% 
Interest

Loan with Interest Shared Equity 
Homeownership

If homebuyer remains in 
the home for a minimum 
period (e.g. 5 years), the 
down payment assistance 
loan is forgiven and 
becomes part of the 
household’s assets.

When homebuyer sells 
the home, they repay the 
down payment assistance 
out of sale proceeds. 
Funds are redirected to 
a new homebuyer. The 
loan could be partially 
forgiven.

When homebuyer sells 
the home, they repay the 
down payment assistance 
with interest out of sale 
proceeds. Funds are 
redirected to a new 
homebuyer.

Both the homebuyer and 
the homeownership 
program build equity in 
the property, which must 
be sold to another 
income-qualified 
household. 

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 37DRAFT

Need in Apex
Apex has been losing moderate-income homeowners, and the entry point for homeownership is
putting homeownership out of reach for young families and first-time homebuyers.

Recommendations for Apex
Apex can provide funding for Down Payment Assistance to nonprofit operators of local
programs, and layer funding with both State and County programs (see Appendix) to
maximize available funding and help Apex residents build wealth. Because, in Apex, there are
increasingly few homes inexpensive enough North Carolina Housing Finance Agency
requirements, this program would work best with a higher maximum purchase price, and in
combination with tools that increase the supply of moderately-priced housing, including soft
density zoning.
Implementation
1. Develop and issue a request for proposals for a nonprofit 

partner to administer homeownership programs.
2. Review proposals and select a nonprofit partner.
3. Provide funding to support homeownership programs.

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Support for Homeownership (continued)

Support for homeownership helps low- and moderate-income households build wealth by 
accumulating home equity, but Down Payment Assistance does not preserve the affordability 
of the home purchased after the homebuyer sells the house. Depending on the type of Down 
Payment Assistance, funds can be forgiven or become part of a revolving program to support 
new first-time homebuyers. Shared equity homeownership limits the wealth households can 
build but maintains the affordability of the house. This can be done through a variety of 
mechanisms, including Community Land Trusts. The Town must weigh the tradeoffs between 
helping residents build wealth and making housing affordable over the long-term.

EMPHASIS ON 
BUILDING 
WEALTH

EMPHASIS ON 
PRESERVING 

AFFORDABILITY 

TYPES OF FUNDING ASSISTANCE

- Page 456 -



How it Works

Transit-Oriented Development Density

What it Means
Allowing increased density of multifamily development will help to reduce development costs
and clearly communicate where the Town is interested in supporting new development.
Encouraging development of multifamily development near employment centers and transit
helps create denser nodes and reduces the need for renters to rely on personal vehicles.

Need in Apex
The Town of Apex is launching its first local bus route in Spring 2021, and enhanced
GoTriangle bus services including extended Apex to Raleigh service and a new Apex-Cary
Express which will connect to the planned multi-modal hub and further increase access to
public transit for Apex residents.

Recommendations for Apex
Apex has proposed increases in density for its 2045 Future Land Use Map. By planning for
denser multifamily, the Town can ensure that development is consistent with the Town’s growing
transit system and support the development of affordable housing near transit.

Implementation
1. Review current future land use map and proposed transit 

system improvements to identify areas suitable for 
increased density.

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years)

Goals: 

Apex will amend its Future Land Use Map to show higher density multifamily 
development in areas adjacent to key transit infrastructure.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 38DRAFT

2. Determine desired density of residential or mixed-use in transit-adjacent areas.
3. Engage the public to explain TOD and adopt proposed Land Use Map changes.

Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) is…

CONNECTED
& ACCESSIBLE

FOCUSED
& COMPACT

MIXED-USE

- Page 457 -



How it Works

Public Land Acquisition and Sale

What it Means
Free or reduced cost land is another form of public subsidy the Town can use to create
opportunities for the development of new affordable housing. In North Carolina, local
governments can provide land to developers through a competitive process at reduced prices
in exchange for affordable housing.

Need in Apex
Land costs are high in Apex, which is a barrier to affordable housing development. In
addition, Apex owns limited public land that could be suitable for development.

Recommendations for Apex
Adopting a public land policy will help to ensure that suitable parcels are prioritized for
affordable housing, and that as the Town makes new purchases of land for public uses it
evaluates and identifies opportunities for affordable housing development. The Town may be
able to partner with Wake County to develop affordable housing on County-owned property.

Implementation
1. Inventory and review opportunities on Town- and County-

public land in coordination with the Housing Advisory Board.
2. Develop a land policy that ensures suitable sites are 

designated for affordable housing.

Timing: Mid-term (2-5 years) 

Goals: 

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 39DRAFT

Apex will adopt a Town-wide policy to evaluate publicly-owned land prior to 
development and disposition and sell suitable property to developers at a reduced 

price in exchange for developing affordable units, and to evaluate any new purchases 
of property for affordable housing opportunities.

Determine feasibility by size, shape, 
and environmental constraints

Prioritize based on land 
use and road access

Filter for opp-
ortunity areas

Setting of affordable housing 
goals and release of RFP

Selection of a parcel of 
public land

Proposal or bid submission

Public private partnership 
established

Development

The public land process begins with assessing 
the feasibility of parcels and ends with 

disposition of these parcels for sale 

3. Release an RFP for development of priority sites.
- Page 458 -



or utility assistance, or other programs that meet demonstrated need.
2. Award funds and work with nonprofit partners to monitor ongoing need.

Emergency Rental Assistance 
and Supportive Services

What it Means
Emergency rental assistance helps households with a short-term need due to illness, job loss, or
another emergency to pay rent or utilities to avoid eviction and shut-offs. Supportive services
are a broad category of programs that help vulnerable populations maintain stable housing.
Vulnerable populations may include: the chronically homeless; veterans; seniors; adults with
chronic illness, addiction, or disabilities; and victims of domestic abuse.

Need in Apex
Apex provides grant funds to nonprofit service providers but can allocate Affordable Housing
Funds to expand supportive services and emergency assistance to vulnerable residents. Public
survey respondents supported assistance for residents facing housing instability.

Recommendations for Apex
Setting aside funds to help families facing short-term emergencies will help to reduce eviction
risk and providing funds for short-term emergencies can help avoid higher costs associated
with eviction and homelessness. The Town can provide funds for emergency and supportive
services through a competitive Request-for-Proposals process.

Implementation
1. Issue RFP for nonprofit partners to provide emergency 

or supportive services such as funding for supportive 
housing, resources for shared housing, emergency rental

Timing: Long-term (5-10 years)

Goals: 

Apex will support residents at risk of homelessness and other vulnerable populations 
with emergency rental assistance and related services.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 40DRAFT

How it Works

01
Allocate funds to serve 
vulnerable populations and set 
criteria to select awardees

03 
Award funds to nonprofits with 

highest-scoring proposals. Monitor 
impacts of implementation and 

ongoing need.

02 
Issue an RFP and score responses based on 

scoring criteria such as based on demonstrated 
need and organization capacity 

- Page 459 -



How it Works

Accessory Apartments

What it Means
Accessory apartments are small secondary units built as part of or adjacent to single family
homes. Cities around the country are beginning to explore ways to increase the construction of
accessory apartments to provide affordable housing and wealth-building opportunities.
Common strategies include making it easier for residents and developers to build accessory
apartments or providing low-cost construction loans.

Need in Apex
Apex allows accessory apartments, and costs range from approximately $45-90k per unit.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town can support the development of accessory apartments by working with developers
to provide them in new housing developments; providing design and regulatory assistance;
and encouraging Homeowners Associations (HOAs) to allow accessory apartments. In addition,
the Town could pilot a program to provide permanent financing, to be re-paid over time, for
the construction of Accessory Apartments that are rented to low-income renters.
Implementation
1. Identify best practices from successful regional and local 

examples.
2. Work with homeowners, HOAs, and developers to 

reduce barriers and encourage development.

Timing: Long-term (5-10 years)

Goals: 

Apex will provide residents with resources to encourage the development of accessory 
apartments. 

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 41DRAFT

01 Design Assistance
Develop a menu of potential designs or 
patterns for construction to reduce 
architecture costs to residents

03 Financial Assistance
Pilot a program to provide low-cost 

loans for the construction of 
accessory apartments

02 Regulatory Assistance
Simplify the permitting process for 

accessory apartments to make it easier 
and intuitive to get permits, or 

changing other requirements that may 
limit feasibility

2. Create a menu of designs based on the building code and the local building stock. 
3. Conduct a pilot program to develop 5 affordable units by offering $50,000 low-cost 

construction loans. Consider a partnership for the management of these loans.
- Page 460 -



Case Study | Encinitas, California Permit Ready ADU Program (PRADU)

Accessory Apartments (continued)

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 42DRAFT

Source: City of Encinitas, DZN Partners, Design Path Studio; Western City

To encourage the construction of Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs), the
City of Encinitas, California offers a range of services to encourage and
reduce barriers to the development of ADUs. The City’s website provides
a selection of pre-approved building plans with customizable options
that fit the community’s character, as well as an expedited permit
process and reduced fees. Through a competitive process, the City
selected two local architects to develop criteria and create a selection
of designs and plans for the PRADU program, including a studio, a
one-bedroom, a two-bedroom, and a three-bedroom option. These plans are available for
download from the City’s website, along with a checklist, permit application, and other
relevant documents. The program was launched in 2019 to support the City’s goal of
supporting diverse housing options throughout Encinitas. Whereas in 2012, the City was
permitting fewer than 10 ADUs per year, in 2019 the City issued over 150 permits for ADUs.

- Page 461 -



“Soft Density” By-Right Zoning

What it Means
“Soft Density” refers to attached single family housing such as townhomes, duplexes, and
triplexes which can accommodate more households and provide smaller units for residents.
Allowing by-right development of more types of housing will help reduce development costs
and clearly communicate where the Town is interested in supporting new development.

Needs in Apex
Apex has been losing moderate-income homeowners, which may be due in part to a lack of
affordable smaller homes such as townhomes.
Recommendations for Apex
Apex has a “small town character” zoning overlay district to preserve the architectural
qualities that define the downtown. The Town can amend this overlay district to ensure that it
allows soft density development, minimizes barriers to the development of soft density, and
limits the maximum unit size of new development. This should help to provide smaller housing
units near downtown while preserving affordability and enhancing neighborhood character.

Implementation
1. Review current zoning regulations including 

Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning condition to 
identify areas suitable for increased density.

2. Engage with developers and residents in downtown-

Timing: Long-term (5-10 years)

Goals: 

Apex will amend its zoning to allow or encourage more types of housing, including 
duplexes, triplexes, and small multifamily developments, in residential districts 

adjacent to downtown.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 43DRAFT

How it Works

“Soft Density” or “Missing Middle” Housing

Detached 
Single Family 

Home

Townhome Duplex Triplex or Quad Mid-rise 
Apartment

Increasing Density

adjacent neighborhoods to evaluate opportunities and barriers to increasing the 
development of “soft density” housing.

3. Adopt proposed zoning changes.
- Page 462 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 44DRAFT

Title

Action Plan

- Page 463 -



Recommendation Timing

W
el

co
m

e,
 A

ttr
ac

t, 
an

d 
Re

ta
in

M
ee

t H
ou

si
ng

 
N

ee
ds

C
on

ne
ct

 w
ith

 
In

fr
as

tru
ct

ur
e

Pa
rt

ne
r 

Re
gi

on
al

ly

Ra
is

e 
A

w
ar

en
es

s

BUILD THE TOWN’S CAPACITY To ensure the successful implementation of the Affordable 
Housing Plan, Apex needs to build its capacity to oversee new housing programs.

Town Staff Capacity Near-term

Housing Advisory Board Near-term

ADVANCE ADVOCACY AND PUBLIC EDUCATION Building awareness and understanding 
about Affordable Housing in Apex will be critical to the success of the Plan.

Annual Housing Report & Dashboard Mid-term

Diversity & Racial Equity Initiatives Mid-term

Affordable Housing Advocacy Partners Mid-term

IMPLEMENT PROGRAMS AND POLICIES Apex will provide funding for new programs and 
make policy changes to meet its affordable housing goals.

Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning Near-term

Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (OOR) Assistance Near-term

Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Gap Financing Near-term

Support for Homeownership Mid-term

Transit Oriented Development Density Mid-term

Public Land Acquisition & Sale Mid-term

Emergency Rental Assistance and Supportive Services Long-term

Accessory Apartments Long-term

“Soft Density” Zoning By-Right Long-term

While many affordable housing solutions require national, state, and county support, the Town
of Apex can take action to support affordable housing.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 45DRAFT

Matrix of Recommendations

- Page 464 -



Each of the Town’s actions will require specific metrics of success and targets to communicate
progress, evaluate program effectiveness, and assess the Town’s long-term prioritization. As the
Town works toward implementing the plan, it will need to set ambitious but achievable targets.
While the Town should track a broad array of housing affordability metrics, it should only set
targets for the direct outputs and impacts of Town programs.

Proposed Metric* Sample Target

BUILD THE TOWN’S CAPACITY

Number of dedicated housing staff Approve and fill a Housing Manager position as soon as possible

Formation of a Housing Advisory Board Establish a Housing Advisory Board within 1 year

Number of Board meetings held Quarterly (4) at a minimum

ADVANCE ADVOCACY AND PUBLIC EDUCATION

Equitable impacts of housing programs
Disaggregated housing program metrics show no racial or other 
disparities

Publication of an annual housing report First report released within 2 years

Number of advocacy events held or 
materials produced by the Town or 
partners

One initiative per year with Town support

Increased diversity of Apex residents Track and report – no sample target

IMPLEMENT PROGRAMS AND POLICIES

Number of households served by 
program, tenure (renter or owner), and 
income

• Five households/year with income up to 80% of AMI receive 
down payment assistance 

• Fifteen households/year with income up to 65% of AMI receive 
Owner-Occupied rehabilitation assistance

• 75 newly-developed units serving households at or below 50% 
AMI receive Town funding or zoning incentives within five years

Number of new subsidized affordable 
units developed

• 300 units developed or in development within five years 
• Track development of subsidized units against identified gap 

of 2,000 rental units affordable to households under $40,000

Number of accessory apartments built
• Five permits for accessory apartments issued per year 
• Successful completion of a pilot program to build 5 units that 

are affordable to renters up to 60% AMI within 5 years

Total new housing units developed Track and report – no sample target

Median home price & median rent Track and report – no sample target

Homeownership rates Track and report – no sample target

Eviction rate Track and report – no sample target

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 46DRAFT

Metrics of Success

*Where applicable, all impact data should be disaggregated by income and race.
- Page 465 -



Sample Apex Affordable Housing Fund Allocation and Impacts

In recent years, many local governments have established Housing Trust Funds (HTF) to provide
funding for affordable housing programs. The Town of Apex recently created a new HTF, the
Apex Affordable Housing Fund, and approved a one cent property tax increase (a “penny
tax”) with the proceeds of this tax designated to the fund to support affordable housing
programs. This penny tax is anticipated to generate $1 million annually. The specific
allocation of these funds will be determined by Apex’s Town Council, with input from the
Housing Advisory Board, which will make annual allocation recommendations. To maximize
the impact of these funds, the Town can leverage County, State, and Federal funding sources
and private funding. See the Appendix for a list of housing funding sources.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 47DRAFT

Funding Recommendations

Homeownership 
$200,000

Owner-Occupied 
Rehabilitation

$250,000

LIHTC Gap Financing
$500,000

$1.0 
Million

ANNUAL 
FUNDING

1 development 
every 2 to 4 years, 
depending on tax 
credit type, size, 
and amount of 
County financing, or 
an average of 50 
units per year

POTENTIAL NEAR-
TERM ALLOCATION

ANTICIPATED 
IMPACTS

12 to 15 units per 
year

3-5 units per 
year

Pilot program for 
5 units in 5 years

Accessory 
Apartments $50,000

ERA & Supportive 
Services $50,000*

LIHTC Gap Financing
$500,000

POTENTIAL LONG-
TERM ALLOCATION

The Town should reevaluate funding priorities annually, with a focus on programs that
create new units of affordable housing or maintain naturally occurring affordable
housing. The Town should explore additional funding sources to support administrative costs
and emergency assistance & supportive services if feasible. Budgeting should emphasize
flexibility, so funds can be reallocated between approved programs, and be set aside for
later years. In the long term, Apex could dedicate a fund to preserve older affordable and
market-rate rental housing, however the complexity of this program makes it a low priority.

Homeownership 
$200,000

Owner-Occupied 
Rehabilitation

$250,000

- Page 466 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 48DRAFT

Title

Appendix

- Page 467 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 49DRAFT

Title

1. Data Sources & 
Glossary

- Page 468 -



How it Works

Data Sources

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 50DRAFT

Data Source Used For

CoStar Commercial Listing Service
Data on multifamily developments including number of units, 
vacancy, and rent

EMSI (Economic Modeling Specialists, 
Inc.)

Current and projected employment data in industry-specific clusters. 
EMSI uses data from the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics and other 
public sources.

Housing Authority of Wake County Detailed property records for local subsidized housing

LEHD On the Map Data on commuter patterns and projected employment growth

NC Housing Finance Agency Qualified 
Allocation Plan

State-established eligibility and criteria for scoring of Low-Income 
Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) applications

Public survey responses
Comments and opinions shared by residents who completed the 
Town’s public Affordable Housing survey 

Resident and stakeholder interviews
Observations, data points, and recommendations from Apex 
residents and housing professionals

Steering Committee meetings and 
survey responses

Points of consensus and expert information from Steering Committee 
members during meetings and interim communication (such as survey 
responses and emails)

Town of Apex Development Report
Information regarding approved and proposed residential projects 
in the Town development process, including site plans, unit counts, 
and preliminary renderings

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) & HUD Exchange

Federal funding by program over time, Area Median Income limits

U.S. Census Bureau American 
Community Survey 2018 5-Year 
Estimates, 1-Year Estimates, & 2010 
Decennial Census

Demographic data including population estimates, income, and 
housing tenure

Zillow Home Value Index
Data on median housing values for each third of a housing market 
over the past decades

The Apex Affordable Housing Plan draws on public and proprietary data sources.

- Page 469 -



How it Works

Glossary of Terms

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 51DRAFT

Term Definition

Accessory Apartments Secondary rental units attached to or detached from a primary unit on a single 
family housing lot. Also known as Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs).

Area Median Income (AMI) See Page 33.

By-Right Development Development allowed under the Unified Development Ordinance without 
requiring Town approval such as a variance or rezoning.

Cost Burden Under a standard set by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, a household is considered cost burdened when it spends 30% or 
more of its income on gross housing costs, including rent, mortgage payments, 
and utilities.

Down Payment Assistance 
(DPA)

Down payment assistance programs support homeownership by providing a 
grant or forgivable loan to first-time homebuyers to reduce the upfront costs of 
purchasing a home.

Housing Trust Fund (HTF) A locally-designated and controlled fund to pay for affordable housing 
development and programs.

Infill Development Development or redevelopment of a vacant or under-used property within an 
existing developed area.

Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credit (LIHTC)

A federal program that provides a dollar-for-dollar tax credit to support the 
development of affordable rental housing. The LIHTC program distributes 
federal income tax credits to developers through states’ individual Housing 
Finance Agencies (HFA), which determine which projects receive tax credits 
under their federal allocation. There are two general types of credits that can 
be awarded, 9% credits and 4% credits.

Naturally-Occurring 
Affordable Housing 
(NOAH)

Market-rate housing that is affordable to low- or moderate-income households 
without public subsidy.

Planned Unit Development 
(PUD)

A zoning designation that permits variations from Apex’s other zoning 
categories in order to allow flexibility and site-specific development.

Soft Density Primarily single family areas that allow additional housing typologies such as 
duplexes, triplexes, quadplexes, townhomes or row houses, and live-work 
housing - also known as “missing middle” housing.

Subsidized Housing Affordable rental and ownership housing developed and/or operated by non-
profit and for-profit developers using public subsidies.

Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO)

The policy document through which Apex designates its zoning and land use 
regulations and other rules that govern development.

- Page 470 -



How it Works

Housing Affordability Limits in Apex

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 52DRAFT

Income Level
1 Person 

Household
2 Person

Household
3 Person 

Household
4 Person 

Household
5 Person 

Household

30% AMI 
(Extremely Low Income)

19,800 22,600 23,450 28,250 30,680

50% AMI 
(Very Low Income)

32,950 37,650 42,350 47,050 50,850

60% AMI 39,540 45,180 49,500 56,460 61,140

80% AMI 
(Low Income)

52,750 60,250 67,800 75,300 81,350

100% AMI
65,900 75,300 82,500 94,100 101,900

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sets income limits by household size
that determine eligibility for subsidized housing programs. HUD develops income limits based
on Median Family Income estimates by Metropolitan Statistical Area. Apex is in the Raleigh
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), which includes Franklin, Johnston, and Wake Counties.

Source: U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

Income Level
1 Person 

Household
2 Person

Household
3 Person 

Household
4 Person 

Household
5 Person 

Household

30% AMI 
(Extremely Low Income)

$495 $565 $586 $706 $767

50% AMI 
(Very Low Income)

$824 $941 $1,059 $1,176 $1,271

60% AMI $989 $1,130 $1,238 $1,412 $1,529

80% AMI 
(Low Income)

$1,319 $1,506 $1,695 $1,883 $2,034

100% AMI $1,648 $1,883 $2,063 $2,353 $2,548

Housing costs are considered affordable when a household spends less than 30% of its income
on gross housing costs, including rent or mortgage payments and utilities. For example, a
household earning $50,000 can afford housing costs up to $1,250 per month. If housing costs
exceed that limit, the household is cost burdened. The monthly cost limit for households in Apex
by size and income level is shown in the table below.

Area Median Income (AMI) Limits for Raleigh MSA, 2020

Maximum Affordable Monthly Housing Costs for Raleigh MSA, 2020

- Page 471 -



While Apex has set aside $1 million annually for affordable housing, leveraging other
funding sources may help the Town increase the impact of its affordable housing
programs. There are many funding sources available to support the Town in achieving its
goals, including County and Federal sources of funding for housing programs, philanthropic
funding, and private investment.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 53DRAFT

Funding Sources

Funding Source Description

HOME Funds
Federal funds allocated to states and local government to increase homeownership 
and affordable housing opportunities. Administered locally by Wake County.

Housing Choice Vouchers 
(HCV)

Federally-funded vouchers that assist very low-income families to rent affordable 
housing in the private market. Administered locally by the Wake County Housing 
Authority.

Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credit (LIHTC)

A federal program that provides a dollar-for-dollar tax credit to support the 
development of affordable rental housing. In North Carolina, the NC Housing 
Finance Agency allocates federal income tax credits to developers through an 
application process. There are two general types of credits that can be awarded: 
9% credits and 4% credits.

Wake County Affordable 
Housing Development 
Program (AHDP)

Gap financing for LIHTC developments provided by the County through a 
competitive process.

Elderly & Disabled Housing 
Rehabilitation Program

Wake County grant to improve the health and safety of homes for elderly (62 & 
older) or disabled individuals.

Emergency Rehabilitation 
Program

Wake County grant to respond to immediate health and safety risks of very low-
income residents.

Neighborhood 
Revitalization, Public 
Facilities, & Public 
Improvements

Wake County grant to increase housing affordability, neighborhood revitalization, 
and public improvement projects for low-to-moderate income eligible areas of 
municipalities outside of Raleigh and Cary.

Public Land Disposition
Wake County program to analyze, identify, and dispose of County-owned 
property for the purpose of affordable housing.

Rental Assistance Housing 
Program

Wake County program to provide rental subsidies and case management services 
for individuals experiencing: chronic homelessness with a behavioral health 
diagnosis, HIV/AIDS, youth aging out of foster care, and veterans.

Emergency Assistance, 
Street Outreach, & Rapid 
Rehousing

Wake County program to provide funding, through local non-profits, for low-
income individuals or families to resolve homelessness through immediate outreach, 
shelter, and/or rehousing.

- Page 472 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 54DRAFT

Funding Sources (continued)

Funding Source Description

NC Home Advantage Tax 
Credit

A Mortgage Credit Certificate provided by the State for eligible first-time home 
buyers and veterans.

NC 1st Home Advantage 
Down Payment Assistance

Down payment assistance provided by the State for eligible first-time home buyers 
and veterans.

Urgent Repair
Funding provided by the State for partner organizations to provide deferred, 
forgiven loans of up to $10,000 for emergency home repairs for very low-income 
owner-occupied homes.

Community Partners Loan 
Pool

A State program that offers eligible home buyers a 0 percent interest, deferred 
second mortgage. The loan is typically repaid when the home is sold or at the end 
of the loan term.

Philanthropy
Philanthropic grants can support nonprofit affordable housing programs and 
activities including small-scale development and home repairs.

Private Banks
In order to meet their obligations under the Community Reinvestment Act (CRA), 
some banks offer mortgage financing for housing for low and moderate-income 
households. 

Private Investment
Private investment in the development and repair of housing is crucial to the health 
of Apex’s housing market.

- Page 473 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 55DRAFT

Title

2. Public Engagement

- Page 474 -



Public Survey Results

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 56DRAFT

58% of survey respondents think the Town should address affordable 
housing, but few types of potential tools received majority support.

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Provide direct financial assistance to build
affordable housing

Provide down payment assistance for first-time
home buyers

Provide financial assistance for home repairs
for low and moderate income homeowners

Provide public land to build affordable housing

Change its land use regulations in some areas
to allow for more apartments to be built

Ease requirements for developments that
provide affordable housing

Change its land use regulations in some areas
to allow for more duplexes, triplexes, and

quadplexes to be built

Change its land use regulations in some areas
to allow for more accessory dwellings units

(ADUs) to be built

Provide more supportive services to those
experiencing eviction, homelessness, and other

housing instability

Prioritize housing development near amenities
such as transit and retail

Do nothing to address affordable housing
issues in Apex

Agree Neutral Disagree

The Town should….

- Page 475 -



Public Survey Results

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 57DRAFT

Statement Owners Renters
Incomes $75k 

and Above
Incomes $35k 

and Below

Everyone deserves access to safe, quality 
housing that is affordable to their income

62% 85% 68% 82%

Those that work in Apex should be able to 
live in Apex

54% 82% 61% 75%

Displacement of Residents is a concern in 
Apex

31% 55% 37% 41%

The Town should provide direct financial 
assistance to build affordable housing

23% 50% 26% 52%

The Town should offer down-payment 
assistance for first-time  home buyers

19% 51% 24% 57%

Survey responses varied most significantly by housing tenure.

- Page 476 -



Stakeholder Engagement Summary

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 58DRAFT

HR&A interviewed 15 stakeholders between June 5th and August 10th as part of the initial data and information 
gathering process to guide the Housing Needs Assessment. These individuals are not quoted by name but are 
social service providers, housing developers, realtors, and individuals who have personally been impacted by 
affordable housing issues in Apex with a range of incomes and housing needs. 

Pressing Challenges: Vulnerable Populations
• Most of the residents that local housing service providers are working with have been in and around Apex 

for generations (“Apex is growing up around them”). They shared that there are not people moving to Apex 
who are at the lower income bracket, and so most of the housing vulnerabilities seen in their clients are 
about preservation of affordable housing and mitigation of displacement. 

• Apex residents utilizing housing services include both renters and multigenerational homeowners. Roughly 
40% of these residents are seniors.

• Lower income homeowners sometimes choose not to sell to flippers because they know that it won’t be 
enough to get them another house in Apex.

• Apex’s Hispanic/Latino/Latina/Latinx community has especially struggled with housing affordability, 
because of their incomes and because some are undocumented and thus unable to secure a mortgage.

• Several residents observed a steep shift in naturally-occurring affordable housing (NOAH) around 2014-
2016 and were priced out of Apex during this time frame. Others have observed a gradual trend since 
2008 of lower-income residents in Apex moving to Holly Springs, Clayton, and other further-out locations. 

• Several interviewees agreed that Apex’s remaining trailer parks are “ripe for the picking” and are 
concerned about the threat of displacement of Apex renters in this source of NOAH.

• Others felt that foreclosures are the biggest risk for displacement of homeowners. 
• Many interviewees were also unclear if many vulnerable individuals in the Triangle would want to live in the 

town if more affordable housing was available. Particular groups that may be less incentivized to live in 
Apex: families without cars (due to Apex’s limited transportation amenities), or racial and ethnic minorities 
(due to concerns about racism and racist events at local schools). 

Pressing Challenges: Land
• Many builders noted the high land costs in Western Wake County as a primary challenge in building 

affordable housing. 
• It is also difficult for affordable housing developers to acquire land for projects, as they have found 

challenges competing in the private market. The main form of land acquisition for affordable housing has 
come through donation of scattered sites, but interviewees did not see this as a sustainable long-term 
solution.

• National builders have come to the Western part of the County (Cary, Apex, Morrisville, Holly Springs) to 
meet growing demand and pushed prices up ($150,000 per acre for land zoned for 3-8 units/acre). At the 
same time: existing home prices are escalating in the eastern and southern parts of the County, even when 
their land prices are still in $60-70K/per acre.

• Apex also has a land availability problem because it lacks parcels that meet Qualified Allocation Plan 
(QAP) requirements. This directly inhibits the construction of Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) projects. 
Apex has few parcels that would meet an adequate site score due to the land’s distance from amenities and 
transit. 

- Page 477 -



Stakeholder Engagement Summary

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 59DRAFT

Who are the major service providers in the area, and what are they doing?
• Mostly the churches and County service providers have worked in Western Wake. 
• The towns (Apex, Cary, etc.) don’t have federal homelessness dollars in their communities, so most funding 

is private dollars from various fundraising activities that is disseminated towards small churches.
• Apex is seen as having “a good group of people that are coordinating and collaborating”, but not on a 

larger scale similar to the Continuum of Care. 
• When someone needs homeless prevention and rapid rehousing in Apex, housing service providers have 

to connect them with a larger organization in Raleigh or an Apex church or the Western Wake Crisis 
Ministry.

• Many providers are balancing providing emergency services now with trying to find land to build 
affordable housing in the long-term. 

• Others are providing support on down payment issues for first time home buyers and trying to educate 
these buyers with classes. However, participation for first-time homeownership programs in Apex is low, 
because home prices are so expensive.

How has COVID shifted the work of housing service providers? 
• Since COVID, housing providers have shifted from financial assistance to providing greater amounts of 

emergency rental assistance.
• Several partnerships (such as between local providers and the Partnership to End Homelessness) have 

emerged to meet the increased need, but these County-wide providers are at an immense backlog due 
to the need in lower-income sections of Wake County.

• Providers have witnessed more individuals at risk of homelessness in Apex than ever before. Roughly 4-5 
families per week in the town need to be housed in hotels or other accommodations. This is a third of the 
annual total of Apex families served in previous years.

• Apex and Western Wake housing providers are currently attempting to close the gap between intake, 
referral, and assistance (given the imminent risk of eviction for many families).

- Page 478 -



Stakeholder Engagement Summary

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 60DRAFT

Recommendations from Housing Advocates and Professionals 
• Try to use builders from Wake County and North Carolina (for affordable housing). 
• Nearly all stakeholders agreed that Apex needs to build more houses that cost under $200,000 and are 

affordable to lower-income households. There is a consensus that while down-payment assistance and 
mortgage programs could help supplement existing need, the core issue is about building more homes 
that are affordable with existing state programs and within reach of lower and middle-income 
households.

• Several also believe that the success of this plan will be tied to the ability to tell a compelling story 
about the benefits of affordable housing in Apex.  “If we can shift away from language that points the 
problem at the people who need housing to language about creating healthier communities, that will go 
very far.”

• A growing concern: on a few Apex projects completed by a regional affordable housing provider, 
property taxes were a concern for residents. These taxes are making it difficult for lower AMI 
homeowners to remain in their homes. 

• Housing providers that we spoke to want to see a shift to preservation through rehab and describe it as 
a crucial opportunity to serve communities as land is becoming more scarce and/or expensive. Rehab can 
take place through partnerships with the Town and other nonprofits.

• Finally, nearly all participants agreed that the Town will need to partner with housing providers to land 
bank for affordable housing. 
o “The more we can land bank now, the more we’ll be able to address future affordability 

challenges.”
o Some suggested that Town staff may need to go back to GIS and identify parcels that, even if 

unavailable now, would be priorities to “snatch up” when possible.  
o “We need the City’s buy-in as land values go up—they can help us find land at $20-$25K per 

lot.” 

Recommendations from Residents with Housing Challenges
• Residents with housing challenges equally prioritized the need for smaller, more affordable homes in 

Apex.
o Many remarked that 1,500 SF homes would be suitable sizes for “starter homes” and affordable 

homes for seniors. Interviewees named $300,000 as a feasible starting price in their communities. 
• Others agreed on the growing property tax burden for seniors and lower-income residents. One resident 

recommended that the County freeze property taxes for seniors (like herself), who are 65 years old and 
above.  

• Residents wanted the Town to try to use builders from Wake County and North Carolina (for affordable 
housing, in order to keep revenue for builders in NC.

• Other residents have witnessed instances of predatory lending and higher down-payment requirements 
for undocumented immigrants in Apex. This has led them to move to mobile home subdivisions instead of 
pursuing homeownership or expensive luxury apartments. 
o One interviewee felt that down payment assistance and/or alternative mortgage products would 

help improve this issue. 
• Finally, one resident felt that there is a potential opportunity for Apex to deliver more “affordable” 

student or employee housing.
o They felt that local universities and major employers (such as IBM, Lenovo, Red Hat, Cisco, GSK, 

Credit Suisse, and Fidelity) may be open to providing this for their employees. 

- Page 479 -



HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 61DRAFT

Title

3. Housing Needs 
Assessment

- Page 480 -



In recent decades, Apex’s population has grown significantly faster than County, state,
and national trends. Since 2010, the Town of Apex has gained nearly 14,000 residents, an
overall growth rate of 40%. This is compared to 23% growth in the rest of Wake County, and
9.5% growth in the state of North Carolina. Since 1990, Apex’s population has grown by
nearly ten times the number of residents, meaning that much of the Town and its housing, are
relatively new.

This monumental growth is evidenced by several accolades that indicate Apex’s appeal. In the
past five years alone, Apex has been ranked the fastest growing suburb in the United States,
the second-best city in North Carolina to get a job, the fourth safest place to live in North
Carolina, and the best place to live in America.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 62DRAFT

Population Trends in Apex

4,968

20,212

34,427

48,254

1990 2000 2010 2018

Apex Population, 1990-2018

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Movoto, Realtor.Com, Money Magazine, Time Magazine

9.5%
North Carolina population 

growth since 2010

23.0%
Wake County population 

growth since 2010

40.0%
Apex population growth 

since 2010

- Page 481 -



Though population grew for many groups, Apex’s population remains predominantly
white and affluent. While Apex has grown amongst all income categories and racial or ethnic
groups since 2010, a significant majority of new residents continue to be white. From 2010 to
2018, Apex gained over 10,000 White residents, and the Town’s share of White residents
remained at 75%. During the same time period, Wake County’s share of White residents
declined, from 63% to 60%. This suggests that even through there has been some growth in the
Town’s residents of color, the population growth in Apex is less diverse than population growth
in the county. Asian) residents since 2010.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 63DRAFT

Population Trends in Apex 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

White Black or African
American

Hispanic Asian Other

Apex Population By Race
2010 2018

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Decennial Census (2010)

0
500

1,000
1,500
2,000
2,500
3,000
3,500
4,000
4,500

Less than
$20K

$20K to
$35K

$35K to
$50K

$50K to
$75K

$75K to
$100K

$100K to
$150K

$150K to
$200K

$200K or
more

Apex Income Distribution And Growth
2010 2018

Apex’s median income is much higher than Wake County’s. In 2018, the median household
in Apex earned $105,000, which is higher than the countywide median income of $72,000.
This difference is driven in part by significant growth in Apex’s high-income households.
Since 2010, 85% of new Apex households earn more than $100,000 each year. This rate is
similar to Wake County, where 81% of new households earn over $100,000 each year. Apex
has decreased its share of low and moderate-income residents (earning $35,000 to $75,000),
whereas Wake County, still has many moderate-income enclaves.

- Page 482 -



The majority of Apex households own their homes, but the number of renters is
increasing. Like many suburban towns, an overwhelming majority of Apex households own

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 64DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex 

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Decennial Census (2010)

Renters

Owners

Housing Tenure in Apex, 2018

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

34 and Under 35 to 54 55 to 74 75 and Over

Age Of Renters in Apex
2010 2018

their homes. 74% percent of Apex
households are homeowners, compared
to 64% of households in Wake County,
which includes more urbanized areas and
a larger stock of multifamily housing.

Homeowner households are continuing to
grow rapidly—Apex has added 3,700
homeowner households since 2010 for an
overall growth rate of 42%. However, in
a noted shift from prior trends, Apex
added 1,600 renter households since
2010, for an overall growth rate of
56%. This percent growth is high in part
because of the relatively low number of
renters (and available rental units) in
Apex in 2010. This growth in renters has
largely been at the highest-income bands
(over $75,000), reflecting the high price
point of recent multifamily developments.

74%

26%

- Page 483 -



The majority of Apex’s housing is single family, and large multifamily development
makes up a relatively small percentage of total units.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 65DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex 

69%

60%

13%

12%

10%

16%

6%

9%

2%

3%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Apex

Wake
County

Housing Units By Type

Small Multifamily 
(3-19 units)

Large Multifamily 
(20+ units)

Single Family 
Homes

Townhomes & 
Duplexes Other

Single family detached homes comprise just under 70% of Apex’s housing stock, indicating the
predominance of this form in the Town. The majority of these single family homes (89%) are
owner-occupied (versus renter-occupied), which confirms that tenure in Apex generally
correlates with housing type. Apex’s housing stock has a larger share of single family homes
and smaller share of small and large multifamily developments than the Wake County housing
stock as a whole.

Even with the predominance of single family housing stock, survey responses have indicated
that there is a need for greater affordable units amongst all housing types.

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018)

“The rising costs of  single family and multifamily homes are way too high for me, as a 
single parent.”
--Apex resident and survey respondent

- Page 484 -



“We purchased a home over a decade ago when prices were still reasonable. We 
would not be able to afford a home in Apex now, especially a new construction home 
that averages $400K.” 
–Apex resident and survey respondent. 

Single family home prices have been increasing sharply since the 2009 Great Recession,
with the entry point for homes in Apex becoming particularly high.

When discussing home values, the entry point represents the median value for the bottom third
of all homes in the housing market. This is generally the “point of entry” for most prospective
homebuyers. Since 2000, Apex’s entry point has ballooned to nearly $300,000, which is
consistent with the affordability challenges highlighted by many residents.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 66DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex

Apex and Wake County Home Values

$283K

$215K

Source: Zillow Home Value Index, ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018)

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

Apex Entry Point Wake County Entry Point

Rising home prices, particularly for the lowest cost 
homes in Apex, are increasingly putting homeownership 

out of reach for first-time homebuyers

- Page 485 -



If trends continue, households earning less than $100K will have limited access to
homeownership in Apex. Since the Great Recession, Apex home values have risen 4.2% each
year, and now exceed pre-recession prices. While this rebound is a sign of economic
prosperity and the desirability of the Town, in recent years, rising home values have
exacerbated affordability challenges in Apex. Accounting for inflation, the income required to
purchase a median value home in Apex has increased by 40% since 2011.

In order to purchase the median home in Apex, which costs $377,000, residents would need to
earn $94,000, or otherwise would spend more of their income on housing than is advised by
HUD guidelines. $377,000 is well above the affordable home value for Apex residents
without a college degree ($138,000), or the median household in Wake County ($307,000).
This gap suggests that many households will have increasing difficulty accessing
homeownership opportunities in Apex, as they continue to be priced out of its housing market.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 67DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex 

$80,900 

$68,000 

$94,100 

 $-
 $10,000
 $20,000
 $30,000
 $40,000
 $50,000
 $60,000
 $70,000
 $80,000
 $90,000

 $100,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Income Required to Purchase the 
Median Value Home in Apex

Source: Zillow Home Value Index, ACS 5-Year Estimates, Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index

40% increase
in required income, 2011-2018

The increasing income required to purchase a house in Apex makes it 
more difficult for low- and moderate-income households to participate in 

the housing market, which can contribute to gentrification and 
displacement.

- Page 486 -



The number of multifamily housing units in Apex has increased substantially in recent
years, in part due to the development of four new high-amenity apartment buildings.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 68DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex 

Source: CoStar Commercial Listing Service, ACS 5-Year Estimates

Meridian at 
Nichols Plaza
Built in 2020 | 270 Units 

Flats at 540
Built in 2017 | 212 Units 

Meridian at Ten Ten
Built in 2019 | 272 Units 

The Villages at 
Westford
Built in 2019 | 296 Units 

New construction typically has a rent premium, and these recently built communities have
luxury amenities. This has impacted the median gross rent in Apex, which is $1,300 compared
to $1,100 in Wake County, which has a broader range of multifamily housing including
apartments that have fewer amenities.

Excluding new developments, many of which are still in the lease-up and stabilization phases,
Apex has a healthy multifamily vacancy rate of 5%.

These newly built properties are commanding rents similar to other parts of Western Wake
County, and certain communities in Raleigh. However, while these other parts of Wake County
have seen a growth in market-rate apartment communities as well as new construction of
LIHTC-subsidized apartments, Apex has not grown its stock of affordable multifamily
development in recent years.

- Page 487 -



The Town also has several multifamily projects in development or recently completed.
These developments will help to add density near downtown and create mixed-use,
pedestrian-friendly activity centers in other sections of town. These developments will help to
meet demand amongst Apex’s quickly-growing population of high-income renters and deliver
housing that suits the preferences of the growing number of Americans who prefer to live in
suburban communities that feature walkable, mixed-use nodes.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 69DRAFT

Housing Trends in Apex

Source: Town of Apex

Sweetwater Phase 9
230 multifamily units

0 Wrenn Street

Proposed

Small Town Character Overlay

3115 US Highway 64

Proposed

Mixed-Use Town Center

2030 Laura Duncan Road

Recently Completed

Senior Housing

The Reserve at Mills Farm
153 multifamily units

Linwood Creek Apartments
18 multifamily units

- Page 488 -



Stakeholder interviews and public survey responses confirm that rising home costs are
creating housing affordability challenges for Apex residents.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 70DRAFT

Housing Challenges in Apex

Market Challenges to Housing Affordability in Apex
• Gentrification reduces the availability of naturally-occurring affordable housing (NOAH)

and puts homeownership out of reach for many moderate-income households

• Zoning and development patterns limit opportunities for denser development that could
reduce price pressures by increasing the supply of housing. However, higher density
redevelopment can also lead to the loss of older housing that tends to be more affordable

• Mobile home parks, one type of NOAH in Apex, are susceptible to redevelopment,
which could displace current residents

• Older single family housing near downtown, another type of NOAH, is also susceptible
to redevelopment by property investors

• New construction is costly, which means that rents for new market rate apartments are
high compared to the limited number of older apartments in Apex

“We need to figure out how to slow gentrification. Charming affordable 1950s 
homes in my neighborhood are being demolished and replaced with McMansions 
crammed into little lots.”
-Apex resident and survey respondent

Source: Public Survey, Stakeholder interviews
- Page 489 -



Although Apex has seen additional multifamily development in recent years, the Town
has a very limited stock of subsidized affordable rental housing.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 71DRAFT

Housing Challenges in Apex

Because new market-rate development is expensive, subsidy is required to develop new
affordable rental housing. While continued luxury development can help free up some
naturally-occurring affordable units for low-income households, subsidized housing is a core
means of providing adequate housing for lower-income residents. Presently, Apex has
fewer than 200 subsidized units that can meet the needs of these residents. Apex has 4.2% of
all the housing units in Wake County, but only 1.6% of the subsidized units in Wake County.
While Wake County recently exceeded its subsidized housing development goal by funding
780 affordable housing units in a single year, the Town of Apex has not had a proportional
share of subsidized development over the past two decades. As rents and home prices continue
to increase in Apex, this leaves fewer options for low-income residents to remain in Apex.

Source: CoStar, NC HFA, Housing Authority of County of Wake (HACW) , Wake County Division of Housing 
Affordability and Community Revitalization 

Wake Acres Apartments
Built in 1983 || 48 Units 
Family & Senior

Beechridge Apartments
Built in 1997 || 40 Units || Family

West Haven Apartments
Built in 1997 || 72 Units || Family

- Page 490 -



High land costs and a lack of sites that meet LIHTC location requirements make it
expensive to increase Apex’s subsidized housing stock.

Compared to many neighboring parts of Wake County, Apex has prohibitively high land costs,
which makes it difficult for affordable housing developers (many of which are non-profits) to
compete with market-rate developers in the land sale process. The lack of available public
land from the Town, which could potentially offer low-cost land, further complicates this
challenge.

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 72DRAFT

Housing Challenges in Apex

Source: NC HFA, Stakeholder interviews

“National builders came to Western Wake and pushed up land prices. You’re now at 
$150K per acre for land zoned for 3-8 units/acre, when [land in] the rest of the 
County is still at $60K per acre.”
–Non-profit housing developer in Wake County

Furthermore, even in the cases when affordable housing developers can find parcels that are
large enough for multifamily development, Apex’s suburban character makes it difficult to find
land that is proximate to grocery stores, transit, and other amenities. Due to the rigorous site
selection scoring in the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency’s Qualified Allocation Plan,
many parcels that are not close to these amenities do not score highly enough to be selected
for competitive Low-Income Housing Tax Credit funding. Several Wake County LIHTC
developers articulated this as a core challenge to realizing affordable rental housing in Apex.

Primary Amenities Under 1 mi. Under 1.5 mi. Under 2 mi.

Grocery 12 points 10 points 8 points

Shopping 7 points 6 points 5 points

Pharmacy 7 points 6 points 5 points

Transit
6 points if stop is: within 0.25 mi., has continuous sidewalks, and includes 

a covered waiting area

Site Score Evaluation Criteria
From 2020 NC Qualified Allocation Plan

- Page 491 -



The lack of racial diversity in Apex is an area of concern and will require an explicit focus
on racial equity to make sure that Apex is welcoming to all. This lack of diversity is likely
due to a combination of factors, including:

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 73DRAFT

Housing Challenges in Apex

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates (2018), Public survey
* Richard Rothstein’s The Color of Law provides a thorough account of the federal and local policies that have 
created and shaped residential segregation in the United States

Historical national and local policies have contributed to creating
and enforcing patterns of segregation, particularly in suburbs*.
• Policies - including mortgage lending policy and suburban

zoning patterns - have historically restricted homeownership
opportunities for Black residents and other people of color

• Housing discrimination persists in communities across the US

HISTORICAL 
POLICIES AND 
ONGOING 
DRIVERS OF 
SEGREGATION

AFFORDABILITY 
CHALLENGES

In part due to this discrimination, income, wealth, and race are
correlated. A persistent racial wealth gap and access to credit
limits opportunities for homeownership by nonwhite households.

• In Wake County, the median income for Black households is
$52,300, compared with $89,700 for White, non-Hispanic
households.

• In Wake County, the homeownership rate is 44% for Black
householders compared with 72% for White, non-Hispanic
householders.

RESIDENT 
PERCEPTIONS 
AND 
EXPERIENCES

Public survey responses note challenges to Apex welcoming diverse
residents.

• “How can we better integrate our neighborhoods, instead of
having the ‘black’ and ‘white’ sides of Town divided by
Williams Street?”

• “I think more diverse people would move here if there were a
bigger POC [people of color] community, or at the very least
diverse businesses/restaurants/shops.”

- Page 492 -



Affordable Housing Incentive Zoning
Apex will create a clear menu of suggested affordable housing zoning conditions for 

developers to choose from in exchange for incentives as part of the rezoning and 
Planned Unit Development approval processes.

What it Means
When proposed development requires Town Council approval, the Town has an opportunity to
encourage new development to include affordable housing units. Incentive zoning conditions
are intended to prompt and help developers provide a public good, such as affordable
housing units, as part of a proposed development, in exchange for incentives that compensate
for the loss of revenue. Such incentive zoning conditions are proffered by the developer and
cannot be imposed by the Town Council.

How it Works

Need in Apex
Apex already provides incentives for affordable housing and other public benefits, but lacks a
clear set of conditions, which can pose a barrier to the production of new housing. In addition,
the Town wants to protect Naturally-Occurring Affordable Housing and limit gentrification
pressures from new housing development.

Recommendations for Apex
The Town should establish a clear policy to provide incentives for developers in exchange for
affordable housing units or an equivalent fee payment toward the Town’s Housing Trust Fund.
The program should include special requirements for discretionary development in areas
particularly sensitive to redevelopment, such as mobile home parks, to minimize displacement.

Implementation
1. Review existing approval processes and recently-

approved projects to help develop clear guidelines.
2. Develop an incentive zoning condition, specifying target 

affordability and available incentives.
3. Establish criteria and a process to review projects.

Timing: Near-term (<2 years)

Goals: 

Long-term 
affordability of a 

portion of units 
through rent or price 

reduction or an 
equivalent fee

DEVELOPER
OFFERS

AFFORDABILITY

TOWN
OFFERS
INCENTIVES

Ex: Increased 
density

Ex: Reduced parking 
requirements or 

setbacks

HR&A Advisors, Inc. Apex Affordable Housing Plan | 32DRAFT
- Page 493 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  PU BL I C  HE AR I N G  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  Janu ar y  26 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Am a n d a Bunc e ,  Cu r re n t  P l ann i n g M an a ger  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  P l ann i n g and  C o mmu n i ty  D e ve l op men t  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Pub l i c  He ar i n g and  p o ss i b le  mo t i on  re gar d i n g  a men d men ts  t o  th e  Un i f i ed De ve lo p men t  Ord i n anc e  

re la te d to  the  d ea d l i ne  fo r  the  su b mi t t a l  o f  reques te d quar te r l y  r ec e i pt s  fo r  bu s i nes s es  tha t  s e r ve  

a lc oho l  fo r  on -p re mi s e  c on su mp t i on .  

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

The  P l ann i n g a nd  Co m mun i t y  De ve lo p men t  De p ar t me nt  rec o m m end s  a p pro va l .  

The  P la nn i ng Bo ar d h ear d th ese  a men d me nt s  a t  the i r  Ja nuar y  1 1 ,  2021  mee t i ng an d unan i mous ly  

rec o mmen de d a ppr o va l .   

I tem De ta i l s  

Su mma r y  o f  UD O Ame nd men ts :  

 

R eques te d b y  P l ann i n g S ta f f :  

1 .  Am e n d men t  t o  Sec s .  4 .3 .5  Use  C l as s i f ic at io ns ,  Com merc ia l  U ses ;  4 .3 .6  Use  C l as s i f ic at io ns ,  

I ndu s t r ia l  U se s ;  4 .4 .4  Sup p l eme nt a l  S t and ard s ,  R ec reat ion a l  Uses ;  4 .4 .5  Su p p l emen t a l  

S t and ar ds ,  R e t a i l  S a l e s  an d Se rv ic e  i n  o r d e r  t o  re qu i re  a  bu s i nes s  w i t h  a lc o ho l  s a l e s  fo r  

on - p re mi s e  c o nsu mp t i on  to  su b mi t  qu ar t e r l y  g r os s  rec e i p t s  w i th i n  10  d ay s  u po n  re ques t  o f  

a  Z on i ng  C o mpl i a nc e  Of f i c e r .  

 

At t ac h men t s  

  S taf f  R e p or t  

  Ord i n anc e  

  Leg a l  N o t i c e  

 

- Page 494 -



 

1 

STAFF REPORT 
Amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance 

January 26, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 
Requested by Planning Staff: 
 
1. Amendment to Secs. 4.3.5 Use Classifications, Commercial Uses; 4.3.6 Use Classifications, Industrial 

Uses; 4.4.4 Supplemental Standards, Recreational Uses; 4.4.5 Supplemental Standards, Retail Sales 
and Service in order to require a business with alcohol sales for on-premise consumption to submit 
quarterly gross receipts within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer. 

 
4.3.5  Use Classifications, Commercial Uses 
 

A) Adult Use 
… 
2) Bar, nightclub, wine bar, or taproom. An establishment that generates more 

than 49% of its quarterly gross receipts from the sale of alcoholic beverages 
from on-premise consumption. Such receipts shall be provided within 10 days 
upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; failure to provide the receipts in 
the specified time frame is a violation of this Ordinance. This use may include 
live bands, other music, and dancing as well as games of skill, such as, but not 
limited to, pool or darts for use by the patrons of the establishment. 

… 
… 
 
C) Food and Beverage Service 

… 
2) Restaurant, general. “Restaurant, general” means an establishment where the 

principal business is the sale of food and non-alcoholic beverages in a ready-to-
consume state, the receipts from alcohol sales do not exceed the limit stated in 
UDO Subsection 4.3.5(.C)( .2)( .e), and the design or principal method of 
operation consists of one or more of the following: 

 
a) A sit-down restaurant or café where customers normally sit at a table, 

are provided with an individual menu, and are generally served food 
and beverages in non-disposable containers by a restaurant employee. 
Customers may also be served food and beverages by a restaurant 
employee at a counter; or 

 
b) A cafeteria or cafeteria-type operation where foods and beverages 

generally are served in non-disposable containers and consumed within 
the restaurant; or 

 
c) A restaurant, which may have characteristics of a fast food restaurant, 

having floor area exclusively within a shopping or office center, sharing 
common parking facilities with other businesses within the center, and 
having access to a common interior pedestrian accessway. 

 

- Page 495 -



 

2 

d) An establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of a limited variety 
of baked goods, candy, coffee, ice cream or other specialty food items, 
which may be prepared for on-premises sale and which may be 
consumed on the site, but excluding any service to a customer in an 
automobile. Typical uses include delicatessens, retail bakeries, coffee 
shops, donut shops, and ice cream parlors. 

 
e) This use may include the on-premise sale, service and consumption of 

alcoholic beverages as an accessory and secondary use, provided that 
an establishment’s quarterly gross receipts from the sale of alcoholic 
beverages for on-premise consumption shall not exceed 49% of the 
establishment’s quarterly total gross receipts from the sale of food, 
non-alcoholic beverages, and alcoholic beverages. Such receipts shall 
be provided within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance 
Officer; failure to provide the receipts in the specified time frame is a 
violation of this Ordinance. 

 
 
4.3.6 Use Classifications, Industrial Uses 

… 
B) Production 

… 
7) Brewery. A facility for the brewing of beer that produces greater than 15,000 

barrels per year. This use may include the on-premise sale, service and 
consumption of alcoholic beverages as an accessory and secondary use, 
provided that an establishment’s quarterly gross receipts from the sale of 
alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption shall not exceed 49% of the 
establishment’s quarterly total gross receipts. Such receipts shall be provided 
within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; failure to provide 
the receipts in the specified time frame is a violation of this Ordinance. 

… 
9) Distillery. A facility for the distillation of spirituous liquor that produces greater 

than 15,000 barrels per year. This use may include the on-premise sale, service 
and consumption of alcoholic beverages as an accessory and secondary use, 
provided that an establishment’s quarterly gross receipts from the sale of 
alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption shall not exceed 49% of the 
establishment’s quarterly total gross receipts. Such receipts shall be provided 
within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; failure to provide 
the receipts in the specified time frame is a violation of this Ordinance. 

 
10) Microdistillery. A small facility for the distillation of spirituous liquor that 

produces less than 15,000 barrels per year. It may include a tasting room on the 
site. This use may include the on-premise sale, service and consumption of 
alcoholic beverages as an accessory and secondary use, provided that an 
establishment’s quarterly gross receipts from the sale of alcoholic beverages for 
on-premise consumption shall not exceed 49% of the establishment’s quarterly 
total gross receipts. Such receipts shall be provided within 10 days upon request 
of a Zoning Compliance Officer; failure to provide the receipts in the specified 
time frame is a violation of this Ordinance. 

… 

- Page 496 -



 

3 

 
4.4.4  Supplemental Standards, Recreational Uses 

An establishment in the recreational uses category may sell unfortified wine and malt beverages 
provided that the establishment meets all the requirements of an Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Commission permit and the establishment’s on-premise alcohol sales do not exceed 49% of the 
establishment’s quarterly gross receipts. Such receipts shall be provided within 10 days upon 
request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; failure to provide the receipts in the specified time 
frame is a violation of this Ordinance. 
 

4.4.5 Supplemental Standards, Commercial Uses 
… 
G) Retail Sales and Service 

An establishment in the retail sales and service category may sell unfortified wine and 
malt beverages provided that the establishment meets all the requirements of an 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission permit and the establishment’s on-premise 
alcohol sales do not exceed 49% of the establishment’s quarterly gross receipts. Such 
receipts shall be provided within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; 
failure to provide the receipts in the specified time frame is a violation of this 
Ordinance. 
… 

 
 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of the proposed UDO amendments.  
 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board heard these amendments at their January 11, 2021 meeting and unanimously 
recommended approval. 

- Page 497 -



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Unified Development Ordinance Amendments 
Planning Board Meeting Date:  
 

Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS §160D-604, all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall be submitted 
to the Planning Board for review and comment. If no written report is received from the Planning Board 
within 30 days of referral of the amendment to the Planning Board, the Town Council may act on the 
amendment without the Planning Board report. The Town Council is not bound by the recommendations, if 
any, of the Planning Board. 

Planning Board Recommendation:  

Motion:  

  
  
Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  
  

 Approval of the proposed UDO amendment(s) 
 Approval of the proposed UDO amendment(s) with the following conditions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 Denial of the proposed UDO amendment(s)  

 With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “aye” 
 

With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “no” 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  
  
  
  
  

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the ____ day of ____________ 2021. 

Attest:  
   

Michael Marks, Planning Board Chair 
 

 Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and 
Community Development 

January 11, 2021

To recommend approval as written.

Reginald Skinner
Tina Sherman

8
0

11th January

✔

Michael Marks Digitally signed by Michael Marks 
Date: 2021.01.13 19:04:20 -05'00' Dianne Khin Digitally signed by Dianne Khin 

Date: 2021.01.13 10:21:24 
-05'00'

- Page 498 -



 

 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION  
OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE  
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE (UDO) 
 

Notice is hereby given of a public hearing before the Town Council of the Town of Apex for the purpose of soliciting 
comments relative to the following amendment(s) to the Unified Development Ordinance: 

 
 

Requested by Planning Staff: 
1. Amendment to Secs. 4.3.5 Use Classifications, Commercial Uses; 4.3.6 Use Classifications, Industrial Uses; 

4.4.4 Supplemental Standards, Recreational Uses; 4.4.5 Supplemental Standards, Retail Sales and Service 
in order to require a business with alcohol sales for on-premise consumption to submit quarterly gross 
receipts within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer. Failure to provide the receipts within 
the specified time frame would be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
 
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  

                                     Council Chambers, 2nd Floor 
                                 73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  
 
 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time: January 26, 2021   6:00 PM 
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 

If you are unable to attend, you may share comments by noon on Monday, January 25, 2021, following 
instructions in the http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/. The policy includes options to 
provide comments by email (public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-362-7300,  
3-minute limit). You must provide your name and address for the record. These comments will be read 
during the Town Council meeting. 
 

If the Council meeting is held with at least one member attending virtually, written comments on the 
subject of the public hearing may be submitted between publication of any required notice and 24 hours 
after the public hearing and the Council’s vote will occur at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
 

The UDO can be accessed online at: http://www.apexnc.org/233. 
 
 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Development 

 

Published Dates: January 4-26, 2021 

- Page 499 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31397/Remote-Participation-Policy-for-Public-Participation-at-Council-Meetings?bidId=
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/233


- Page 500 -



1 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CERTAIN SECTIONS OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as follows: 
 
 
Section 1. Sections 4.3.5.A.2, 4.3.5.C.2, 4.3.6.B, 4.4.4, and 4.4.5.G of the Unified Development 

Ordinance are amended to read as follows with additions shown as bold underlined text 
and deletions shown as struck-through text: 

 
4.3.5  Use Classifications, Commercial Uses 
 

A) Adult Use 
… 
2) Bar, nightclub, wine bar, or taproom. An establishment that generates more than 

49% of its quarterly gross receipts from the sale of alcoholic beverages from on-
premise consumption. Such receipts shall be provided within 10 days upon 
request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; failure to provide the receipts in the 
specified time frame is a violation of this Ordinance. This use may include live 
bands, other music, and dancing as well as games of skill, such as, but not limited 
to, pool or darts for use by the patrons of the establishment. 

… 
… 
C) Food and Beverage Service 

… 
2) Restaurant, general. “Restaurant, general” means an establishment where the 

principal business is the sale of food and non-alcoholic beverages in a ready-to-
consume state, the receipts from alcohol sales do not exceed the limit stated in 
UDO Subsection 4.3.5(.C)( .2)( .e), and the design or principal method of 
operation consists of one or more of the following: 

 

a) A sit-down restaurant or café where customers normally sit at a table, are 
provided with an individual menu, and are generally served food and 
beverages in non-disposable containers by a restaurant employee. 
Customers may also be served food and beverages by a restaurant 
employee at a counter; or 

 

b) A cafeteria or cafeteria-type operation where foods and beverages 
generally are served in non-disposable containers and consumed within 
the restaurant; or 

 

c) A restaurant, which may have characteristics of a fast food restaurant, 
having floor area exclusively within a shopping or office center, sharing 
common parking facilities with other businesses within the center, and 
having access to a common interior pedestrian accessway. 

 

d) An establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of a limited variety 
of baked goods, candy, coffee, ice cream or other specialty food items, 
which may be prepared for on-premises sale and which may be 
consumed on the site, but excluding any service to a customer in an 

- Page 501 -



2 

automobile. Typical uses include delicatessens, retail bakeries, coffee 
shops, donut shops, and ice cream parlors. 

 

e) This use may include the on-premise sale, service and consumption of 
alcoholic beverages as an accessory and secondary use, provided that an 
establishment’s quarterly gross receipts from the sale of alcoholic 
beverages for on-premise consumption shall not exceed 49% of the 
establishment’s quarterly total gross receipts from the sale of food, non-
alcoholic beverages, and alcoholic beverages. Such receipts shall be 
provided within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; 
failure to provide the receipts in the specified time frame is a violation 
of this Ordinance. 

 
4.3.6 Use Classifications, Industrial Uses 

… 
B) Production 

… 
7) Brewery. A facility for the brewing of beer that produces greater than 15,000 

barrels per year. This use may include the on-premise sale, service and 
consumption of alcoholic beverages as an accessory and secondary use, provided 
that an establishment’s quarterly gross receipts from the sale of alcoholic 
beverages for on-premise consumption shall not exceed 49% of the 
establishment’s quarterly total gross receipts. Such receipts shall be provided 
within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; failure to provide 
the receipts in the specified time frame is a violation of this Ordinance. 

… 
9) Distillery. A facility for the distillation of spirituous liquor that produces greater 

than 15,000 barrels per year. This use may include the on-premise sale, service 
and consumption of alcoholic beverages as an accessory and secondary use, 
provided that an establishment’s quarterly gross receipts from the sale of 
alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption shall not exceed 49% of the 
establishment’s quarterly total gross receipts. Such receipts shall be provided 
within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; failure to provide 
the receipts in the specified time frame is a violation of this Ordinance. 

 
10) Microdistillery. A small facility for the distillation of spirituous liquor that produces 

less than 15,000 barrels per year. It may include a tasting room on the site. This use 
may include the on-premise sale, service and consumption of alcoholic beverages 
as an accessory and secondary use, provided that an establishment’s quarterly 
gross receipts from the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption 
shall not exceed 49% of the establishment’s quarterly total gross receipts. Such 
receipts shall be provided within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance 
Officer; failure to provide the receipts in the specified time frame is a violation of 
this Ordinance. 

… 
 
4.4.4  Supplemental Standards, Recreational Uses 

An establishment in the recreational uses category may sell unfortified wine and malt beverages 
provided that the establishment meets all the requirements of an Alcoholic Beverage Control 

- Page 502 -



3 

Commission permit and the establishment’s on-premise alcohol sales do not exceed 49% of the 
establishment’s quarterly gross receipts. Such receipts shall be provided within 10 days upon 
request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; failure to provide the receipts in the specified time 
frame is a violation of this Ordinance. 

 
4.4.5 Supplemental Standards, Commercial Uses 

… 
G) Retail Sales and Service 

An establishment in the retail sales and service category may sell unfortified wine and 
malt beverages provided that the establishment meets all the requirements of an 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission permit and the establishment’s on-premise 
alcohol sales do not exceed 49% of the establishment’s quarterly gross receipts. Such 
receipts shall be provided within 10 days upon request of a Zoning Compliance Officer; 
failure to provide the receipts in the specified time frame is a violation of this 
Ordinance. 
… 

 
Section 2. The Planning Director and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to renumber, revise 

formatting, correct typographic errors, to verify and correct cross references, indexes and 
diagrams as necessary to codify, publish, and/or accomplish the provisions of this ordinance 
or future amendments as long as doing so does not alter the terms of this ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. If 

any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision of this ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to such section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or 
provision so adjudged and the remainder of the ordinance shall be deemed valid and 
effective. 

 
Section 4. The ordinance shall be effective upon enactment on the _____ day of _____________ 2021. 
 

Introduced by Council Member ________________________________ 
 
Seconded by Council Member _________________________________ 

 
Attest:     TOWN OF APEX 

 
 

_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC  Jacques K. Gilbert 
Town Clerk     Mayor 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 

- Page 503 -


	Top
	PR1	PLANWake Presentation
	SP_Cover_PLANWake

	PR2	Yoga Proclamation
	CS - Yogathon Proclamation
	PR-2021 Health for Humanity Yogathon

	PR3	Black History Month Proclamation
	CS - BHM Proclamation
	Proclamation - BHM 2021

	CN1	Tax Report
	CS - Tax Report
	Tax Report

	CN2	Tree CAP Reappointments
	CS - Tree CAP Appointment

	CN3	FY21 TDM Agreement with TJCOG
	CN_Cover_TDM
	Attachment 1_FY21_Triangle TDM Apex Subcontract
	Attachment 2_Final Approved FY21 TDM Budget_Apex_Dec 21 2020
	Attachment 3_Final Approved _Narrative_Apex

	CN4	Diamond Dove Encroachment
	Agenda Cover Sheet 1032 Diamond Dove Lane Encroachment Agreement
	1032 Diamond Dove Lane Encroachment Agreement
	Exhibit A

	CN5	Pleasant Park
	Pleasant Park - Agenda Item Cover Sheet 01.26.2021
	GMP Amendment 2 signed by JMT

	CN6	IT SR Center
	CS_IT itemsSRCenter
	CPO 2021-04

	CN7	IVC Transportation
	CS - IVC Transportation2
	Resolution adopting IVC Agreement
	IVC Transportation Agreement
	Community Crisis Services Plan_Wake_10.1.2019

	CN8	Vacation Leave Payout
	CN - Vacation Leave Payout

	PH1	Project Delta
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Econ Dev Incentive Grant Project Delta
	Attch Project Delta description and incentives

	PH2	ED Small Biz Support
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Econ Dev Small Biz Support
	Attch Small Biz COVID Support Proposal Winter 2021

	PH3	Annexation #699  1200 James Street
	Annex699PH
	Ordinance  2021-0126-03
	PetitionLegalMaps

	PH4	20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD
	20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD Cover-PH
	20CZ11 Roberts Road Properties PUD TC staff report-attachments

	PH5	Annexation #702 Yumeewara Farm
	AnnexPHAnnex702
	Ordinance 2021-0126-04
	PetitionLegalMaps

	PH6	20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly
	20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly Cover-PH
	20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly TC staff report - attachments
	20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly Ordinance
	20CZ13 Yumeewarra Farm Assembly Attachment A-Legal Description

	PH7	20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center
	20CZ15 Smithfield Road Collision Center Cover-PH
	20CZ15 Smithfield Rd CC TC staff report-attachments

	PH8	Town of Apex Affordable Housing Plan
	PH_Cover_AHP
	PH_TC Staff Report_Affordable Housing Plan
	Attachment 1_Comment Summary
	Attachment 2_Apex Affordable Housing Plan_Public DRAFT_2020.12.02
	Attachment 3_Apex Affordable Housing Plan_Recommended DRAFT_2021.01.07
	Attachment 4_Incentive Zoning Conditions_Alternate Wording

	PH9	Jan 2021 UDO Amendment-quarterly receipts-PH
	Cover Jan 2021 UDO Amendments-PH
	TC Staff Report Jan 2021 UDO Amendments-quarterly receipts
	Ordinance-Jan 2021 UDO amendments

	Bottom

